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Welcome to the Severn Trent
Annual Report 2018

OUR PURPOSE IS TO SERVE OUR
COMMUNITIES AND BUILD A LASTING
WATER LEGACY. THIS DRIVES OUR VISION
TO BE THE MOST TRUSTED WATER
COMPANY BY 2020, DELIVERING AN
OUTSTANDING CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE,
BEST VALUE SERVICE AND
ENVIRONMENTAL LEADERSHIP.

This report highlights the progress we have made over the past year
In achieving that vision through our strategic objectives and absolute
focus on delivering value for all of our stakeholders.

Were committed to keeping your water flowing clearly and making your
wasle water clean again, so you can carry on enjoying this force of
nature in your very own home, for generations to come.

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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20 MINUTES
OF TRANQUILITY...
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MADE BY DECADES
OF CONTINUED
INVESTMENT

Image removed

We have always been cormnmitted
to investing for the benefit of our
customers and future
generations. This year we
invested a total of £855 million
across our business, including

in renewable energy and the
resilience of our networks.

See more on page 38

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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1 MINUTE
NURTURING...
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MADE BY 100%
COMMITMENT

tmage removed

We are proud of the fact that we
have outperformed against our
commitments that our
customers most care about.
Our customer service and
operational improvements have
contributed to customer QDI
rewards of £80.2 million.

See our '00DIs" on page 32

WONDERFUL ON TAP

Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018 5




240ml OF
PURE QUALITY...

Image removed
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DELIVERED BY
49,000 km OF PIPES

Image removed

Our drinking water is rated at
99.96% for quality. We distribute
1.6 billion litres of quality drinking
water through 49,000 km of
pipework. This, combined with
94,000 km of sewage pipework,
is enough pipes to go around the
world three and a half times.

See more on page 34

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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Strategic report

What we do

We provide clean water and
waste water services and develop
renewable energy solutions
through our businesses:

Regulated Water
and Waste Water

Our Regulated Water and Waste
Water business includes the
wholesale and household retail
activities of Severn Trent Water
and Dee Valley Water.

image removed

The primary markets we focus on

s Wholesale operations and engineering
* Household customer services

About us

We are one of 10 targest regulated water and waste
water businesses 1n England and Wales We provide
high quality services to more than 4 3 raullion
househotds and businesses in the Midiands and Wales,

Where we operate

Qur region stretches across the heart of the UK, from
the Bristol Channel to the Humber, and from Morth and
mid-Wales 1o the East Midiands

Image removed
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Turnover

£1,574.6m

Households and
businesses served

4.3m

Profit before interest
and tax

£503.8m

Litres of drinking water
supplied each day

1.6bn

Underlying profit before

Litres of waste water

interestand tax’ treated per day
Revenue split Employees
Dee Graph 5'660
Valley removed average during 2017/18
06% fsee page 157)
Severn Trent
Water

00%

Severn Trent Water 98 2%
Oee Valley Water 1 8%

Read mare an page 34

1 Alternative Performance Measures
ai 2 definedin Note 44 to the group
financial statements on pages 192
te 194




Severn Trent
Business Services

Image removed

The markets we focus on

e Operating Services

s Renewable Energy

Where we operate
Business Serwvices operales in the UK and Ireland

There are two parts of Business
Services:

UK Operating Services (including Ireland)

UK Operating Services provides contract services to
municipal and industrial clients in the UK and Ireland
and the UK Ministry of Defence [MOD for dasign, build
and operation of water and waste water treatrment
faciities and networks, and services to developers

Renewable Energy

Business Services generates renewable energy from
anaerchbic digestion, hydropower, wind turbines and
solar technology

yodaa aibajens |
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Turnover

£138.7m

Profit before interest
and tax

£34.2m

Underlying profit before
interest and tax’

£36.0m

Employees in continuing
operations

096

average during 2017/18
Isee page 157)

Read more on page 42

I Alternative Porfarmoange Measurss
are defined v Note 46 10 the groep
financeal <taternent= on pates 197
te 194
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Strategic report

Our business model

Running
an efficient
water
business

Severn Trent
provides clean
water every time
our customers

turn on the tap

and removes

their waste water

in an affordable,
sustainable and
reliable way.

It does so through its
requlated subsidiartes and
draws upon #ts skills in
water and waste treatment
to provide services to other

organisations through its
Business Services division.

Critical
inputs

The Water Cycle

Water is collected

We pay the Enviranment
Agency and Natural Resources
Wales for tho water we collect
from reservoirs, rivers ang
underground agurfers across
our region

Natural resources
Water from resorvoirs, rivers
and undergrourd aguifers

Read more on page 45

Wateris cleaned

Our 114 groundwater and 23
sul face water treatment works
clean raw water to the highest
standards, making it safe

to drink

Power

The treatment and distribution
of clean and waste water
ronsumes signif.cant energy

Read more on page 43

Clean water
is distributed

Our 49167 kim network of
pipes and enclosed storage
reservorrs bring a contiruous
supply of clean water right

to aur customers’ taps

D L Y

image removed

AR R P T T I I Y

Our investments in renewable energy production

Cleaning waste water is an ‘energy
hungry’ process so we are utilising
waste and renewables to help us
power our operations.

We are on track to produce 50%
of our own energy needs by 2020

Food waste anaerobic
digestion plants

Natural resources Physical assets

Outcomes

* Efficient and reliable services
16 billion litres of dirinking
water supplted each day and
2 8 billsen litres of wastewater
treated each day

* Clean water for 4 3 million
homies and businesses

« Clean gas produced from
anaerobic digestion
plants, contributing 1o the
decarbonisation of the
UK ecanomy

1 O Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018



Physical assets

Aresiient, well maintained
network of clean water pipes
and reservairs, sewers and
pumping stations

Read more on page 47

Customers enjoy
our services

and households with a safe,
reliable supply of water and
collect waste water 24 hour s
a day, 365 days a year

We serve 4 3 million businesses

Our people
Woe look to attract, develop and
retain talented people, and to

bring the next generation of water

expertsinto the industry
Read mere on page 48

Waste water
is collected

Our 94,027 km of sewers
and pumping stations collect
waste water from homes and
businesses and take it to our
treatment works

Relationships

» Qur suppliers and partners
Jomntventures and strong
supplier relglionsheps

* Qur customers
and communities
The heart of our business

Waste water
is cleaned

Waste water 1s carefully
screened, filtered and treated
inour 1,010 sewage treatment
warks to meet stringent
environmental standards

» Qur regulators
Qurindustry s regulated
by Ofwat and several other
regulators and public bodies

Read more on page 50

Water is recycled
to the environment

We pay the Environment Agency

and Natural Resources Wales

annual consent teas to return the
reated waler lo the water syslem

Iy Y R PR R Y X
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Our people

= Anawesomc place to work

» Adiverse, skilled and
talented workforce

Solar and
wind turbines

Relationships

« Qur suppliers and partners
Arobust supply chain We wark

with partnors over the five years,

of an AME, whech means maore
compet tive prcing

Clean gas from our sludge
anaerobic digestion plants

* Qur customers
and communities
The lowost average combined
water and waste water bitls

in Britam Educational visits on

water efficiency and
beiny sewer savvy

* Our regulators
Pasitive and canstrue tve
relationstups and industr y-
leading O0Is and KFPIs

Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Strategic report

Chairman’s statement

image removed

PROVIDING RESPONSIBLE
LEADERSHIP

———

“High levels of customer service create financial rewards. This means
we are able to share the benefits of our work with shareholders
as well as with our custormers and other stakeholders”

Andrew Duff, Chairman

Dividend per share Group turnover Group profit before interest and tax
86.55p £1,694.1m £528.4m
2017 81.50p 2017 £1,638 Om 2017 £536.7m

12 severnTrent Fic Annval Report and Accounts 2018



This has been a good year for our customers and therefore for
Severn Trent. Qur operational performance is discussed in
detail in our Chief Executive's statement. Here, | want to take
the opportunity to look at the bigger picture by highlighting
the improvements we have made to customers’ lives in the
last 25 years - and to underline our commitment to running
aresponsible business,

Water services tn England and Wales have been transformed for
the better over the last 70 years - leakage 15 down by over a third
sinca its peak in 1994/95, service quality 1s up, as ewidenced by a
6h% reduction in written complaints since its peak in 2007/08 and
environmental perfarmance 1s unrecognisable from that which
we Inherited from the nationalised industry in 1989, with an 86%
reduction in serious pollution Incidents in England and Wales
These changes have not happened by accident, they are the direct
result of the near doubling of investrent that has been purmped
into the sector since privatisation

At Severn Trent, we have played a major role i this step-
change, investing £21 billion in today’s money in infrastructure
improvements aver the last quarter of a century We are proud
of the achievements that this investment has generated for cur
customers They drink and wash in cleaner water, experience
fewer supply interruptions and floods, and enjoy healthier and
more pleasant surroundings, all thanks to our work At the same
time, and despite the huge capital investments we have made,
we have been able to keep prices down Thus last year, as in the
previous seven year s, the average price paid by a customerin
the Severn Trent region was the lowest anywhere in England
or Wales

Our team s absolutely comritted to cantinuing this good

work - and a key aspect of that 1s demonstrating the highest
standards of governance and behaviour Ourvalues of putting
custamers first, creating an awesome place to work, being
passionate about what we do, acting with integrity, and
protecting our environment sit right at the heart of our decision
making We fully support the governance changes that the
regulator and Government wish to see — indeed, as a listed
cormpany these standards of transparency and responsible
behaviour are already in place at Severn Trent we are prudent
In how we manage financial risk and even-handed in the way
we share the returns from our outperformance with customers
and shareholders, we pay our taxes in full and on time,

we pay dividends and executive salaries that are 1easonable
and sustainable and tinked to the delivery of outcomes to
customers, avoid complex offshore financial vehicles, and

we communicate pt caress on all of these matters in the
Annual Repor t which we provide to stakeholders and to the
public at large on our website every year

Having strong and transparent corporate governance is the
right way te carry out cur activities Itwill ensure the long-term
sustainability of our business and remforce our legitimacy 10 the
ayes of the communities we serve

Sharing the rewards

Under our industry’s regulatery reqime, high levels of custormer
service create financial rewards. This means we are able to
share the benefits of cur work with shareholders as well as with
customers and other stakeholders. I this five year pel iod we
are reinvesting £220 million of Totex outperformance back into
our business, with a further £120 million of cutperformance
being shared with customers in the form of lower bills in AMPY

Ourinvestors toe have benefited through cur base drvidend
commitment of growth at RPI+4%, and this has all been achieved
whilst maintaining a sustainable, resilient financial structure

We delivered a 3 4% increase in Group turnover to

£1,694 1 rilhion, Group PBIT of £528 4 million, down 15% from
the prior year, and underlying basic earnings per share of
121.0 pence, up 4.6% from the prior year.

We are therefore proposing a final dividend of 51.92 pence per
share to be paid on 20th July 2018 This will take the total dividend
for the year to 86 b5 pence

Your Board

Emma FitzGerald stepped down from her position as a Directar
during the year On behalf of the Board, | thank her for her insight,
professionalism and dedication It has been a privilege to work
alongside her

We have worked with regulators to successfully realign

our English and Welsh licences along national boundaries

From 1 July 2018, all our Welsh interests will sit under a single
licence, and we will rebrand Dee Valley Water as Hafren

Dyfrdwy after the two main rivers which supply the region
Hatren Dyfrdwy will serve the interests of all our Welsh
customers, and we are pleased to have made positive progress
to ensure the robust governance of that company through the
appointment to its Beard of three new independent non-executive
directors with a wealth of experience In business, public services
and Welsh public pelicy | am delighted that they all enhance the
already diverse make up of our business

A diverse team doing great work

Severn Trent's people are a significant asset We have a fantastic
team here who worked tirelessly through the year, often n severe
weather conditions, to deliver extracrdinary service They are
rightly proud of both their efforts and the outcomes

It 1s important that the makeup of our workfarce 1s representative
of the communities we serve Solam pleased to report that

21% of the 124 graduates. placement students and apprentices
who joined us during the year came from black er minority
ethnic backgrounds We are also mindful of the role that

gender diversity plays in supporting a successful team

The representation of wornen on our Board led to us again being
recognised by the Hampton-Alexander Review in 2017, which
placed us second among FTSE 100 companies for representation
of wornen on boards and in leadership. In addition, 40% of the
members of our Executive Committee are female and, at 2 4%,
our mean hourly pay gap ts one of the lowest in the FTSE index

Looking ahead

We are now working hard to centinue to position the business

for success during the next regulatory period Our draft business
plans are well advanced and wilt be subrmitted to Ofwat in
Septernber 2018 We look forward to continuing to outperform
against our service commitments through the rest of this AMP
and into the next

Andrew Duff Chairman

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018 1 3
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Strategic report

Market and industry overview

Our context and peers

Atotal of 17 regional busmesses supply walter services io

50 rrutlion househald and non-hausehold customers in England
and Wates Ten of these, including our regulated business
Severn Trent Water Limited, also provide waste water services
The remaining seven, including our regulated business Dee
Valley Water Lirnited, provide water only

Over 25 years of continuous improvement...

Water services in England and Wales have been transformed in
recent years, with a total investment of around £130 billien driving
significantincreases in reliablbity, efficiency and quabity

We re very proud of our industry’s achevernents For exarnple,
whilst adverse weather such as that encountered last winter and
spring can skew the picture, customers are still five times less
Likely to be without water than they were 25 years ago and eight
times less Ukely to be affected by sewer flooding. Leakage has
fallen by 35% since the rnid-1990s, and 39 6% of drinking watar
as well as 98.6% of bathing waters now meet EU standards,

As discussed belaw, our regulatory framework is cantinuing to
evolve We believe that improving this existing mecharnism, for
example, by encouraging lower gearing and greater openness
and transparency, 15 a more viable way forwards than embarking
on a disruptive course of action that would distract attention from
our industry & core priorittes

Regionat businesses

17

Number of households and
non-household customers

50 million

Total investment
for transformation

£130 biltion

14 severn Trent Pic Arnual Report and Accouris 2018

...hut there’s still more to do

Were excited about the opporturities to continue the good work
the industry has recorded so far. But although we ve taken

huge strides in embedding customers right at the heart of what
we do, we recognise that there s still room for improvement
Custorners rightly expect the mighest standards of water quality
and waste water treatment, 24 hours 2 day and seven days
awaek, and while these are continuing to mave in the night
direction there’s absclutely no room fer complacency. We have

to target capital Investment programmes wisely In order to

rnake sure our network — parts of which originate in the late

19th Century - 1s equipped to meet the demands of 21st Century
ving That s no easy matter, n Lght of anincreasing population
and more housing, as well as all the challenges to water supplies
and drainage caused by the droughts and fleods associated with
ciimate change It requires experience, expertise and a great deal
cf money - 1n fact Severn Trent atone will have Invested some
£3,000 nutlion i assets over the five yeat s to March 2020

Customers also want o be able to contact us whenever and
however they want, whether that's te ask for advice, question

a bill or notify us of a leak Dhgital technology 1s playing a major
role here at Severn Trent, helping us interact with customers via
nine different channeis, ensuring we are always there to talk to in
person over the phone, of iInwnting

“Water quality... waste water
treatment... reliabitity and efficiency...
service and support... all delivered
with great value... these are the things
our customers expect.”



And, of course, customers rightly expect all this while enjoying
great value for money Bills matter to everybody -~ and while
we're pleased that yet again Severn Trent Waler's customers
benefited from the lowest bills in England and Wales over the last
year, we're also committed to doing even more to support those
vulnerable members of our locat commurities who struggle

to pay

Water quality... waste water treatment. reliability and efficiency...
service and support  all delivered with great value . these are
the things our customer s expect. We've made ternific progress

in the last quarter of a century and we know there’s more to do

- and we re committed to working with our peers in the industry
and with our regulators to give our customers a service to be
proud of

Our regulatory framework

The Government’s approach to our iIndustry s set by the
Departrment for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs { Defra’}
in England and the Welsh Government in Wales Ofwat s the
industry s economic regutator This means it sets Limits on

the prices we can charge our customers over five year Asset
Management Plan [AMP] cycles This financial year was the
third of AMPS, which runs from April 2015 to March 2020

We also work closely with a variety of other regulators and
public hodies

» The Drinking Water Inspectorate ['DWI | independently checks
that water supplies in England and Wales are safe and that
drinking water quality 1s acceptable to consumers its work
inctudes assuring water quality, ensuring cormpanies make the
changes necessary tc iImprove, developing new regulations to
further improve water quality, and science and policy

 The Consumer Counall for Water [CCW'] speaks on behalf of
water consurmers in England and Wales It adwses consumers
and takes up complaints on their behalf

» The Environment Agency ['EA] allows us to collect water from
reservairs, rivers anag aquifers and return it to the envirenment
afterit’'s been used by our custormers and treated by us

¢ Natural Resources Wales is the environmentat regulator in
Wales It oversees how the country s natural resources are
rmantained, improved and used now and in the future

Natural England advises the Government on the natural
environment In England and helps to protect nature and the
tandscape, especially for plant and ammal iife in fresh water
and the sea

The Health and Safely Executive helps us to reduce the
health and safety risks faced by our emgloyees. customers
and visitors

Image removed
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Strategic report

Market and industry overview continued

Moving into the next phase of regulation

Every five years, our regulator Ofwat reviews industry pricing
The most recent price review - known as PRi4 - was in 2014 and
reratded sweeping changes PR14 gave custorners a greater
voice in setting our priorities and also intreduced a performance-
related reward and penalty system, called Qutcome Delivery
incentives (ODIsl We welzomed these initiatives and believe
they're playing an important partin driving greater efficiency
across the industry

Now we're moving towards the next price review, which

will take place in 2019, In Decernber 2017, Otwat published

its methodology for the 2019 price review, known as PR19

This provided us with guidance on expectations for our business
plans, which we UL submitin September 2018 In cur view, the
rmethadology sets out a challenging environment, but also one
where high performing companies can succeed Were fully
supportive of Ofwat's reform agenda, which includes stronger
O0ls - and although theyre currently still in development, our
business plans will lay out our ambitions in four key areas

“Reliable supplies and
services depend on reliable
infrastructure. But to us
‘resilience’ is a broader
issue than just having good
quality pipes, reservoirs and
treatment works. It means
being operationally resilient,
so our people are sufficiently
well trained to carry out the
tasks we need them to do.”

1 6 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Customers

Our preparation work for PR19 has included the most
corpprehensive custorner engagernent activity and research
programme in our history, in conjunction with insight from our
everyday interactions wath them The result is a new level of
understanding about the 1ssues that are rnost important to our
customers In brief, they want us to go beyond just balancing
supply and demand, providing clean drinking water and taking
waste waler away. They see us as key influencers in the everyday
lives of their local communities. And they want us to step up and
play our role to the full

S0, among cther iniiatives, we're investing in better
commurnications and alse redoubling cur efforts around
customer education, especially of children - for exarnple on what
not to put down their toilets - as well as supporting our people to
do mare volunteening to benefit the commurnities which we serve,

Affacdability

In 2017, and for the 8th year running, Severn Trent Water s
custormers had the lowest bills in England and Wales That's an
achievement Inits owin night, but we're commutted to making sure
that those bills are affordable for all our customers - including
the maost vulnerable Struggling to pay a water hill can be an
indication of ather issues i a custorner’s life, so were working
with partners in local communitres to identify those who may
need some extra help

Image removed




Resilience

ft goes without saying that reliable supplies and services depend
on a reliable infrastructure But to us resilience is a broader issue
than just having good quality pipes, reservoirs and treatment
works |t means being operationally resitient, so our people are
sufficiently well trained to carry out the tasks we need them to

do, both in a steady state and in an emergency And it means
hrancially resilient, with a stress-tested capital structure to
maintain an investrment-grade rating far our regulated business
and the appropriate equity strength to effectively manage

risks. It also means having corporate resilience, with the right
governance pracesses ensuring that we're fair and transparent at
all imes, and recegnised as a responsible and trusted business
by society at large Were rightly regarded as a public service
company and we'll dc everything in cur power to deliver a service
that the public can be proud of

Innovation

You can't deliver outstanding customer service, keep bils
affordable or run a resilient business without Innovation We're
pleased to see that Ofwat's PR19 methodotogy embraces the role
of rnarkets, not only in bicresources but also inwater resources
through water trading

In fact we re working with United Utilities to engage vath
Thames Water on the evaluation of a project to build a super
interconnector that would enable us to transfer and trade water
between the Severn and Thames catchment areas

How our market environment influences
our five strategic priorities
Embedding customers at the heart of all we do

we'll cantinue to anticipate and to meet chanaing
customers and wider sccietal needs {see page 22]

Driving operational excetlence and continuous innovation

innevation helps us to deliver the services custemers
need and keep bills affordable [see page 24)

Investing responsibly for sustainable growth

What happens next?

Ofwat’s imetable for PR19 15 as follows

Submussion of business plans - 3 Septernber 2018
Initial assessment of plans - late January 2019
Fast-tracked draft determinations - March/apnil 2019
Rematining draft deterrinaticns - July 2017

Final determinatians - December 2019

Playing our part in the debate

We agree with the general direction in which Ofwat 15
taking the industry and have continued to add our voice
to the debate wherever and whenever possible.

For exarmple, in addition 1o evaluating the possibilities of water
trading, we worked with a number of our peers and the Social
Market Foundation to publish & report into the likely implications
of renationalisation on public sector dobt levels,

We've also stepped up our consurner-facing communications,
including launching our new brand - 'Wonderful ontap’ -

to improve understanding of what we do and how we do i1,
Please see our wehsite for more detalls

we Invest to make sure we continue to benefit from a resilient,

well-maintained network that meets the demands of a

growing population and a changing climate (see page 26)

Changing the market for the better

we work constructively with regulators, helping to prepare

the industry for the opportunities and challenges of the future

[see page 78]

Creating an awesome place to work
we can only succeed if we have the support of Inspired,
talented, diverse and engaged people [see page 30
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Strategic report

Chief Executive’s review

GETTING THE
BALANCE RIGHT

"What truly matters i1s balance...
balance between today and tomorrow,
between making improvements
where customers value themn
most, keeping bills affordable
and providing a fair return
to our investors.”

Liv Garfield
Chief Executive

Image removed
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Times have changed. Today, all of us, across all walks

of life expect the companies that serve us to be socially
responsible. It's time for leading businesses to step up
to the challenges of running a sustainable operation and
to embrace all aspects of their performance: social and
environmental as well as financial.

Success Is not as easy to quantify as (t was in the past Gone are
the days when a cornpany was judged purely on 1ts balance
sheet and income statement At Severn Trent, this s achange
we welcorme wholeheartedly

That's not to say that financial performance no lenger matters.
It does, and were extremely proud of our track record in that
respect, as you can see from the higures for 2017/18 that you'll
find elsewhere on these pages, notably in James’ financial
report What truly mattersis balance balance between

today and tomorrow, between making improvements where
custorners vatue them the most, keeping bills afferdable and
providing a fair return to our investars

We can debate whalt has caused this shift of opinion well into
the early hours, whether it's the financial crisis or global
political unrest, government action or the poor behaviour of

a handful of companies, or something else entirely What 1s
undeniable 1s that this change has happened And that the new
world it's ushered in Is here to stay

So, iInstead of a traditional CEQ review, | want to use these 1,500
wards or se to tell you what I m really proud of and what makes
Severn Trent different, through the lens of social responsibility

[ want to show you how have we performed when the metrics of
success arc extended beyond financial returns

Our environment: everybody’s most
important priority

Climate change has focused everybody's minds on the need
to look after the ptanet we call horne At Severn Trent were
fortunate that our estate, which 1s one of the largest corporate
land-holdings in the UK at cver 53,000 acres, includes several
Sites of Special Scientific Interest [ $55157) as well as many
other areas that are important for plants and wildiife But with
great fortune comes great responsibility - more than most
companies, we're In a position to have significant impacts on
these wonderful environments

So we work very hard to make sure that these impacts are as
positive as possible That means encouraging greater bicdiversity
by working with groups such as The Wildlife Trust and farmers
Over the last year, we improved biodiversity on 9 86 hectares of
SSSls and are targeting many more by 2020 We alse encourage
and empower cur people to focus their volunteering efforts on
local rivers and other habitats near their homes And last year,
40% of our colleagues chose to clean up 50 km of riverbank
through our volunteering scheme

Environmental responsiility also means reducing sewer
floeding - where we reduced the number of external flooding
events by around 2,000, which 15 a £49% outperformance aganst
our target - and serious poltution incidents, which came down
from seven to two We continued to improve the guality of water
entering our nivers, for example by working in partnership with
farmers and rewarding them for using less metaldehyde on their
fields It was greal to see all these achievernents come together
and we believe they will help us regan the mark of exceptionat
envirenmental performance in our sector, the coveted 4* status
from the Environrment Agency

Locking to the long-term future of the environment, we're
centinuing to invest heavily in renewable energy - and | was
delighted that we generated the equivalent of 38% of the enargy
we consumed last year, and also sold green gas back into

the grid

Group PBIT

£528.4m

2017 £536 7m

Group turnover

£1,694.1m

2017.£1,638 0m

Dividend increase Net ODI outperformance

6.2% £80.2m

2017 £47 6m

Underlying Group PBIT

£541.0m

2017 £5201m
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Strategic report

Chief Executive’s review continued

Our customers: the reason why we're all here

There are two ways of behaving when yau're a natural maonopaly.
You can simply take advantage of the opportunities your situation
presents, or you canwork night and day to create a service that's
so goad that your custormers would still choase you, 1If they had
the choice. We firmly believe that this is vital for any business that
wants to still be a business in the years ahead

So how do we do that? Firstly by striving to give customers what
they tell us they want ~low bills, less sewer floeding and high
guality water at the turn of a tap Our Upper Quartile positioning
i the UK Custormer Service Index and cur Custormer QDI
performance show that we're making good progress

Affardability 1s right at the top of our agenda and I'm delighted

to report that at an average of £348 in 2018/19, Severn Trent
Water's hills will once again be the lowest in England and Wales
That's £57 lower than the average household bill, £35 lower than
the next cheapest and - if we look beyond the UK - half those in
Berlinand a quarter of thase in Capenhagen

We re alsc increasing our effarts to support the mast vulnerable
people In our communities, As well as providing discounts to
customers who are struggling to pay their bills, we ve started

to wark more closely with other agencies and use our close
relationship with local communities to identify where a bittle bit
ot extra understanding and financial help can go a long way to
easing pressure on custorners facing difficulties. Thisrsn't the
best way to improve aur bottorn line - but it 1s demonstrably the
right thing to do

As ['ve already mentioned, the number of sewer {loodings are
one of a number of measures n which we have outperformed,
but it1s disappointing when our customers are left with

nothing corning out of their taps, as happened too often this
year Our performance on supply interruptions was our worst
performance in five years and the first ume we've rmssed

aur target on that measure during that time Some of these
interruptions to supply can be explained away by the extrerne
freeze-thaw-freeze cycles of the bitter winter, which also meant
that we mussed our challenging target on leakage - despite
strong perforrnance for 11 months of the year. But the fact
rernains that we know we have let some of our customers down
1n an area that really matters to them Although small succour for
these performance failures, custorners are nghtly compensated
for them through compensation when our performance falls
below regulatory standards and by virtue of the OB penalty
system, through reductions in future bills.

We're working really hard to improve our abtlity to copg with
extreme weather, as this 1s a fact of Ufe for us all now, through
initiatives like leakage detector robots and other high tech tools
that can give us exira ‘eyes on the netwark

20 Severn Trent Ple Annual Repart and Accounts 2018

Customers alse tell us that 1Its irmportant that we're avallable for
them when they need to tatk to us. We all lead busy lives, and we
all know how frustrating it 1s when you can't talk to somebody
when you need ton the five minute slot that you have in between
dealing with mare impaortant work ar farmily matiers. So we ve
extended and improved our contact channels We're now the only
water company that custormers can contact at any time of day or
night, on any 1ssue — not Just for emergencles

We need to help our custorners understand what they should
and shouldn't put down the leo or the sink, and how to use water
more efficiently, While | passionately believe that most peopte
want to do their best for the environment, they don't always have
the right knowledge to do so That s why we spend so much tirme
and efferton education, particutarly in schools 1fwe can get
young people ta value water and suppart what we're doing to
preserve and supply it, then we wall all be in a much better place
as well as our children and grandchildren in years to come

Our people: the assets that make it all happen

Severn Trent s its people. They're the anes on the front line,
the ones who talk to customers, the ones who innovate and

implement the bright ideas that help us deliver a service you
would choaose te have

Yo be your best, you have to be happy and supported in your .
workplace Sowe're constantly looking for new and better ways
to help them thrve, fulfit ther potential and show them how
miuch we value therr expertise and commitment Over the last
year we've increased our focus on traming Ours s atechnical,
engineering-led industry where there s absolutely no substitute
for the right expertise Of course, inwesting intraining 1s good

for our business, because it helps us be more technically
cornpetent Butits also good for our colleagues, because it gives
them a platform for growth, promotion and more rewarding
careers —and it's good for locat cornrmmumbies and industry oo,
hecause it improves the skills base across the Midlands This s
what businesses like Severn Trent can and should be doing
building our employees’ talents and playing our part as members
of society to berefit everybody.

As a significant employer in our region and presence in local
comrrumittes across the Midlands, we can also do a lotto help
change general attitudes towards 1ssues that affect indwiduals
everywhere Farexample, according to the World Health
Organization, one in four people in the world will be impacted

by mental or neurological disorders at some point in their lives
So last year we decided that we needed to rermove the stigma
assoclated with mental health, particularly for men We now have
over 400 qualified mental health first aders at Severn Trent, who
have undertaken formal traming programmes and also listened .
to first-hand stories of how mental health can affect lves -
ncluding personal contributions from my semior team Mow we're
turning our attention to the menopause, which is ancther area
that 1s a bit of a taboo in society at large but which can have a
massively detrimental impact on women and their families,



Cur employee engagement score rose by a full six percentage
points last year, proving that the things we're doing for our
peaple are appreciated, and we are turning Severn Trent into an
even better place to work Our teams respond to the sense of
belenging and community that were trying to create here - and
an incredible 40% of them turned out to velunteer their ime to
improve their local envirenment during the last 12 months

Dee Valiey Water 1s now substantially integrated, and the people
there are already a vital part of the Severn Trent family I'm so
proud of the fact that they havent missed a beat in delivering a
great year from an cperational perspective, with zero coliforms
{am important feature of water quality] at their sites probably
being the standout achievernent We're learning from each other
and adopting each other's best practices in order to provide
better services to our customers and the environment

| d like to thank all 6,000 cf our pecple for the passion they've
appled to all they do over the year, sometimes in difficult
circumstances, but always with a smile on therr faces They make
It an haneur to have my job Thank you!

Our outlook: lots to look forward to, but more
hard work lies ahead

In Septernber, we'll submit our plans to Ofwat for our next
five year business plan. Make no rmistake, from an industry
perspective this 1s going to be tough

But for customers, this 1s the right thing at the right time
Putting the focus fairly and squarely on custorer service,
affordability and long term resilience 1s absolutely the correct
thing to do and we fully support Ofwat s goals

We ve been working hard over the last few years to make sure
we're in good shape to rise to these challenges As this report
highlights, Severn Trent Water's customers again had the lowest
bills in England and Wales, and we re making good progress in
most other areas of the business Are we getting 1t night all the
tme? No Butwe know where and how we can improve - and we
have a total determination with our people s support to get there

Liv Garfield
Chief Executive
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives

Embed customers at
the heart of all we do

What do we mean by this?
We'll improve the way in which

customers engage with us through
improved insight and understanding

of what's important to them.

Image removed

Lowest bills in the land
- yet again

Research tells us that with so many competing demands
on housenhotd budgets, affordabitity 1s one of the biggest
concerns far aur customers, Which is why it was great
to see that our efforts to keep water bills dowi yet again
proved so worthwhile.

For the 8th year running, Severn Trent Water’s customers
have the towest bills in England and Wales. Qur average
combined bill for 2018/19 will be £348. That's £57 below
the average across the two nations and £35 less thanthe
next cheapest.

Nevertheless, we know that some vulnerable custemners still
struggle to make ends meet - so over the last 12 months, we
used our Big Difference scheme to give discounts of up to 90%
to 36,000 people.

22 Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

What we said we would do in 2017/18

* Make a step change in customer service

Cantinue ta delver on the things that matter mast
to our customers to achieve a substantial reward of
around £23 million in custarner ODIs

Provide a service that is affordable for all and
support our financially vulnerable customers by
assisting 50,000 customers with their bills

* Berecogrrsed as an upper guartile wholesaler in
the new nen-household retail market

Provide an industry leading experience for property
developers and customers who need new water
and waste connections

Image removed

Protecting the interests
of our customers

From investing in robotic leakage detectors to encouraging
farmers and fast food chains to be more careful about
what they put on fields or down drains, we work tirelessly
to make Severn Trent water as clean, available and
affordable as possible.

Although customers certainly appreciate what we do

- in fact water quality complaints are down 12% year-on-
year - not everybody buys into the need to laok after this
precious resource. We don't enjoy taking people to court,
but sometimes i{'s the only way to protect the interests
of all those who pay therr bills and play by the rules.
Since the start of 2016, we 've successfully prosecuted
over 50 companies that have been caught illegally using
hydrants to access our network. And to prevent future
misuse, we've now fitted 30,000 (ocking caps to hydrants
across our network.



Our progress 2017/18

» Achieved upper quartile position in the UK
Customer Service Index and reduced customer
written complaints by 17%

s Achieved better outcomes for customers on
a number of measures including external and
internal sewer flooding, and achieved QDI
outperfarmance payments of £80.2 million

e Maintained the lowest bills in England and
Wales, and assisted rore than 50,000 vulnerable
customers with therr bills

e Developer Services team recegrused by Ofwat
as st for Water and 2nd for Waste inits SLA
compliance comparison tables

Image removed

Improving our performance
for developers

Every year, we connect around 20,000 new properties and install
and adopt around 100 km of new water and waste water pipes.

And whether we're working with an individual doing a self-build, a
national housebuilder constructing a new 200-home estate or office
block, or a farmer wanting a new water supply for a distant drinking
trough for his cattle, we aim to make this process as simple and
cost-effective as possible.

By reorganising our Developer Services business around our
three main custemer segments - small and first time developers,
large developers and self-lay providers — we evolved our
approach over the last year to meet the needs of our customers
maore precisely.

The result? The best customer service within our sector - finishing
st for water and a close 2nd for waste water as measured by

the Ofwat customer service KPl. We also saw a 29% reduction in
customer complaints compared to the previous year.

Areas of focus for 2018/19

» Build greater capability in mcident management
focusing en continuous improvement

Develap the use of the ‘Wondertful on tap” brand to
increase the focus of all colleagues on enhancing
the quality of our products and customer service,
and make our customers aware of what we do for
therm and our connection with therr daily Lives

Deliver on the things that matter most to cur
customers as measured in Custorner 0DIs

L2

Provide a service that s affordable for all and
support our financially vulnerable customers
by assisting 50,000 custorners with their bills,

“We continue to maintain the

lowest bills in England and
Wales, and assisted more than
50,000 vulnerable customers
with their bills.”

Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Drive operational
excellence and
continuous innovation

What do we mean by this?

We'll build a smarter water and
waste water network, develop our
business intelligence and simplify
our cross business processes.

24 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

What we said we would do in 2017/18

s Ontrack debvery of our plans to be Upper Quarite
for Retall, Water and Waste.

¢ Ontrack delivery of Upper Quartile financing
performance by the end of 2019

Continue to provide environmental leadership as
evidenced by EA 47 status

Develap the profitatslity of cur US and UK Business
Services operations

Delver budgeted henefits from imptementing

10 innevalion projects and 10 digital projects,

and developing a sustamnable pipeline and process
for innovation

Drive innovative developer solutions to deliver
a step-change in the new connections service
to customers

Reduce the number of water guality complaints

Image removed

Seeking out best practice,
wherever in the world it lives

Our teams are constantly coming up with britliant ideas on how we can
do things better, faster or cheaper for our customers - and the Bike
on a Boat project gives them all the support they need to become even
maore innovative,

Named after a clever idea developed by an America’s Cup yacht racing
team, Bike on a Boat is all about learning from each other as well as
from best practice around the world. Towards the end of 2017, we took
Bike on a Boat on tour, holding 44 roadshows at 10 different venues over
six weeks and generating aver 4,200 ideas from our peaple,

In Cctober 2017, we Launched a £100,000 Bike on Boat fund to enable any
of our pecple to apply to travel anywhere in the world in order to learn
more about how other companies are reducing water usage and leakage.

We have received over 30 applications and approved 13 trips as far afield
as Australia and Singapore.



Our progress 2017/18

+ Achieved Upper Quartile performance in key waste
measures cluding exter nal sewer flooding,

Delwered sector leading environmental
performance, which we expect to lead to
EA 4* status

* UK Business Services profit increased,
and US business sold

Expanded our search globally for iInnovative
solutions to deliver the highest standards and
greatest efficiency for cur customers

Achieved 1st and Z2nd place in Ofwat s water and
waste rankings respectively for new connections
SLA compliance

years, reducing water guality complaints by 12%

L ]

Deployed innovative solutions, such as the addition
of bio-augmentation to prevent the build-up

of fatbergs, to deliver higher standards and
greater efficiency.

Delivered cur best water quality performance in five

Areas of focus for 2018/19

¢ Deliver our plans to be Upper Quartile for Retail,
Water and Waste

« Continue to provide environmental leadership
* Regain self-assured status for our English business

* Make further progress on the quality of our water
as measured by the DWI's Cornpliance Risk index

Customer water
quality complaints

12%

Image removed

Trialling the use of augmented reality technology
at one of our operational sites
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Strateqgic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Invest responsibly
for sustainable growth

What do we mean by this?

We'll develop an effective strategy
which optimises our regultated asset
base, whilst creating new growth
opportunities for the future.

Image removed
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What we said we would do in 2017/18

* Ontrack to delivering an our PR14 commitrents
and rmake appropnate targeted investrnents for
the future

¢ Integrate and deliver the benefits of the Dee Valley
acquisibon, combining the strengths of the two
cornpanies to create a strong Welsh entity focused
on delivering local priorities

« Complete the transfer of our non-household
customers to our joint venture business Water Plus

* Generate the equivalent of 38% of our energy needs
from renewable sources

* Achieve materalimpravements in some of aur key
Enterprise Risk Management risks

Bringing new resilience
to local infrastructure

The market town of Newark in Nottinghamshire has survived
everything from the black death to the civil war. But an expanding
population coupled with an ageing, inadequate sewer network was
thallenging the town's resitience. The infrastructure was at breaking
point, with 400 properties regularly at risk of sewer flooding - after
fire, the worst thing that can happen to a property.

We're currently investing £60 million in a three year project to replace
more than 20 km of pipes, including a 2.8 metre diameter tunnel
running 15 metres below Newark’s streets. Despite short term
disruption, the end results will be welcomed by all. The town will have
a sewer and water pipe network fit for its future population. And for
the 400 households at the heart of the project, a drap of rain willno
longer raise the fear of sewage flooding their homes and gardens.



Our progress 2017/18

* Embraced Totex, dentifying a further £100 rmullion
of effiviencies which will be re-invested in the
bustness to further improve customer service and
ensure we're In the best possible position for AMP7

Substantially completed the integration of Dee
Valley Water into the Severn Trent Group, allowing
the two companies to learn and share best practice
with each other for the benefit of their customers.

» Well advanced in realigning the boundaries of
Severn Trent Water and Dee Valley Water along
English and Welsh national borders

Generated the equivalent of 38% of our energy
needs frem renewable sources, and made good
progress on the construction of new renewable
energy ptants.

Delivered key milestones in majar capital schemes,
including the Birmingham Resilience Programme
and the Newark waste and water improvement
project Major capital schemes are on track to meet
any associated 0D commitrnents

The end of an era

Customers in North Wales are now enjoying higher
quality water, thanks to the completion of a complex
scheme to close an old treatment works and instead
supply water from a more resilient and efficient facility,

Constructedin the 1920s, the works at Legacy on

the outskirts of Wrexham was licensed to abstract

water from nearby fermer lead mines, This water was
then treated through a series of pressure filters and
chlorination plants before being held in a 350,000 galion
tank However, despite reqular upgrades, the facility was
nearing the end of its useful life and seme customers
were experiencing occasional discolouration problems.

In March 2018, following several years of hard work

by the team at Dee Valley, a project to transfer the raw
water to Llywn Onn was completed - including a new
distribution water pipe - and the Legacy treatment works
was finally closed.

Areas of focus for 2018/19

s Delver fully on our PR14 [AMPE] investment
commitiments, being contident that we are able
to deliver aganst our current plans and make
appropriate investments for the future

» Achieve material impravernents in some of our key
ERMrisks

» Drive a focus on efficiency across all business
areas Including central functions to support
frontline iInvestment.

making 1t part of every tear s way of working

Continue to embed innovation acress the Company,

Image removed
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Change the market
for the better

What do we mean by this?

We'll embrace market opening in
the UK and explore opportunities
for growth in new water markets.

image removed

Tanker arriving at our sludge treatment centre
at Worksop, north Nettinghamshire.

28 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

What we said we would do in 2017/18

» Have a clear PR19 outline plan in place that
evidences our leading status

* Produce compelling cases for investment that
customers want to see, at PR19, that enables strong
RCV growth over AMPs 7 and 8

+ Design and implement the Bioresources change
programme and business model.

* Be seen as the water sector’s thought leader

» Create a strong Welsh entity focused on delrvering
tocal priorities

Preparing for competition
in new markets

During the year we commenced preparations for
the separation of our Bioresources activity from
our Regulated Water and Waste Water business
inta Business Services to ready aurselves for
competition, We have created regional treatment
hubs; streamlined logistics; optimised treatment
strategy and rationalised sites. We are already
active in the market having completed our first trial
trade with Yorkshire Water in April 2078,



Our progress 2017/18

»

Our PR1% plans are coming together well, co-
creating them with our largest ever customer
engagement programme, and we are In a goed
positien to submit in September 2018

Restructured our waste business to create a stand-
alone Bioresources team, identifying oppertunities
for operating efficiencies and trading with

OUr COmpantes.

Worked with the Social Market Foundation

to assess the Ukely costs associated with
renationalising the water and sewerage

industry in England.

Waorked with United Utilities to engage with Thames
Water on the construction of a super interconnector
ta transfer and trade water between the Severn and
Thames catchment areas

Integration of Dee Valley Water 15 well advanced,
and plans to realign the boundary of the Company
wholly within Wales will take effect in July 2018

Areas of focus for 2018/19

* Produce compelling cases for investment at PR19
that enable strong RCY growth over AMPs 7 & 8

» Deliver phase two of the energy and renewables
strategy to achieve 50% self-generation

» Build & sector leading approach to Bioresources

* Fialise the creation of Hafren Dyfrdwy and deliver
a great first year.

Image removed

Integration of Dee Valley Water 1s well advanced, and plans to realign the
boundary of the Company wholly within Wales will take effect in July 2018
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Create an awesome W;Ttwe f: we would f’ infmms
hd elvera Stepc ange In our sa ety perrarmance
place to work

Improve the wellbeing of our colleagues

Deliver a further uptift in our employse
engagement scores

Pregress our talent agenda.

Continue to strive for the most diverse and inclusive
business with increasing numbers of Black, Asian
and Minority Ethnic [BAME ) talent in our business

Further improve employee engagement
What do we mean by this? by resolving the top 101ssues identified by

We'll create a culture of ouremosess
empowerment and accountability

with a focus on skills, talent

and career development.

Opportunity and support for all

We're striving to make Severn Trent an awesome place to work -
where anybody who wants to reach their potential can thrive.

Image removed Graduates aiready recognise the opportunities we offer —and
apprentices are continuing to follow suit, with another increase in their
numbers over the last year We're also succeeding in attracting a more
diverse workforce - BAME employees on our graduate programmes
were up 12.74% during the year. Now we're redoubling our efforts to
encourage people from less socially mobile populations to join us,
removing artificial barriers to entry and working with more schools in
disadvantaged areas. For example, for the year ahead we've ring fenced
25 work experience opportunities at five schools across five social
mobility ‘cold spots’ in our region.

Once they're part of our team, we provide all our people with a range of
training programmes. We've committed te invest in technical skills and
will create a new Severn Trent Training Academy, focused on delivering
tailered programmes for staff across our region, with the aim of making
our workforce the most technically skitled in the industry.

We recognise the importance of supporting people in all aspects of
their lives. During the year, we continued our major pregramme to
improve our employees’ understanding of mental health issues, as well
as encouraging greater awareness of cancer and menopause. In April
2018, we also signed up to the TUC's Dying to Work charter which aims
to protect employees with a terminal diagnosis.
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Our progress 2017/18

L

-

Achieved a 23% reduction in lost time injuries,
resuiting inan LTI rate of 017, through an enhanced
focus on safety culture, standards compliance

and training

Continued our focus on mental and
musculaskeletal health to drive ansimprovement
in employee wellbeing and reduce absences.

Achieved a six percentage points improvement 1n
our employee engagement survey, demaonstrating
improvement in all areas, and achieving an upper
quartile positicn relative to our peers

Continued investment both in our graduate

and apprentice schemes, as well as mnovative
investment in the ongoing traming and development
of our broader employee population

Focused efforts on further improving social
mobibity within our region, through targetec
recruitment from social mobibity cold spots

Deliverad solutions for two of the top 10 1ssues
identified by our employees, and made progress
to resolve the remaining 1ssues

Image removed

Supporting clean, safe water
and sanitation

As a founding member and long term supporters of WaterAid,
we've raised over £450,000 for the charity over the last two

years. We believe that our continued support can help WaterAid

realise our shared ambition for clean water, decent toilets and
hygiene far everyone everywhere by 2030.

Areas of focus for 2018/19

+ Deliver a further step change in cur safety
performance and support the wellbeing of
our colleagues.

Continue tc build on our strong volunteering
perforrance and drive the CR agenda

Continue our focus on improving overall Quest
engagement scores

Deliver the foundations of the new
Acadermy, to make a positive centribution
to technical development
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Strategic report

ODIs and KPls

We continue to make progress against
our customer ODIs and financial KPls.

Progress against our
Outcome Delivery Incentives?

1. Embed customers at the heart of all we do

Internal sewer flooding

Actual
662

External sewer flooding

Actual
3,763

Minutes without supply

Actual
34.29

s e (Grperremoved - o 0 -

- -Graph removed

""""""""""""""""""" Graph-rempveﬁ

Reward/Penally
950

Rate of R’eward’F’ena tylpu “ncident]

£42,820"

Whywe measure it

To ensura we do pverything we can lo prevent flcoding
of customers homes or businesses s one of cur
customers maost imporiant priorities

Progress inthe year

We are repnrting a performance ol 642 internal
incidents, ahead of sur commitled performance lavel
of ¥6Uincidents

Reward/Penalty
7 447

19779

Why we measure it

To ensure we de everythirgwe can 1o prevenl fHlood ng
of customers homes or businesses Itis cne of our
customers maostimpeortant prionbes

Progressinthe year

We are reporting a performance 2f 3 763 external
incidents, ahead of our cornmitted performance level
at Ta47 inadents

2. Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation

Improvements to river water quality

Actual
19

Number of category 3 pollution incidents

Ac tual
az27
i

Reward Penally
08 12

Rate cf Rewardlpenall ¥ l per minute]

£1.10m'

Why we measure it

OQur custemers value water being ther e when they

needit This perfoermance commitrient ensures v
are drving down the imipacl of any mlerrupticns ta
supply across cur network Lo munimuse the impeact

on customers

Progressin the year

We interrupterd customers supplies for an average of
34 29 minutes in 2017718, well behind our porterman. e
crnmatrment of 18 8 minutes

Successful catchment management schemes

Actual

1 ’ " Graph removed

"Graphiremoved ~

Penalty/Raward
233

Rale of Penal ly/RLwar( [pzﬂrumtl

£150,000"

Whywe measure tl

We have statutory obligations tc deliver, but our
customers told us lhat we should do mere where we
can This performance commitment ensures we meet
cur obligations and drives us to deliver more where it
15 possible

Progress in the year

There were 19 ndividual points completed in 2017/18,
bringing our cumulative total o 34 points, and we are
on track for our end of AMP target

3. Invest responsibly for
sustainable growth

See our Regulated Water and Waste Water
performance review cn pages 34 to 41
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Reward/Penalty
374

Rate of Reward/Penalty [perincident)

£53,900"

Why we measure |t

Minimising the impact cur activity has on the
environment is a key concern for our custormners,
This perfermance comroatment ensures we drive
loarrprove perfarmance i Lhis area

Progress inthe year

We are reporting 327 category 3inmidents agamst
a comritted performance level of 374, this 15 47
ahead of target ana our reward dead-band

Penalty/:Reward Reward Cap
21

Rata of Pena lyf'Reward [pcr sC mrmE

£1.03m"

Whywe measure it

Qur customers want us to look for new and inncvative
ways to improve water quality, whilst working in
partnership with other stakeholders tc deliver wider
berahts This performance cor~milmen' (ecuses on
how our approaches are encouraging farmers and
tand awners to change their behaviour and practces

Progressin the year

Over the last year we have under taken a review of gur
srhemes and processes and optimised our approach

based on previous year s experience We areon track

to deliver more than out perfor mance commitnment of
12 calehmentsin 201812

4, Create an awesome place to work

Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked

Severn Trent Water Limited

O. 1 7 2016/17.0.22

Severn Trent Business Services

01 5 2014/17:0.04




SIM - Customer experience

Not yet defined by Ofwat

83.25Mscore

Why we measure it
Previding good quality service te cur cuslumer sis koy
andthe Serwice Incertive Mechamsm | SIM | provids s us

with a reqular cppor tunily to underetand our perfarmance
andimplementiniiatives Lo inprove the guality of survice

we prowde, but alse delwer value for monuey

Progressinthe year

We have seen a shight dertine in gur quantitative
arcas of qurbusimess and mantained cur qualitative
s ureswhirh has meant that vee have reported 3 SIM
acwre of 83 2 for 2017413, behind our origimal upper
quartile tar get

Complaints about water quality

Actual
12,687

Graph removed - - T

Reward/Penatty
9,992

Why we measure it

Custorniers vatue the acsthetic quality of ther

waler This performance comrritrment s dsigeed
L CnsUra A mandge sir nebwerk o minsmiz e tne
number of ov, ate that ¢ suse Jiscolourat cn, taste or
cdour problems,

Progress inthe year

In 2017, the number of drinking water auatity
complaints decreased frem 14 461,12 12 687 Gt
we did net achieve our cormrritted per formance
level ot 99¢/7

Asset Stewardship - coliform failures Leakage
Actual Actual
8 443
1 ]

© Graph ife"r'n'd\iéd" o | T

i 'G'ré'piﬁ:"r'éfﬁé'{éd" T

Penalty
7

cisso00

Why we measure it

The prese noe ol califor ms i cur drinking water 1=
unacceplable as it s anindicatar of poer quality sc we
centinua ly romstor our works Lo ensure they are nel
bemngdetected

Progress inthe year

During 2017, we detecled coldforme st cight water
treatrnent wor ks sites, whichiswors  than cur
cemimittad performnance lovel of seven or fuwer
works with celiform detections

Severn Trent engagement score improvement®

Rcward;"Pcm]tly
434

Rate of Ruward/Penalty fpor megahitre per dayt

Why we measure it

Customers see leakage as o wash vl akey rescuro o,
cur customers want us ke reduce our level of leak g

asapriority

Progressinthe year

Onre sutturen pasition for 20017/18 was a total

of 443 M4 ay, which was behind our comrmittar
perfonman ce level of 434 Mifday

6 percentage points

Progress against
our financial KPls*

Group turnover

£1,694.1m

2016/17: £1,638.0m
Group underlying PBIT
£541.0m

2016/17: £520.1m

Underlying earninés per share

121.0p

2016/17: 115.7p

Notes
I 2002403 prices after tax

¢ Theseare al=c key rcasusarments used to as -
nut Corporate Res ponabilty pedtormance

Lngagement index us<d for the Group since
2015814 Lo supparthonchmarking and gan bt
ins ghl sheut us as anemplayer

A A ternative Perlormance Measures are def ned
0 Note 46 10 the Group Financ al Statzmesits
onpagey 197 (o "v4

Key

Artual
Sewe rn Trent Actual Porformanee 201718
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Strategic report

Performance review

Regulated Water
and Waste Water

Our Regulated Water and
Waste Water business
performed well during the
year, as we continued to deliver
our five strategic priorities.

Here, we provide greater detail on the achievernents
and challenges we encountered while delivering
our five strategic priorities over the last 12 months
- and also dentify some of the areas where there's
stli more to do.

Kilometres of sewerage
pipes in our network

94,027

Litres of drinking water
supplied each day

1.6bn

Households and
businesses served

4.3m

Image removed

We aim to educate and inspire an entire gengration, nat just about water

conservation and envirenmental protection, but also by emphasising
the impartance of hydration Lo their health and wellbeing
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Embedding customers
at the heart of all we do

Serving our 4 3 rillion customers and doing our best for their
local communities sits right at the very centre of everything
we do

During the year, we carried eut the most Intensive customer
engagerment activity In our histery This included a range of
In-dapth, deliberative sessions with customers to get right to
the heart of their needs, and close collaboration to explore how
those needs — and cur service - could evolve in the future

The customer engagement confirmed thal the priorities for our
custorners are consistent and simple - including tess sewer
flooding and lower bills. Simple to understand, of course, but not
sosimple to achieve Soit's extremely pleasing to report that this
was the third cansecutive year where we outperformed on the
measures that our customers care most about

Less sewer flooding

Animproved record on sewer (looding sits right al the lop of our
list of achievernents There's been a 35% reductien in the number
ef customers aflected by external sower flooding, largely due lo
our centinued focus on prevention

With many blockages caused by wipes and other non-degradable
items, we've continued to use a wide range of Initiatives to
educate our customers ahout what they can and can't put

down tollets and drains Among households, wipes are the
main culprits and during the year we interacted with 200,534
customers to help them to improve their understanding of

how sewers work and to be careful around how much wateris
consumed We're paying particular attention to the customers
of the future, and engaged with 154,102 schoolchildren during
the year We aim to educate and inspire an entire generation, not
just about water conservation and environmentat protection, but
also by emphasising the importance of hydration to their health
and welibeing.

In the nan-household sector, we followed up last year's
pioneering agreement with McDonald s by engaging with mare
fast food restaurants In Gloucestershire, for example, we
warked with companies including YO! Sushi, J D Wetherspoon
and The Mayflower to help prevent fatbergs by educating staff
about what they shouldn't be pouring down sinks and drains,
and advising them on what grease containment and treatment
1s needed




Image removed

We're the first water company to provide a 24/7 service for
non-emergencies, so customers can contact us to discuss anything
they want in the middle of the night, if that's what fits in with ther lives.

Lower bills

For the 8th consecutive year, Severn Trent Water s customers
pad the lowest bills in England and Wales, with our average
combined bill for the year being £341 We're proud of this recard
- but we're even more proud of our continuing efforts to do more
every year to help vulnerable customers who are struggling to
make ends meet Inits third year, our Big Difference scheme
helped 36,000 customers access discounts of between 10% and
?0%, whichis a critical part, along with other taillored schemas,
to ensure we deliver on our commitment to help at least

50,000 custormers with bills every year Experience tells us that
financial difficullies can often indicate 1ssues in other areas of a
customer’s life, so we've expanded ourcare and assistance team
to give us the capacity to engage with agencies such as housing
associations, the NHS, Citizens Advice and charities including
MIND, Samarnitans and local food banks, as well as other utility
companies By working together, sharing appropriate information
and adopting a holistic approach te vulnerable people, we believe
we'll be able to do even more to play a key role at the heart of
local communities

More ways to contact us

It s important to our custormers that they can get in touch with us
how they want, when they want We now maintain nine different
customer comrunication channels, including webchat which
saw an Increase in traffic during the year We re the first water
company to provide a 24/7 service for non-emergencies, so
customers can contact us to discuss anything they want in the
muddle of the might, it that's what fits wwath their lves. The value
of round-the-clock availability can be seenin the fact that on
most nights, more people contact us with gquestions about
payrnent of their bills and ather 1ssues than about emergencies

Although our customer Service Incentive Mechanism ('SIM |
score - which Ofwat uses to measure how well and how quickly
we put things right when our service fails to meel customers
expactations - 15 disappointing, we are working hard to improve
the consistency of our customer experience There's still more
to do, and we're going to focus extra effort In areas such as the
time we take to respond when customers inform us of a leak
Butit's encouraging to see that our drive to embed custemers at
the centre of all we do 15 paying off where it matters most - n the
hearts and minds of customers themselves Customer written
complaints for the year are down 17%

We continued to performwell on the Institute of Customer
Service's UK index, which measures customer satistaction
across the utilities sector, achieving upper quartile position for
custorner satisfaction, eguivalent to fourth position in the Utilities
sector We look forward to the introduction of Ofwat’'s new C-MeX
measure, currently in development, we belbieve that this measure
will provide a truer reflection of cur relative performance
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Strategic report

Performance review continued
Regulated Water and Waste Water

Driving operational excellence
and continued innovation

We re fully supportive of the incentive environment that Ofwat
has created. The clear inkage between performance and
reward has encouraged us to think differently about how we
wark and to develop a sharper focus than ever an improving
customer service The result has been a good performance
which has generated significant CD! outperformance payments
of £80 2 million We've decided to defer these earnings and
access them in the years to come, when they'll help us to
smooth future customer bills

Nawhere 15 our performance better demonstrated than on
our waste measures, INncluding sewer flooding As reported
above, we achieved a sigmificant reduction mn the number of
customers affected by such incidents aver the last year in fact
we ve gutperformed our internal sewer flooding regutatary
target by 31% and our external target by 4% How have we
achieved this? By continuous investment supported by leading
edge technology At a macro level, we re using sophisticated
data and analytics to predict the areas at greatest risk and then
addressing these with targeted capital nvestment At a more
micro level, we're carrying out root cause analysis of incidents
when they do occur and putting measures in place to prevent
reoccurrence - whether caused by geographic factors or
customer behaviours

Regaining 4* status

Pollution is an area where the investments made since
privatisation are really paying off - and we're delighted to
report that our environmental performance shouid enable us
tc regain coveted 4% status from the Environment Agency

Our number of serious pollution incidents [categories 1 and 2)
decreased 1o two from seven the previous year while category
3 performance again improved, with 327 incidents against a
regulatory target of 374 At the same time, we worked hard

to improve the quality of the water entering our rivers and
reservoirs Metaldehyde s an effective pesticide against slugs,
snails, and other gastropods - but ance it runs off fields and
enters the watercourse, It's extremely expensive to remove
We conbnured to use financial incentives to encourage farmers
to pursue different and tess environmentally damaging
alternatives, with considerable success
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Image remaoved

We've outperformed our internal sewer flooding regulatory target
by 31% and our external target by 49%.

The Drinking Water Inspecterate [ DWI | plays a key role in

cur regulalery environment, and we continued to fullilour
commitment to carry out diagnostics at our 16 largest sites

Our performance 15 measured by a metric known as mean zonal
comphiance, and during 2017/18 we improved our performance
compared with the prior year at 9996% [2016/17 99 94%)

Scope for improvement

Unfortunately, our performance on supply interruptions was less
pleasing, with a two-fold year-on-year deterioration Duetoa
number of significant bursts seme of cur customers were lefl
without water. The major burst at Tewkesbury in December,
which affected many thousands of people, was challenging both
1o locate and tsolate Although we worked tirelessly to reconnact
our customers and provided 100,000 titres of bottled drinking
water, we recognise that our performance was unacceptable

Then, in March 2018 the very rapid thaw following The Beast
from the East led to a substantial increase over a seven day
period in the number of burst pipe notifications we would typically
recerve during that period, followed by cornplications caused

by airlocks, further snowfall and then further bursts We were
incredibly disappointed that homes and communities were

left without water as a result of the unprecedented weather

We know how difficult everyday life was for our customers until
we could restore supplies - and we decided immediately to pay
£30 compensation, roughly equivalent to our average monthly
combined bill for water and waste, to any who were without water
for more than 12 continuous hours, or experienced interrmittent
supply for maore than 15 hours We alse worked with business
customers and their retailers who were allected. With around
70% of 1ssues occurming on private property, we know we need to
do more to advise customers better on how to prepare for winter




The quality of our drinking water s constantly monitored and
strictly regulated Our strategy for the year was to focus maore
efforts on our surface water tregtment works - and while this
generated good results it was accompanied by a slight dipin
performance at cur ground water sites For exarmple, the number
of sites wher e coliforms were detected rose fram five to eight.
While coliforms are harmless bacteria, their presence can be

an indication that water quality 15 not as hugh as it should be,

Overall, we recerved 12,687 complaints about water quality
during the year, down by 12% TFhis was our best performance
for sixyears, and sustained the prior year's improvements
We're committed to turther improvement and acknowledge that
the number of complaints in 2017/18 15 stll significantly above
our requlatory target of 9992 We're targeting improvements in
many ways, including adopting the water flushing programme
initiabives in place at Dee Valley Water which helped the team
there achieve 100% compliance during the year

One of the Dee Valley Water teams 15 currently leading the
Severn Trent water gquality improvement programme - a good
example of how we re sharing best practice and learning from
each other s experiences

Investing in innovation

We continue to seek out innovative ideas that can transform cur
performance, no matter where they originate For example, our
comrmtment to remove phosphorus from our sewage treatment
works has seen our innovation team evaluate technologies from
across the world. Following intensive £2 million trials at our
Packington site over the last two years, we're now commencing
the roll-out of five different and highly advanced technologies
These include a magnetite ballasted coagulation process
pioneered inthe US At ane site this technotogy has replaced
cur arignal solution, which was costed at £21 1 million The new
solution reduced the cost to £12 5 rmitlion and will lead to a total
expenditure {Totex] saving of £8 7 million - a return on investment
af 218% on one scheme alone

We re also seeking to improve our performance on leaks
through innovative projects, such as the introduction of detector
robots into the pipe network This innovative solution uses
small touch sensors to spot the nature and exact location of
leaks rather than the current visual and acouslic lechmgues,
Based on technology first used in North America. we were the
first test case In Europe and only the third test case globally
with very encouraging early results.

Image removed

We re also seeking to improve our
performance on leaks through
innovative projects, such as the
introduction of detector robots
inte the pipe network
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Regulated Water and Waste Water continued

Investing responsibly
for sustainable growth

At Severn Trent, we've been responsible for £21 billion of the
£130 billion invested by our industry since privatisation - and our
capital programme continued at pace through 2017/18, as we
invested £855 milion across our estate Last year, we commutted
to investing a further £120 million in AMPé in order to make sure
we're inthe best possible shape for AMP7, and we've increased
our forecast Totex efficiencies by £100 mullion. These now stand
at £870 rrullion. This additional £100 rmillion of Totex efficiencies,
which is 1n addition to the £120 milhion previously announced, will
also be reinvested in our business, for the benefit of customers.

Delivering our capital programme

Looking at cur major capital projects, we started work on a

£60 million project to protect 400 homes and businesses at
Newark in Nottinghamshire from sewer flooding, and provide the
town with a rnore reliable water supply On track for cornpletion
in 2019, the project will see us install 4 km of new sewers and

10 k1 of new water mains, and also build a 3km, 2 8 metre
diameter, tunnel 15 metres below Newark

The £300 million Birmingham Resilience Project is the largest
capital project undertaken in the industry during AMPé Due to
be completed in 2020, this will create a second major source

of water for Birmmingham Progress duning the year included
preparatory works for the Lickhitl to Frankley pipeline comprising
the laying of 17 km of pipewark and major tunnetling operations

Meanwhile, the £40 million investment to replace an ageing
reservoir with twoe new ones at Ambergate was completed a year
early in February 2018 This project will lower the nisk to drinking
water quality while improving cur storage capacity resilience at
the same time

Our capital programme 1s delivering rewards in many areas
of the business We've retained our Upper Quartile position
in waste and are moving in that direction on water. In terms
of ODts, we've significantly outperformed our targets and our
0Dl outperformance payments have exceeded £80 million.
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Building a sustainable business

It's iImportant to balance capaaty-building projects with the
need to create a sustainable business that's able to delver
custommer benefits in the long termn — not just next year but over
the coming decade and beyond.

For example, we carried out 15,347 home water efficiency checks
during the year These help custamers save money by using
water more efficiently - and that rmeans less pressure on water
resources in the future We're now using demeographic data such
as socioeconomic profiling, to target customers who we believe
stand to gain most from a visit by our team. In total, our education
programmes helped over 171,469 customers use water more
wisely in 2017/18

We're fortunate that the Severn Trent estate 1s home to a
diverse array of species of plants and animals During the year,
we mproved biodiversity at Sites of Special Scientific Interest
[55SIs | covering 9 86 hectares, reprasenting good progress
aganst our 2020 target of 75 hectares - and we also improved
almost 120 km of rivers as part of the Water Framework
Directive We continue to fecus on exploring innovative ways

to generate renewable energy from waste, and last year self-
generated the equivalent of 38% of cur energy needs Please see
the Business Services performance review on page 42 for
more details

On a more negative nate, our emissions perforrmance was
disappointing as we fatled to achieve ocur Water carbon ODI due to
higher than expected energy use In response, we've Introduced
new energy management initiatives for the corming year We've
also agreed to help the National Grid balance energy supply

and demand by turning sorne of our operational sites off at
certain times

We know that cur own efforts to becorne more sustainable
become even more effective when we're joined by others - and
in May 2017, we were delighted to see our supply chain partners
stepping up to support our ambitions At an event in Coventry,
senior delegates from our top suppliers engaged with our
management team to explore opportunities to work together for
mutual benefit The outcome included a series of pledges from
these influential suppliers te work on impraving sustainability in
areas relevant to their business For example, embedding carbon
and water reductions in their processes and pladging to work
closely with us on mitigating the rnisks of modern slavery

Cleserto home, we are working with PwC and Hope for Justice
to provide our people with bespoke training on modern slavery
This programme raised awareness of the issue and how to
identify it, particularly among our suppliers - and it's encouraged
our people tc become advocates of our zero tolerance approach
to medern slavery




Changing the market
for the better

Severn Trent Water and Dee Valley Water are very active players
In the water industry across Cngland and Wales We're keen to
play our part to the full - promoting the industry and the positive
influence it has had on Ufe in the UK since privatisation, and
encouraging greater awareness among regutators and others
of the 1ssues we face.

During the year, we supported the Social Market Foundation in
publishing a report inta the lkely implications of renationalising
the water industry on public sector debt levels With some
commentators estimating the cost of such a development to

be in excess of £90 billion, our view is that the public should be
fully aware of the facts arcund all aspects of renaticnalisation
We also collaborated with Thames Water and United Utilities to
publish a thought leadership docurment on how water companies
could create and manage a systems operator for water trading in
order to drive greater efficiency.

Image removed

Encouraging new ideas

We have a track record of embracing markets where we betieve
we can create value for our customers For example, our

Water Plus joint venture with Umited Utilities 1s enabling us to take
advantage of the opportunities presented by the opening of the
non-household retail marketin April 2017

We continued to engage with our Industry peers on awide range
of 1ssues throughout 2017/18,1n order to 1dentify and evaluate
new and better ways of working Our draft Water Resources
Management Plan cutlines a range of potential trading options
to help meet future dernand pressures and to secure supplies
for the long terrm We ve already worked with Thames Water

and United Utilities to investigate the benefits that a super
interconnector could bring to our respective regions, by enabling
us to move and trade water Addtional future options include bio-
resources trading - and we ve taken partin trials to make sure
we're ready for the oppartunity when it arises

We also worked closely with the Water Forum, which not only
gave us valuable custorner insights but also helped guide the
new and deeper approach we're taking to supporting vulnerable
members of our local communities

Acquired In 2017, Dee Valley Waler has now been substanually
integrated into the Group, and we've been busy sharing ideas
between the husinesses The acquisition gave us the opportunity
to realign both Dee Valley Water and Severn Trent Water around
national boundaries Once the realignment 1s complete in July
2018, Dee Valley Water will be answerable to the government

in Wales, while Severn Trent Water will be answerable to the
government in Engtand

We recognise the importance of leading by example, and

aim to help our industry regaimn public trust and legitimacy by
demonstrating the highest standards of governance Our Board
leads from the front and is responsible for the oversight of all
aspects of the business, including culture During the year, the
Directors continued to evaluate a broad set of culturatindicators,
such as exit interviews and external stakeholders’ perceptions,
in order to ensure that our values rermain central to everything
we do
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Regulated Water and Waste Water continued

Creating an awesome
place to work

Our people are key to the success of our business - and we
want to make sure we motivate, reward and support them
accordingly It was very encouraging to see our efforts reflected
by a six percentage points improvernent in our annual ernployee
engagement survey in 2017 The increased score builds on the
positive momeanturn of recent years as our culture matures,
and was achieved across the board - people in every part of the
business support what we're doing.

We're creating an awesome place to work by focusing on a
broad set of projects and initiatives Recruitment and career
paths clearly play animportant role — graduates continue to be
attracted to the challenges and opparturities we offer, and our
apprentice Intake increased yet again. In fact during 2017/18 we
were delighted to see four expernienced employees start on our
first ever Masters level apprentice programme

Image removed

Celebrating diversity

The last 12 menths saw the establishment of our first LGBT+ inclusion
group The mission of this team was to create a proud and inclusive
culture for our LGBT+ community, supporting our colleagues

and angoing commitment to being recogmsed as a diverse and
inclusive business
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Helping people progress

We invest in suills and development at all tevels of the business,
doing all we can to provide people with progressive, successful
careers A number of our current senior managers started in
Junior positrons We aim to provide great opportunties for atl,
regardiess of gender, race or background. We continually strive
to be a diverse, inclusive business that reflects the demogr aphics
of our region, and achieved a 13% increase in the numbers of
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic [BAME') employees on our
graduate prograrmmmes during the year The population in the East
and West Midlands is among the least secially mobite groups

n the UK - but as a major employer we can help change that

and enable people to realise thair potential To this end, we've
removed barriers to entry such as the requirement to have a
degree for some of our programmes and we have changed our
selection process to focus on potential rather than experience

Our gender dversity perforrance improved during the year

and we now have a mean gender pay gap of just 2 8% However,
we're working hard to reduce it sull further We benefit from high
female representation at executive level and were pleased to be
placed second among FTSE 100 companies for representation
of women on boards and in semior leadership roles by the 2017
Hampton-Alexander Review The last year also saw the creation
of our first LGB 1+ nclusion group The rmission of this team was
to create a proud and inclusive cutture for our LGBT+ community,
supporting our colleagues’ ongoing commitment to being
recognised as a diverse and inclusive business

We encourage all our people, across all roles and age ranges,

to be creative and put forwar d their ideas for innovations that can
improve customer service We repeated the all-employee staff
roadshow, following its success in 2015 The ‘Bike on a Boat’
tour, inspired by the innovative approach of the New Zealand
America’'s Cup-winning team of 2017, captured and shared a
wide range of briliant ideas Smce its launch we have funded

13 ideas, including sending employees to evaluate inittiatives o
Singapore, Australia, Denmark and USA that could be adopted in
our business



We also restructured the business during the year This brought
arenewed emphasis on our core work Inwater and waste
water, it's also improved our custormer focus and, crucially,
brought a new level of clarity to cur employees on roles and
responsibilities We all know what's expected of us, and we all
know that the business will do its best to support us by giving

us the tools we need — whether that's a robot leakage detector,
an innovative agreement with a farmer or a day of intensive
management tramning

Pay and conditions are huigh on everybody's list of priorities,

and we've made goad progress here too We provide jobs that
are well paid and with excellent pensions Our bonus scheme
also embraces everybody, ensuring that the rewards of a good
year's work are shared among us all. The annual employee
engagement survey identified pay transparency and relativity

as two of the top 101ssues where our pecple thought we could
improve Were now addressing this by clarifying pay rates and
being more tharough in the way we explain career opportunities.

Promoting health, safety and wellbeing

We pay particular attention to the health, safety and wellbeing of
our teams, and In 2017/18 contnued our major initiative around
mental health Qur aim 15 to remove the stigma around mental
health, for example by creating a workplace where pecple can
talk about problems with depression or stress To date, we ve
trained over 400 mental health firsl aiders to spot the signs of a
possible 1ssue, while a number of senior managers have brought
mental health more into the open by talking frankly about their
own experiences During the year, we held an imitiative on the
menopause and other areas that pecple can be uncomfortable
discussing, including cancer, and we signed up to Dying to Work,
which supports employees with a terminal diagnosis

We're commutted to the highest standards of behaviour at all imes,
not only In cur own business but alse ameng cur suppliers, who
are required to sign up te our Code of Conduct, anti-cerruption
and bribery policy and our sustainable supply chain charter to
itlustrate that they share our values and are cormmutted to helping
us achieve our goals We audit suppliers as part of our tendering
process for large contracts, and they must dernonstrate full
compliance with our standards at all times

Image removed

Over 40% of employees volunteered during the year, a huge increase
on the 11% that took part in 20146/17

During the year, we worked with Hope for Justice te develop a
training package, including upskilling cur contract managers

an haw to spot the signs of slavery and human trafficking and the
steps they should take If any concerns are raised We have clear
policies and traming in place - and these are supported by an
independent and conlidential whistleblowing service which we
actively promote via cornmunications such as messages on
payslips Every report of possible corruption or bribery, from

any source, 1s Investigated and reported to both the Corporate
Raspensibility and Audit Commuttees of the Beard.

We want our pecple to feel part of a progressive company

that plays its part to the full — and the record level of employee
volunteering 1s another positive sign of this Over 40% of
ernployees volunteered during the year, a2 huge increase on the
1% that took partin 2016/17. Most volunteering was through
our new Community Champions programme, working alongside
key partners such as The Wildlife Trust to improve 50 km of
riverside environments in our regions Our volunteers also
hetped our corporate charties, Cormic Relief, Spert Relief and
Children in Need, as well as continuing our long term suppert for
WaterAid In addition to rarsing nearly £300,000 during the year,
our people alsc drew on specific industry skills to give practical
help to WaterAid, for example by supporuing the charity's
campaign lo improve waler quality in Cambadia
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Business Services

We have transformed Business
Services during the year: divesting

our overseas operating services
businesses and increasing our focus

in the UK; expanding our energy
production capacity and establishing
our Bioresources business; and setting
up our Property division.

image removed
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Focusing on the domestic UK market

Following the sale of our ltalian business in the previous year,
in June 2017 we sold the Operating Services’ US business

to Public Pensions Capital for $62 million This enabled us

to sharpen our focus on our core UK and Ireland domestic
market, in line with our strategy

Our UK contracis husiness again provided a solid foundation
for the year's performance The 25 year operating and
maintenance contract with the Ministry of Defence (MOD | has
now reached the halfway point We're delighted to continue to
recewve positive feedback from our customers regardmng the
service we're delivering and we've continued to see strong
returns from project work across the MOD estate

We continue to grow and value our close working relationships
with custormers For example, this was demonstrated to

good effect on our Coal Authonty contract Qur team is now
co-located m the custamer’s Manstield office, from where we
manage the contract to prevent flooding and pollution 1ssues
at disused mines

Seizing new opportunities

We've completed the miegration of our non-househotd retail
operation into Water Plus Thus joint venture with United
Utilties is focused on the opportunities created by the
opening of the non-household retail market to competition
inApril 2017 Water Plus i1s working well, maintaining

its share of a growing market by winning several major
contracts The emphasis for the year ahead will be on driving
improvernents in the market and improving our service to
meat customer needs, as we strive to be recognised as a
leader in this new market

In a move that will help us extract maximum value from our
estate, we created a new property division during the year
The Property Development business unit aims to develop
land previously used for operaticns through the planning
process for onward sale to developers to enable new hormes
and commercial premises to be built, creating new homes,
communities and jobs OQur experienced, dedicated team has
significant property expertise and will assess the poteptial
our surplus land Together with Severn Trent Water s Estates
Management Team, our airn s to deliver £100 mullion profit
over the next decade.
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Construction of our third food waste plant 1s also progressing well Sited in Derby, this new plant
ts the first in the UK to incorporate advanced thermogpressure hydrolysis, which will enable us

to generate more energy and take in waste from the broader waste market

Generating our own energy

Our sewage sludge anaercbic digesters, food waste and crop
digestion ptants, two wind turbines and solar PVs generated
the equivalent of 38% of cur energy during the year - and

we remain on track to achieve our target of increasing that
percentage to b0% by 2020

In pursuit of that goal, we took sieps lo expand our renewable
activities by announcing a new Bioresources business unit
Set tc begin aperationsin April 2018, the new unit will manage
all bio-resource activities within our regulated business, i
preparation for the opening up of the bio-resource rarket

in 2020

Gur crop digestion plant near Nottingham will play an
important role in achieving our 50% target The plant
produces gas by digesting maize that's been grown

on centaminated land arcund our treatment works
Construction of a new biogas facility to expand capacity by
50% completed in Decemnber 2017 and detivers biomethane
directly into the National Grid

Food waste plants - which take waste food from restaurants,
supermarkets and other facilities - are another way in which
weTe turning waste Into renewable energy Our second

food waste plant at Stourbridge opened for business in dune
2017 Rwill produce enough green gas to power around
3,000 hormes and help the Government reet its objective to
decarbonise the environment Construction of our third food
waste plant s also progressing well Sited in Derby, this new
plant s the fir st in the UK to incorporate advanced ther mo-
pressure hydralysis, which will enable us to generate more
energy and take inwaste from the broader waste market
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Strategic repott

Managing our critical resources
and relationships

Every day, we rely on six key
resources and relationships
to support the long-term
sustainability of our business.

On these pages we explain these resources
and relationships in detail, and showcase

a number of practical examples of how we
managed them over the last year.

This year we have integrated our CR metrics
among our commentary on managing our
critical resources and relationships.

Water Framework
Directive classification

Positive engagement
with land managers

i t points
850/0 improvemen
19

2017 44%
201715

Expected EArating Number of Environment
* Agency Category 1 & 2 incidents
4 lcalendar year metric)

207 3 2

277
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Hectares improved from
unfavourable or deteriorating
condition using Natural
England’s database of SS5Is

9.86

2017 2974

Reduction in Group
carbon emissions

4.4%

[scope 1 and 2] - our direct emissions
and those from the energy we use

2017 8 3%



Our natural resources

Maintaining our reservoirs, rivers
and underground aquifers

We're fortunate to be responsible for some of the UK's most
impressive natural resources. From the chain of man-made
lakes created by damming the Elan and Claerwen riversin
Wales, which provide clean water to Birmingham, to stunning
stretches of rivers such as the Severn, the Dee and the Trent,
these wonderful resources provide the raw materials for

our services.

Despite the relatively dry winter, our reservaoirs were full at the
end of the financial year, and we'te Iy g strong position to ensure
areliable supply to customers during the year ahead

Working with landowners...

Prevention 1s better than cure, so we work hard to make
sure that the water entering our watercourses 1s as clean
as possible Supported by the skills of a dedicated teamn

of agricultural advisers, the Severn Trent Environmental
Protection Scheme ['STEPS' aims to improve watercourses
and the wider environment.

STEPS provides grants of up to £5,000 for infrastructure
improvement and land management changas inour target
areas Thisis part of our plan to invest £21 mullion by 2020 to
help farmers improve water quality - an investment that will
pay off several times over by protecting the emvircnment and
reducing treatment costs

For example, we continued to recompense farmers prepared
to switch from rnetaldehyde to less invasive alternatives for
the control of slugs Once in the watercourse via field run-
off, metaldehyde is extremely expensive to remove - and the
scherne has again detivered excellent value while helping us
achieve our catchment management target

We improved biodiversity on 784 hectares of Sites of Special
Scientific Interest ['5551s)) during the year, and have a target of
iImproving 75 hectares of 555Is by 2020

...and ensuring long term supply

As the financial year closed, we published our draft Water
Resources Managernent Plans (WRMP] Qur leng term

view on supply availability, the WRMP articulates the need to
make significant investments in water supply and demand
management schemes, particularly in light of the Government s
requirements for the industry te reduce levels of water
abstraction For exarmple, Severn Trent Water has targeted a
15% reduction in leakage over the next five years, and we plan
to Increase the use of water meters, in addition to stepping up
our home water efficiency checks We carried out 15.347 checks
during the year - helping custormers save money and protect
future supplies by using water more sfficiently

Image removed

Helping farmers step up
to the challenge

Prevention can be more cost-effective than treatment,
particularly when it comes to pesticides which can enter
our rivers from surrounding fields. Through STEPS we offer
farmers grants of up to £5,040 per year to undertake works
which will help reduce pollution.

Logo
removed

Retaining the Carbon
Trust Standard

We were proud to once again be reaccredited with the Carbon
Trust Standard during the year. This achievement verifies that
we have sound carbon management processes in place and are
reducing absolute carbon emissions year-on-year. In fact, we've
reduced our GHG emissions by 17% since 2014,
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships continued

Cleaning our rivers

Under the EU Water Framework Directive 'WFD'], were
charged with achieving good status’ for all watercourses
We continued to support the aims of the WFD during 2017/18
and again made significant progress towards achieving our
ambitious target of improving the health of 1,800 km of river
by 2020 We completed 10 WD sewage treatment projects
during the year which improved almost 120 km of river - an
increase of around 650% over the previous year—and were
now approximately 15% of the way to reaching our chjective
River health is assessed by the Environrment Agency and
measured against a set of criteria including oxygen levels and
the presence of fish and invertebrates.

Managing our environmental impact

During 7017/18, we outperformed our internal sewer flooding
regulatory target by 31% and our external target by 49% - and
these have been key factors that shoutd help usregain a 4*
rating from the Environment Agency

We also achreved all of our regulatory targets relating to
pollution incidents, reducing serious category 1 and 2 pollutions
to two events duning 2017/18, down from seven in the prior year

We failed to reach our water ODI carbon emissions target

for 2017/18, primarily due to greater energy consumption as

we need to meet Increases in demand for water production
Efficiency measures now in place are expected to drive the
reguired reduction in the corming 12 months Meanwhile, we
continue to Increase the amount of renewable energy we
generate [uring the year, we produced the eguivalent of 38% of
Severn Trent Water Limited's energy needs and are on track lo
increase this to 50% by 2020

4.6 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Using technology to
prevent pollution

Combined sewer overflows ['CS0s’) are susceptible to
pollution if they block or stop working properly. So over

the last year we've invested in monitors at over 70% of our
CS50s. We're also installing over 1,000 monitors in manholes
where there’s a high risk of internal flooding or pollution.

Image removed

40% of employees volunteer
to clear 50 km of rivers

Our volunteering scheme continues to go from strength to
strength. During the year, over 40% of our peaple warked
with partners such as local Wildlife Trusts to help clean up
the environment alengside 40 km of rivers in England and
a further 10 km in Wales.



Our physical assets

Ensuring a resilient and well-maintained network

Our physical assets include over 49,000 km of water mains,
27 dams, 139 water treatment works and a vast range of
equipment, sites, offices and other structures across an
estate that covers more than 53,000 acres. While a significant
number of these assets are over 100 years old and of historic
importance, many are among the most technologically
advanced examples of their type in the water industry - not
only in the UK but worldwide.

We're commutted to ensuring that our assats are in optimum
condition at all times, able to deliver the figh guality services that
our customers depend on At dams and reserveoirs, for example,
we carry out regular checks to identify any remedial actions that
need to be undertaken - and every year, the Board receives a full
report on the cendition of each dam and reservaoir in our portfolio

Security 1s an increasingly important issue for all key UK
nfrastructure Mindful of cur role and responsibilities, we
co-operate closely with the Government on potential terrorist
targets and provide physical security at all major sites At the
same time, our cyber security team constantly monitors our T
assets, identifying and addressing any vulnerabilities in order
to protect our data and that of our customers

Improving our portfolio to improve efficiency...

Since privatisation, the water industry has invested some

£130 bithon in assets to iImprove services for customers, with
our own capital programme involving an investment of around
£3 bilion over the five years to March 2020.

The major projects currently underway include the £300 million
Birmingham Resilience Project - the largest ongoing capital
project in the industry — and & £60 millien scheme to improve
sewers and water mains at Newark in Nottinghamshire

We also have a continuaus investment programme to improve
the effectiveness of our sewage treatrment works, including a
£12 5 rmillion project to rermove phosphorus

...and reduce interruptions and leakage

While our capital programme i1s delivering rewards in many
areas of the business, we recognise that our customers
experienced too many supply interruptions during the year
Some of these caused major hardships, notably at Tewkesbury
in December 2017, when we took too long to locate, 1solate and
rectify a burst main, and in March 2018 when the countrywide
freeze and subsequent thaw contributed te some custormers
being left without water or with only intermuittent water supplies
for extended periods of time

We're working hard to improve our performance, inctuding
irwvesting in rebot leakage detector technology which we
believe would have been invaluable at bursts such as the one
at Tewkesbury

The time we take to respond when customers tell us about a

leak 1s another area where we need to improve However, this

15 not as clear cut as it appears Our performance commitment
target 1s to respond within 24 hours, but, this may not be the most
operaticnally effective way to provide & good service to customers
or manage our network officiently. We're currently evaluating

our response capabilities in order to assure ourselves and ocur
customers that our current approach 1s appropriate
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships continued

Our people

Creating a place where people enjoy coming to work —
where theyre safe, well rewarded and treated with respect

The Group employs around 6,000 people at locations primarily
across the East and West Midtands as well as in North and
mid-Wales. We know that we're only as good as our peaple.

So we strive to create a workplace that's welcoming, safe

and well-rewarded - and where they're treated with respect.
This year's employee survey showed a six percentage points
increase in engagement, clearly demonstrating that we're on
the right path to making the Group an awesome place towork.

Health, safety and wellbeing

The health and safety of our peaple 1s a core aspect of how we
work, and we ensure that theyre provided with the training
and resources to follow our safety rules Our Lost Time Injury
LTIl frequency rate for the year was 017 per 100,000 hours
waorked, a sigmificant decrease of 23% over the previous year.
Our rigorous approach to safety has ted to this improvement
over the last three years, from 0 21 1n 2015 However, there's
no room for cormplacency and we Il continue to promote safe
working practices through initiatives including traiming and
regular communications

We alsc made good progress in ensuring our people’s wellbeing
during the year We continued our mental health programme and
now have over 400 trained mentat health first aiders across the
Group This s part of our drive to promote greater awareness of
some of the more challenging 1ssues that people can face in their
everyday lives - for the year ahead we re continuing to focus on
the menopause and cancer

Logo removed

Signing up to help those
with a terminal illness

We were proud to sign up to the TUC's Dying to Work
charter during the year, which aims to protect employees
with a terminalillness. We believe that nohody should
have to worry about keeping their job ifthey have a
terminal diagnosis.
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Pay and career paths

We airn to provide people with careers, not just jobs Pay scales
are relatively high for our Midlands heartlands, and we work
hard to make sure that our people can see how and where they
can progress up through our organisation - regardless of their
starting point

Attracting high quality people i1s a challenge for all employers,
sowere pleased to see the high numbers of graduates that
apply to Severn Trent Our apprantice programme expanded yet
again during the year and for the first ime included a Masters
level option

Over the next 12 months we're going to respond to 1ssues raised
in the employee survey, including greater clarification on pay
rates and extra focus on how we explain career opportunities

Diversity and inclusion

We re already a diverse, inclusive business - but we know
there are opportunities to do even more to reflect the
demographics af cur region

The year saw a 13% increase in the numbers of Black,

Asian and Minonity Ethnic [ BAME ] employees on our

graduate programmes, and we've introduced new ways

of working designed to drive a further increase in future

years These include removing barriers to entry such as the
requirement to have a degree for some of cur programmaes and
Improving the way we target recruitment activities at schools

Gender diversity 1s another area where we're parforming well
Our mean gender pay gap for the year was 2.4% - and were
committed to reducing it still further Our executive team

has particularly high female representation, which1s why we
were placed second among FTSE 100 compantes by the 2017
Hampton-Alexander Review

Raising awareness
of mental health

Since 2015, 19% of our employees have taken part
in mental health awareness training. We're going to
continue to focus on this issue during the year ahead
-while also expanding our efforts to embrace

other aspects of wellbeing such as physical health,
nutrition, exercise and sleep.




Our suppliers and partners

Building strong relationships that provide

mutual benefit

We rely on a poo! of suppliers that use their expertise and
resources to maintain and improve aur infrastructure.
Through the One Supply Chain programme, we agree

long term contracts that give suppliers greater certainty

of workflow and revenue, while the benefit to Severn Trent
lies in the opportunity to negotiate more competitive prices.
The long term nature of the contracts also enables hoth
parties to build stronger relationships, work more closely
together and explore more efficient ways of working.

In addition to achieving operational excellence and meehing our
efficiency targets, our contracts also stipulate that suppliers
must adhere to our own high safety standards and sign up

to our policy en bribery and corruphion and our sustainable
supply chain charter We ensure compliance with these
requirements through a comprehensive audit during the
tendering process, and thr ough regular communications and
meetings For exarmple, a number of our suppliers have signed
up to corporate responsibility targets agreed with us, and we
review progress agains! these manthly Through our supplier
events, we have set out cur plans and expectations, and have
invited delegates to contribute their own ideas on how we could
work better together We also took the opportunity to underline
the role that safety and ethics play in ¢reating enduring
supplier relationships

Partnering with others

We re keen to work with partner orgamsations frorn both inside
and outside our industry, combining their specialist knowtedge
with our own i order to address some of the chatlenges and
opportunities we face

For example, during the year we extended our drive to

support vulnerable customers — and have now formed deeper
relationships with bodies including MIND, Samaritans, Citizens
Advice, local tood banks, the NHS and other ulility tirms.

By sharing our knowledge, we aim to build a holistic view of
peocple who are potentially vutnerable and to put measures in
place to help them at an earlier stage

We've continued to collaborate with our peers in the industry
We engaged with Thames Water to evaluate a project to build
a super inter connector that would enable water trading,

and with the Social Market Foundation to publish a report

inta Lthe possible financial iImplications of renationalisation.

In partnership with Tharnes Water and United Utilities, we
also published our joint Ideas on how the creation of a systems
operater could support greater efficiency

Wodal nfiajens
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Inspecting the condition of our waste water assets
at Packington treatment works
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Suppliers signed up
to sustainable supply
chain charter

211

Introduced in May 2017

Suppliers paid on time

96%

2017 97%
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships continued

Our customers
and communities

Improving the customer experience

We're responsibile for meeting the needs of 4.3 million
household and business customers, across an area stretching
from the Bristol Channel to the Humber, and from North and
mid-Wales to the East Midlands. We provide these customers
with areund 1.6 billion Litres of high quality drinking water
every day and treat around 2.77 billion litres of waste water,
which we clean and return to the system.

Everything we do1s to the benefit of our custorner s and ther
communities — and during the year we carried out our most
extensive research project ever, to make sure that we're
addressing the 1ssues that matter most ta them

Making a difference

Communication is the key to managing expectations, and we
work hard to keep customers and communities informed and
to minimise disruption when we carry out planned work on our
network Through our education programme, we help people
save water and prevent blockages in our sewers and drains,
supporting the long term integrity of the network and protecting
water supplies for future generations

The scale of cur operations and the nature of our assets

means We have a great opportunity to be a positive influence

on the environment in local communities We're continuing

to imgplerment intiatives - and working with local businesses,
including farmers — to iImprove important habitats such as rivers,
for the ultimate enjoyment of all Our 17 visitar sites host a total of
4 million visits a year, and provide access to water for a range of
leisure facilities, as well as customer education facilities

Many of our pecple continued to play their part in the lives of their
local communities during 2017/18 in fact more of our people than
ever before took the chance to join in some form of volunteering
or fundraising activity

Regulators

Working with the authorities
to shape our industry

We maintain positive and constructive relationships
with Ofwat and other regulatory bodies. Complying with
their reguirements at all times isn't just the right thing
to do - it's essential to our licence to operate and our
ability to meet our commitments to our customers and
other stakeholders.

We engage with regulaters on a regular basis in order to
share our knowledge and premote developrents which
could lead to improved services for customers across
the industry.

lmage removed

Customers who rate Customers we help
our service value for each year through
money in anindependent  social tariffs and
quarterly survey assistance schemes
59% 51,716
2017 58% 2017.50,903
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Qur 17 visitor sites host a total of 4 million visits a year, and provide
access towater for a range of leisure faciies, as well as custorner
education facilities




Chief Financial Officer’s review

We have delivered a good financial pet formance in 2017/18,
absorbing the upward pressures from sector-wide changes in
business rates and energy pass-through costs In our Regulated
Water and Waste Water business, a full year’s contribution from
Cee Valley Water and higher revenues more than offset the
impact of these pressures on our operating costs In Business
Services we have delivered good growth both in revenues

and PBIT.

Underlying basic earnings per share increased by 4 6% to
1210 pence per share in the current year. Reported basic EPS
from continuing operabions was 102 2 pence

Our Return on Regulated Equity [RoRE at 115%15 15
percentage points higher than the previous year, driven by a
strong performance across all three levers - Totex, customer
0ODls and financing | astyear our RoRF was amongst the best
i the sector and we expect to be in a similar position when this
year's results for all companies are published in July

In Line with the revised dividend policy announced last year of
growth of RPI plus at least 4% per annum, the preposed dividend
for the year has increased by 6 2%

On financing, we have a strong funding position, with all our
projected investrnent and other cash flow needs covered by

cash or committed facilities through to March 2020 This year
saw the first rate increase from the Bank of Fngland in more
than 10 years We actively monrtor and manage our interest rate
exposure and took sleps to held our proportion of debt at fleating
rates at 26% through the year end We are also preparnng for

the introduction of CPIH indexation in AMP7, entering into CPi/
RPI swaps with a notional value of £100 million n the second half
of the year, which increased the total amount of these swaps to
£150 million at 31 March 2018 And we have entered into a further
swap for £100 rmillion since the year end

We are committed to paying the right arnount of tax at the night
brme In additron to the corporation tax, which s included in
our tax charge in the iIncome statement, we also pay business
rates, employers’ national insurance and environmental

taxes such as the Climate Change Levy and the Carbon

Regulated Water and Waste Water

Reduction Commitment In 2017/18 we incurred £146 5 rmillion

in these taxes, charges and levies (2016/17 £147 2 roillion)]

Our corporation tax charge for the year was just above the
statutory rate ef 19% with our cash tax payments reduced by the
benefit of allowances on our capital programme, contributions to
cur pensicn schemes and by the timing of instalment payments
to HMRC under the current rules

A brief over view of our financial performance for the year 15
as follows

« Group turnover from continuing operatiens was £1,694 1 million

[2016/17 £1,638 0 million], anincrease of 3 4% as Regulated
Water and Waste Water revenue increased by 3 0%, mainly due
to the RPI-linked tanff increases and a full year of Dee Valley
Water, and Business Services external turnover grew by 9 2%

* We increased underlying PBIT by 4 0% to £541 0 mullion

(2056/17 €520 1 mullion] The first full year of Dee Valley Water
contributed an additional £2 7 mitlion and, excluding Dee
Valley Water, underlying PBIT in cur Severn Trent Regulated
Water and Waste Water business grew by £14 5 rmillion
Business Services underlying PBIT grew by £3 8 millicn, offset
by a reduction in corpaerate and other PBIT of £3 7 millicn

» We recorded net exceptional costs of £12 6 million (2016/17

credit of £16 6 million) Costs to prepare our Bioresources
business for the introduction of the competitive market in
2020were £209 million, partially offset by a credit from
the Pension Exchange Arrangement reported at the half
year Reported Group PBIT was down as a resull by 1.5%
to £528.4 rullion [2016/17. £536.7 million)

» Net finance costs were £2195 million (2016/17 £205.7 mullion).

Our effactive nterest rate of £ 5% was up only marginally
from 2016/17 (4 4%) despite the rmpact of igher RP| on our
index-linked debt

» Ourfull effective tax rate was 20 5% and our underlying

effective tax rate was 12 7%, down from 16 6% 1n 2016/17
largely due to hugher capital allowances from the larger
capital programme in Lhe year.

Turnover for our Regulated Water and Waste Water business was £1,574 6 million (2016/17 £1,528 8 million] and underlying PBIT

was £514.9 mullion [2016/17 £494.7 million).

2018 2017 Botter/(worse]

. h Excluding

Excluding Excluding Dee Va'loy

Dee Valiey Dec Valley Total Dee Valley Dee Valley Total

{m Em £m Em £m Em £m %

Turnover 1,546 7 279 1,574.6 1526 & 27 1528 8 201 13
Net labour costs 364 (G4 (1418)  (1398)] (10l (1408 34 24
Net hired and contracted costs (145 8] 1% (147.7) (144 &) - Né4al 12 (08l
Pawer — B 934 (23] (959) (85 7] i (868 69 80
Baddebts @51 e (257 204 (02 (08 (47 (230
Other costs (1881) (48 (1929 1877) {064 1883 (0.4) (0.2)
{5390) (150)  [604.0] (579 2] (19) (5811) [7 8] (17

Infrastructure renewals expenditure - (134 4] {081 [135.2) 136 2 - 137y 18 13
Depreciation (314 3] 62 [320.5) [316.7) 01 (3168 24 08
Underlying PBIT 5070 59 514.9 4945 02 4947 14 5 (29)
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Strategic report

Chief Financial Officer’'s review
continued

Dee Valley Water was acquired on 19 February 2017 so this

is sts first full year in the Group It contributed £279 million

to turnaver and £5 % million to undertlying PBIT in the year.
The following commentary on the Regulated Water and Waste
Water business excludes Dee Valley Water and Is therefore

on a like-for-lLike basis

Turnover increased by 1 3%, as higher tarffs, including
thernpact of the annual RPY increase on prices, increased
revenue by £33 8 milien Customer QDI rewards earned in
2015/16 increased turnover by £25 8 million but this was offset

by a reduction from the Wholesale Revenue Forecasting
Incentive Mecharism of £24.5 million arising from revenue

billed 1n excess of the whalesale price contral alse in 2015/14.
Our successful drive to help mere vulnerable customers reduced
revenue by £4.6 million due to greater take-up of social tanffs
Other movements of £10 4 million [net]) inctuding the impact of
customers opting for metered status, offset by consurmnption
Increases further reduced turnover. In the current year our billed
revenue was around £3 rmillion below the wholesale price control
and this will be added to revenue to be billed in 2019/20

Net labour costs were £3 4 mullion (2 4% lower Gross employee
costs increased by 5 3%, due to the annual pay award and our
strategy to bring more work in-house The increase in activity on
capital projects resutted in an increase in the level of own labour
capitalised, up £16 0 million on the previous year

Net hired and contracted costs were up £1 2 million (0 8%]

Power costs were £6 9 millicn higher year-on-year driven as
forecasted by higher pass through costs, greater consumption
from a higher volurne of water preduced and the costs of
responding to incidents. The Group manages its power costs
through a combination of demand management, self-generation
and forward price contracts

Our bad debt charge increased by £4 7 million this year, and
represented 2 2% of household revenue (up from 1 8% Last
yearl In the year we improved cash ¢ollections on our current
debt, but saw a decline In the amounts collected on older debt -
both in accounts cotlected by us and by other water comparies
on our behalf The prudent provisioning we apply to this older
debt increased both our charge and the level of bad debt as a
percentage of household revenue for the year.

Other costsincreased by £0 4 million in total after higher profits
on disposal of fixed assets (up £5.8 million] offset by higher
busimess rates of around £3 rillion and other cost increases

Infrastructure renewals expenditure was £1 8 million lowerin
the year, at the lower end of our guidance range, we expect to
see growth in the programme next year

Depreciation of £314 3 million was £2 4 mdlion lower than the
prior year Qur underlying depreciation rate increased in ine with
our asset base, but the change was lower year-an-year due to
impairments recorded in 2016/17
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Return on Regulated Equity ['RoRE’)

RoRE i1s a key performance indicator for the requlated business
and reflects our combined performance on Totex, customer
0Dls and financing against the base return allowed in the

Final Determination

Severn Trent Water s RoRE for the year ended 31 March 2018
and for the three years ended on that date is set out in the
following table

AMP4

2017718 to date

% h

Base return 246 5.6
Totex outperforrmance 08 13
QDI outperformance 23 15
Financing outperformance 28 09
RoRE! 11.5 9.3

1 Calewlated i accordance with Ofwal guidance sot outin RAG 4 07

We have delivered strong returns across the board - with
outstanding Customer QDI performance, improved operational
and investment efficiency driving Totex savings, and continuing
outperformance on linancing.

Business Services

2018 2017 Increase
lrestated)
£m L £m %
Turnover

Operating Services 78.3 74 4 39 5?7
Renewable Energy 60.4 540 4 19
138.7 128 4 103 g0

Underlying PBIT
QOperating Services 15.9 128 31 24 2
Renewable Energy 20.1 194 Gy 36
36.0 322 a8 18

Our Business Services dwision delivered good growthn
revenues (up 8§ 0%] and underlying PBIT [up 11 8%

in our Operating Services business, turnover and underlying PBIT
increased by £3.9 mullion and C3.1 million respectively, due in

part to higher income from our new contract with plumbing and
drainage nsurers

In the Renewable Energy business, turnover increased by 11 9%
targely driven by increased generating capacity in the non-
regulated business from our new food waste plant at Reundhill
Underlying PBIT increased by 3.6%, with cur operating margin
impacted by start-up costs i the new plant.

The results above exclude the US Operating Services business,
which was sold on 30 June 2017, the talian Operating Services
business [sold on 23 February 2017), and the nan-household
Retail business (transferred to the Water Plus joint venture
during the prior year). All of these busmesses have been
classified as discontinued operations in the current and previous
periods and the results for the previous period have been
restated to reflect this.



Corporate and Other

Corporate overheads were £8 9 million [2016/17 £4 9 million]
and our other businesses generated a net loss of £0 8 million
(2016/17 profit of £09 rmillian)

Exceptional items before tax

We recorded a net exceptional charge of £12 & million {2016/17
credit of £14.6 mullion]

We have made an early start In preparing our Bioresources
business for AMPY We have developed cur business model and
identified the actions that we need to take to compete effectively
in the new market, determining the lowest cost structure

from out existing network of sites, optimising our tanker fleet
operations and identifying oppartunities for trading in the new
market We have implemented a programme to reorganise the
business to deliver our business model, reducing from 20 sites
to 12, and as a result Incurred exceptional costs of £209 rmillion
as follows

e Setup and restructuring costs £2 1 million,

s Write-off of assets that witl not be used in the new
business £16.8 miltion, and

e Provision for casts to decommission these assets
of £2.0 million.

An exceptional gain of £8 3 million arose (2016/17 gain of
£16.6 million] from the net benefit, after implermentation costs,
of a Pension Increase Exchange arrangement, under which
mermbet s ot the defined berefit schemes will be offered the
opportunity at retirement to exchange future non-statutory
inflationary increases in a por ton of ther pensions earned
prior to 1997 for a higher pension payment now In the prior
year the exceptional gain arcse frem a similar exercise for
existing pensioners

Net finance costs

Our net finance costs for the year were £219.5 mitlion, up

£14 4 million on the prior year. Qur effective cash cost of Interest
[excluding the RPI uplift on index-linked debt and pensions-
related charges| was 3 4%, 40 basis points lower than 2016/17
Higher RPI inflation an ourindex-linked debt [up £23 9 rullion)
and pensions-related charges meant our overall effective
interest rate increased marginally year-on-year to 4 5%
(201417 4 4%, but stll cornpares favourably to our position

at the start of AMP6 {5.4%).

Capitalised finance vosts were higher than the prior year due

to the mcreased level of capital activity in the year.

Our earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
[ EBITDA] interest cover was 4 3 tmes [2016/17 4 3 times] and
PBIT interest cover was 2 7 times [2016/17 27 imes| See note 46
for further detarls

Gains/losses on financial instruments

We use financial derivatives solely to hedge nisks associated with
our normal business activiies including.

» Exchange rate exposure on foretgn currency borrowings,
= Interest rate exposure on floating rate borrewings, and
* Exposure to increases in electricity prices

Accounting rules require that these derivatives are revalued at
each balance sheet date and, unless the strict criteria for cash
flow hedge accounting are met, the changes in value are taken

to the iIncormne staterment If the risk that s being hedged does not
impact the incorne statement 1n the same periad as the change in
value of the derivative, then an accounting mismatch arises and
there 1s a net charge or credit to the income statement

During the period a counterparty requested to terminate four
interest rate swaps with a notional principal of £150 millien

The fair value of the swaps at termination was a £42 6 million
lability and the termination payment was £40 0 million The gain
on termination has been included in finance income.

We hold interest rate swaps with a net notional principat of
£251 3 million, fixed te floating, and cross currency swaps
with a sterling principal of £98 3 million, which econgmically
act to hedge exchange rate risk on certan foreign currency
borrowings However, the swaps do not meet the hedge
accounting rules of 1AS 39 and so the changes in fair value are
taken to gans/(losses] on financial instruments in the income
statement During the year there was a loss of £17 6 million
[2016/17 gain of £11 1 million) in relation to these instruments

Note 12 to the financial stalernents gives an analysis of the
amounts charged to the income staternent in relation to
financial instruments.

As part of our power cost management strateqy, we have fixad
around 95% of our estimated wholesale energy usage for 2018/19

Taxation

We are committed to paying the right amount of lax at the right
time. As well as corporation tax on profits, which s included in
the tax charge in our accounts, we Incur a range of taxes, charges
and levies iImposed by government agencies

2018 2017
£m Ern

Tax borne:
Corporation tax 26.7 324
Business rates and property taxes 82.4 788
Employer’'s National Insurance 23.2 216
Climate Change Levy . 40 32
Carbon Reduction Commutment 59 53
Qlher taxes 4.3 43
146.5 146 6
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Strategic report

Chief Financial Officer’s review
continued

The corporation tax charge for the year recorded in the income
staternent was £61% million (2016/17 £6 5 mithion] and we
rmade net corporation tax payments of £6.0 million in the year
(2016/17 £21 8 rrllion] The difference between the tax charged
and the tax paid 1s summarised below

2018 2617
Em fm
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 619 &5
Tax effect of iming differences {29.0 (26 4]
Current tax credits recorded in Other
Comprehensive Income or Equity (10.) (14 9]
Overprovisions In previcus years 39 274
Impact of rate change - 398
Carporation tax payable for theyear 26.7 324
Payable by instalrnents next year 12.2) (180
Instalments paid in the year 14.5 14 4
Repayments receved {8.0) [20.4)
Payments relating to prior years - 280
Net tax paid in the year 6.9 21.8

Tax payments were reduced by £29 0 million

(2016/17 £26 4 millien] as a result of capital allowances
and other timing differences where tax relief 1s given ahead
of the cost being recognised inthe inceme statament

The total tax incurred was further reduced by £10 1 mullion
(20186/17 £14 9 million) representing tax credits that we recerve
on charges that are shown in the staterment of comprehensive
Income or equity - the tax for these items 1s also shownin the
statement of comprehensive iIncome or equity so1s not included
In the iIncome slatement charge.

The tax charge includes a credit of £3.9 million

12016/17 £27 4 million] for amounts overprovided in prior
years In 2016/17 there was also a credit of £39.8 million

from the impact of adjusting our deferred tax liability to
reflect the tax rate reductions announced by the Government
to take effect in 2020. These accounting adjustiments

do not impact the amount payable to HMRC.

Together these amounts represent the corporation tax payable
for 2018 of £26.7 mullion (2016/17 £32 4 million).

Corporation tax Labilities are currently settled in four instalments,
two in the year of assessment and twe in the following year

In the current year we have paid instatments on this year's tax
amounting to £14 5 rmillion (2016/17. £14.4 rmiltion] and received
repayments of tax overpaid in previous years of £8 0 mitbion
(2016/17 £20 6 million], net of the instalments due from 2016/17,
resulling in a net tax payment of £6.5 million (2016/17 net payment
of £21 8 mullien including payments of £28 O mullien relating to
prior years)
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Instalments of £12 2 mitlion [2016/17 £18 0 million) are due to be
paicd to HMRC next year inrespect of the current year's Liability

Noate 1310 the financial statements sels oul the Lax charges and
credits in the penod, which are described in more detail below

The current tax charge for the year was £32 9 million
(2016417 €199 rullion] In the previous year there was an
exceptional credit of £16.4 mitlion from adjustrents following
agreement with HMRC of prior years’ tax matters

The deferred tax charge before exceptional tax was £29 0 million
[2016/17 £22 4 million) In the previous year there was an
exceptional deferred tax credit of £35 8 rullion comprising an
exceptional charge of £4 0 million following agreement wath
HMRC of prior years’ tax matters and an exceptional ¢redit of
£398 million arising from a reduction in the corporation tax rate,
enacted in that year, te 17% with effect from 1 Apnl 2020

Our full effective tax rate this year was 20 9% (2016/17 2 0% after
the exceptional tax credits described abovel We expect this rate to
be close to the corporation tax rate in the UK of 19% (2016/17 20%)
because substantially all of our business 1s in the UK and the
profits of these businesses are chargeable to UK corporation tax

UK tax rules specify the period over which tax relief can be
obtained for capital expenditure Typically this s a shorter pernod
than that over which the assets are depreciated in the accounts
and this tends to reduce the corporaticn tax charge in the year
and the Group underlying effective current tax rate We rmake
provision for tax that will be paid in future periods when the

tax relief on the capital expenditure has been receved and we
receive no allowance for the depreciation charge arising from
that expenditure. This 1s the most significant component of cur
deferred tax position

Our underlying effective current tax rate was 12 7%
(2016/17 16 6%

Profit for the year and earnings per share

Profit for the year irom conlinuing operations decreased by

25 2% to £240 5 million (2016/17 £321 5 million)

The profit for the year from discontinued operations was

£13 2 millien (2016/17. £21 1 million]

Total profit for the year including discontinued operations was
£253 7 million {2016/17- £342.4 rillion]

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations decreased
by 25.3% to 102 2 pence (2016/17 134 8 pencel] Underlying basic
earnings per share was 121 0 pence [2016/17 115,7 pence)

For further details see note 15



Cash flow

2018 2017

£m £m

Cash generated from operations 773.3 851.0
Net capital expenditure (591.0] (5013)
Net interest paid 182.1) (1770
Purchase of subsidiaries
net of cash acquired (0.2) (777
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries net
of cash disposed and disposal costs 25.1 i192)
Proceeds on maturity of
forward contracts - 43
Swap termination payment (40.0) -
Tax paid (6.5 (218
Free cash flow 21.4) 983
Dividends (197.0) (190 4}
Issue of shares 5.6 6.1
Change in net debt from cash flows {212.8) 1126 0}
Non-cash movements [61.4) (133.0
Change in net dabt (274.2) (259 0)
Opening net debt (5,082.4) (4823 4)
Closing net debt (5,356.6] (5,082 4)

2018 2017

£€m Ern

Net cash and cash equivalents 38.5 44 6
Bank loans 1.217.4) (1.073.3]
Other loans (4,2239]  [4,0900]
Finance leases (113.9) {1157
Cross currency swaps 24.5 434
Loans due from joint ventures 135.6 108 &
Net debt {5,356.6) (5.,082.4)

At 31 March 2018 we held £38 5 muillion {2017 £44 6 rullion] in net
cash and cash equivalents Average debt maturity was around

14 years (2017 1ayears] Including committed facilities, our cash
flow requirements arc funded until March 2020.

Net debt at 31 March 2018 was £5,356 6 million

(2017 £5,082 4 millien) and balance sheet gearing [net debt/
net debt plus equity] was 84 4% {2017 84 6%] Group net debt,
expressed as a percentage of estimated Regulatory Capital
Value at 31 March 2018 was 60 6% (2017 61.6%|

The estirnated fair value of debt at 31 March 2018 was

£1184 3 million higher than book value (2017 £1.444 0 rrullion
higher] The decrease In the difference to book value is largely
due to the increase i the discount rates applied, driven by higher
prevailing market interest rates

Treasury management and liquidity
Our principal treasury management cbjectives are

» To access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both
the quantum and lowest cost compatible with the need for
continued avallability,

« To manage our exposure to movements in INterest rates
to provide an appropriate degree of certainty as to our cost
of funds,

» To minimise our exposure to counterparty credit risk,

To provide an approprate degree of certainty as to our foreign
exchange exposure,

* To mantain an investment grade credit rating for our requlated
subsidiary Severn Trent Water Limited, and
* To maintain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure.
We invest cash in deposits with higbly rated banks and Liquidity
funds We regularly review the list of counterparties and report
to the Treasury Comimittee,
Our policy for the management of interest rates is that at least
40% of our borrowings 1n AMPS should be at fixed inlerest rales,
or hedged through the use of Interest rate swaps or forward rate
agreements At 31 March 2018, interest rates for 48% (2017 51%)
of our nel debl of £5,356.6 million were fixed.

Qur long term credit ratings are

Severn Trant  Seven Trent

Long termratings Plc Water Outlook
Moody s Baal A3 Negative
Standard & Poor's BBB BBB+ Stable

Treasury policy and operations

Our treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accerdance
with our Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Staterment
The treasury operation’s role 1s to manage Uquidity, funding,
investment and aur financial nisk, including risk from velatibity in
interest and (lo a lesser extent] currency rates and counterparty
credit risk The Board determines rmatters of treasury policy
and its approvat s required for certain treasury transactions
The Board has established a Treasury Management Committee
to monitor treasury activities and to facilitate imely responses
to changes in markel condilions when necessary.

Our strategy Is to access a broad range of sources of finance to
cbtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible
with the need for continued availability Qur principal operating
subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, 15 a long term business
characterised by multi-year investment programmes

Qur strategic funding ebjectives reflect this and the liguidity
position and availlability of commutted funding are essential to
rneeling our objectives and obligations We therefore aim for a
balance of long term funding or cormnrmitment of funds across
a range of funding sources at the best possible econormic cost
Thea Group also seeks to mantain an investrment grade credit
rating and a flexible and sustanable balance sheet structure
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Strategic report

Chief Financial Officer’s review
continued

We use financial derivatives solely to manage risks associated
with our normal business activities We do not hold orissue
derwvative financial instruments for financial trading.

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which is fully hedged,
our business does nat involve significant exposure to faregn
exchange transactions

The Group 1ssues notes in foreign currency under its EMTN
programme and uses cross currency swaps to convert the
proceeds to sterling. The effect of these swaps is that interest
and principal payments on the borrowings are denorminated in
sterling and hence the currency risk 1s eliminated The foreign
currency notes and the cross currency swaps are recorded in the
balance sheet at their fair values and the changes in fair values
are taken to gains/[losses) on financial instruments in the income
statement Since the terms of the swaps closely match those

of the undertying notes, such changes tend to be broadly egual
and opposite

Pensions

We have lhree defined benefil pensions arrangements, lwo from
Severn Trent and one from Dee Valley Water The Severn Trent
schemes closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015

Formal three-yearly actuanal valuations have been completed as
at 31 March 2016 for the Severn Trent schemes [ the Schemes’)
and we have agreed the future funding plan for the Schemes
with the Trustee The agreement reached with the Trustee for the
STPS, which)s by far the largest of the schemes, includes

e Defict reduction contributions of £25 million paid in the year

ended 31 March 2017 and payments of £10 milbon for each
of the subsequent financial years ending 31 March 2012

Inflation-linked payments of £15 milkion per annum through
an asset-backed funding arrangement, potentially continuing
to 31 March 2031, although these contributions will cease
earlier should a subsequent valuation of the STPS show

that these contributions are no longer needed

¢ Payments under another asset-backed funding arrangement
of €8 2 rrullion per annurm ta 31 March 2032

In addition to these payments, the Company will directly pay the
annual PPF levy incurred by the STPS [£11 mullion in 2017/18),

The Schemes have entered into additional hedging arrangements
to reduce the impact of fluctuations in interest rates and inflation
on the Schemes liabilities without adversely impacting the
expected return from the Schemes’ assets

Dee Valley Water participates in the Dee Valley Water Limited
Section of the Water Cempanies Pension Scheme ('the Section’]
The Section funds are administered by trustees and are held
separately from the assets of the Group
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Or an IAS 19 basis, the net position [before deferred tax] of all

of the Group’s defined beneht pension schemes was a deficit

of £9198 million (2017 £574 6 million} To calculate the pension
deficit for accounting purposes, we are required to use corporate
bond yields as the basis for the discount rate of cur long-term
liabilities, irrespective of the nature of the Scheme’s assets

or their expected returns

The movements in the net deficit during the period were

Deflined
Fair value of benefil
planassets  obligations  Netdefion
tm £m £m

At start of the period 2,352.8 (2927 4) (574 8]
Amounts credited/lcharged)
to income statement 40 2 (69 7) [95]
Actuanal llosses)/gains
taken to reserves [13] 304 291
Net contributions receved
and benefits paid (719 1071 3572
At end of the period 2,339.8 (2,859.6) [519.8]

Onan IAS 19 basis, the funding level has improved to 82%
(2017 80%l

Exchange rates

The frading results of overseas subsidiaries are translated to
sterling at the average rate of exchange rubling duning the penod
and their net assets are translated at the closing rate on the
balance sheet date The impact of changing exchange rates on
the subsidiaries trading results was immaterial

Dividends

In line with our policy for the remainder of AMPS announced
last year to increase the dividend by at least RPI+4% each year,
the Board has proposed a final ordinary dividend ot 51.92 pence
per share for 2017/18(2016/17 48 90 pence per sharel

This gives a total erdinary dividend for the year of 86.55 pence
(2016/17- 81.50 pencel. The final ordinary dividend 15 payable on
20 July 2018 to shareholders on the register at 15 June 2018

Accounting policies and presentation

of the financial statements

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
that have been endorsed by the European Union. The Company
financial statements are prepared in accordance with FRS 101



Risk management

Our approach to risk:

Risk 1s all about uncertainty and risk management describes the
activities performed within our organisation to identify, assess,
and control events which may impact on our abiiity to achieve
our aims and objectives, We also racogrise that uncertainty can
manifest itself as both negative and positive impacts, hence our
goal Is to minimise these threats and maximise the opportunities
for the benefit of our customers, people, contracters and

key stakeholders

The Board has overall accountability for ensuring that risk s
effectively managed across the Group The Board s mandate
ncludes defining risk appetite and monitoring risk exposure to
ensure significant risks are aligned with the overall strategy of
the Group The management of risk 1s embedded in aur everyday
business activities, with employees encouraged to play their part

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee assesses the
effectiveness of the Group s Enterprise Risk Management [ERM]
process and internal controls towdentify, assess, mitigate and
manage risk Internal Audit supports the Audit Committee in
evaluating the design and effectiveness of internal controls and
risk mitigation strategies implemented by management

The Executive Commuttee reviews strategic ohjectives and
assesses the level of nisk taken in achieving these objectives
This top down risk process helps ta ensure the ‘bottom up’
ERM process is aligned to current strategy and objectives.

Across the Group, we manage risks within the overal
Governance Framework which includes ctear accountabilities,
delegated authority limits and reward policies These are
designed to provide employees with a holistic view of effective
risk management

Within Severn Trent Water Limited, our approach reflects our
status as a reguiated utility providing essential services and
operating as part of the Critical National Infrastructure for the
UK Tha nature of our Severn Trent Waler Limited business s
such that there are some significant Inherent risks, as llustrated
cn pages 40 to 65 We aim to have a strong control framework

In place to enable us to understand and manage these risks In
accordance with our risk tolerance and appetite

in our non-regulated businesses we take a more comrnercial
approach to risk However, we recagnise that we provide
products and services for clients who operate in regulated
environments As a result, for nisks that could impact an our
clients’ regulated services, we take a similar appreach to risk
asinour own regulated business. The risks inherent inour
non-regulated business are illustrated on pages 60 to 65

Our Enterprise Risk Management process

We use an established ERM process across the Group to
assess and manage cur significant risks, which are linked to
our corporate objeciives, core processes, key dependencies,
stakeholder expectations and legal and regulatory obligations
The process s controlled by the centrat ERM team and
underpinned by standardised tools and methodology to ensure
consistency ERM Champions and Co-ordinators operate
threughout the business, with support and challenge from the
ERM teamn, to identify and assess risks in their business units
quarterly againsl a defined set of criteria that consider lhe
Likelihood of occurrence and petenual financial and reputational
impacts. The potential causes and subsequent impact of the risks
are docurmnented to enable mitigating centrols to be assessed
This assessment allows us to put in place effective strategies to
remediate defective controls orimplement additicnal controls

This information s combined to form a consolidated view of

risk across the Group and allows the risks to be prioritised

Our significant risks, in terrms of likellhood and impact, form cur
Group 1isk profile which 1s reported to the Executive Commities
for review and challenge ahead of final review and approval by
the Audit Commnittee and Board half-yearly The report provides
an assessment of the effectiveness of controls over each of those
risks and an action plan to improve controls where this has been
deermed necessary.

To further enhance our ERM information, we now report risk
fghtpaths These graphucally dermonstr ate the level of risk the
Group faces and the timeline for the key risk mitigation steps
to manage the risk to the target position The flightpaths help
to facilitate a more thorough review of the target risk positions,
considering risk appetite and whether improvement actions

to achieve these are on target with the correct prionitisation

in place

In addition, individual risks or specific risk topics are atso
discussed by the Board during the year

On a monthly basis, the status of open nisk mitigation actions
across the Group risk profile 1s reported mto the Executive
Committee by the central ERM team The level of ERM maturity
in each business unit 1s assessed hatf-yearly and reported

to the Exacutive Committee Improvernent plans are agreed

to ensure ERM s fully embedded and effective An overview

of accountability for our ERM processis illustrated in the
diagram opposite

Risk appetite
The Board keeps under ongoing review the relationship between
our strategic ambitions and the management of risk

The ERM process establishes target risk positions for each o
our significant risks The Beard formally discusses the progress
towards this position and the mitigating actions being undertaken
every six months.
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Strategic report

Risk management continued

The ERM process

The Board

* Sets strategy and determines
regulatory outcomes
= Sets pusingss plan objectives

» [efines risk appetite

Operational teams

* [dentify and assess risks

* Set risk target pesition

» identity nsk improvernent actions

ERM team

« Monitors performance

* Asgessas ERM matunity across
the Group

* Provides challenge and ins:ght

* Reports to Executive Committes,
Audsit Committee and Board

Financial risks

Like all businesses, we need to plan future funding in ine with
business need This is part of our normal business planning
process (see Principal Risk 2)

The Beard receives regular updates relating to funding, solvency
and Ligquidity matters through the Treasury Cormnmittee so we

can respend quickly to any changes in our ability to secure
financing {see Principal Risk 10]. The pension fund Trustees

and Company regularly monitor our pension deficit, with advice
from investment managers and actuarial advisers An annual
pension fund review paper 1s produced for the Board to apprise
them of fund performance and proposed initiatives te manage
down pension labilities and further balance pensions risk (see
Principal Risk 9]

The ERM process and relevant risk assessments are factored
Into the ‘stress testing” to assess the Group's prospects as part
of our Long-Term Viability Staterment

Sustainability risks

Sustainability risks are treated in the sarne way as all our
other Company risks, captured at a local level by responsibte
teamns and managed centrally threugh our established ERM
process By the nature of what we do, several of our principal
risks have s Sustamability focus, and we menitor our social and
environmental impacts in ine with our broader performance

B8  severnTrent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Long-Term Viability Statement

Assessment of current pesition and long term prospects

The Direclors assessment of the Group s current financial position s set out
in the Financial review on pages 571 to 56

The Group’s principal operating subsidiary 1s Severn Trent Water Limited,
which s a regulated long term business characterised by multi-year
investment programmes and stable revenues The water industry in England
and Wales is currently subject to econorme regutation rather than rmarket
competition and Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation
to secure that waler corpanies are ab.& to finance their appointed activitres
Ofwat meets this obligation by setting price contrals for five year Asset
Management Periods [AMPs] This mecharism reduces the potential for
varability in revenues from the requlated business The current AMP runs
untit March 2020 Ofwat has published its Final Methadology for assessing
companies’ business plans and setting price controls for the AMP perod
2020 - 2025 and Severn Trent Water Lirited has rade sigmiflicant progress
in developing its Business plan, which 1s due ta be submitted to Ofwat

In September 2018,

The Group has significant nvestment prograrmmes that are largely fu~ded

through access to debt markets The Group's strategic funding obyectives

reflect the long rer m nature of the Severn Trent Water Limited pusiness and

the Group secks to obtain a balance of long term funding at the best possible

eccnormic cost The Group's Treasury Pelicy requires that it mamtains

sutficient liquidity to cover cash [low requirerents for a rol'ing period of

18 manths in order to miigate the risk of restricted access to capital markets

The Group s debt maturity profile 1s actwely managed by the Group Treasury

departmenl o spread the tirming of ~efinancing requirements and to enable |
such requirements to be met under most market condibions The weighted
average malunity of debl at the balance sheet date was 14 years

The Group bas an established process to assess s prospects The Board

undertakes a detailed assessment of the Group s strategy onan annual basis

and the autput from this assessment sets the framework for the Group s !
medium term plan, which is updated annually

The plan assesses the Group's prospects and considers the potential impacts
of the principal risks and uncertainties Stresstests are performed to assess ,
the potential impacts of combinations of those risks and uncertainties

The plan also considers the mitigating actions that riight be taken to reduce
the impact of such risks and uncertaintics and the Likely effectivenass of the
mitigating actions

Period of assessment

The Directors considered a number of factars in deterrining the period to

be covered by the assessment The long term nature of the Group s principal
business together with relatively stable revenues and a modet of econormic
regulation that places a duty on the regulator to secure that water companies
can finance the proper carrying out of their functrans supporl a longer per od
of assessment

However, the changing nature of regulation of the water industry increases
the uncertainty that s inheren: in the Group's financial projections

The Group has an established ptanming and forecasting process and the
Directors consider that the assessment of the Group s prospects 1s mare
reliable if 1t 1s based on an established process The Group’s latest medium
term plan extends to the end of the next AMP period in 2025 and the Board
of Severn Trent Water Lirmited will make an assessment of viability covering
that period inits business plan submission to Ofwat In Septerber 2018

Alenger period of assessment introduces greater uncertainty as the
variability of potential outcomes increases as the perind considered extends

Bearing in mind the long term nature of the Group’s business, the enduring
demand for its services, the nature of the Group s established planning
process and the changing nature of the regulation of the water industry in
England and Wales, the Directors have determined that seven years s an
appropriate penod over which to assess the Group's prospects and make
its viability staternent this year



Assessment of viability

In assessing the future praspects the Group has considered the potential
eftect of nisks that could have a sigrificant financialimpact under sever e
but plausitle scenarios The nisks considered were identified fro the
Group's ERM process, which 1s described on pages 57 to 58, and from
the key assumpt-ansin the finanaial model The scenarios tested are
described below

The Directers have identified actiors, including reducing discrel:cnary
outflows of funds and warking with prowiders of finance, thal would be
availlable te the Group to mstigate the impact of adverse sutcomes

The Grous has significant funding requirerments Lo relinance exisl ng debt
that falis due for repayment during the period undger review and to fund
the Group s capital prograrnme Under all scenarios considered the Group
would remain solvent ano have access to suthicent tunds innornal rmarket
congl ons The Group £ Treasury Policy requires that o retains sufficient
liguidity to meet ts forecast ehligations, ircluding debt repayments for the
next 18 months I making its assessment the Board has made the tallowing
key assumption
* Any period Inwhich the Groupis unable to access capital markets to raise
finance during the peried under review will be sharter than 18 menths
Onthis basis, the stress tests indicated that none of these scenarias,
rcluding the combined scenaro, resulted in anmmpact to the Group s
expected Liguidity, solvency or crodit metrics that could not be addressed
by mitigating action and hence were not conaidered to be tnreats to the
Group s viavility

Scenario tested

Governance and assurance

The Board reviews and approves the mediurm term plan onwhich thes
viability statement 1s based The Board alsc considers the period over
which the assessment of prospects and viabibity staternent should be

made The Audit Committee supports the Board in performing this review
Details of the Audit Committee’s activity m relatior to the Viahility Statement
are set out in the Audit Cormmittee report on pages 83 to 89

This statermcntis subject to review by Deloitte, our External Auditor
Theoir audit report is set out on pages 136 to 140

Assessment of viability

The Directors have assessed the viabilhity of the Company over 3 seven year
period to March 2025, taking into account the Company s current position
and principal risks

Based on that assessment, the Directeors have a reasonable cxpectation
that the Company well be able to continue n operalion and meel its abilitizs
as they fall duc over the period to 31 March 2025

Going Concern Statement

In preparing the financial statements the Director s considered the
Company's ability to meet sts debts as they fall due for a pericd of cne year
from the date of thes report Thiswas carried cut in conjunction with the
constderation of the Leng-Term Viability Statement above

Qn this basis the Directors considered it appropriate to adopt the gong
conern basts npreoaring the tinanc.sl statennis

Related principalrisk

1. An increase in the funding deficit of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes

Risk @ Increased funding for pension schemes

The ptanned ‘unding for the Group s def.ned benet | pension arrangements 1s hased on
ass.mptions on ful.re infla 1on, assel returns and members longevily U-de-performa~ce
against these assumptions rrught resutt in additionat cash cantributicns being requircd
during the perod under consideralion Contributios are reviewed and agreed with the
scherne trustees on a triennial basis with the next valuation of the main scheme due as

at 31 March 2019

2_A severe climate event, operational failure or other exceptional event with avery

significant financialimpact

The Group s Enterprise Risk Managemenl pracess has identified a number of risks
including cyber secunty, tailure of key assels and severe wealher evenls thal m ght

Risk & Cyber security

Risk 6 Failure of koy asscts

Risk 7 Heaith and safety and ervairgnmental impact
Risk 8 Impact of extreme weather/cimate change

have a signiflizanlimpact en the Group s operational and financial performance.

3. Areduction ininflation and increase in interest rates for the duration of the pericd

under consideration

N/A - key assamption in financial model

Severn Trent Water | imuted s revenues are inkec to nf ation | ow or negative inflation
lends ta adversely impact pro“its and cash flows 'f increases in costs exceed revenue

4. Underperformance against performance commitments

Risk 1 Failure to deliver what our customers want

Severn Trent Water Lirmited operates under a regulatery model which encourages companies
to deliver what customers want using per farmance related rewards and venalties. b ailure to

deliver performance at the corn-milted level can lead ta signihicant penaltics

5. Higher costs than ptanned that are not funded

Sigmificart overspendirg could result in a deterioration in financiai metrics and

performance, which might adver sely impacl the G aup s savency

Risk 2 changcs in the requlatory environment for
the UK water i~dustry

&. Acombination of scenarios 2, 3and 4

Sac above

It 15 anbikely that sce~arios 1 a~d 3 would occur simultaneously since tower inflation
and higher Interest rates would tend to reduce the pension deficit Therelore scenario 5,

which has a great mdividual impact has been included
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Strategic report

Principal risks

The Directors have carried out a robust assessment of the » Operations, assets and people, and
principal risks facing the Company, including these that would ¢ Enancial risks

threaten its business medel, future performance, solvency or

Liguidity These have been categonsed across

¢ Custorner perceptian,
* Legal and regulatory environment,

Customer perception

1 What is the risk?

We may be unable to iImprove
or maintain our levels of
custorner service sufficiently
to deliver what our custemers
tell us they want,

Re gulated Water and Wasle Water businesses
Link to how we're achieving our strategy
[page 22)
Embeddmeg custamer s at the heart of allwe de
Link to our values

We put our cusiomers firs

We are pas«onate ahout what we do

We act wath integrity
0DIs

0DIs 24-27

Key

Increase In net risk exposure
No change in net risk exposure
Decrease in net risk exposure
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Far each risk we state what 1t means for us and what we are
dong to manage it

What does it mean for us?

W are aregulatud uhility providing essential services (6 our customers We recognise that cur custormers
increasingly expect more fram us and dernand an improved andmore «onsistent expe rience As cther
ndusties nprove their levels of service, the bar conbinucs to be raised

Fallure to delver the survice that cuslomers, exped il lead lo Customer dissatislachion This may result )
nhina wial venalues under Ofwat s Service Incentive Mechanism: [ SIM ) and assouated 0Dl ou'turn

What are we doing to manage the risk?
The throe upper quartde [ UG T pregramimes in Relad, Water and Waste are key te SIM impravement

Whilst Relail has a rumber ol translormabion actions in lignt there are further actions o bo del verad which
wallimpreve customer expenience, for example website transformation Customers tell us they are dedighted
wheanwe are able to camplete biling issues for the m at Pont of Cantact <o the retail programime s looking at
how toimprove our Point of Contact resclution to improve the owerall expenence

The Waste Ul pregramrme 15 focusing on both the wark of cur s1pply partner Amey i our day-to-day
custemer eifering and alsa how Severn Trent suppor ts e e comiplex cases The Waste U program.me
has idenul ed some key areas ta drive amd improve performance in arger taimprove our SIM score

The Water UG progr amnuwe 15 ot anearly stage The raprd acbion team pilol that s cut runty Sngoing 0 our
Derbyshire areans showiny fantastic cuslomer benefit The pioyrarnme s currently developing a rallout pla~
te all cther areas The E20 customer communications warkstrearm s looking at the expectation thal we set
when a cuslomer entacts us through therr chanpel of chioice and how we keepthe customer informed along
the jpurney Anelement of this workstreams a review of aur Track my Jeb customer communication teol that
we use to keap cuslemers informed

Movement in net risk exposure



Legal and regulatory environment

2

What is the risk?

We may be unable to effectively
anticipate and/or influence future
developments in the UK water
industry resulting in our busmess
plans becoming unsustainable

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Regulated Water and Waste Water busines=es

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
(pages 26 to 29]
Changing tha market fer the better

Investing responsibly for sustairable growth
0DIs

NAA

What is the risk?

The regulatory landscape 1s complex
and subject to ongoing change
There I1s a risk that processes may
fall or that our processes may not
effectively keep pace with changes

in legislation leading to the risk of
non-compliance

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?

Grovup-wade

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
[pages 24 to 29)

Driving operational exretience and
continuous mnovabicn

Changing the market ter the better

Invest na respansibly for sustainable growth
Link to aur values

Wz a twethintegrty

W pretest our oz onement
0Dis

G0 1-4,19-23,70-43

What does it mean for us?

Severn Tront Water operates in a highly regulated ervircrimoent Whilsl we are breadly content with the
direction of changes proposed for our induslry, there remoang a sk that future changes could have a
significantimpact on Severn Trent Water
What are we doing to manage the risk?
Severn Trenl has always contributed Lo the debate about our industry s future, mctuding threugh our series of
Changing Course publications We wall continue to bie an ac live participant m these corversalions, scwe can
help shape thinking about how to best serve our customer=in the future

Wi have contributed to ermbedding the role of Market Operator Seruices Lid [Ihe body which oversees tha
non-hauscheld retalt markelband contribute d tow ards the success of competition in the non-heusshsld market

We continue ta participate in dise ussicns with Dfwat en the devcleprment of the fulur e regulatory emdranment
and since publication of Utwat « final metnosofeyyin relatio~ to Watey 2020 we are Jeveloping our business
plan Weare actively participating in discussians on the op. ning of the competittve market for biorescur as

Coganumuent with our peers clher regulators, UK Cove rnment depar tments and other stakeholders,
including the Welsh Government, helps us le influence the direclion of regutatory policy vwhere possible and
put forward our own case for change in a constructre way

We continue Lo engage conatructively with stakehelders follawing Labiour < 207 marmife <to commitmoent to
re-naitonalisz the water sector We are encouraged that bolh the benelits lo custorers of the current model
and Ihe oot to taxp syers of re-nationalisation are now b eng betler understocd

What does it mean for us?

Our policies and processes most raflect the current logal and regulatery erwaran=~ent and all relavant
enployees must be ke ptawarc of now regquirements The Graup as a whale may lace censure fer non
compliance in an ndwidual group campany or 4 speafic region mwnich w2 oner 3le

What are we doing to manage the risk?
Our Gevernance Framework, transprrency engagement with customers and stakehclders policies and
internal contrels ensure cur ongamg compliance with sl appbs obie Laws and requlations

Fer the aperation ef epar te Wholesale and Retall husmess we have a centrel framework of pretacals
pchces systems, guidance and lraining bo ensure cngoing ¢ ermpbiance with the relevant leqislation including
Cormpetition Law

Fallowing the integr atien of Dee Valley inte the Severn Trent Group we have refreshed our policy framewors
ard are uprating cur systems prolacols and policies mreadiness for the boundary reshgnmaent of cur
regulaled busineszes

Enaurning readines 5 for the Generat Data Protection Regul shien { GOPR ) conming inte effect or 29 May 2018
haw alsobeen a key area offocus forus

Changas tc the tegat and regulatory envirorment are coptured as gmeraging risks through our ERM process
with tre necessacy owness and acions identified Lo ersure complance when the changes co~einto elfact

Movement in net risk exposure
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Strategic report

Principal risks continued

Operations, assets and people

4

Key.

What is the risk?
We rmay experience loss of data or
interruptions to our key business

systems as a result of cyber threats

Group-wida

Link to how we're achweving our strategy
lpages 22to 25)

Ernbedding custormers at the hearl ¢i all we do
Driving operationat ext ellence and

conbinuous Innovabion

Link to our values

We pul our customers first

0DIs

0Dl 1-4,5-18 19-273, 24-37

What Is the risk?

We may fail to meet our regulatory
targets including targets from
Ofwat for operational performance

of our assels resultngin
regulatory penalties

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Reguiated Water and Wasto Water businesses

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
[pages 2210 27)
Embiedding customers at the heart of allwe do

Driving operational excellen & and
conlinuous innovation

Investing responsibly for sustainable growth

We pul our customers first
We are passionate about wholwe do

We protect our environment

ODis

0ODIs 1-45

Increase In net risk exposure

What does it mean for us?

The risks arrsing from lass of ene or maore of cur major systems or corruption of data held inthose systems
could have tar reaching effects on our busine .5 We have recogmised the increasing threats of cyber attacks
oncut systems and data Whitst this threat can never be eliminated and will continue Lo evelve we ar e locused
an the need to mainiam effe Clive mitigation
What are we deing to ranage the risk?
We ronbinue ta follow guidance from the Mational Cyber Secunty Centre f NCSC | toimprove our defences,
against cyber attacks and have focused this year on more layer Ld-security controls to protect sensitive data
In readinzss for the mtraduclion in May 2018 of the GDPR

Woe have alsc complated risk assesaments of cyber thrzats to our waler supply systemns for the intreduction
1N May 2018 of tha Netwark and Information Systems Directive | NISO |

We have par bopaled in a number of Covernrient led andinter nal tyber incident exer vses to test our
response capability to cyber attachks

Although not directlympacted by significan’ recent cvber Incide~ts le g WannaCry and NotPetya), we did
review our security controls and response plans te ensure we are prepared for future attacks of this type

Maovement in net risk exposuce

What does it mean for us?
Wwe are ungble to mee. aper at onal ver formarce largels we may be sybjected to aignifieant regutaley
penalties wither within the curient prive review period, or apphied Lo the next pricg review

Requlatory targets apply to 4l of our water treatment, distnibution sews rage and sewage treatment assets
Measures are in place in relation to water quality, continuous supplies, sewer flooding sewer collapses and
polluticn cvents

What are we doing to manage the risk?

Dur business plan for 2015-20201ncludes cont wderable mvestmoent 10 our assels 1o Impr gve the rasilience
of our networks, reduce interruptions and improve the service that our customers recerve We ret ognise
there are areas where our purformance 1w not as consistent as we weuld ke and we are commiticd te
nproving ihese

We are continuing our Cleanost Water PLin which drives the inspection, cleanng and repair cf slorage tanks,
T Casing our tapial maintenance Mterventions, oplirmising aur operaticn and marmenani ¢ tasks and
formalising our processes, standards and operating procedures involved in delvering clean water

We use leading measures on cur commn cella and pecformance meetings to leack delwery againg! customer
0DIs and performand ¢ commilments so that we can ntervena m o tmety fashionf per formance 1= drifting

The three U programmes in Retail, Water and Waste are key to us delivering our targets for the remaindoer of
this husiness plan

Movemnent in net risk exposure

No change in pet risk exposure
Decrease in net risk exposure
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What 1s the risk?

Failure of certain key assets or
processes may result in inability
to provide a continuous supply of
clean water and safely take waste
water away within our area

Which part of Severn Trent s affected?
Group-wide

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
Ipages 2210 31)

Embedd ng rugtomer - al the heart af allwe de

Orwing cperaticnal excettence and
continucusS Innoyaicn

Iwesting respandbly for sustanable g owth

We put e customers first

We are passionate sbocut what A do
0DIs

ODls 1-4,5-18, 1%-23

What is the risk?

Due to the nature of our operations
we could endanger the health and
safety of our people, contractors
and members of the public as well
as negatively impact our local and
wider environment

Which part of Severn Trent 15 affected?
Group wide

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
Ipages 24 to 27, and pages 30 to 31)

Drrving cper atiunal excetlence and
CoNUNLCUS INNavatien

Investing responsily for custainable growth
Creating an awesome placs lowork

Link to ourvalues

We proler L our eriaranment

W ar fwathintegrity
0ODIs

0Dl 30-41 42 43

What does it mean for us?
Somne of our assels are oriticalta the prowsion of waler ta large poprlations for which we regquire alter native
means ¢f supply

Examiples ntude our reservoirs and water treatment works These asaets are regularly inspected and
roartained and gur assesament of the cweralt condition of these assets iz good

Othear examples ar« our T, telephony syslems and remote monitoring systems which are afse key to
our cperaticns

What are we doing to manage the risk?
We inc luded substantial investrnent in our AMP6 plan Lo reduce the bkehhood of falure of strateare assets
that supply Birmingham and to provide the city with a second saur. e of water We are ahead of delvary on the
IMprovements 12 our strategie assels and en track with the provston of a second source

Wo contiue o mantain and te<t our Being prepared framework tc ensure cur busincss continuity
arrangements arg [l for ourpose and t~e Group canreact quick'v to safequard our crilical operations

I addition toinvesting in resihenze improvernents tu our netwerk we alse have assurance plans in place to
rmuniter inspect and mantain cur most cnbical assets and to ensure clean sater 1s always avartable to cur
custarmers and we will atways be able to safely take their waste water away

We wali continue to make sigmiticant invastment inta our netwerk and processes tut we accest there s always
ansk obunexpected fallures For exarnple, we experienced anumber of trurk manbrrsts in 2617 which led
to supplvinterruptions (o aur custormers and e Man b 28 the wery rapid thaw following The Beast from the
Easl resultedin a substanttalincrease in pipe bursts Oursncidont response helpod b ribigate the rmpan t

of thewe fallures Duning the burete we workad with loral resilience farums and cther agencies and had

great community engagernent tareturn supphoers back to nermal as guiekly a- possible We ara taking the
learnings from theincidents 1y expand our netvaork conditiors rm snitoning proegramime o de tec L vulnerabiltes
betare failures ccour and to ensure that cur incident response proe cdur 2s are 3. gord 9¢ theywan be

Movement in net risk exposure

What does it mean for us?
The nature of cur assets, operations and business arc such that threals 1o the s ety of sur cmployees,
contractors, customers and the wider publir exst Operaticnsl falluras cr regligonce could result in Jamage
to the enviconrment

W are respanaible for a targe estate of assets and have o secur 2 these frem unauthorsc 3 acessa 1o cnaure
our cperatens are nolmpacted ner the safety of the publc compremised
What are we doing to manage the risk?

Qur 2015-2020 bussne sy plan includes substantial inzestment in community schenies to ensure the risk of
fallure at key paints sleng our Elan Valley Aqueduct, that could « ause substintial damage and endanger the
wafety of the public, 1 further reduced

We have awell established Heatth, Safely & Wellboing [ramework (o ensure all cperations and processes
arerwaducted in compliance with thealth and Safety legislation and in the interosta of the s ety of cur peaple
ard contraclars Qur Goal Zersimititive clearly establishas aur target that no one shaould beonured or miade
unwell 35 a resuit of whalwe do We ve continued Lo reduce telab impunoes o staff and cantrac tors through the
application of the Coal Zere plan and we work collaberatively with our supply cnainand ther key stakeholders
to conbinue La seekomipraveronls

There are a number of GD1comimitrments we have made to protect our lacsl envirgnment, including rver
water gquality pullution ine idents medwer sty improvernente and ervronmental cemphance In AMPS wewalt
be detivermg ourlargest ever envircnment programme spendirg ov2r C300 nullion e deliverimproverments
ta river £ throughout our recion, a pragramme whizh s supported by cur customers who want 1 see us

de more lormprove rver water guality This year wi expecttoreg anour 47 Enveronmentat Per formance
Aseeqement status fram the Crvironmment Agency

We recogrise the imipact wur aper abipns have on the ssder envaronment aodwe wort 1o redue coour carben
[actprint by secking lower carban ways of operal ng our bus ness, driving e=ergy o'liciency and qenerating
renewable encrgy We aim to merease the amount of reneswable cnergy we generate and le mvest inways o
make our processes mor=energy efficient, and our 1a~get s Lo genera‘s the equialen 304 of Severn Tent
Waler = . norgy needs by 2020

Movement in net risk exposure
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Strategic report

Principal risks continued

8 Wh_at_ls trje_ risk_? -

We are unable to deal with the
impact of extreme and unpredictable
weather events on our assets and
infrastructure and/or are unable to
successfully plan for future water
resource supply and demand due to
climate change

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Group vade
Link to how we're achieving our strategy

(pages 24 t0 27)

Drving operatianal excellence and
continuous innavalion

Investing responsibly fur sustainable growth
Link to our values

We protect our envircnment

0DIs

0Dls 1-4,5-18, 19-23 42-43

Key

Increase in net rsk exposure
Mo change in net risk exposure
Decrease in net nsk exposure

6[& Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

What does it mean for us?

Chmate change [hotter and drrer surmmers, weller winters and mercdsad lreguenty ot storms) coutd result
inar inability lo meet customer demand, lower river evels decreased rawwater qualty flooding of our waler
or waste works, sewer capauly being exceeded and iy eased land moverment Climata change could also ba
a contnibuting factor for principal nsks 1,5, 6 and 7 detaled above

There are also scime potential cpporturities that climate change presents for us, iIncluding aguifer rechar ge
and increased biological treatment [His impertant that we understand these opportunitie s lo maxinuse
the benefils

What are we doing to manage the risk?
Our climate thange adaptation repart =ets cut our strategy ior ceping with future changes to our climate
In February 2018 we published our dr aft water resources managerrient plan far the next 25 years The plan

includes a detaled assessment of clirnate change rmpact fer our regron and cur demand managament and
Propestd New soutLes are demigned to offsel any supply resk resuling from climiate Lhange

Qur analysis for the Nat onal Flood Resilience Review [[NFRR ] *hatwas nstiga ed by Defra/the Cabingt Office
afler the ftooding of winter 2015/ 16, 1denmied pur nan-infrasiruciure lovergrouna sies tnat coutd be at nsk
from river or surface water flooding using a new h gher standard catled the Exireme Flood Outlire This has
nfor med gur contingency plans and futur e mvestrment plans

We don t conaider cimate change risks inisslation and we view them alengside al the challenges we face
Tathateffect alarne number of our current chyes hives and targets anreed as part of cur 00! cammitments
willinerease our reslience from climate chanae, including reducing leakage impraving water efficiency,
reducing properlies prone to low pressure, protecling prone praperiies/areas f-om sewer flooding and
increasng the resilience of cur water supply and water/waste wor ks

Our own impact and contribution te cimale change canncl be ighored and, as outlned i principalrisk 7
averleaf thare are ¢ number of ways in whichwe are addressing our imipact en the enaronment

Mavementin net risk exposure



Financial risks

10

What is the risk?

Lower interest rates, higher inflation

or underperforming equity markets
may reguire us to provide more
funding for our pensicn schemes.

Which part of Severn Trentis affected?
Sroup wide

Link to how we're achteving our strategy
lpages 26 and 27)

Inesting responsibly for sustainable grosth

What is the risk?

We are unable to fund the business
sufficiently in order to meet our
Liabilities as they fall due

Group-wide

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
|pages 26 and 27)

Inwesting respensibly for sustainable growth

What does it mean for us?
We already provide sigrdican: funding but could be called upen Lo provide vore money Lo reduce persion
deficiisin our defined benefits schemes

What are we doing to manage the risk?

Following the Braxit vole, our main de ined benefit pension scheme has sean a signilicant growth inthe
accounting value of Llabilines due to the fall in lona terminlereslrates Yolatle firanc al condilions are like y to
remain for the loreseeable future The growth in the accounhing deficit has adversely impacted the heaoroom
on seme of our cradit ratios, such as geaning which are relevant for debt covenant and credi ratings

purpeses Italsc has a reputationalimepact that could have a beaning an investment and distributicn desisicns

We bave cormpleted the process alimmumising ous bank T nzncial covenants from adver se movermnents in the
accounting deficit, ganing approval from re.evant banks and the Lurapean Investmen. Bark  EIB 1 We have
wirked with the ratings age noies o fecus on the wnpact of our repair payments on credit ratings, rather than
mavernentsin the accounting value of the defcit Impartantly we have agreed cash repair pavmnent s with the
Trustee until the next Trienmal Valuaticn a1 31 March 2019 We have also completed with Trustee agreement,
addit onalinflat am and interest rate hedging and irtroduced dowrside protection ko the fund s equity holdings
The Pension Requlator ~as confirreed that the Masch 2016 actuanial valuahien wall net be subjeci o further
review However, the Requlator has stated that it believes that the current repair pericd 12 2032, s verylong
and in the event of a further deterior ationin defoit doss not see an extansion of the recovery plan end date an
appropriate scluticn

Mavement in net risk exposure

What does it mean for us?
We mus. encure suthivest hgu dity 1 available to meel cur nezr tor m financial commitments We have s

significant furding regui err ent 1 AMPG, o Tond our Irvestrment programme and tefinance maturing defbt
Thiz 1z a well-controlled risk, bat tim mmpertant that we mamntain these bigh slandords o mim gate this nisk

What are we daing to manage the risk?

Whilst Brexim may impact our actess o unding from the FIB an ztlractive saurce of t nance we have

cther sources of funding wy can callupen In Novernber 2015, we raised E471 rullien through a US Private
Plarernent debtissue and in Meovember 2016 te December 2017wy raised €900 roallion threugh three skorling
bnndissues Despite some initial velatifity following the Brexit vote, global debt capital markets continue to
deliver substantal levels of lguidity

See our Leng-Term Viahility Staternent on pages 58 and 57

Movement in net risk exposure

The Strategic repaort, as set out from page 1 through to page 65, has been approved by the Board

By order of the Board

Bronagh Kennedy
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

22 May 2018
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Governance

Governance report

Chairman’s introduction to governance

| eadership & Effectiveness

Image removed

Andrew Duff
Chairman

The Board provides strong
leadership and support to the
business. All Directors have a
passion for the business and there
is a sense of “creating a legacy

for those who come after us”.

Manchester Square Partners
Board Effectiveness Report

Graph removed
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Dear Shareholder

I'am pleased to introduce our Governance report for 2018 on
behalf of your Board i accordance with the Aprit 2016 UK
Corporate Governance Code [the Code]. This report reflects
the themes of the Code and provides details on the actvities and
governance processes of the Board andits Commuttees (and
refers you to other areas of the Annual Report and Accounts
where further relevant information can be found)

The Board has had a diverse agenda during the year from
addressing the challenges of the upcoming Ofwat Price Review
[PR19']without losing focus on other key strategic and operational
priorities, to ensuring that Dee Valley Water 1s operating effectively
as a standalone, licensed business within the Group PR1%1s a

key strategic stem for the business that has required a robust
governance process to ensure the right level of debate and
oversight without allowing this topic to dominate the strategic
landscape In summary, the Board's principal areas of focus

have been.

* PR19,

* Customer service;

« Water gquabty,

* Enwironrnental performance,

« Financing our businesses;

* Dee Valley integration, and

+ Profitable growth of the non-regulated business,

Custorners continue to be at the forefront of cur attention, as
our strategic focus on such topics as delivering Upper Quartile
Sector Performance and Custormer Experience demonstrate
Custorner Delivery, Water Quality and Environmental
Performance have been the subject of regular ‘performance
review’ tems on the agenda. Financing has been addressed
through the continuing impertant work of the Treasury
Committee, through the Chief Financial Officer’s regular reports
to the Board and via spectfic finance related tems on the
agenda The cost of debt methodology for PR19 has been a key
consideration due to s wider wmpact for the business as a whole,
[See Board activities on pages 76 and 77)

Alignment on strategy and clarity on individual roles have
allowed clear strategic focus for the Board during the year, and
produced robust challenge where apprepriate There is a positive
dyrarmc in the Boardroorn but we are by no means corplacent
and recogruse that there are stll many challenges to tackle,

We continue to foster a culture of ownership, stewardship and
always deing the right thing, sharing the wider company values
we put our customers first, we are passionate about what we do;
we achwith integrity, we protect our environrent, and we are
Inspired to create an awescme company



The Board has continued to keep the Group's risk
management and internal control systems under close
scrutiny during the year and believes the quality of risk
management and reporting, and in particular the risk
identification, mitigation plans, business ownership and
tracking, are excellent and continue to evolve and improve

in respect of the Company’s stakeholders, there has been
eversight of, and a very active, engagement with shareholders,
regulaters, customers, pension trustees, communities and
employees alike. There have been reqular cormnmunications
with shareholders and open lines of communication with

our regulators OUfwat, CCW and the DWI In particular, the
Corporate Responsibility Comrmittee has overseen a broad
range of well received community iInitiatives [detailed inits
report on page 92] All the Board members have multiple
format and infarmal apportunities to engage with custorners
and employees and are constantly impressed at the quality

of Severn Trent's pecple, wherever they werk in the Group

and whatever their role Engagement scores from the annual
employee engagement questionnaire are excellent and this s
mirrored in the Board's communication with employees at and
below management level

We continue to strive for comprehensive talent development
and succession planning at all levels of the business

Whilst much has been done in this respect and plans are

in place, with well regard to graduate and apprenticeships
programrnes and strong external hiring and internal
premotions, we are keen to make further progress in
identifying, developing and progressing top talent through the
organisation and making further improvements in respect

of rmanagement and leadership develepment The focus on
impreving diversity remains strong and, whitst we have made
good progress on gender diversity in ine with the Hampten-
Alexander Review, we are looking to make further progress in
terms of wider diversity

Looking forward, Severn Trent has a streng unified Board
with the broad range of professional backgrounds, skills

and perspectives needed to take the Company into the next
regutatory period

Finatly, on & persenal note, whilst | hope you find this

report provides insight iInto governance within Severn Trenl,

I always welcome feedback if you feel there 1s more we could
do to enlighten shareholders We encourage participation

at our AGM and lock forward to meeting with many of our
shareholders in July

Andrew Duff
Chairman

UK Corporate Governance Code
Compliance Statement

Theversion of the Corporate Governance Code applicable to the current
reporting period 1s the April 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code [the
Code’ The Codeis available on the Financial Reporting Council's (FRC')
website lwww fre org ukl

We are pleased to confirm that Sever Trent Pl was compliant with all
of the provisions setout in the Code for the periad under review

In December 2017, the FRC published proposals for a revised code, which
we expect to apply to our financial year ending 31 March 2019, to reflect the
changing business environsment and help in achieying the highest levels

of governance As the revised code 1s not yel finalived, we ar e reporting
aganstthe 2016 Code in this report but are looking closely at the new
proposals and assessing what more we can de to al gnwith best practice
principles to further engender trust in our business

inlermsof the principles of the 2016 Code, you can find out mare
nfarreation on the following pages

Leadership 68to 74

Detals of the Board are available bncluging their skill set and
expenence} and an overview of the governance structure
distinguishing between leadership by the Board and by Exccutve
Managernent The ditfering roles of the Chairman, Executive
Directors and Non-Exccutive Directars is also set gut

Effectiveness 8010 87
An overview of the process for appointrnent, induction, and

evaluation of the Directors s provided here and further

detalis set out in pages B0 o 87 covering the work of the

Nominations Comrmitteo

Accountability 83to 89
The report of the Audit Committer detalls the corporate

reporting, risk management and internal control measures

that are overseen by the Board

Remuneration %610 128
The Directors’ Remunerat:on Report provides full details

on remuneration

Relations with shareholders 4 to 95

Detads of the Group s engagement with shareholders is set out
in this section

Governance of subsidiaries

The membership of the Board of the listed Company, Severn Trent Ple,

15 the same as that of Severn Trent Water Lirited Thes structure was
implemented in 2007 ta make surc that the highest standards of corpor ate
governance are applied at the reguiated subsidiary level and to toster
greater visibility and supervision by the Severn Trent Plc Board

Severn Trent Water Lirmited comiplies with the Code and cur regulator s
Principles of Leadership and Governance to ensure the highest standa-ds
of governance

Taking into account the Code and Ofwat s Principles of Leadership and
Governance, we have undergene a programme of change during the year in
DeeValley Water | imited and have appointed 2 majonity o new independaent
non-executive directors to its Board Do Valley Watar Limited also
complics with the Cade to onsur e the mighe st standards of gover nance

Amore detaded explanation or the Governance Framework and Company
structures which apply to each of sur reg ilated subs.diaries can be fuund
1M thesr respective Annual Reports, ava lable on their websiles
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Governance

Board of Directors

L eadership & Effectiveness

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

image removed

Image removed

Image removed
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1. Andrew Duff BSc FEI (59)
Appointed: Non-Executive Director on 10 May
2010, Chairman on 20 Juty 2010

Membership: Chair

Skills, competence and experience
Andrew’s extensive experience of international
and regulated business, strategic management
and custormer service in high profile, dynamic
enviranments has equipped hirn well for the role of
Chairman of the Group Andrew spent 16 years at
BP in marketing, strategy and ol trading He joined
National Power i 1998 and the Board of Innogy ple
uponits dermerger from National Power in 2000
He played a leading role in its restructuring and
transformation through the opening of competition
In energy markets culrminating in its subsequent
sale to RWE In 2003 He became CEQ of the
successor Cornpany and a rmember of the RWE
Group Executive Committee until his retirement
N 2010 He was a Non-Executive Director of
Wotseley plc from July 2004 untit November 2013
Andrew was apponted Non-Executive Deputy
Chairrnan of Elementis ptcon 1 April 2014 and
becarme Non-Executive Chairman of Elernentis
ptc on 24 Aprtl 2014 He s the senior trustee of
Macmillan Cancer Support and a trustee of the
Earth Trust
Other roles:
* Member of the CBI President s Commuttee
+ Trustee of Macmillan Cancer Support and
Earth Trust
+ Fellow of the Energy Instrtute

Committee membership key

Audit Committee

Corporate Responsibility Committee
Executive Committee

Nominations Comrittee
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2. Olivia Garfield BA (Hons| [42)
Appointed: Chief Executive on 11 April 2014

Skills, competence and experience:

Olvia (Liv) brings to the Board a wealth of
experience managing customer service delivery
and complex infrastructure and orgarisations

in aregulated enviranment Before joining

Severn Trert, Liv was Chief Executive Officer

of Openreach partofthe BT Group, where she
spearhzaded and oversaw the commercial roll-out
of fibre broadoand o two-thirds of the country
She jained BT in 2002 and held the pivotal roles

of Group Director of Strategy and Regulation,
Managing Director Commercial and Brands,
Global Services and UK Custemer Services
Director From 199810 2002 Ly worked for
Accenture as 3 consultant in the Communications
and High Tech Market Unit, designing and
implementing business change solutions across
amumber of indust y sectors

Other roles:

* Member of The 30% Club

= Oirector of Water UK

» Mcmber of Take Over Panel

¢ Director of Water Plus Limited - joint venture
with United Utilities

Remuneration Cormnmittec
Treasury Committee
Disclosure Committes

3. James Bowling BA Hons| Econ,
ACA [49)

Appointed: Chief Financial Officer on 1 April 2015
Membership:

Skills, competence and experience.

James s achartered accountant, having started
his career w Lh Touche Ress and brings significant
financial management, M&A and business
transformation expertise to the Board Prior to
\aireng Severn Trent, James was interim Chuef
Fina~cial Ofticer ot Shire ple, where he had been
since 2000, first as Head of Group Reporting

and from 20308 as Group Financial Controller
Prior to joining Shire, James spent nine years at
Ford Mctor Company in various finance roles of
ncreasing responsibility

4. John Coghlan BCom, ACA (60
Appoainted: Independent Non-Executive Director
on 23 May 2014

Membership: Chair  Chair

Skills, competence and experience:

Johnis a chartered accountant and has a valuable
background in financial and general management
across avarety of sectors Currently, John s also
aNon-Executive Director and Audit Committee
Chairrman of Clanon Housing Asseciation and
Assotiated British Perts Holdings Limited
Previously, John was a Director of Exel ple for

11 years to 2006, where he was Deputy Chief
Executive and Group Finance Director Since 2006,
John has been a Non-Exccutive Director of
various publicly-quoted and private equity-
owned companies

Other roles:
¢ Chairman of Freight Transpart Assoctation
Ireland Lirnited




Tenure and gender diversity

The graphics below show the tenure of the Non-Executive Directars aver the short, medium and long term, together with the
gender diversity across the Executive team, the full Board, and amongst Non-Executive Directors See page 81 for gender

diversity across the rest of the Severn Trent Group

Gender diversity as at 31 March 2018

Graph removed Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

5. Dame Angela Strank DBE, FRS,
FREng, CEng, FIChemE, DSc,

PhD {65)

Appointed: Independent Non-Executive Director
on 24 January 2014

Membershig Chair

Skills, competence and experience:
Angela brings a wealth of strateqic, technical and
commercial experience to the Board Angelais
Head of Downstream Technalogy and Group
Chiet Scientist at BP plc Sheisamember of
the Downstream Executive Leadership Team
Angelais responsible for enabling delivery of
the Downstream strateqic agenda through
the development of differentiated technelogy
advantage across the refining, fuels, lubricants
and petrochermicals businesses Since jaining
BPin 1982, she has held many senior leadership
roles around the world in business development,
commerciat and technology, including in 2012,
Vice President and Head of the Chiet Executive's
Otfice in 2010 Angela was the winner of the UK
First Wornan's Award in Science and Technology
in recognition of ploneering UK women in
tusiness and industry Hertrack record and
experience in strateqy, operations, technology and
transformational change are a compiementary
addition to the Board's skill set In June 2017,
Angclawas recognised i the Queen'’s Birthday
Honours Listwith the title Dame Cormmander of
tne Most Excellent Order of the British Errpire
[DBE) far services to the Oiland Gas Industry and
encouraging women nta STEM careers
Other roles:
+ Board Governor of The University
of Manchester
* BP Groupple  Chicf Saicntist
+ Member of the Royal Society s Science,
Industry & Translation Committee

4. The Hon. Philip Remnant

CBE FCAMA (63

Appointed: Independent Non-Executive Director
on 31 March 2014

Membership: Chair

Skills, competence and experience:

Phil pisasenorirvestment anker and brings
substantial advisery and requlatory experience
tothe Board A chartered accountant, he is

Sen or Independent Director of Prudential plc and
Charran of M&G Group Lirmted  Deputy Chairman
of the Takeover Pane!, Senior Independent Director
of UK Financiat Investments Limited and Chairman
of City of London Investment Trust ple Previously,
Philipwas Vice Chairran of Credit Suisse First
Boston Europe and Head of the UK Investment
Banking Departrment Philipwas Director General of
the Takeover Panet for two years between 2007 and
2003, and again in 2010 He served on the Board of
Nor thern Rock ple trom 2008 t0 2010 and from 2007
to 2012 was Chairman of the Shareholder Executive

Other roles:

* Governor of Goodenough College

e Directer and Trustee of St Paul s
Cathedral Feundation

7. Dominique Reiniche MBA (62)
Appointed: Independent Non-Executive Director
on 20 July 2016

Membership:

Skills, competence and experience

Dominigue has awealth of operational
experience i Europe and has international
consurner marketing and innovation expericnce
Dominigue is Independent Vice Chairman of
CHR Hansen Holdings A/S and also a Non-
Execative Director of Mondi plc and PayPal
[Europe) Dorminique started her carcer with
Procter & Gamb'e AG before moving to Kraft
Jacobs Suchard AG as Director of Marketing

and Strategy where she was a'so a member of
the Executive Commutter Dominique prosously
held a number of senior roles at Coca-Cola
Enterprises and ot Coca Cola Company including
President - Western Eurspe, President - Europe
and Chairman - kurope Until Decermbar 2015,
Dorminigue was a Non-Exccutive Director of
Paugear Citroen SA Until April 2017, Domimigue
waas a Non-Executve Director ot AXASA

8. Kevin Beeston FCMA (55)

Appointed. Sentor Independent Non-Executive
Director on 1 June 2014

Membership.

Skills, competence and experience:

Kevin has a weal.h of commercial, inancial

and high level ma~agement experience

Kevinis Chawrman of Tay ar Wimpey ple and
Elysium Healthcare and also a Non-Execu! ve
Director of The Football Association Premier
League Lirmited and Marston Corporate Limited
Previously, Kevin spent 25 years at Serco ple
where he held the roles of Finance Birector
Chief Fxecutive and fimally Charman unul 2010
Kevin was previously Chairman of Domestic &
General Limited and Partnerships in Care Limited,
Equiniti Group plc and a Non-Executive Director
of IMl ple

Director serving for
part of the year

Emma FitzGerald MA, DPhil Oxon,
MBA (51]

Managing Director, Wholesale Operations
Directorship ceased on 3t December 2017
Ernma stepped down fram the Board on

31 December 2017, hawing been a Dircctor since
1 April 2016 She remamed on the Executive
Comrittee until 16 Apri 2018 and 1s due to lcave
Severn Trent in July 2018
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Governance

Executive Committee
| eadership & Effectiveness
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1. Olivia Garfield BA [Hons) [42)
Appointed: Chief Executive on 11 April 2014
Plecase see full biography on page 68

2. James Bowling BA (Hons) Econ, ACA {49]
Appointed: Chief Financial Officer on 1 Aprit 2015
Please sce full biography on page 68

3. Dr. Tony Ballance BSc (Hons), MA [Econl, PhD 53]

Appointed: Director, Strategy and Regulation on 25 July 2005
Member of the Executive and Disclosure Committee
Career and responsibilities:
Tony s extensive expenence in utility palicy, regulation and stakeholdesr
cngagement leaves himideally placed to lead the Company’s strategic,
regulatery and external affairs work Prior to joiring Severn Trent, he held
the posts of Chuef Ecanomist for Ofwat, Director of London Econormics and
Director of Stone and Webster Consultants
Other roles:
* SenorIndependent Director of the National Forest Company
» Member of Water UK Council
* Chairman of the Corparate Advisory Panel of the Regulatary

Policy Institute
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4. Sarah Bentley BSc [Hons|, Management Science
with Computing [46)

Appointed: Chief Custamer Officer in December 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities:

Respensible for Custormer Retail and Netwark operaticons, Group Technology
and Transformation She previcusly worked for Accenture as Managing
Director of their L3 billion global digital business fecused on digitat marketing,
mobility and analytics for customers, employees and the enterprise Prior to
Accenture, Sarahwas CEO of Datapont, an Alchemy backed company
delivering CRM services, and Senior Vice President of cLoyalty, a global CRM
and marketng consultancy She was SVP of the European Business led the
sales and operations activity in North America and ran eloyalty Ventures

L L C working in Silicon Valley, Austin and New York

Other roles:
« Twizzletwig Limited - Director and Secretary

5. Martin Kane B5Sc, CEng, CEnv, MICE, MIWEM,

FIW [45)

Appointed: Martin jeined Severn Trent Water in 1975 and was appointed
Chief Engineer in July 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities-

He has held various senior roles grving him an extensive and unique
understanding of the design, construction and cperation of water and waste
water treatment plants, water distribution networks and sewerage systems
Martinwas Directer of Custamer Relations, Severn Trent Ple, from May 2006
until January 2012, and Chief Executive Oificer of Severn Trent Services unul
July 2014

Other roles:

* Member of the Boards of Utilities and Service Industries Traiming Lirmited
» Trustee of International Society for Trenchloss Technology

s Chairman, Panton McLeod Ltd

* Chairman of the Coventry and Warwickshire Growth Hub




Image removed

Image removed

6. Bronagh Kennedy BA (Hons| (54)

Appointed: Group General Counsel and Company Secretary in June 2011
Member of the Executive and Disclosure Committee

Career and responsibilities:

Bronagh ts a solictor and was previously Group Company Secretary and
General Counsel and BR Director at Mirchells & Butlers, where she worked
far 15years Priortothat, she was a Serior Associate 3t Allen & Overy She s a
member of the GC 100 Group and an Independent Non-Executive Director and
Chairman ot the HR and Remuneration Committee of British Canoeing

7. Helen Miles CIMA (47)

Appointed: Group Cornmercial Director in Novernber 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities

Helen joned Severn Trent in Novernber 2014 as the Chief Commeraial
Officer and brings with her a breadt~ of commercial experience having
worked within regulated businesses and sectors across Telecems, Leisure
and Banking As a member of the UK Board, Helen was instrumental in
delivering HomeServe < future growth strategy and ensuring a sustainable,
cuslomer-focused business As an exper enced finance professional, Helen
was previously Chief Financial Olficer for Cpenreach, part of BT Group plc,
and has extensive experience of delivering major business transformatian
across the Group Priorto BT Group, Helen waorked in avariety of sectors
and arganisations such as Bass Taverns, Barclays Bank, Compass Group
and HSBC

8. Andy Smith BTech [Hons] [57)

Appointed: Managing Director, Business Services in 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities:

Andy was appointed to the role of MD, Business Services on its creation in
2014 having previously been responsible for the drinking water business within
Severn Trent Water Andy brings te the role a broad range of cxecutive and
operational expertise gained from diverse sectors Currently, Andyis alsoa
Nan-Executive Director of Diploma ple He has workedin the UK and overseas
with global businesses such as BP, Mars and Yepsiin bath engineering, HR
and oporational rmanagement roles Proviously, he has served as a member
of the Board al Severn Trer' Plc ard a: Boots Group ple

9. Neil Morrisan Bsc [Hons|, Chartered FCIPD [44)

Appointed: Director of Human Resources in August 2017

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities.

Neil joined Severn Trent in August 2017 as a Direcror of Hurnan Resaurces
Neil started a career in HR managermentin 1996 and for the subsequent

12 years heworked in avariety of HR rotes with:n FTSE 100 cempanies,
including Rentakil lnihial and GUS [which lat-erly becarne Home Retail

Group] Before joining Severn Trent, Neil worked at Penguin Random House
taking responsibility for strategic people 1ssaes across their publishing and
distribration offices m the UK, APAC, Ind @ and Socth Africa He was one of the
ma 1 leads 1~ helping to steer and firalise the globalimerger between Randoem
House and Penguin Neil also sits on the board of the Chartered Institute ef
Personnel and Development [CIPD)

10. Dr. James Jesic BEng (Hons|, PhD, MIChemE,

CEng (39)

Appointed: Managing Director of Production on 1 December 2017

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities

Jamesis a chartered chemical engmeer who joined Severn Trent onits
graduate programme in 2003 and was appointed as Managing Director of
Production in 2017 Duning his time with the business, James has had full
accountability for the management of the operational mult-bliion pound
asset base, being responsible for producing and supplying drinking water
and colleching and treating waste water for millions of customers across the
Midlands As part of that role, he has delivered industry-leading custormer
service performance, as well as driving sector-leading environmental resuits
He has a PhDin Chemical Engineering frorm the University of Birmingham and
has attended Harvard Business School

Executives serving for part of the year

Evelyn Dickey BSc [Hons| (55)

Directar of Huraan Resources

Evelyn stepped down from the Executive Committee on 31 August 2617 after
1T yearsof service

Emma FitzGerald MA, DPhil Oxon, MBA [51)
Sce page 69

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018 7 1

|

Jedalama =g

JIUBUIDADG

U |BIP L 10000

Jrnedie)an Ay (g | IS IVEF YN I TV L T T T N



Governance

Governance Framework
eadership & Effectiveness

Board of Directors

Responsible and accountable for the long term success of the Severn Trent Group, ensuring Severn Trent delivers
the Group's strategic chjectives whilst operating to the highest standards of corporate governance in meetng ws
cbligations to all stakeholders

Board Committees

Nominations
Committee

Keeps the structure,
size, composiiion and
succession needs

of the Board under
review and assists
the Baard on conflicts
ofinterestand
independence issues

Read more on
pages 8010 82

Audit Committee

Assists the Board
indischarging its
responsibilities for
the integrity of the
Company s financial
statements, the
assessmentof

the effectiveness

of the systems of
Internal Contral,
Risk Management
and scrutinises the
work of the Internal
and External Auditors
It also reviews

the adequacy of the
Companys
whistleblowing
arrangements

Read more on
pages 83 to 89

Corporate
Responsibility
Committee
Provides guidance
and threctron 1o the
Company s
Corporate
Responsibility

and Sustainability
programme

based on Severn
Trent s values and
reviews the Group's
nan-financial risks
and opportunities

Read more on
pages 91 to 93

Severn Trent Executive Committee [[STEC’)

Oversees the development and execution of Group strategy, with
accountability for actweving financtal and operational performance

CEQ - Liv Garfield

Delegated respansibility for the development and rmplementation of strategy
and overall commercial objectives, and responsible for the day-to-day
management of the business and the communication of Board agreed

abjectives to employees

Governance » Matters Reserved to the Board * Board strategy days Corporate
s Terms of Reference for * Training
Framework Board Commitiees » Board Effectiveness Review Gavernance
FOUndatiOns * Charter of Expectations « Policies and procedures COde
* Doing the Right Thing - + Dwersity/independence
the Severn Trent Way
* Group Autherisation Arrangements
+ Conflicts of Interest review
* Mo nberse o ~Fthe Treasury Com i ttee mc waes b ead of Gracg T eashry anns Besod aotibare

Remuneration
Committee

Deterrmunes the
Company s policy on
the remuneration of
Executive Directors,
other members of the
Executive Committee
and the Chairman of
the Board

Treasury ‘
Committee*

Provides oversight of
treasury activities in
implementing the
policies, funding
andtreasury risk
management plan
including the
measurement and
management of risks

in respect of interest
rates, funding,
counterparty credit,
liquidrty and
treasury operations,
funding proposals;
relationship with
rating agencies, debt
investor reilations;
bank relationship
management;

and treasury
internal controls

Read more on
pages 9610 128

Read more on
page 90

Executive Sub-Committee

Disclosure Committee

Executive Sub-Committee overseeing
Severn Trent's compliance with its disclosure
obligations, considering the materiality,
accuracy, reliability and timeliness of
infarmation disclosed and assessment

of assurance received.
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The Board is responsibie to all stakeholders, including the
Company's shareholders, for the approval and delivery of the
Group s strategic objectives |t makes sure that the necessary
financial, tachnical and human resources are in place for the
Company to meetits chjectives The Board leads the Group
within a framework of practical and effective controts which
enable risk to be assessed and managed

Responsibility for the development and implementation of the
Group's strategy and overall commercial objectives 1s delegated
to the Chief Executive who 1s supported by the Severn Trent
Executive Committee 'STEC)

In compliance with the Code, the Board also delegates certain
roles and responsibilities to 1ts vanous Committees, which
assist by focusing in detail on their particular areas, reporting
to the Board on decisions and actions they've taken, and making
any necessary recommendations in lime with their Terms

of Reference

Charter of Expectations

The Severn Trent Charter of Expectations sets out clearly the
defined rotes of the Chairman, Chief Executive, Chief Financial
Officer, Semor Independent Director and Non-Cxecutive
Directors, the operation of the Board and Board Committees,
and also reflects the Board's responsibility tor setting the tone of
the Group s culture, values and behaviour In accordance with the
Code, it sets out a clear division of respensibilities between the
roles of Chairman and CEQ

The Charter of Expectations is reviewed annually, with the
tast review undertaken in March 2018 It's also used to assist
in the ongoing assessment of the effectiveness of the Board
and its Commuttees and that of individual Directors (see
page 79 for further details| It1s available on our website
[www severntrent com)

Matters Reserved to the Plc Board

The Schedule of Matters Reserved ta the Board sets out
the processes in place regarding the Board's tasks and
activiies and the mallers specifically reserved for tho
Board s decision making A copy 15 available on our website
[www severntrent com)

The Board has reserved the following matters, amengst others,
forits own consideration

» the Group's strategic and operating ptans,

e financial reporting and controls,

e major acquisitions and disposals,

* key Group policies, and

¢ Group Authensation Arrangements [ GAA]

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference for each Board Committee are
reviewed annually, updated to take account of best practice,

and to reflect the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code [as revised fromm time to ttme)

The sub-committee structure 1s detailed in the Governance
Framewaork on page 77 and key responsibilities are set out
on page 74

Conflicts

The Board formally considers conflicts of interest at every
meeting, and reviews the authorisation of any potential conflicts
of interest every six months

Group Authorisation Arrangements

The GAA s the framework through which the Severn Trent Plc
Board authorises the right people, at the night level, to take
impertant decisions to effectively control and manage legal,
financial and adrministrative decisions throughout the Group
These arrangements are reviewed annually, with the last review
undertaken in April 2018

The flow of author ity 1s from the Severn Trent Ple Board to the
Chief Executive and the Severn Trent Executive Committee

In respect of certain decisions, the delegated authority 1s subject
to an obligation to work with specialist business service areas
{such as Tax, Treasury, Group Finance, Group Cornmercial and
General Counsel], which provides additional expertise and a
group-wide perspective

‘Doing the Right Thing — the Severn Trent Way’

In addition to the Charter of Expectations and Terms of
Reference for the Board, and the company-wide GAA, Severn
Trent also sets out the cultural tone expected of its workforce
through clearly defined values and standards of behaviour that
are expected from everyone who works for the Severn Trent
Group. Its Cede of Conduct ‘Doing the Right Thing - the Severn
Trent Way has been rolled out across the Group in the form of
all-employee traiming praogramme, 1s integral to the induction
process and s continuousty re-enforced by management to
make surce thal all of our people embody Severn Trent's values

» we put our customers first;

» we are passionate about what we do,

* we act with integrity,

» we protect our environment, and

» we are inspired to creale an awesome company

Our Code of Canduct 1s key to helping us achieve ourvision
of being the rmost trusted water comgpany by 2020,

We know that the night culture must be set from the top

Our annuat employee engagement survey, QUEST, 1s therefore
designed to provide us with actionable data in a clear and
comprehensive form, giving us a better understanding on what's
going well and what can be improved across the whole of our
business QUEST is carred out by an independent research
company to ensure the results are anonymous and results are
reported to the Board

Policies, Standards and Procedures

In additien to our Code of Conduct, Severn Trent has an
additional 12 policies which apply to everyone whao works for
the Severn Trent Group These polictes have been designed to
help employees and contractors understand their role within
the Company and their respansibility to the Severn Trent
Group They also, inturn, autline the Group's responsibility to
the indvidusal These policies are the strategic Link hetween
the Severn Trent vision and how we manage our day-to-day
business, and are underpinned by specific company standards
and procedures
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Governance

Key Board responsibilities
| eadership & Effectiveness

Board composition, roles and attendance
Where Directors have not been able to attend meetings, they have still received related papers in advance of the scheduled meeting
and any input they have provided has been considered.

The Board held seven scheduled meetings during the year, and the key roles of individuals and their attendance 1s set out overleaf
Foraddittonal inforrmation on the aclivities of the Board, see pages 76 and 77

There were 11 additicnal ad hoc meetings of the Board or Committee of the Board canvenad throughout the year.

Director Responszibility
Chairman Andrew Duff * Leads our unified Board and Is responsible for its effectiveness
* Sets agendas and ensure timely dissemination of information to the Board, in censultation
with CEQ, CFO and Company Secretary.
» Responsible for scrutinising the performance of the Executive Commuttee
* Faciitates cantribution from our Directors
= Ensures effectve communication with our shareholders and other stakeholders
CEC LivGarfeld * Develops and implements the Group's strategy, as approved by the Board
» Responsible for the overall cornmercial objectives of the Group
* Promotes and conducts Group affairs with the highest standards of integrity, protuty and
corporate governance
* Sets the cultural tene of the organisation
CFO James Bowling  * Manages the Group's financial affairs.
* Supports the CED in the implementation and achievement of the Group's strategic objectives
SID Kevin Beeston * Supports the Chairman in delivery of his objectives
» Alternative contact for shareholders should they have a concern that 1s unresolved by the
Chawrman, CEQ or CFO
* Leads the appraisal of the Chairman’s performance with the Non-Executive Directors
* Key role msuceession planning for the Hoard, together with the Board Coniniittees, Chairman,
and NEDs
NED John Coghlan * Constructively challenge our Executive Directors in all areas
Dominique + Monitor the delivery of strategy by the Executive Committee within the risk and cantrol
Remniche frarmework set by the Board
Dame Angela » Sausfy thernselves that internal controls are robust and that the External Auditis
Strank undertaken properly.
Philip Remnant ¢ Responsible for agreeing appropriate levels of remuneration for Executive Directors.
* Key role n succession planning for the Board, together with the Board Comimittees, Chairman,
and SID
Executve Emma FitzGerald  Responsible for the Group's wholesale business until 31 December 2017
Directar luntit 3112.17) .

Supported the CEO in the implementation and achievernent of the Group's stralegic objectives
untit 31 December 2017
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Board attendance g
April 17 2
May 17
Jdune 17

g:
July 17 N
Aug 17
Sept 17

it
Oct 17 2
Naov 17 Z
Dec 17 7
Jan 18 i
Feb 18 ;
Mar 18

Board Meeting Audit Nominations Remuneration Treasury CR

Dircctor Attendance ! Comrmuttee ! Committee Committee Commitiee Committee '
Andrew Duff 77 - 44 65 - 2/3 )
Liv Garfield 1k - - - - 3/3
James Bowling /7 - - - 8/6 -
Kevin Baeston! &7 44 4f4 b/6 - -
John Coghtan'™ 417 4/4 3/4 - 416 -
Corminigue Reiniche 7 - 414 - - 3/3
Dame Angela Strank 77 - 4f4 676 - 33
Philip Remnant 77 374 afh b/4 476 -

Ernma FitzGerald luntil 311217)  5/5 - - - -

Il Iactudes the seheduled Boara meetings Some additional meetings have been required to cover speal ¢ malters throughoul the year
Il Kevin Beeston was unable to attynd a Beard meeting due ta illness during the year

h) Jahn Coghlan ws unable toatlend a Basrd and Comimittee mesting due to a hereavement

Committee membership key

Audit Commuttee Rernuneration Commuities
Corporate Responsipility Cornmittee Treasury Committee
Nominations Cemmittes Soard
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Governance

Key Board responsibilities continued

|eadership & Effectiveness

Board activities

The table below sets out the main matters considered by the
Board 1n 2017/18 at ts scheduled Board meetings and the
updates covered as part of its Lunch and L earn and operational
site visit sessions The Board s agenda i ordinarily structured
as follows

= procedural matters including Board Committee reports),

e performance review [including health and safety, operational,
customer and financial matters),

o strategicitems, and

* iterns for approval/noting including the Company Secretary’s
Update on governance, legat and regulatory issues).

This structure has been agreed to ensure that Matters Reserved
to the Board are addressed appropriately and that the Board s
time s spent effectively Strategic items are regularly presented
to the Board by senior managers within the business, giving

the Directors the opportunity to meet with key members of
management who report into the Executive team This also
assists the successton planning process

Board strategy days

In addition to formal meetings at which strategic matters are
regularly reviewed, in June 2017 the Board held a dedicated
strategy meeting along with the Executive Committee to consider
areas of future value creation across the Group and spent time
considering asset strategy and potential future disruptors,
regulatory strategy and growth strategies across our portfolio

of businesses For 2018, success of the PR19 plans are key,
therefore a good portion of the Board's strategy meeting 1s
scheduled to focus on this Over the medium to long term it's
anticipated that opportunities and risks to the business will come
from emerging technologies such as artificial intelligence and
robotics so this will be on the agenda, together with mergers and
acquisitions and a discussion about our future pecple strategy

The format of each day involves a few topics being discussed
in-depth, with external speakers to challenge thinking and an
Interactive approach to each of the conversations

76 Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Summary Board Activities 2017/18

Overview

All Board meetings are a full day's agenda consisting of
Procedural matters, Performance Reviews, Strategy, ltems
for approval/noting Turther details are provided below.

Board Focus - Topics & Actions

Procedural matters

Agreeing minutes of last meeting, reviewing progress against
specific actions, Updates from the Chairman of each Board
Committee has been strategically rnoved to this early part of the
agenda to reflect the impor tance of the Committees” activities,
See Committee reports on pages 80 te 93 for further details

Performance Reviews

Reviews are received from the CEQ and CFO at every meeting
and from Directorates at regular intervals There has beena
strong focus on Production, Customer Delivery and Capital
Delivery & Commercial during the year The financial reviews
have included consideration of the Annual Report and Accounts
and the pension scheme funding, in addition te budget and
dvidend approval From 2018, separate operational reviews for
the Regulated Business and those for Business Services have
been introducad to better reflect how the Group s divisions operate

Strategy

Whilst the following is not an exhaustive list of all the matters
the Board have considered during the financial year, 1t does
indicate the key areas of activity and hopefully provide insight
Into the strategic workings of the Board

Upper Quartile As part of its facus on achieving and
maintaining Upper Quar tile retall, water and waste perfor mance
as measured by Ofwat, the Board have reviewed a route map of
key milestones on outputs so it can monitor progress towards
achieving this aspiration

M&A Strategy The Board have continued to keep merger and
acquisition opporturmties under review and gave more detalled
consideration to this matter at its Strategy Day

Bioresources Trading The Board have been considering the
opportunities created by the development of this market
Technotogy and potential investment epportunities have been
discussed and considerad in more depth at its Strategy Day

Insourcing Opportunities To address service 1ssues, the
Board have considered proposals for insouraing, exploring
alternative models and seeking practical worked examples
from management for specified issues and constdering the
resources required in each case

Water Resources Management Plan The Beard have
challenged the prescribed methodology and drilled down in
terms of the assumptions, variances and scenarios in addition
to simply testing alternative methodologres, applying the
expertise of those Board members whao have the skills set

for such matters

Dee Valley Water Limited Board Compaosition: Furtherto
consultation with Ofwat, the Board, in consultation with
the Nomimations Committee, have considered the future
make-up of the Dee Valley Water Limited Beard, appainted
the Chairman of this Beard and appointed three new
independent Non-Executive Directors




Customer Service: As well as receving updates on performance
at every meeting the Board met with CCW for both England and
Waltes to listen to its perspective on Custorners views on Severn
Trent's performance

OSUK&I Update: Following the transfer of customers to Water
Fius and the sale of its italian and US businesses, the Board has
reviewed the operational effectiveness of its Business Services
operations in the UK and Ireland and the future structure of

this division of the business moving forward, commending
management on markedly improved customer satisfactien and
better performance It is keeping opportunities for growth and
the risk profile of each business unit under review.

PR1%: This price review s 2 particularly challenging area this
year [further detaiis on pages 16 to 17) and the Board has
therefore spent a commensurate amount of time on it to enable
progressive scrutiny

Enterprise Risk Management ['ERM’) Update: The Board
receves six monthly updates on ERM risks Following its
feedback to management, the Beard now receives Cost to
Target and Flightpath” analysis on Board level risks, the former
providing confirimation that risk reduction actions have been
reflected in the budgeting process, business plans and long
range plans, and the latter mapping out the nisk reduction over
hme The combined effect of these enhancements now provides
the Board with greater insight to enable reprioritisation of such
risks enabling more efficient risk reduction The Board 1s also
rolling out true cost of control approach across all ERM risks

Health, Safety and Wellbeing Strategy: The Board received an
update and noted pleasing progress with the achievement of
certain important milestonas during the year (see page 47 for
further information) but acknowledges there are still further
Issues to improve upon and the cultural challenge continues

Property Strategy: The Board censidered the new clear strategy
and approved the communication of property profits to the market
and the inclusion of property profits in future business targets

to reflect the value arising from that strategy in the Company's
share price

Review of Water Plus Performance: The Board receives six
monthly updates on Water Plus Whilst the business has been
competing wellin the market, the Board keeps the performance
of Water Plus under close scrutiny

HomeServe Update: The Board has reviewed the HomeServe
atfinity partnership.

Re-nationalisation Debate: The Board has been closely
following topicat debate around the proposal by the Labour
Farty in its May 2017 election manifesto to re-nationalise
utilities including the water sector.

Water Quality: The Board met with the DW| and invited 1t to give
feedback on the Cormpany s water quality perfermance, bothin
terms of current gerformance and challenges for the next AMP

Business Security and Resilience Review: The Board have kept
abreast of progress during the year through its established
incident rnanagement steering group which continually reviews
and learns from incidents, both planned events and real
mcidents It recaves reports which include a guide path showing
progress agains! specified targets.

Cyber Security: Given the Cyber Security landscape continues
1o evolve with an inereasing level of activity and a number of

high profile incidents for other companies and government
departments, the Board has received an update on the
Company’s Cyber Security Roadmap during the year It noted
the scrutiny by the National Cyber Security Centre, its risk based
approach and investment pricrities, and increased in-house
support and positive reviews by Defra and PwC

GDPR: The Board recognises that the implementation of GOPR
15 challenging but through a considered update during the year
was reassured about what has to be done by management

in order to prepare for it it has scheduled future updates to
review pregress

Innovation Investment Review: The Board reviewed the
work of the innovation team and the progress that has been
made to accelerate the pace of application in deploying value-
generating technology

Items for approval/noting

This 1s a standing item on the agenda to meet the requirements
of the business in terms of approving matters such as

leases and tand disposals, the alignment of water licences
[particularly in ght of re-defining the English/Welsh boundaries
following the acquisition of Dee Valley Water Limited), and
setting tanff charges This item always includes the Company
Secretary’s Update to address regular reviews cf governance
matlers [by way of example see annual reviews shown belawl,
keep abreast of regulatory changes and obtain Beard approvals
for specific rmatters reserved to the Board.

Annual Governance Reviews

» [Directors’ conflicts of interest;

» Gifts and Hospitality Register,

* Ant-Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement,
+ Board Diversity Policy;

+ Sharesave Invitation,

+ Board Evaluation Process,

* Board Committee Terms of Reference,

* Charter of Expectations,

+ Matters Reserved to the Board,

* Group Authorisation Arrangements, and

¢ Feedback from Institutional Shareholders
Lunch and Learn Sessions

The Beard's time has been raximised by utilising the time spent
over lunch to conduct deep dives into topics such as

* Investor Technology Day,

* Building an ethical culture,

* HS2, update on route, prograrnres and costs,
* Nationalisation Defence Debate,

* Water Forum, and

¢ Responding to customers Inspiring the next generation
of water users
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Governance

Effectiveness
LLeadership & Effectiveness

Term of office

The Beard recognises the Code’s recommendation that Directors
serve a fixed terim of appointment and considers plans for
orderly succession to the Board to maintaim an appropriate
batance of skills and expenence within the Company As such,
the Company mamntains a clear framework of Non-Executive
Director tenure and the skill set that each Director provides
Individual Directors” biographies can be found on pages 68 and
&% In accordance with the Code, all the Directors wili retire at
this year's AGM and subrnit themselves for reappointment by
shareholders An overview of tenure for the Board 1s shown in the
table on page 69, Each of the Non-Execulive Direclors seeking
reappamtment at the AGM s considered by the Board to be
independent in character and judgement

Diversity

The Board and Nominations Committee are commitied to
diversity Female representation on the Board exceads 30%

in respect of the main Board and 1s 40% on the Executive
Committee [see table on page 69] There s also a continual
focus on promoting wider diversity We believe that our Company
should reflect our communities and customers, and embrace

a diverse range of perspectives, experiences and expertise to
support our long terrm viability and commercial success.

We are committed to developing our talent pipeline, to ensure

we have appropriate representation from roinority ethnic
candidates, as well as other relevant diverse groups. You can iind
additional details on our progress and ambitions on page 81 of
the Nominations Committee report and detais of diversity across
the Severn Trent Group on page 81.

Training and continuing professional
development

Aswell as Board agenda items, training sessions in relation to
specific topics of interest that were presented to Directors during
the year are set out on page 77

The aim of the training sessions 15 to continually refresh and
expand the Board's knowledge and skills to enable them to

fulfit their roles effectively on the Board and its Commuttees and
contribute to discussions on technical and regulatory matters
The sessions also serve as an opportunity for the Board to
discuss strategy and risks with management below Executive
Committee level and gain further instght into our businesses and
management capability

Directors’ resources

An online resource Uibrary and Continuing Professional
Development ['CPD') repository 1s available for use by the
Directors, which is constantly reviewed and updated The lbrary
includes a Corparate Governance Manual, 3 Results Centre and
lnvestar Relations secton, Strategy Day materials and details of
Board training sessions It alse contains a further reading section
which covers updates and guidance on changes to legislation
and corporate governance best prachice The Directors also have
access to professional development provided by external bodies
and our advisers CPD requiremeants were considered, through
individual perfermance review meetings between the Chatrman
and each Director, as part of the externally facilitated Board
effectiveness review in 2017/18.
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Induction programme

Whilst there have been no new appomtments to the Board
of Severn Trent Plc duning the year, there is an induction
prograrnrme in place which can be tailored as applicable and
includes the following elements/details
+ Ofwat pre-appomtment process,
* Company structure including regulatory overview

and performance,

« Company strategy,

Key stakeholder relations including customers, suppliers,
regulators and service providers,

* Key operations and processes including cperationat areas and
key sites,

-

Financial performance including analyst and investor opinion,

Qur peaple - including health, safety and wellbeing, talent
and succession, trade unions and an overview of our
Remuneration Policy,

Group risk profile and our approach to risk,

* Governance Framework,

* Board calendar, effectiveness reviews and action plans, and
+ Insight into key areas af focus for any speafic appointment.

We will continue to enhance the Board's induction process,
particutarly bearing in rind feedback from new appointees

The new Independent Non-Executive Directors of Dee Valley
Water Limited receved an appropriate induction facilitated by
the Company Secretary covering the above topics, as well as a
tour of key operational sites to understand our water treatment
and distribution processes, and the customer journey, in a live
environment, as follows

o Water process - frorn rain to tap,
* Waste water process -~ from drain to river, and

* Customer journey - fram moving into a new home to
moving out.

Independence of NEDs

The independence of cur Nen-Executive Drrectors 1s formally
reviewed annually by the Nominations Committee, and as part
of the Board evaluabien exercise The Nominations Committee
and Board consider that there are no business or other
carcumstances that are Lkely to affect the independence of any
Non-Executive Director and that all Non-Executive Directors
continue to demonstrate independence The Board recognises
the Code's recommendation that Directors serve a fixed term
of appointment and considers plans for orderly succession

to the Board to maintain an appropriate balance of skills and
experience within the Company Indiwidual Director biagraphies
can be found on pages 68 and 6% In accordance with the Code,
atl the Directors will retire at this year's AGM and submt
themselves for reappointment by shareholders Each of the
Non-Executive Directors seeking reappointment are considered
to be independent i judgermnent and character:




Board Evaluation
| eadership & Effectiveness

The effectiveness of the Board and of the Board's cornmittees s
reviewed annually and progress is reviewad every six months
Anindependent externally facilitated review of the effectiveness
of the Board 1s conducted every three years. An externally
facilitated evaluation was therefore undertaken this year, the
last having taken place In 2014/15 Manchester Square Partners
[(MSP), whe undertook the pravious review, wera chasen

to facilitate the exercise to provide continuity and measure
progress against their pricr review MSP has no other connection
with the Company.

While the Board was functioning well at the time of the last
external review a number of areas were hightighted for attention

» Strategy While there was alignment at a high level on the
strategic priorities there was more to be done on agreeing
the strategic opportunities to be pursued and the plans to
achieve these

Pace of change There was a need to ensure the pace of
change could be delivered in a sustainable way, with the

Board consider ing major change earlier in the process,

S0 as to be able to review over several meetings and provide
appropriate support and challenge

Mentoring Talent management and succession planning were
identified as needing further focus once the new Fxecutive
team was in place

* Board Agenda Change suggested to provide more time
to discuss a range of strategic opportunities and other key
Intatives, whilst not losing focus on per formance and finance.

MSP concluded that significant pregress had been made since
2014/15 and there had been a noticeable step change in the focus,
alignment, cantribution and effectiveness of the Board with well
planned and structured Yoard agendas

Review dimensions

Strategy, challenges and risks, and values and culture,

Role of the Beard, Board dynamics and engagernent,

Structure of the Board, its composition and succession planning,
Governance, execution and leadership

The process for the 2017/18 review 1s set out below

Step1 MSP bnefed by Chairman and Company Secretary and
attended the January Board Meeting in order to cbserve
the Board first hand. They were also provided with access
to prior years’ Board and Commuttee papers and minutes
and details of the previous internal reviews and progress

updates to provide relevant background material

MSP conducted face-to-face interviews with each Director
and the General Counsel and Company Secretary.

Step 2

Step3 M5 produced a report selting out their findings
which they discussed with the Chairman and Senior
Independent Director Details of their observations and
suggested focus areas are shown below, together with

the related actions arising from the evaluation process

The Chairman met with each of the Directors and the
General Counsel and Cornpany Secretary to discuss

the performance of the Board and their indmdual
contributions The Senor Independent Director met with
the Non-Executive Directors to discuss the performance
of the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors met to
discuss the performance of the Chief Executive Officer

Step 4

Step5 MSP s repoert discussed by the Nominations Committee
in its consideration of the re-election of Directors and
reported to the full Board atits mesting in April 2018,

together with a recommendation by MSP

Stepé  Six-monthly reviews of progress against

recommendations in the report

MSP reported favourably against all dmensions to the 2017/18

review with naticeable alignment on strategy and areas of

potential challenges and risk Overall, the Beard functioned

extremely well and in line with first class corporate governance

There were only twoe areas requiring further development,

as follows

e Continuing to maintain focus on strategic, operational and
reputational priorities other than PR19, and

« Amore structured plan for succession planning and talent

development discussions at Neminations Committee and
the Board

Step 1
Briefing and
observation
Step b
Presentation Step 2
to the Board and Face-to-face
consideration Interviews
by Nominations
Committee
Step 4 Step 3
Individual MSP report
meetings with onfindings

Chairman/SID
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Governance

Nominations Committee report
| eadership & Effectiveness

Image removed

“A significant part of the
Committee’s work this year
has been in developing our
talent pipeline with a focus
on the need for diversity.”

Andrew Duff
Chairman of the Nominations Committee

Attendance table

Meetings Max
Member of the Nominations Comrittee attended possible
Andrew Duff {Chairman| 4 4
John Coghlan" 3 4
Dorminigue Reiniche 4 4
Kevin Beeston 4 4
Philip Remnant 4 4
Damne Angela Strank 4 4

[l John Coghlan was unable to attend a Camimittee meeting due to

a bereavement
The members of the Commuittee in 2017/18 were the
Non-Executive Directors of the Board, Only members of the
Committee have the right to attend Committee meetings
Other individuals such as the Chief Executive, members of
senior management, the Director of Human Resources and
external advisers may be invited to attend meetings as and
when appropriate.
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Introduction

As Chairman of the Naminations Committee, | am pleased

to introduce the repart of the Nominatiens Committee which
details the role of the Commuttee The pages that follow provide
additional details on the role of the Committee and the work it
has undertaken during the year

Throughout the year, increased focus continued to be given to

the Group’s succession and contingency planning and diversity
needs Discussion centred on the importance of developing, and
maintaining, a diverse range of perspectives, skills, experiences
and expertise, essential to ensuring our long-term viability and
commercial success Morenformation on our diversity initiatives
can be found 1n the Strategic report on page 40

Other significant parts of the Commuttee’s work this year have
been the evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Owectors
and developing our talent pipeline for Directors and high
performing indmduals below Board level wath a focus on the
need for diversity, The Cornrmittee also considered and approved
the appointment of three Independent Non-Executive Directors to
the Board of Dee Valtey Water Limited

Andrew Duff
Chairman of the Nominations Committee

Nominations Committee responsibilities
The responsibilities of the Nominations Committee include

* reviewing the structure, size and composition {including the
skills, knowledge, experience, avallability and diversity) of
the Board,

reviewing the leadership needs of the Company, both Executive
and Non-Executive, at regular intervals,

reviewing the adequacy of Board and Executive succession
planning in the leng and short term,

ensuring an effectiveness review of the Board, its Committees
and Directors are conducted annually,

recommending to the Board the appointment or reappointment
by shareholders of Directors at the AGM, 1n accordance with
the Code. and

carrying out an annual review of the Cornpany policy on Board
level diversity

The Nominations Cormnmittee Terms of Reference, which were
updated in May 2018, can be found at www severntrent com




Nominations Committee activities

Diversity and succession planning

As highlighted earlier in the report, the Board and Nominations
Committee continue to drive the agenda of diversity across the
Group and are proud of the progress made, especially In respect
of female representaticn on the Board and Executive Committee
fnow at 37 0% and 40% respactivelyl A breakdown by gender

of the number of persons who were Uirecters of the Cempany,
senlor managers and other employees as at 31 March 2018 1s set
out below

The Board also remains focused on promoting broader
diversity, and creating aninclusive culture in line with the
recommendatiens from the Parker and McGregor-5mith
reviews. A diverse organisation benefits from differences in
skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
gender, sexual arientation, religion, belief and age, as well as
culture and personality The Board 1s cammmitted to building
onexisting graduate, apprentice and leadership programmes
te embed inclusivity In our succession planning and talent
development work to strengthen cur talent pipetine, with

an enhanced focus on ensuring appropriate representation
frorn rinority ethnic candidates, as well as other relevant
diverse cohorts

The Board Diversity Policy [the Policy’], which 1s approved
annually by the Board, was updated and approved by the Beard
in October 2017 The objective of the Policy s to develop a
pipeline of diverse high calibre candidates for Board level roles
The Nominations Comrnittee reviews the Board's effectiveness
and composition each year and, in particular, considers the
balance of skills, experience and independence of the Board,

in accordance with the Poticy It considers the benefits of all
aspects of diversity but without compromise as te the calibre

of Directors, when identifying candidates for appointment

The selection of candidates to join the Board wiil continue to be
made based on menit and the individual’s ability to contribute to
the effectiveness of the Board, which n turn will be dependent
on the pool of candidates available To support this, we continue
only to engage wilh exccutive scarch firms who have signed

up o the voluntary Code of Conduct on gender and BAME
diversity and best practice Diversity was a key consideration
for the Commuttee when nominating candidates to the Board of
Dee Valley Water Limited durning the year Throughout the year,
focus also continued to be given to succession and contingency
planning, including diversity needs Succession Planning 15
reviewed annually by the Committee wath discussion centred on
the impoertance of developing and maintaining a diverse range
of perspectives, skills, experiences and expertise, essential

to ensuring our long-term viabitity and commercial success
With great graduate and apprenticeships programmes, as well
as external hires and internal promations, we are keen to make
further progress in identifying, developing and progressing top
talent through the organisation, ensuring succession remans In
line with the Groups strategic needs

Talent development

We conlinue to recognise the importance of developing our
people and as such talent management remains a key topic of
discussion The Group's live year talent plan focuses on building
both technical and leadership capability, and creating talent
pipelines for the future

We currently have a total of 73 graduates in training -

38 places were offered in 2016 and 35 1n 2017, We have

four entry programmes for graduates ~ Business Leadership,
Finance, IS and Engineering Our placements prograrnme

for undergraduates offers a range of surnmer and 12 month
placements across Engineering, Finance and the Visitor
Experience teams, with 21 opportunities filled in 2017.

We currently have 161 apprentices in training In 2017 we
launched four new Apprenticeship programmes within Finance.
Group Commercial, Project Management and Senior Network
Techrician populations This means we now have nine active
Apprenticeship programres, and we expect this toincrease to

12 1 2018, which includes a degree level legal Apprenticeship and

a Higher Apprenticeship in HR

We have been a key partner in the development and
implementation of the new water industry apprenticeships
standards through the Government s Trailblazer intiative

Gender diversity
at 31 March 2018

Graph removed Graph removed Graph removed

~ Male

Graph removed
. Female

Severn Trent Board diversity figures
Tenure (Years)

Graph removed

Male
_Female
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Governance

Nominations Committee report continued
| eadership & Effectiveness

As one of the 13 firms making up the employer group we have
ensured that Severn Trent has been at the forefront of the
development of this new avenue for apprenticeships There are
now two Traiblazer programmes being successfully delivered
across the industry for Water Process Technicians [WPT ] and
Utibites Engineering Techmcian (UET | and we currently offer
both of these Apprenticeship routes in partnership with our

1ts consideration of the re-election of Directors and 1t was also
the subject of a presentation to the Board

As part of the evaluation, full consideration was given to

the number of external positions held by the Non-Executive
Directors. We reviewed Directors ather appointments, including
the ume commitment required for each, as part of the evaluation
exercise The outcome of which 1s as follows

learming provider, the EEF Technology College

Our innavative delivery model for Traithlazer has allowed us to
design a programrme that ensures high quality apprenticeship
traming delivered inyust 24 maonths - sigruficantly faster than
any previous schemes, as elsewhere in the industry this course
would take at least 36 - 48 months for apprentices to complete,
and we are proud to have had the first four water industry
Trailblazer apprentices in the UK to complete the new standard
and gualify through the new assessment model

Evaluation of the Board

The effectiveness of the Beard is reviewed annually and an
independent externally facilitated review of the effectiveness

of the Board 1s conducted every three years and conducted
according to the guidance set outin the Code The Board
therefore conducted an externally facilitated board effectiveness
evaluation this year, the last having taken place in 2015

This year, the Board evaluation was externally facilitated by
Manchester Square Partners with support fraom the Chairman
and Company Secretary The next externally faciitated review s
scheduled for 2021 More information on the Board evaluation
can be found an page 79 of the Governance report

The subsequent report prepared by Manchester Square
Partners was discussed by the Nominations Commuttee in

MNamber of List2d Campery
Apponmonts

as Nor-Exccaive

Diector ircludurg

Sewert T ait Plel

Nurter atbissed Comp.ry
Appoiniments
as Chairmar including

Direcior Seectn Trer Pic

Kevin Beeston 1 1
James Bowling
Jobn Coghlan 1

Andrew Duff 2 o

Ernma FitzGerald - -
[Stepped Down
31 December 2017)

L Garfield

Domirique Rewiche [t}

PRI D

Philip Rernnant 1
Dame Angela Strank 0 1

As a result of this review, the Commuttee did not identify any
instances of averboarding and confirms that allindwidual
Girectors have sufficient time to commit to their appomntment
as a Director of Severn Trent Plc,

The full list of external appointrments held by our Non-Executive
Directors can be found on pages 68 and 69

Progress against 2016/17 Action Plan

The areas identified for further focus and attention in the April 2017 Board Effectiveness Report to the Board were.

Area for further ‘ocus dentified
in 2018/17 nternal review

Progress aganst areas for further focus identified in 201%/18 internal review

Seeking opportunitres to iImprove
the ethnic diversity of the Board

Whilst there are currently no vacancies on the ST Plc and STW Boards, the recruitment
of Dee Valley NEDs gave an opportunity to seek to improve the diversity of the Group's
NED populatian.

Succession planning for the
Executive team

Neil Morrson has only recently taken up the role of HR Director but talent development
and succession planmng will be an area of focus for mm going forward The new role
of Production Manager on STEC also creates less of a big ‘step up’in terms of senior
operational successien

Additional/mare depth of conternt
on regulatory topics in director
inducton matenal

The regulatory section of the induction material and the nduction prograrmme will have
additional face to face meetings with the regulatory team, 3 and 6 months in, following
appointment John Coghlan has aiso kindly agreed 1o help prowide support to any new
Director in this regard

Improved communication of
Commiitee proceedings to
the Board

Committee meeting reports now take place at the beginning of every Board meeting giving
a greater opportunity for non-members to ask questons or seek clarfication.

Adistinct separation of strategy
days from Board meeting as

an opportunity to step back and
discuss, debate and interrogate

The recent strategy day was entirely different in format, offsite and with external speakers,
and recewed very positive feedback from NEDs

Further mformatien 1s avalable within the Board Evaluation section on page 79
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Audit Committee report
Accountability

Image removed

“The Committee continues
to focus on ensuring the
adequate mitigation of risks
faced by the Group.”

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Attendance table

Member of the Meetings Max
Audit Committee attended possible
John Coghlan [Chairman] 4 4
Philip Remnant 3 4
Kevin Beeston 4 4

In addition to the attendance set cut above, Andrew Duff, the
CEQ, the CFO, the Head cf Internal Audit, the Giroup Financial
Controller and the External Auditor normally attend, by imwvitation,
all meetings of the Committee. Other members of senicr
management are also invited to attend as appropnate

The Committee regularly holds private discussions with the Head
of Internal Audit and the External Auditor separately, without
Executive managemant present The Chairman reqularly holds
separate one-to-one meetings with the CFQ, the Head of Internal
Audit and the External Auditor to better understand any issues or
areas for cancern

During 2017/18, the Commuttee held five additional quorale
meetings convened at short notice

Introduction

As Chairman of the Audit Committee, | am pleased to introduce
the report of our role and the work we have undertaken during
the year. The pages that follow provide additional detail on the
activities and discussions of the Committee and provides an
averview of the significant issues the Commuttee assessed and
steps taken to address any 1ssues dentified

The Committee has continued to play a key role in supporting the
Beoard in discharging its oversight responsibilities for the integrity
of the Company’s financial staterents and matters relating to
the Group s system of internal controls and risk management

As such, there is 3 continued focus on ensuring the adequate
mitigation of risks faced by the Group This report provides
additional detail of how we carried out cur risk assessmaent
activities and you can read more about how we 1dentify and
manage risks on pages 57 and 58 of our Strategic report

Other significant parts of the Committee’'s work this year

have included: oversight of the relatienship with cur External
Auditor, including the assessment of its ongoing objectivity

and independence, overseeing the assurance of regulatory
returns made by Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley
Water Limited to Ofwat, oversight of the wholesale charges,
new connections charging, PR17 assurance framework,
customer 0Dl forecast, company moenitoring framewaork and
Water Resource Management Plan for both Severn Trent Water
Linited and Dee Valley Water Lunited.

John Coghlan
Charrman of the Audit Cormmitiee

Audit Committee responsibilities

The respensibilities of the Audit Committee include

» oversight of financial statements and accounting policies;
* review of rsk management and internal controls,

= oversight of Internal and External Audit,

» review of the adequacy of the Group's procedures for
whistleblowing, reparting fraud and other inappropriate
behaviour, including reviewing reports of all allegations
at their meetings,

» review of the Financial Reporting Council [ FRC reporting
requirermnents on Going Concern and Long-Term Viability
Statements, and

» regulatory reporting obligations of cur subsidianies Severn
Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited

The Audit Committee Terms of Reference, which were updated
in March 2018, can be found at www.severntrenl.com
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Governance

Audit Committee report continued
Accountability

Audit Committee activities
A summary of the rmatters considered at each rmeeting 1s set out below.

Mastng Matrers conaidered

May 2017 e Financial results 2016/17
* Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17, mcluting fair, balanced and understandable review
¢ Severn Trent Water Lirited Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17
» Regulatory Annual Performance Report and Annual Regulatory Compliance Staternent far Severn Trent Water Limited
and Dee Valley Water Limnited
+ Regulatory Annual Performance Report assurance, mcluding ODis for Severn Trent Water Lirmited
» Internal control and risk management eftectiveness
s External Audit Deloitte year end final report
« Whistleblowing update

September 2017 e Internal Audit half-year report
* Gifts and Hospitality Update
e External Audit 2017/18 plan and terms of engagement
« External Audit Review of non-audit fecs
¢ Draft Wholesate charges
s Enterprise Risk Management update
» Water Resource Management Plan for Severn Trent Water Lirmited and Dee Valley Water Lirmited
» Assurance Map re-design
s Whistieblowing update
* PR1? Assurance Framework

Novernber 2017 * Interim results
» Externat Audit Delotte half-year repart
* Management Representation letters
¢ Regulatery Company Monitoring Framewark
* Report from the Disclosure Commuttee
= Sevorn Trent Water Limited Customer OD1 Forecast
« Water Resource Management Plan
» Material Ltigation and compliance update
* Whistieblawing update

December 2017 * Dee Valley Water Limited - Water Resources Management Plan
+ Water Resources RCY Allocation for PR19
* New Connections Charging

January 2018 » New Connections Charging

March 2018 ¢ Finance Year end considerations and Long-Term Viabibity Staterment update
* Requlatory Year end considerations, Annual Performance Report and Annual Cormpliance Staternent
» Regulatory WIC5 Compliance Statcment
» External Audit Effectiveness review
« External Audit Non-audit fees policy and review of non-audst fees
* Cornmittee Terms of Reference
s Internal Audit Q4 Update
= Internal Audit Plan 2018/1%
s Enterprise Risk Management update - Draft Principal Risks 2018 for the Annual Report
» Report from the Disclosure Cormmuttee
» Mateniat Litigation and legal compliance update
* Whistleblowing update
» Bribery and fraud prevention and detection
« Assurance Map update
» Accounting pelicies update
» Subsidiary Audit Exernptions

In addition to the matters considered above, the Commitiee reviewed the proposed presentations to analysts in conjunction with the
draft results anncuncements for both the interim and full year results, applying particular attention to the tane of the announcements
and presentations to maintain consistency with the financial statements, In reviewing the financiat statements, the Committee
receives input from the Disclosure Committee, a sub-committee of the Executive Committee which is chaired by the CFQ

In May 2018, the Audit Commitiee also reviewed the cutcome of the process to confirm that the Annual Reporl and Accounts are

fair, balanced and understandable” The Disclosure Committee undertook a detailed review of the Annual Report and Accounts prior
to making a recommendation to the Board that it could make the fair, balanced and understandable statements contained in the
Directors Responsibilities Staterment on page 139
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Significant financial statement reporting issues

The Commuittee looked carefully at those aspects of the financial statements which required significant accounting judgements or
where there was estimation uncertainty. These areas are explained in note 4 of the financial statements on page 152

The Cemmittee receives detailed reports from both the CFG and the External Auditor on these areas and on any other matters

which they believe shauld be drawn to the attention of the Committee The Commuttee also reviews the draft of the External Auditor s
report on the financial statements, with particular reference to those matters reported as carrying risks of matenal misstaternant,
The Committee discusses the range of possible treatments both with management and with the Cxternal Auditor and satisfies itself
that the judgements made by management are robust and should be supported. The sigruficant 1ssues that the Commuttee considered

in 2017/18 were

Issue

How the issue was addressed by the Committee

Gaing concern basis for the hrancia. statermnents and lunyg -term
wiability staterment

The Comrmuittee reviewed and challenged the evidence and assumptions underpinning
the use of the going concern assumption in preparing the accounts and in making the
staternents in the Strategic report on going concern and long-term viability

Determmation of the provision for impairment of trade roceivables
inSevern Trent Water Limited

At 31 March 2018, the provision in Severn Trent Water Limited s
financial statemenls was £124 5 mi uen and the charge for the
yearwas £25 0 ~iilion

Severn Trent Water Limited has a statutory obligation to continue
to0 supply water and waste waier services to custorners even
when thair bills are unpaid This increases tne risk of bad debts
In add tion it has 3 large and diver se custeme - base which
requires impairments aganst trade recevab'es to be assessed
on a systemalicbas s

The Committee chatlenged the changes made to the methodolagy for calculating the
provision during the year and critically appraised management s explanations for
these changes

The Cormnmittee cansidered the werk perfarmed by the Auditor and the conclusions
they reached regarding the adequacy of the provision

The Committee daterrmined that no adjus’ment to the amounts recerded was
requirec

Raveruc recognition in relation to the estimation of metered
revenue fram the new non-household retaill market in Sovern
Trent Water _imited

Inthe year ended 31 March 2018, Scvern Trent Water Larmited
recognised £371 4 million inreven.e from sa-es to retailers
inthe new non-houschold retait market

On 1 Aprit 2017, the non-houschald retail market in England opened
to competition This enabled ail non-househoid customers to
chaose their water and waste water supplier although wholesale
services remained with the incumbent cormnpanies Market Operator
Services Lirmited { MOSL) was established ta operate the market
and to provide data to wholesalers and retarlers to allow settlement
between market participants to take place MOSL provides data for
monithly settlement periads based on actual mcter readings and
cstimations extrapolated from the last known meter read Thisis
an iter ative process with subsequent settlement runs including
mare actuak readings for the same period Empircal ohservations
have shown that metered consurnption is consistently higher than
the previous estimates

noday~vhawe g
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The Commitles does not consider that there 15 a sign.ficant risk of a mater:al
adjustmert in respecl of this estimate in the next linancal year because the
estimated armount 15 not materal Nevertheless, the Committee considered this to
bez aignitcant ssue because the systems and processes ara new and the ameunts
recogniscd arc subject to mapagement judgement

The Committee reviewed the process for calculating the metered revenue estimate
from nen-housebold retaiters and considered the reasonableness of the estimates
in the light of ernerging trends and the expertence of other market participants

The Committee scrutinised management s evidence suppo Ling ils judgemens
and exarmned the data from the underlying evidence The Commuttee discussed
the Auditor s work and ther conclusiens

The Committee determined that the approach taken by management was
reasonable and that no adjustment was required to the amo. nts recognised
in the inancial statements

The proposed classificaion o costs belween operating expendilure
and capital expenditure in Severn Trent Water Limited

Severn Tren” Water Limired has a sigr tcant captal programme
that includes projects made Jp af 3 cormbination of expenditure
and activities some of which are recognised as property, plant and
egupment and some of which are recogrised a5 operating costs
For most of the expenditure this distinction 1s clear but there ss an
ctemert where subjective judgements are reguired to determine
the appropriate accounting treatmenrt

The Cornmittee considersd the application of the Group's accounting pol-cies in
retaticn to capital expenditure during the year

The Committee enquired of management whether the policies had been applied
consistently from vear to year and sought explanation for the increase in amounts
capitalised The Comrmittee considered the results of the Auditor s wark and
discussed the conclusions with the Auditor

The Comrmittee determined that no ad,ustment tn the amounts recorded
was required
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Audit Committee report continued
Accountability

Issue Hew the issue was addressed by the Committee ,
Deterrmnation of the amount of the Group s retirerment benefit The Committee scrutimised the assumptions undertying the valuation of the
obligations. obligations, neting and proteng assumptions that were not in ine with their

expectations The Commuttee considered whethor the assumptions taken
as a whole were appropriate, taking account the work of the Auditor and the
benchmark information provided by them

AL 37 March 2018, net retirement benefit obligations amouni ng to
€519 8 rullion were recognised

The net ebligation recogrised on the balance sheet s the difference
between the fairvalue of the schemes” assets at the balance sheet
date and tne present value of the benefits expected to be paid ta
members of the schemes This requires assumptions to be made
regarding expected age of retirement and longewvity of members,
futurenflation rates and increases to benehits Itrs also necessary
to deterrnine an appropriate discount rate to calculate the present
value of the estimated gross ocbligations Management takes advice
from externat gualified actuares wha parform the calculation

of the present value of the benefits based on 'he assumptions

set by management

The Commuittee considered that the assumptions were reasonable and that
no zdjusiment was required La the draft iinancial statements

For all of the malters described above the Commillee concluded that the lreatment adopled in the Group financial stalemenls
was appropriate

Internal control over financial reporting
The Group has established procedures for exeraising control and managing rsk in relation to financial reporting and preparation
of conseclidated financial statements including

* the farmulation and cormmunrcation of Group accounting policias which are regularly updated for developments in IFRS and other
reporting reguirements,

specification of a set of financial controls that all of the Group’s operating businesses are required to implement as a mtnimum,

arange of system, transactional and managernent oversight cantrols ermbedded into our financial processes,
« deployrment of a group-wide consalidation system with contrels to restrict access and maintain integrity of data,

recruitment training and development of appropriately gualified and experienced financral reporting personnel,
» aversight by the Disclosure Commuttee of the Graup's campliance with its disclosure abligations, and
» monthly reviews by the Board of financial reports from the Group's operating businesses.

Effactiveness of the Audit Committee

The Committee’s performance was considered and reviewed as part of the annual review of the Board and its Committees,
details of which can be found on page 79

The Board s satrshied that the Commuittee meinbers bring a wide range and depth of financal and comimercial experience across
varous industries and that all mernber s have cornpetence relevant to regulated and/or utliies businesses as well as signiticant
recent and relevant financial experience.

internal and External Audit

Internal Audit and internal controls

Internal Audit 1s an independent assurance function available to the Board, Audit Committee and all levels of management

The Internal Audit function is supported by a co-sourcing partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers The arrangement is reviewed anpually

and the Comrmittee believes this structure adds vatue, through greater access to specific areas of expertise, increased abiity to

scale up operations, and the ability to challenge management independently. Co-source specialists will continue to bring expertise .
to support the team and delivery of the audit plan where relevant. During the year, and following a meeting with the Chairman of the

Audit Committee, a new Head of Internal Audit was appointed. This appointment complemented planned changes to the Internal Audrt

teamn to help deliver third line assurance for PR1% and other regulatory activities, without compromusing the delivery of the 2018/19

audit plan '
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The role of Internal Audit 1s to provide assurance that the Group s
risk managerment and internal control systems are well designed
and operate effectively and that any corrective action is taken in
atirely manner Each year, Internal Audit develops an annual
risk-based audit plan for approval by the Audit Cornmttee and
Performance Dashboards tc enable onward menitering of the
plans execution The Audit Committee challenges the Audit
plan, specifically whether the key risk areas identified as part

of the Enterprise Risk Managernent process are being audited
with appropriate frequency and depth, and alse by bringing

an external view of risks the Cormpany may be exposed to

The Performance Dashboards summarise the performance of
the Internal Audit function over the year agamst key measures
and are reviewed by the Committee twice a year Following the
completion of each planned audit, the Internal Audit function
seeks feedback from management which 1s reported through
the Performance Dashboards and assessed in turn by the Audit
Committee twice a year, The effectiveness of the controls over
financial reporting 1s also ronitor ed by the Audit Comimittee,
which receives regular reports of the testing conducted by the
External Auditor

The Audit Commitiee I1s confident that, where any failings aor
weaknesses are identibied in the course of 1ts review of internal
control systemns, management puts in place robust actions to
address these on a imely basis An internal control systern can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatermnent or loss, as it 1s designed to manage
rather than elminate the risk of farfure to achieve business
objectives. To ensure continued efficiency. an external review of
the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function will be carried out
in October 2018

External Auditor

Annually, the Committee reviews the External Auditor’s audit
plan and reviews and assesses information provided by them
confirming Lher independence and cbjectivity within the

context of applicable regulatory requirements and prefessional
standards Deloitte contributes a further independent perspective
on certain aspects of the Company’s financial control systems
ansing from its work, and reports both to the Board and the
Audit Committee

Following a formal tender process in 2015/16, Deloitte LLP were
reappointed as Auditer at the 2816 AGM. The senior statutory
Audrtor, Kari Hale, has overseen the audit of the Severn Trent
Group since 2015/16 The Company intends to put the External
Audit out to tender at least as often as 1s required by applicable
law, rules, regulations and best practice in line with the
Competition and Markets Autherty and EU requirements for
mandatary tendering and rotation of the audit firm Under current
regulations the External Audit must be put out to tender by 2025
and Deloitte will not be able to participate The Company has
cornplied with the provisions of the CMA Audit Order during the
linancial year.

The Committee considers the effectiveness of the External
Auditor everyyear and, further to Deloitte’s reappomntrment,

a full effectiveness review was conducted during this year

The review involved assessment of the Auditor by the Committee
and key Executives and evaluation of whether the Auditor meets
minimum standards of qualification, independence, expertise,
effectiveness and communication

Based on our consideration of the responses to the effectiveness
review the Committee reimmams satistied with the efficiency and
effectiveness of the audit

Non-audit fees

The Company has approved a formal policy on the provision of
non-audit services aimed at safeguarding and supporting the
independence and objectivity of the External Auditor The palicy
sets out the approach to be taken by the Group when using the
services of the Externat Auditor, Including requiring that certain
services provided by the External Auditor are pre-approved by
the Committee or its Chairman and separately sets cut those
nan-audit services which are prohibited, since the independence
of the External Auditor could be threatened

The process for approving all non-audit werk provided by our
Auditor 1s ovarseen by the Committee in order to safequard the
objectiaty and independence of the Auditor Prior 1o approval,
cansideration is given to whether 1t s in the interests of the
Company that the services are purchased from Deleitte rather
than another supplier Where Deloitte have been chosen, this
IS as a result of their detailed knowledge of our business and
understanding of our iIndustry as well as demonstrating that
they have the necessary expertise and capability to undertake
the work cost-effectively

The policy was rewised tn early 2016, ahead of new EU requlations
corning Into force in June 2014, to provide that non-audit fees

and independence of our Auditor would continue to be subject to
ongoing review in Light of thase rules The current policy, which
was reviewed by the Cornmittee during the year, continues to
comnply with the EU regulations and requires approval by the
Cornmittee or its Charrrnan if a nan-audit service provided by the
Auditor1s expected to cost more than £100,000 The policy alse
prohibits aggregate fees from non-audit services In excess of
70% of the audit fee for the year

Non-audit services where the External Auditor may be used
include audit-related services required by statute or regulation,
services related to fraud, Corporate Responsibility repert reviews
and regulatory support
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Governance

Audit Committee report continued
Accountability

During the year, Deloitte received £558,000 in fees for wark relating to the audit services they provide to the Group Non-audtt related
work undertaken by Deloitte amounted to fees of £201,000 this year, which amounts to 36% of the total audit fees paid to them
Fees paid 1o Deloitte are set outin note 7 of the financial staternents on page 157, but details of signibicant non-audit work underiaken

are set out below

Natuse o sorwre Reasor for Dolmite s appot iment Fees (L 0D}

Audit related assurance services \

Interim revicw Thiswork s akin to an auditand is expected to be performed by the £54 I
External Auditor The same safeguards that apply to the Extornal Audit |
also apply to this work

Assurance of regulatory returns Audit of sections 1 and 2 of Dee Valley Water Limited s and Severn Trent £6h .
Water Limited’s Annual Performance Reports is closely related to the '
External Auditor’s statutory audit work and the two assignments are
performed in parallel

Reporung under Group financing docurnents These documents require reports from the Auditor £49

Subtotal £168

Other assurance services

Assurance in connection with regulatory Agreed-upon procedures relating to scction 4 of Dee Valley Water Limited's £15

reports to Ohwat and Severn Trent Water Limited s Annual Performance Reports and Severn
Trent Water Lirited s wholesale scheme of charges

Other assurance £18

Subtotal £33

Total 2017/18 non-audit fees £201

In approving these non-audit fees, the Commitiee considered the
overall ratio of non-zudit fees to audit fees and, given the scope
of work, considered that Deleitte was best placed to perform
these services

Regulated subsidiaries

The regulated activities carned out by Severn Trent Water Limited
and Dee Valley Water Limited also require annual reporting
submissions te Ofwat which are reviewed by the Committee

They include an annual submission on their regulatory
performance and obligations known as the Annual Performance
Report, together wath a Compliance Statement and a staternent
to underpin the customer charges made by each subsidiary

In Novemnber 2017, the Committee reviewed the staterment of
risks, strengths and weaknesses and draft assurance plans for
Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited, which
15 a requiremnent of Ofwat’s Company Monitoring Framewaork
These documents set out the process, timeline and assurance
framework in place for information published for customers and
other stakeholders, including the Annual Performance Repart

For each of Severn Trent Water Lirmnited and Dee Valley Water
Liruted, Delaitte provides an audit optruan an the regulatory
financial reporting and price control segmentation sections of
the respective Annual Performance Reports, and assurance

of certan aspects of addtional regulatory information that 1s
included The respective Annual Performance Reports also
provide an overall picture of performance, covering many
aspects which are not financial including performance against
commuitments and ODIs for each of Severn Trent Water Limited
and Oee Valley Water Limited, Both Severn Trent Water Limited
and Dee Valley Water Limited appoint iIndependent engineering
consultants, Jacobs and Black & Veatch respectively, to report
and provide assurance on those aspects The Committee
receives reports from Jacobs and Deloitte on their work for
Severn Trent Water Limited, and Black & Veatch and Deloitte for
Dee Valley Water Limited, as part of its review of the respective
Annual Performance Reports.
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Risk management

The Audit Committee reviews the processes for, and cutputs '
fromn, the Group's Enterprise Risk Management { ERM | process,
through which our principal risks and retated controls are
dentified, The Cormmittee also reviews the effecliveness of the
risk management system on behalf of the Board and keeps under
review ways In which to enhance the control and assurance
arrangements The Committee receves half-yearly reports from
the Head of Risk detalling the significant risks and uncertainties
faced by the Group, an assessment of the effectiveness of
controls over each of those nisks and an action plan toimpraove
controls where this has been assessed as necessary.

To further enhance the clanty of reporting and insight that can

be gamed frorn this ERM mformation nisk flightpaths’ are now ‘
reported to the Audit Commuttee. The flightpaths graphically
demonstrate the level of risk the Group faces and the timeline
for the key risk mitigation steps to manage the risk to the target
position. This builds upon the established reporting dashboard
for the Group's significant risks. The flghtpaths and the reporting
dashbeard help to facilitate a moere thorough review of the

target risk positions considering risk appetite and whether
improvernent actions to achieve these are on 1arget with the
correct priorttisation in place

The Board confirms that procedures prowiding an ongoing
pracess for identifying, evaluating and ranaging the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group have beer 1n place
for the year to 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this report,
which 1s In accordance with the Code and Gurdance on Risk
Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and
Business Reporting September 2014 [the ‘Guidance] Arisk
identification and horizon scanning update was provided to the
Board in March 2018 During its review of risk management
during the year, the Board explicitly considered the target
pesition for significant risks and whether target risk positions
are appropriate and confirmed that suitable trescales had been
agreed for reaching them



Risk management governance process
The Group's risk management governance process 1s based on the three lines of defence model and 1s scrutinised by the Audit
Committee, through delegated authority from the Severn Trent Ple Board

Inform
and
improve

Policy oversight
GAA | Doing the Right Thing | Group policies

Risk tolerance Risk appetite

BOARD
Delegated authority

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Third line of defence - Internal Audit

Independent review and oversight by Internal Audit, which independently
evaluates the adequacy and sttectiveness of the Group s risk management
control and governance processes

Second line of defence - management/ERM team

Busingss units are monitored by managerrent and the ERM teamn which
monitors and provide assurance, on compliance with Group policies and
procedures The ERMtcam reports to the Audit Committee and Board on
the ERM process, principal risks and related controls

First line of defence - line management/risk champions

Line management accountability for compliance with Group policies, Doing
the Right Thing and GAA Risk champions within each business unitidentify,
collate and report risk data to the ERM team

OVERSIGHT
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Report
ERM reports

Internal Audit
Whistleblowing
Bribery and fraud

Inform
and
prioritise
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Governance

Treasury Committee report
Accountability

Image removed

“The Committee has focused

on the ensuring that the Group
has sufficient ongoing liquidity
to meet the committed funding
requirements of its regulated
and non-regulated businesses,
provided through a sustainable,
resilient financial structure”.

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Treasury Commiuttee

Attendance table

Member of the Meetings Max
Treasury Committes attended possible
John Ceghlan 5 b
Philip Remnant 6 b
James Bowling 6 6

The members of the Committee in 2017/18 are shown above
The Group Treasurer 15 also a member of the Committee, but not
a member of the Board of Directors,

The Treasury Committee Terms of Reference were updated in
March 2018 and can be found at www severntrent com

Only members of the Committee have the right to attend
Committee meetings In addition to the attendance set out above,
Andrew Duff, Kevin Beeston, the Group Commercial Director and
the Group Financiat Controller normally attend, by invitation, atl
meetings of the Comrmittee Other individuals may be invited to
attend meetings as and when appropriate

To ensure that the Company’s treasury practices are in line with
best practice. the Commuttee has access to advice from advisers
Evercore are independent advisers ta the Commuttee, with no
other connection to the Company, and provide regular market
updates to the Cemmitiee The Commitiee 1s satishied thal the
advice It recewves 1s objective and independent.

During 2G17/18, the Committee held one additional guarate
meeting convened at short notice
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Introduction

As Chairman of the Treasury Committee, I arn pleased to
introduce this report which details the role of the Comrittee and
the impertant work it has undertaken during the year

The Committee has continued to play a key role In supporting the
Board in monttoring performance against the Group's approved
treasury policy and annual treasury plan, reviewing in detail the
Group’s funding requirements and providing oversight of the
Group's key financing risks and opportunities.

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Treasury Committee

Treasury Committee Responsibilities
The responsibilities of the Treasury Committee include

* oversight of treasury activities In implementing approved
treasury policies,

* oversight of interest rate and inflation risk management
strategies In particular, the monitoring of the impact
of changes in forecast interest rates and nflation on
Group earnings,

oversight of the Group’s funding strategy,

monitering the Group's exposure to financial institution
credit risk;

L

monitoring the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk,

monitoring the Group's exposure to financial Uguidity risk,

recewing updates on general financial market moverments, and

oversight of treasury internal controls.

Key areas of Focus in 2017/18

The Committee provides Board oversight of the Group’s key
financing risks and opportunities,

Some key areas of discussion for the Committee during

2017118 included

* the impact of prevailing econamic conditions on the accurate
forecasting of long-term interest rates and associated mnterest
rale and inflation nisk management policy,

the impact of Brexit on existing and future sources of funding
forthe Group's businesses,

the introduction of CPI-linked debt into the Group s debt mix,
analysis of Ofwat’s propesed PR19 cost of debt methedology,
including an early view of the impacts of a number of scenarics
on the Company’s credit metrics going forward, and

* the review of the Group's European Medium Term Note
Programme and approval for bonds to be 1ssued pursuant
to that Programme during the year,




Governance

Corporate Responsibility Committee report

Stakeholder Engagement

Image removed

“Acting in a socially and
environmentally responsible
manner is embedded in our
Group strategy, and this year,
we are reporting our performance
against our CR Framework
as part of our annual Group
performance reporting”.

Dame Angela Strank
Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility Committee

Attendance table

Member of the Meetings Max
Corperate Responsibility Committee attended possible
Dame Angela Strank [Chairman] 3 3
Andrew Duff 2 3
Dominigue Reiniche 3 3
Liv Garfield 3 3

In addition to the attendance set out above, the Company
Secretary normally attends, by invitation, all meetings of the
Comrrittee Other members of senior management, including
the Head of Internal Audit, and subject matter experts are also
nvited to attend as appropriate

Introduction

As Chairman of the Corporate Respansibiity [ CR'l Commutiee,

| am pleased to introduce this report which details the role

of the Commmittee and the important wark 1t has undertaken
during the year The Cornrmittee has continued to play a key role
in supporting the Board, monitering performance against our
Corporate Responsihibty Framework, reviewing in detall our CR
comrutments including several O0Is and providing an oversight
of the Group’s key non-financial risks and oppor tunities.

Dame Angela Strank
Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility Committee

Corporate Responsibility Committee
responsibilities

The respensibilities of the Corporate Responsibility
Committee include

» development of the Corporate Respensibility Framework
and metrics,

regularly recewing and reviewing reports on progress against
our Corporate Respensibility Framewaork,

= consideration of our Code of Conduct and associated Group
policies for recommendation to the Board Particular focus
includes the provision of a healthy and safe working
environment for employees and contractors, human
rights (including Modern Slavery] and employee diversity
and mclusion,

» review of our environmental performance standards and
commitments, and

* the promotion of socially responsible values and standards
that relate to the social and economic cormmunity in which
the Company operates,

The Corporate Responsibility Commuttee Terms of
Reference, which were updated in Aprit 2018, can be found at
www severntrent com

Our Corporate Responsibility Framework

QOur Corporate Responsibility Framework 1s ambitious, broad
ranging and underpinned by stretching targets, to ensure we are
delivering the commitrnents expected of a leading socally and
environmentally responsible business Acting in a respensible
manner Is integral to supporting our purpose of serving our
communities and customers, building a lasting water legacy
and achieving our vision to be the most trusted water company
by 2020

We hold ourselves to account against our CR Framework and
agreed metrics through an effective performance management
systern Our CR performance 1s embedded within the
organisation, with ODls embedded in the large majority of our
CR metrics, demonstrating we are focusing on1ssues of uprmost
importance to our customers

Performance against the CR Framework s reported on a
fuarterly basis to the Committee, and externally cn an annuzsl
basis through our Annual Report and Accounts, through

our website and through selected envirenmental, social and
governance indices Our employees reward is diractly inked
to our CR performance, with customer U0ls, health and safety
and our key CR metrics contributing to the bonus which our
employees receive We believe that by focusing on the 1ssues
most iImportant to our custorners, our CR Framewark has the
right focus, ang we are proud that we have again been accredited
by FTSE4Geod
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Governance

Corporate Responsibility Committee report continued

Stakeholder Engagement

Key areas of focus for 2017/18

The Commttee provides Board oversight of our CR strategy and
our perfermance against our CR Framework The Committee
regularly reviews reputational risks, non-financial Internal Audit
reports, whistleblowing atlegations and reviews In detait key
topics against our CR Framework Some key areas of discussion
and review during 2017/18 included

* Our goal zero mind-set for serious pollutions, as a key indicator
of our environmental leadership Reviewing our performance
and plan for continuous iImprovement

Our ambntion to make our region the most water efficient in the
UK Reviewing progress against cur commitment to ermpower
our customers to save 25 million litres a day (Mid] and future
challenges we need to consider.

Detvering our ambition for cur vulnerable customers
Reviewing performance against our commitrent to suppart
50,000 customers who struggle to pay their bill and customer
resealch inta developing our next five year plan to ensure we
lead at supporting custemers in vulnerable circumstances,
both in terms of accessibility and service

» Our approach to catchrent management and taking a
catchment based approach Reviewing our performance
against our AMP6 catchment ambitions and demonstrating
the benefits of developing a vision for catchments across the
Severn Trent region in collabaration with farmers

Our zero tolerance appreach to modern slavery and our plans
to take all reasonable efforts 1o eradicate modern slavery
within both our busiess and our supply chain

* Qur approach to whistleblowing Reviewing the effectiveness of
our whistleblowing procedures to ensure we provide adequate
support for bath the whistleblower and training for the
investigating managers.

Ambition One
We will make our region the most
water efficient in the UK

Corporate Responsibility Committee activities
A summary of some of the matters considered at each meeting
Is set out below

July 2017

« Quarterly Carporate Responsibility performance report

* Thedentification and management of political risk

* Dernonstrating envirocnmental leadership - a Deep Dive on
‘Pollution Performance

* Any-Stavery and Hurnan Trafficking Statement 2017 Update

» Whistleblowing Report

November 2017

» Quarterly Corporate Responsibility performance repert

» Ceep Dive Water Efficiency

» Deep Dive Help if you struggle

« Whistleblowing Report |
January 2018 I
» Corporate Responsibility Update 2018 '

* Deep Dive Catchment Management and the Catchment
Based Approach

» Deep Dive Supporting our Colleagues Mental Wellbeing

* Review of Whistleblowing policy and procedures

+ Whistleblowing Report

April 2018

« Quarterly Corporate Responsibility performance report

s Deep Dive Cornmunity Champions - employee volunteering
* Internal Audit aligned with CR Framework

* Whistleblowing Report

* Anti-Slavery and Human Irafficking Statement 2018 - Update

Ambition Two
We will play a leading role to help make
our region’s rivers even healthier

Values

1
We put our customers first

We are passionate

3
We act with integrity

about what we do

4
We protect our environment
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5

We are inspired to create
an awesome company




Human rights

We are committed to protecting the human nghts of our
employees and cantractors as we have clearly set cut in our Code
of Conduct, Doing the Right Thing” We have a responsibility to
understand our potential impact on human nghts and to mitigate
or eliminate any potentially negative iImpacts Whilst nothaving a
specific human rights policy, we have Group policies on Human
Resources, Antl Bribery and Anti-Fraud, Whistleblowing [ Speak
Up'tand Procurement These policies are, in turn, supported by

a broader range of policies to suppart key human rights.

Prevention of child labour and forced labour

We will not condone the use of child labeur and forced tabour
under any circumstances Our highest risk is through our
supply chain Therefore we work with our suppliers to ensure
they operate to the sarne standards we set ourselves, and we
have also been working closely with our suppliers to ensure
they understand the risks involved in their own supply chains
All suppliers are required to sign up and operate in Line with our
Code of Conduct, which clearly states cur zero tolerance, and 1s
built into our procurement tender process as part of the pre-
qualification questionnaire termplate. We encourage alt suppliers,
irrespective of turnaver, to make a madern slavery and human
trafficking staterment that they do not toterate modern slavery
and human trafficking in their businesses

Freedom of association and collective
bargaining

We recognise the night of all employees to Freedom of
Association and Colleciive Bargaining We seek to promote
co-operation between employees, cur management team and
recognised trade unions We meet with our trade unions on a
quarterly basis at the Company forum and see mutual benefit
in sharing information with our colleagues and seeking their
feedback and suggestions We believe this fosters a cornmon
understanding of business needs and helps to deliver joint
solutions aimed at making our business successful We also
believe that the Company forum provides a suitable epporturity
for engagement with the whole workforce to ensure workforce
views are taken into account.

Whistleblowing

All Severn Trent employees are encouraged to raise concerns at
work in the first instance through their ine manager, or senier
management, however, we recogruse that employees may find
this difficult under certain arcurnstances, If this rmight be the
case, employees are encouraged to use our confidential and
independent whistleblowing helpline or emall service, operated
by Safecall, an independeant campany that specialises in handling
concerns at work The service 1s available internationally and
Safecall provides a translation service, allowing any employee
to access it, wherever they are in the world All investigations
are carried out independently of direct line management and
the findings are reported directly through to the Audit and CR
Committees This year we reviewed the effectiveness of our
whistieblowing procedures to ensure we offer suitable support
ta both the whistleblowers and also the investigating managers

‘Doing The Right Thing - The Severn Trent Way’

Every day our employees have to make choices about what they
do and how they do it Most of the time it is clear what the night
thing to do 15, whether 1t 1s about doing what 1s safe, daing the
right thing for cur custorners, doing what 1s right ethically and
what is night legally But there are always going to be times when
the situation 1sn't completely clear, and that's where our Code of
Conduct Doing the Right Thing cornes in [t details the values
we work by and explains who we are, what we stand for and how
we work [t also tells our customers, investors and business
partners that they can trust and rely en us. These principles apply
to everyone in the Group, no matter where in the world they are
based ar what they do It clearly sets out the standards we need
to follow in our day-to-day activities This remains an essential
part of our employee Induction and last year we introduced an
e-learning module for all employees to ensure they under stand
their personal responsibilities

Prevention and detection of bribery
and corruption

Our Group financial crime policy prohibits bribery, corruption
and fraud in all cur business dealings, regardless of the country
or culture within which we work This year we have also updated
our policy to take Into account the new tax evasion offences
Employees identified as high risk, through a risk review for all
Group employees, are required to undertake an online training
module and test to ensure awareness of and compliance with
anti-bribery and corruption The Audit Cornmittee carries out an
annual review of our systems and controls to detect and prevent
bribery and corruption

Responsible business practices are an integral part of our
business strategy and so this year, rather than having a
separate CR Report within our Annual Report and Accounts,
we have integrated our performance throughout the report
to reflect the importance of its embedded nature.
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Governance

Investor relations
Stakeholder Engagement

Primary investor events

May 2017 London Roadshow

May 2017 Edinburgh Roadshow

May 2017 US Roadshow

June 2017 Geneva & Zurich Roadshow

June 2017 BAML Utiliies & Renewables Conference
June 2017 Exane European CEOQ Conference

June 2017 RBC Reverse Roadshow

July 2017 Scott Harris Roadshow

Septermber 2017 Investor Site Visit

September 2017 Citi Reverse Roadshow

September 2017 Morgan Stanley Power and Utility Surmmit
September 2017 Bernstein Strategic Decisions Conference
November 2017 London Readshow

November 2017 US/Canada Roadshow

November 2017 Edinburgh Roadshow

Novernber 2017 Geneva Roadshow o
January 2018 Citi European Utiliies Cenference
February 2018 London Roadshow -
March 2018 US Roadshow

Institutional shareholders and analysts

The Board recognises the impartance of representing and
promoting the interests of 1ts shareholders and that it1s
accountable to shareholders for the performance and activities
of the Company Various mechanisms have been put in place to
ensure it remans In touch with key activities and developmenis,
including
s monthly update reperts on the key shareholder engagement
activities carried out by the Executive Committee and the
Investor Relations team,

s amonthly repert of our shareholder register, outlining the
significant buyers and sellers of Severn Trent Plc shares; and

¢ regular summaries of sector research notes, allowing the
Board to understand the key opinions being communicated
to investors by sell-side analysts

Retail shareholder engagement strategy

The Beard has an active sharehaclder engagement strategy,
the main elereants of whiciy are set out below

The Annual Report and Accounts is the principal means of
communicating with shareholders The Group has adepted
g-communications as an alternative method of sending company
information Following a consuttation with shareholders in March
2017, a significant majority of sharehclders, 85% elact to view
and download the Annual Report online, whilst 15% continue to
recewve a hard copy. The next consultation will take place in 2019

Ourwebsite contains an archive of Annual Reports together with
other inforrmation relevant to nvestors, including comprehensive
share price nformation, financial results, Company news and a
financial calendar, The Company offers a Dividend Reinvestment
Plan [DRIP’), details of which are available on our website and
the website of Equiniti, our registrar
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Additional investor engagernent

Presentations are made to shareholders and city analysts
following the release of the half-year and full-year results
Furthermore, the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer
regularly meet shareholders during the year

The Chairman and Senior Independent Director also offer to meet
with our largest shareholders without the kExecutive Directors
once every year and are available to meet with investors at any
other time upon request

In line with the Cade, we recognise that the Beard has overall
respensibility for ensuring that & satisfactery dialogue with
shareholders takes place, The Chairman, Chief Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer report shareholder views on Severn Trent
o the Board at least quarierly

A clear Investor Relations strategy has been documented

and agreed by the Beoard. This sets out the Investor Relations
team’s approach te identification of, and engagement wath, the
Company's shareholders, sell-side analysts and debt investors

2017/18 engagement

During 2017/18, the key topics for our investors have been a
cambination of company specific, performance-orientated
factors and broader regulatory and political factars

At a cornpany level, conversations with our investors have largely
focused on our performance against the three key regulatory
outperformance levers of customer Outcorne Delivery Incentives
(0DIs), Tetex and financing In particular, questions have been
targetad on how the outperformance to date has been achieved,
whal areas have received specific atlention and what scope there
1s for further improvement Investors have also been interested
in oppertunities for further growth in our regulatory capital

value [ RCV'], the performance of our non-regulated business,

in particular our renewable energy activities, and the potential for
further merger and acquisition activity in the sector We are also
seeing an increased level of interest in our approach to Corporate
Social Responsibility

Broader factors impacting Severn Trent and the water sector
have played & more significant part in investor conversations thrs
year. [n particular, the increased requlatery news flow relating

to PR19 [the price review process which will set prices for AMPY,
the regutatory period for 2020-25] and the inclusion in the
Labour Party’s 2017 election manifesto of a policy to renationalise
certain sectors, including the water sector, have dorminated
recent conversations

Regarding PR19, there were two key announcernents from Ofwat,
in July and December 2017, i which it set out its methedology
that helped shape the regulatory frarmework for AMP7 and gave
clear guidance on how companies can outperform The focus
from investors has been on how these changes will impact
Severn Trent and how well the Company 1s positioned to henefit
from the sharpened incentive regime.

The renationzalisation debate has been at the forefront of
investors’ minds since the general election in June 2017

In particular, they have sought to understand the Lkelihood of
it happening, should the Labour Party win the next general
election, and what the success stery of the industry has been
since privatisation



Looking ahead to 2018/19

We have already established a structured programme of investor
engagement for 2018/19, incorparating roadshows to many of the
key locations where cur shareholder base are located, including
London, Edinburgh and North America We have also confirmed
attendance at a number of industry conferences

We expect the PR17 process to be the key therne for investors
throughout 2018/19, wath several key milestones in the process

Tax Strategy

We are committed to managing our tax affairs in a respansible
manner This means paying the right amount of tax at the right
time in compliance with UK tax rules and acting in accordance
with the values set out In our Corporate Responsibility
Framework References to tax include taxes that we incur
[corporation tax, business rates, employer’s NIC, VAT and
various environmental taxes] as well as taxes that we administer
and collect on HMRC's behal! [PAYE and employee’s NiCl

Our approach to tax

Our approach to tax s overseen by the Severn Trent Plc Board
and is governed by the following key principles

+ We will manage ourtax affairs responsibly, in a manner
censistent with our vision to be the most trusted water
company by 2020,

* We will not undertake aggressive tax planning
or any plariring not otherwise in support of
business requirements,

We will make use of widely claimed incentives that
Government has chosen to make avallable to encourage
Investment, and

« We will maintain an open, transparent and collaborative
relationship with HMRC consistent wath maintaiming our
good working relationship

The effective management of our tax affairs 1s 1n the best
interests of customers as it helps to keep our bills as low
as possible

Tax Governance

Responsibility for tax governance sits with the Chief Financiat
Cfficer, with oversight from the Board and Audit Committee
and day-to-day support from a team of qualified in-house

tax professionals

In accordance with Group nsk management preocedures,
tax risks are recorded and monitared throughout the year
If 2 material uncertainty s identified, external advice may
be sought te ensure that our interpretation of the relevant
UK tax rules is appropriate We rmay also seek to resolve
an uncerlam tax position directly with HMRC before a tax
returnis fited, in accordance with HMRC s framework for
co-operative compliance

Any significant tax nisk 1s reported to, and aver seen by,
the Group s Audit Commitlee, who also recewve tax status
updates as part of the intenim and year end financial
reporting pregrammes

of being reached, including the subrmission of company business

plans to Ofwat in September 2018 and the initial assessment of
business plans by Ofwat in January 2019 The dialogue with our
shareholders on the risk of renationalisation will be maintained
At a company level, the focus will Ukely remain on our ability to
outperform the regulatory incentive machanisms of custorner
0ODls, Totex and financing

Relationship with HMRC

In maintaining a goad werking relationship with HMRC, we
seek to ensure that HMRC are kept up to date with business
developments, including any commerciat transactions with
potentially significan: tax implications Where queries anise,
these are managed on the basis cf full disclosure We will
make representations to, and consult with, HMRC on 1ssues
that could adversely atfect investrnent in UK infrastructure
ar our custormers” bills.

Non-UK operations

Substantially all of the Grouo s revenues and profits are
generated in the UK and are subject to UK tax Details of
the Group's overseas subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 are set
out below

+ Severn Trent Response Limited i1s a 60% owned subsidiary
company aperating in Ireland 1t designs, builds. operates
and maintains water infrastructure assets in freland and 1s
subject to Irish tax

» Lyrainsurance Guernsey Limited and Derwent Insurance
Limited are wholly cwned subsidiary companies
incorporated in Guernsey and Gibraltar respectively
They were established to provide insurance services to the
Group Both companies are subject to the UK Controlled
Foreign Company {CFC ] rules and therefore the Group
incurs tax at the UK Corporation Tax rate on their profits

e Severn Trent Holdings SA1s a wholly owned subsidiary
company incorporated in Belgiurmn It was the holding
company for businesses that the Greup previously owned
in Belgium Following the dispesal of those businesses the
holding company was retained to deal with a number of
legacy legalissues These issues have now been resolved
and the Group is considering aptions for iguidating the
company This company I1s subject to Belgian tax

e Severn Trent Africa [Pty) Ltdis a dormant company
incorporated in South Africa 1t has no impact on the
Group’s tax

Scope

This Tax Stralegy covers the period ended 31 March 2018
and applies to Severn Trent Plc and its UK subsidiary
undertakings It s published in compliance with the Finance
Act 2016 requirement for large businesses to publish their
tax sirategy
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report
Remuneration

Image removed

Philip Remnant
Chairman of the Remuneration Carnmittee

The Committee determines, on behalf of the Board, the
Company’s policy on the remuneration of Executive Directors,
other members of the Executive Committee and the Chairman
of the Board The Committee determines the total remuneration
packages and contractual terms and conditions for these
individuals The policy framewaork for remunerating all senior
executive managers I1s consistent with the approach taken for
Executive Directors The Commuttee also provides oversight of
all-employee reward, for example the annual bonus scheme,
and reviews the cascade and alignment of reward throughout
the Group

The Remuneration Comrnittee Terms of Reference were updated
in March 2018 and can be found at www. severntrent com

Contents Page
Chairman’s Statement 96
At a Glance 101
Employment at Severn Trent 108
Annual Report on Remuneration 10
Remuneration Policy 120
Term Detirtion

AMP Five year Asset Management Plan

Outcome Delivery Incentives which are
important t¢ custormers

FD Final Determination of price controls set by
Ofwat for every five year AMP period

Customer QDIs

LTIP Long Term Incentive Plan

PBIT Profit Before Interest and Taxation
RoRCV Return on Regulatery Capital Value
RoRE Return on Regulated Equity

SiM Service Incentive Mechanism

Totex Total Expenditure [Capital Expenditure +
Operational Expenditure]

ua Upper Quartile performance cornpared
with peers

WaSCs Water and Sewerage Companies

96 Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholder,

Our performance

As a Remuneration Commuttee we are focused on ensuring
that the reward our Executive Directors recewve reflects the
performance of the Company and remains proportionate

to the cverall employee base and to the returns receved by
shareholders We are mindful of the external focus an executive
pay and the need to ensure both fairness and transparency,
challenging ourselves to make sure that we only reward for
delivering for our customers and communities The Committee
scrutinises performance targets to ensure that there 1s always
an appropriate link between performance and reward.

This 1s why we are particularly proud to be UQ for our custormer
satisfaction performance commitrments, achieving fourth
position in the utibties sector on the Instritute of Customer
Service's UK Customer Service Index and, whilst our SIM
performance remains below our end of AMP target, we continue
to focus time and energy on driving further improvement

Through investing responsibly for sustainable growth, we have
locked in a further £100 million of Totex efficiencies, taking our
gross efficiencies for AMP6 to £870 miliian. Taking account

of our £220 milhion tatal remvestment plans, our net total
outperformance versus our FIis £240 million, of which half
will be shared with our customers through lower bills in AMP7
We are proud that we continue to have the lowest combined
bills in Britain and mereover we exceeded our commitment to
help 50,060 of our most vulnerable customers with therr bills
In addition, strong financtal performance continues, delivering
RoRE of 11 5% calculated in bne with the Ofwat measure
(10.6% on the Severn Trent RoRE measurel

Across a large number of our customer ODF measures we have
performed well and we are particutarly proud of our continuing
performance in waste water measures We also know that

we can do more N areas such as supply interruptions and n
the last year rnanagement has reorganised the business to
deliver greater focus on areas which we want to improve for
our custormers We have achieved a custorner QDI reward of
£80 2 mullion, up from £47 4 millien on the previous year.

As a large regional business and employer we are always
conscious of the positive impact our performance can play in
the communities that we serve Our environmental leadership
has led us to improve 9 86 hectares as we progress towards our
2020 target We have supported over 40% of our employees to
volunteerin their local area and, when it comes to employment,
we are proud to have had our work to improve social mobility
recognised in the first social mobility index.



Remuneration for the year under review

Overasll, the business has continued to perform strongly in
2017/18 against a set of stretching annual bonus targets, which
required the delivery of improvements across all areas, whilst
navigating a number of challenging headwinds Respective bonus
outturns were 72 54% of salary for each of the CEO and CFO,

out of a maximum annual bonus opportunity of 120% of salary

LTIFP awards based on RoRE over the three years to

31 March 2018 will vest in full for the CEO and the CFO This s
representative of outstanding performance in customer ODls,
financing and Totex.

There s a detailed breakdown on pages 111 to 114 of the targets
set and the payments under the annual bonus and LTIP

The new Remuneration Policy

The Company’s current Remuneration Policy was approved by
9799% of shareholders at the 2015 AGM The votes in favour

for the implementation of the Policy demonstrated through

the annual votes on the Directors’ remuneration report were

98 26% 10 2016 and 97 30% m 2017 Given this level of shareholder
support and the Commuttee’s view that the current Remuneration
Palicy remains largely appropriate, the new Remuneration Policy
15 evolutionary rather than revotutionary

The Caompany is proposing to put the new Remuneration Palicy
to shareholders for a binding vote at the AGM on 18 July 2018
Once appraved, this Policy will operate for up to three years

Aim of the new Remuneration Policy and link
to our strategy

The Company’s new Remuneration Policy focuses on delivering
business priorities through a framework designed to promote
the long-term success of Severn Trent and remains aligned with
the interests of custorners, shareholders and the communities
which we serve The Commuttee has endeavoured to construct a
policy which has a fair and cornpetitive approach te pay and which
ensures that as a company we can attract and retain the best
people with Lhe skills to run thes essential service efliciently and
effectively for our custorners

At the heart of our business is ensuring the service and
experience we provide meets the needs of our customers

We believe that the long-term success of our business should be
atigned with this goal As such, we positively welcome Ofwat's
message that customers must be at the heart of AMP7 business
plans. To reflect this, at least 28% of annual bonus will continue
to relate to custorner QDIs and customer experience, which

we know are the measures that matter most to them, and to
customer experience

Within the LTIP, we have selected RoRE as our measure for 2018
LTiP awards RoRE measures our success over three years in
arange of areas, one being the all-important customer 0Dls,
and we believe that RoRE continues to be the maost appropriate
rmeasure in terms of our long-term success

Shareholder consultation

During the year, we embarked on an extensive shareholder
consultation exercise with our largest sharehelders and
representative bodies on our new Remuneration Policy

We contacted our 30 largest shareholders representing
over 50% of our 1ssued share capital, as well as Glass Lews,
The Investrment Associaticn and ISS, to consult on proposed
changes to our policy The propesed changes discussed with
shareholders were

* Changing the annual bonus epportunity from 120% to 150% of
salary for both the CEQ and CFO,

Changing the LTIP opportunity from 150% ta 200% of salary for
the CEQ and 100% to 150% of salary for the CFO,

Recalibrating the current stretch target as target and
introducing a new stretch target of Ut performance,

Introducing a two year post-vesting holding period for new
awards under the LTIP which will continue to cperate post
cessation of employment,

Increasing the mirimum shareholding requirement from

200% to 300% of salary fer the CED and 150% to 200% of salary
for the CFO, and

Reducing the maximum pension contribution to 15% of salary,
in line with the general workforce, for new Executive Directors

»

The feedback and responses received on the proposed changes
were positive and supportive overall of the Committee’s
approach Having listened carefully to that feedback, we decided
not to progress with the increase in the bonus opportunity

This recognised a preference from a number cf sharehelders
that any quantum increase be provided through the LTIP

The table following this letter sets out full details of the
Committee s rationale for the proposed changes to the current
policy, shareholder feedback during the consultation and the
final posiion reached.
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Wider workforce considerations and our
approach to fairness

Through being & successful business we can create good

Jjobs in our community and value for celleagues by offering a
compehtive total reward package This includes a bonus for
all, flexible benefits and a market-leading defined contribution
pension scheme as well as a competitive salary We are in the
unusual position i our sector that social mability is weak in
many of the areas in which we operate, so we believe we have
a role to invest well to bulld secure employment opportunities
and create fulfiting careers for our colleagues. Over half of cur
employees have jmined from areas of lower social mobility and
benefit not just inancally, bul from our training, development
and career opportunities

We recognise the central importance of all of our teams in
delivering success which 1s why one of our five key strategic goals
15 to create an awesorne place to work for them We understand
that this will mean different things to different pecple and seek

to create a working environrnent which enables everyone to
contribute fully and be the best they can be Our annual employee
engagement survey shows a significant iIncrease in overall
engagement of s percentage points

The Committee and management are committed to fair pay
across the organisation We continue to see diversity and
inclusion as central to everything we do and we are pleased
tareport a relatively low mean gender pay gap of 7 4%.

To ensure the voice of cur employees Is heard, we have an aclive
Cornpany employee farum which meets every quarter to discuss
business chaltenges and opportunities The forum is chaired
jointly by a mernber of the Executive Committee and the Trade
Unions Members include representatives from HR, joint Trade
Unions and employees from our other business area ernployee
farums. The objectives of the Company employee forum are to

+ Involve employees by sharing information on the future of our
business and the water industry,

s Work together on 1ssues that affect our employees; and

« Work in partnership to deliver better solutions to improve the
way we work

During 2017/18, the CEQ discussed with the Company employee
forum the performance of the business, key financial iInfermation
and ideas for efficiencies. We have already taken steps to utilise
further this forum in ine with the draft FRC UK Corporate
Governance Code. The Chairman has attended his first meeting
and will pe attending on an annual basis to share views and seek
feedback to ensure the Board s able to consider the views of
employees in its decision making

Mare information refating to the wider workforce can be found
on page 108.
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Board changes

Emma FitzGerald was appointed to the Board on 1 April 2016
and stepped down on 31 December 2017 following the successful
cornpletion of the restructuring of the wholesale cperating
model Details of Emma s remuneration relating to her time on
the Board, during 2017, are contained within this report

Structure of the report

This year, we include a comprehensive explanation of our
proposed Remuneration Policy which will be put to shareholders
for approval at the 2018 AGM This can be found after the Annuat
Report on Rernuneration section starting on page 120

I amn grateful for the time ang input shareholders and their
representative bodies have given us throughout the engagement
process | trust that we can rely on your vote in support of our
approach to remuneration and the proposed Remuneration
Policy | you would like to discuss any aspect of this report,

I would be happy to hear from you You can contact me

through Bronagh Kennedy, Company Secretary and Group
General Counsel

Philip Remnant
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee



The table below sets out full details of the Committee’s rationale for the proposed changes to the current Policy, shareholder feedback

during the consultation and the final position reached.

Key ponts

Comrnittee 5 rationale

Majerity view of
shareholders consulted

Finai proposals

Increasein
quantum

The Committee s rationale was as follows

* The Executive Directors were inexperienced at the time the current Policy
was inlroduced and incentive levels reflecled this The Committes believes
that the Executive Directors are now fully embedded in the business
and over the past three years they have performed successfulyin ther
rotes, demonstrating an exceptional level of commitment in executing the
business strategy tor the beneft of our shareho e s, customers and the
wider community,

* The Commuittec wants to provide an approprate level of mcentive
opportunity ta delwver a competitive total remuneration package that
retains and motivates a truly exceptional reanagement team for the
rest of this AMF and into the next,

* The Committee 1s keen to ensure that there 1s an appropriate levet of
incantive opperlurity in the remuneration 'o reflec! the grealer focus of
Ofwat on the relatwe performance of WaSCs and the tougher regulatory
context during AMP7, and

* It should be noted that evenwith the proposed inctease in quantumn the
total remuneration availabie to the Company s Executive Directors is
around the med-an for the FTSE 51-150, the Committee s main external
referonce point See page 104 for further details

Sharchaolders were
supportive of the increase
in quantum for {anger
term performance
measured through the
LTIP While in general
shareholders were also
supportive of a proposed
increase to the annual
bonus maximurrs, there
was a cancern about
increasing the bonus
opportunity in the current
environment |naddition,
in general the preference
of sharcholders was for
any increase In gquantum
to be focused on the LT:P

Based on this feedback, the
Cormnmittee determined to
rmake increases to the LTIP
guantum anly

The proposed policy sets
out the follewing maximum
annual LTIP grants [current
policy In brackets)

« CEQ 200% of salary [150%],

* CFO 150% of salary {100%)
It should be noted that

the increase inthe LTIP
opportunity has been
accompanied by an increase
in the stretch of the
performance conditions
[see belaw]

Type of LTIP
performance
condition

The Commuttee propesed RoRE as the sole performance congition for the

LTIP (as 1= the case for the current policy] The Comrmittee s rationale was

as follows

¢ RoRk s a holistic measurement of performance requiring management
tofocus on performance across a range of areas such as Totex, customer
ODIs and fimancng which help measure long-ter m success w thin the
buziness Therefore, whilstit is & single rmeasure, delivering the RoRE
performance requires the Exccutive Directors to deliver on a number
of Company KPls, and

* RoRE is the primary measure used by Ofwat to measure the performance
of the Company and other WaSCs In addition, Otwat calculates and ranks
Ro=E for the WaSCs giv ng an indepenaently verified and comparable
value for the Company

During the consultation
anumber of different
performance measures
were discussed with
shareholders However,
on engagement weth the
Committec the general
wew of sharcholders was
that RoRE was the key
long term metric for the
Cornpany and appropriate
as the sole performance
condition for the LTIP

Given the strang level of
shareholder support the
Camrmittee deterrmimned to
proceed with its proposal
to retan RoRE as the
performance condition
for the LTIP.

Calibration
of LTIP
performance
condition

The Commuttee proposed a new calibration of the RoRE targets for 2018
LTIP grants

UQARIRE Compared

breshotgh O 2%xtD FUIEAAY ATety

"2 Galary 0 Dalary T-helary

Mo cherge MNe rrarqge New rmignimur

CED 37 5% 150% 200%
CFO 25% 100% 150%

lhe Committes 15 sotting these targets for the 2018 LTIP grant The

Committee will rewew the targetsin 2019 as two years of the performance

peripd will bz in the new AMP7

Current maximuem vesting (2016 and 2017 awards] occurs far 1 39x £

(778% return}

The Committee wants to ensure that any additional incentive opportunity

can onty be earned through even more stretching performance The

rationale for the use of the UQ comparison against other WaSCs is that

= It ensures full vesting 1s only achieved for UQ comparative performance
Atthe paint of AMP change over it s dith-ult to set a~ absclute ta-ge! for
UG performance, and

Shareholders supported

* Theintroductionof @
comparative element to
RoRE, and

* The increased
performance
stretch required to
carn the additional
incentive opportunity

Given the strong level of
shareholder support the
Committee determined to
proceed with its proposed
calibration of the ReRE
performance condition
for tha 2018 LTIP awards,
accompanied by an
ncrease in the stretch

of the pertormance
canditions

* It 8ligns with the Company s aspirations toscmain an UQ perfarmer
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Key points

Committee's rationale

Matority view of
shareholders consulted

Final proposals

Addition of
holding period
to the LTIP

The Commuttec’s rationale was to provide further alignment with
shareholders interests and to bring the LTIP into Line with best practice

This change was
unversally supported
by sharenolders,

Introduction of a two
year holding period post
vesting for Executive
Directors which watl
continue to ope: ate post
cessation of employment

Increase in

the minimum
shareholding
Reguirement

The Carnrrittee s rationale was to provide further alignment wath
shareholders interests

This change was
unversally supported
by sharenolders

Increase in requirement

« CEOQ 300% of salary
[200% current), and

» CFO 200% of salary
[150% current}

Reduction in
maximum
pension
contribution

The Cormmuittee s rationale was to align pension contribution guanturn for
new Execative Directors with pensicn cantribution for the wider warkforce

This change was
unversally supported
by sharetolders

No change for current
Executive Directors

New appointments will
have a maximum pensian
contribution of 15% of
salary (25% current]

1 OO Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018




At a Glance

Shareholders approved Severn Trent’s Remuneration Policy at the 2015 AGM [set eut in full in the 2015 Annual Report] As highlighted
(ast year, and in ine with regulations, Severn Trentis now seeking shareholder approval for a new Remuneration Policy at the 2018
AGM, after which the new Remuneration Policy will come into etfect and govern pay arrangements for our Executive Directors for the
next three years

The following section sets out our remuneration framework, how our previous Remuneration Policy was applied in 2017/18 and how
the Cemmittes intends to implernent the preposed Rermuneration Policy in 2018/19

2017/18 Remuneration outcomes

Single figure remuneration 2017/18

This table shows how the successful delivery of aur strategy has flowed through to the rewards provided to our Executive Directors
The table and chart below provide a summary total single Bigure of remuneration for 2017/18 We note that Emma FitzGerald
{iManaging Director, Wholesale Operations| stepped down from the Board in December 2017 The ‘At a Glance section contains
rernuneration for the CEQ and CFO only The full explanatary nates for each element of remuneration are detalled on page 110 1n the
Annual Report on Remuneration

Graph removed

Annual Total
Executive Salary Benefits bonus LTIP Pension Qther 2017118
Directors Year (£ DOO)" [E 000) (£°000) |£ DOD] €000} (€'000) (£°000)
CEO 201718 68772 177 5010 706 6 1718 - 20843
CFO 2017/18 4142 187 3019 278 3 103 5 - 11166

111 Salaiies are shown before tre deduclion of bene 1ts purchasad Lhrough tre Company s salary sacn1“ce scheme
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Annual bonus scheme 2017/18

An annual bonus of 72 54% of salary for each of the CEQ and CFO was awarded Further details are set out on page 111 in the Annual

Report on Rermuneration

Threshold Target Maximum TDutcome
0% payable] 150% payable) [100% payable) Weighting achieved
STWPRIT £515 8m (529 2m £542 6m 47% 2%
Actual £527
Customer O0ls C13m £23m £33m 20% 20%
Actual £80 Zm
Business Services PBIT £35 6m £34 6m £376m 10% 10%
Actual £381m
Health and safety 020 016 012 8% 2%
Actual 017
Customer expericnce 154, T 20% 29% 8% 2% T
Actual 1720%
Persanal performance ) Details on pages 112and 113 7% 6% - CEO
% - CFO

1) Measured as number of Lost urme iIncidents divided by number ¢f heurs worked multiphied by 100,000

[l Measured as the percentage reduction in complaints

LTIP 2015/18
The 2015 LTIP vested at 100% of maxirmum Further information s provided on page 114 in the Annual Report on Rermuneration
Yeohng ou forme
“hrestold Maxirmuam .;,__M_Lﬂm
120 payable] {22 payablel CEO CFO
RoRE - measured FD 129x 100% 100%
as multiple of
Ofwat FD Actual 179x
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Link between long-term performance and the remuneration outcomes

The charts below show our custormer 0Dl and RoRE perfarmance since the beginning of the current AMP This strong sustained level
of performance has informed the tevel of reward received by cur Executive Directors and our emnployees threugh the company-wide
bonus scherne, which is tinked to the sarme performance measures

SIURUIAACY

Graph removed

) O00s gress of tax

Il Calcul sted i ac~ardance with 9'wat methsactogy UQ dara notyet available fur the current vear

Remuneration principles

The remuneration principles which underpin our policy support aur strategic pricrities, align our interests with those of customers
and inform the decisions made by the Commuttee in relation to executive pay Our core remuneration principles are as follows

Simpliony

R-lewrpoe

Objez v

Cumpeane

The Rermuneration Policy should
sSupport transparency Interms

of design and communication to
mternal and external stakefolders

Reward will be relevant to cur
business goals and objectives,

and be affordable

Remneration outcomes

shoula m rror the customer,
sharcholder, employee and wider
stakcholder experience

Tne Remuneration Policy should
clearly bnk individual pay outcomes
to corporate results

Performance measures and
targets for incentive elans waell
be abjectvely dete-~ined

The Remuneration Policy should
support potential changes in
business priontics over time

Remuncration will be aligned

to support the interests of

our sharebclders

The Remuncration Policy should
prowvsde opportunity which s
competitive against cormpanics
of a similar size and complaxity
with a strong emphas's on
variable elements
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Strategic alignment of remuneration

The Committee believes it 1s impor tant that for Executive Directors, and semor management, a sigrificant proportion of the
remuneration package 1s performance-related and that performance conditions applying to incentive arrangements support the
delivery of the Company’s strategy threugh our five strategic prionities The following table sets out how each of these are reflected
in the annual bonus and LTIP,

Drive operatignal

Embed customers excellence and Investing
atthe heartof conbnuous responsibkly for Changethemarket Creale anawesome
Strategc prionities what we do Innavation sustainable growth  for the better place towork

Annual bonus PBIT
Custamer Q0Is

Hcalth and safety

Customer experience

Personal objectives
LTIP RoRE

Summary of Remuneration Policy, proposed amendments and implementation in 2018/19

Shareholders approved the Remuneration Policy at the AGM in 2015 (77 99% voted in favour] As such, the Company is required to seek
approval for the new policy at the 2018 AGM The table below sets out an overview of the key areas of the policy and summarises how
the Comrmittee i1s proposing to implement the policy in 2018/19 Full details of the preposed policy can be found on pages 120 to 128

The Committee believes that the fundamental architecture of the Executive Directors remuneration package s appropriate but we
have made a number of evolutionary changes to the previous Remuneration Policy to retlect the developrnent of the Company, our
Executive Directors and the latest corporate governance best practice

* Pension contributions for any new Executive Directors will be capped at 15% of satary in ine with other employees,
+ The maximum LTIP award opportunity will be increased to 200% of salary for an additional stretch performance of UQ,

*» Atwo year holding peniod will apply following the vesting of LTI awards for the Executsve Directors [this holding period will continue
post cessation of employment), and

e The minimum shareholding requirement witl be increased to 300% of salary for the CEO and 200% of salary for other
Executive Directors.

The diagram below llustrates the balance of pay and time period of each element of the proposed Remuneration Policy

for Fxecutive Directors

otal pay ear ear ear ear
Total Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year5
Fixed pay Salary

. Benefits,
Fixed pay Pension
Annual Bonus 50% in shares
[Malus and clawback 50%incash 3-year deferral penod
prows;onsappW] No farther performance conditions
LTip Up to 200% sat. 2 hold d

pto obsatary -year holding perio

{Malus and clawback B-year performance period Na further perfergnance conditions
provisions apply)

The Company's Remuneration Policy remains to attract, retain and motivate its leaders and to ensure they are focused on delivering
business priorities within a framework designed to promote the long term success of Severn Trent, aligned with shareholder
Interests The table helow sets out the key components of the Executive Directors’ remuneration package, including the proposed
changes from the current Remuneration Policy along with ratisnale Further information regarding the proposed Remuneration
Policy 1= set out on pages 120 ta 128 of this report
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Element and Link

Key features

How we will
implement the proposed

to strategy of current Policy Palicy change Policy in 2018/19
Salary ¢ Salaries for individual Executive No change A salaryincrease of 2 5% will be applicd at
To recruit and reward Directors are reviewead annually the salary review date From 1 July 2018
Executive Dircetors of a by the Committee and normally take Executive Director sataries will be
sutable calibre for the role effect from 1 July * CEO - (708,000
and duties required * [othe extent that increases are e CFO - F424,600
proposed, these will not be higher than These rises are lower than the general
the average increase for ermployees employce salaryincreasce
Benefits » “he value of henefids s based an the No change Normal company benefit provision

To provide competitive
benefits in the market to
enable the recruitment
and retention of
Executive Dnectors

cost to the Cornpany and there s
no pre-deterrmined maximurm Lirmt
“rerange and va'ue of the benefits
offered s reviewed periodicatly

Pension

To provide pension
arrangemcnts comparable
with similar companies in
the market to enablc the
recruitment and retention
of Executive Direcors

» Adefi~ed contr bution scherme and/or
cash supplement in lieu of pension

o Maximum pension contribution of 25%.
of salary

* Far current Executive
Directors, the maximum
pension contribution wall
reman at 25% of salary

= For future appointments
tho maximum poension
contr:bution will be capped at
15" ot salary Thisisinline
with the leve prowded to the
wider workforce

Executive Director pensien arrangements for
2018/19 are as follews

s CEQ - 25% of salary
= CEOQ - 25% of salary

Annual bortus

To encourage improvesd
financial and operational
performance and align

the interests of Executive
Directors with shareholders
through the partiat deferral
of payment in shares

* Maximum award of 120% of salary

* There will be no payment made for
threshald performance

« 50% of total bonus deferred into shares
for three years [with the value of any
dradends to be relted up and paid
onvesting)

» 50% of maximum will be paid for target
performance and 100% of maximum
vl be paid for stretch performance

* Malus and ciawback provisions apply

No change

The fallowing rmaximum agportunities will
apply in 2018119

« CED - 120% of salary

* CFO - 120% of salary

The woightings of performance measures
in the annual benus wall be as follows

» Regulated Water and Waste Watar PBIT - 27%
* Business Services PBIT - 10%

« Customer QDls - 20%,

* Health & safety - 8%

* Customer experience - 8%

* Personal objectives - 7%

The Comnuttee considers tre forward-
looking targets to be commercually sensitive
but full disclosure of the targets and
performance outcome will be set outin the
year s remuneration report setting out the
bonus outcomes

LTIP

To encourage strong and
sustaincd irnproverments
infina~cial pertormance,
in Line with the Company’s
strategy and long term
shareholder returns

ghéreholding requiremenf ‘

To encourage strong
shareholder atignrment
and intorests of Executive
Directors with tne rest of
the wor kioroe

* Maximum award of 150% of salary

* Awards arc granted annualty and are
subject to a threc year performance
condtion baing RoRE

* Matus and clawback provisions apply

= Increase in maximurn award
opportunity to 200%, of salary
e The Committee will
ensure that the increased
opportuni’yis reflecled inthe
level of challenge i the LTIP
targets and has introduced
a stretch target based on
JQ perfarmance
¢ Introduction of a two year
holding period post-vestirg
which will continue to
cperate pest-cessatian
of empleyment

The following grant levels wall apply -n 2018/19
« CEO - 200% of salary

* CF0 - 150% of salary

RoRE will remain the sole LTIP performance
condition, with the addition of a stretch target
RoRE 15 calculated as profit after tax [plus
ircentives earned in the year] dvided by the
average equity proportian of our regul atary
capital value, as proscribed by Dfwat

See page 99 for details of the RoRE target

for he Z018 LTIP awards

W:MT“*:E CEO s expected to build and

maintain a holding of shares to the value
of 200% of salary, and other Fxecutive
Directors 150% of salary

Executve Directors arc expected to
retain all of the net of tax number of
shares they receve thraugh the LTIP
and deferred share bonus unul the
sharcholding requirement has been met

¢ InCrease in minmuym
shareholding requirement to
300% of satary for the CEO
and 200% of salary for other
Executive Directors

« Other terms of
the sharehalding
reguirerment remain

Application of the new
shareholding requirernen
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Our policy quantim compared with peers
The following table shows the relative posion of larget total compensation under the proposed policy for our Executive Directors
compared with the FTSE 51-150

Graph removed

When we sel the remuneration for the Executive Directors, one of the factars the Committee considers 1s the relevant market for
Executive Direclors, which we believe 1s the FTSE 51-150, and the size of the Company cormpared with these peers The Company is
around the median by market capitabisation and the proposed target total cornpensation has been set broadly in bine with this position

Shareholding requirement

The minimum shareholding requirement for Executive Directors is set out below {t must be built up over a five year period and then
subsequently held The table below sets out the current share interests of the Executive Directors taking into account shares which
are owned outright or vested, shares which are unvested and shares whuich are subject to performance

Graph removed

i) Represents henenicialiy owned shares as wel a= shares heldin \rust as part of the annual honus delerred share awards |of wh ch S0 % deducled to cover
statutery deduclions]

(1] Represents the 2014 and 2007 LTIP awards which are subject to performanc ¢
Calculated using the closing share price on 31 March 2018 of £18 44

The CEQ has exceeded the shareholding requirement applicable in 2077/18 of 200% of salary and the CFQ 1s close to exceeding
the shareholding requirement applicable in 2017/18 of 150% of salary.
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Overall link to remuneration and equity of the Executive Directors

As a Cammittee we want to ncentivise Executive Directors to take a long term, sustainable view of the performance of the Company
That s why when we look at the remuneration paid in the year we also look at the total equity they hold in relation te the performance
of the Company The ability of Executive Directors to lose and gain, dependent on share price performance, can have a materialimpact
on their totat remuneration and is a central focus of our Rernuneration Policy

The following table sets out the single figure for 2017/18, the number of shares beneficially owned by the Executive Director at the
beginning and end of the financial year and the impact on the value of these shares taking the opening price and closing price for

the year

Value of shares Value of shares
2017118 Shares held Shares held at start of year atend of year Difference
Single Figure at start of year at end of year [€'000s)" [£'000s} {£'000s)
CEO 20843 75127 103,274 £17895 (1704 4 +{1149
CFO 1116 6 15,243 23464 £3636 £4327 +£691

Il Based on a cloing share price on 31 March 2017 of £23 82
[n]Based on a closing share price on 31 March 2018 af £18 44

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees [audited)
From 1 April 2018, Non-Executive Director fees were increased by 3% from £53,450 to £55,100 and the Chairman’s fee was increased
by 2 5% from £280,500 to £287.600 These increases are in line with the general emnployee salary increase

The current fee levels and those for the future financial year are set out in the table below

Fees Fees Increase

2018/19 2017118 %

Charrmans fee £287600 £280,500 2 5%

Fee paid tc all Non-Executive Directors £55.100 £53.450 39%
Supplementary fees

- Seniar Independent Director £10,000 £10,000 00%

- Audit Commuttec Chairman £15,000 £15,000 00%

- Remuneration Committee Chairman o £15,000 £15,000 0 0%

- Carporate Responsibility Committee Chairman £13.000 £13,000 00%

- Treasury Committee Chairman £15.000 £15,000 00%

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors normally serve for terms of three years The current expiry dates of their letters
of appointment are Kevin Beeston [1 June 2019), Domimque Reimiche {20 July 20191 John Coghlan (23 May 2070, Andrew Duff
($ May 2019], Philip Remnant (31 March 2020) and Dame Angela Strank [74 lanuary 70720} However, all of the Directors are
subject to annual appointment or reappointment at tha AGM.
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Employment at Severn Trent

We recogruse the centralimportance of all of cur teams in delivering success and as such we seek to craate an inclusive working
environment, reward our employees in a fair and equitable manner and provide fulfilling careers We do this by providing all our

employees wih.

itern

Detans

Market competitive pay

Our approach s to position ourselves as a market median payer, balancing competitive pay for employees with responsible
use of our customers roney Employecs who are not on a traiming rate of pay [such as apprentices) receive at least the
voluntary Living Wage We also closely monitor the rates of pay of peaple who are traning with us to make sure they
remain fair and competitive Our 2018 Apprentice starting rate 1s £14,926 and 2018 Graduate starting rate 1s £24,500

Sharing in success

Flexibility

An opportunity to save

for the future

Building a career

Diversity and inclusion

Investing in the comrurity

We wani our employees to share 1n our success and our all-employee bonus plan 1s based on Company performance,
ensuring all employees are aligned with the same measures and rewarded for achieving our key objectives For this year
the benus paid out £964 to 88 5% of our frontline ernployees i Severn Trent Water Lirnited and Dee Valley Water Limited
Those who were not eligible were new starters after the beginming of January 2018

71% of our people are active partictpants i our Sharesave scheme which gives employees a chance to save up to £560 per
nonth aver three or live yeai s with the ophion (o buy Severn Jrert Pl shares at a discounted ale at the enc of the periad

We provide a flexible benefits scheme for all, which we believe is amongst tme best in the industry Including insurance
and ~ealth cover with relail and childzare vouchers, it 1s designea 1o supporl a oositive work-tife balance

45% of our pecple choose to tallor trer benefits via our flexible benefits schame, saving a combined total of £40 000
on everything from everyday essentals to holidays and luxuries through our employee discount partnerships,

We know many of our colleagues wan! Lo be aole 1o save for Jheir futlure secunty We offer a markel leading defined
contribution pension scheme and double any contrmbutions that employces make [up to @ maximum of 15% of salary]
regardless of level or seniority When colleagues get closer to retirement, we provide education and support to help plan
for the next stage of their lves

We are proud that 98% of our people are members of the pension scheme and 57% pay contributions above the statutory
minimurm 3%

As a majar regronal employer, we recogrise the importance of equipping our colleagues with the skills for now and the
tuture Our focus s on both leadership and techmical developrment across the whole organisation

We support the developrnent of colleagues at atl stages of thesr career, from foundation apprenticeships and graduate
entrants, through to higher level apprenticeships and Masters degrees Our aim is to ensure that every employee feels
cempetent and corfident in therr everyday work

Our employees telt us we are doing well on diversity and inclusion, through great scores in our employee engagement
survey, bul we know there are opportunities o re‘iect betler the demographics of our regio-

We are recogmsed for leading performance in the FTSE 100 for women's representation at Board and Executive
Committee level and our mean gender pay gap for the year was just 2 4%

This year we have alse launched qur menopause awareness prograrmme suppaerted by our Trades Unions

Qur apprenticeship schemie has a Black, Asian and Minarity Ethnic [ BAME | representation of % 6% and this s 15 3%
for our graduaie scherne

Our educatron and work cxperience programmes now actively focus on the areas of lowest social mobility in our regron
We already have a strong track record of creating jobs in these arcas, with over half of our employees from areas outlined
by the Social Mobility Commuission, but we want to do maore

Our employee volunteering pregramemc gives all employees two paid days per year to participate in voluntary wark

DU cornrmunity, This year saw participat on numbers increasa to 40%

Diversity and inclusion policies
We continue to focus on long term improvernent through our diversity and inclusion policres.

Develaping role models

We believe that strong role models inspire mare unior employees and demanstrate anincluswve culture to
potential candidates We are leading the way on senior leader gender diversity, placing us ahead of many of
our industry peers

Reflecting the communities we serve We have increased our programme of school carcer events over the last two years, helping to broaden the

Changing the way we recruit

Breaking down stereotypes

range of sludents who are aware of Severn Trent and the career opportunities we offer

During 2014, we maved 0 a strengths-based interview pracess for our graduate and apprentice positions
Thts 15 helping us to understand the potential of each candidale and remove bias throughout the process
We want 10 altract candidales who share the same passion about the water indystry and understand the
needs of the communities we serve

We are making progressin attracting more diverse candidates into roles that require science, technology,
engineering and mathematics 'STEM | backgrounds. By taking part in engmneering nitiatives awmed at women,
including National Women in Engineering Day, we are rarsing our profile among prospective applicants

The challenge toincrease diversity in these areas s longer term and we will continue (o face 2 challenge

to recruit female employees if we do nol recewe a sufficient level of applications to these roles
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Gender Pay Gap Reporting

We reported cur Gender Pay Gap in Navember 2017 in tine with statutory requirements The data was based on & Apnil 2017 and
showed a mean gap of 2 4% and a median gap of 14 6% The relatively low mean gap 1s predominately due to cur senicr gender
diversity The higher median gap 1s representative of occupational segregation We have a large number of operational roles which
attract shift, on-call and stand-by allowances, and these roles are principally held by men

By way of comparison, the average mean and median gaps for those WoCs and WaSCs that have reported data1s 119%
and 15.3% respectively.

Our fult Gender Fay Gap report can be found on www severntrent.com
Alignment of pay throughout Severn Trent

The Commuttee is keen that remuneration decisions are made In the context of the cascade of reward structures throughout
the business, shown in the diagram below

Executive Seniar
Elerment of pay CEOQ Board Committee Management Management  Wider workforce

Salary

Annual borws [all employees aligned
to the same measures

LTIP
Pension

Be-els

[l & proportion of thia population par topat. mthe LTIF By anmuat anat shion

Percentage change in the remuneration of the CEO

The table below shows the moverment in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the CEO between the current and previous financial
year compared with that of the average employee The Committee looks to ensure that the approach to fair pay 1s implemented in
practice throughout the Campany

CED (£ 000j Average per employee (€ 000]

201718 20Taid % Charge 201718 21 s 7 T Crange

- Salary ! 690.6 6770 2% 30.5 299 2%
- Be-eflls 17.7 180 -17% 0.4 o 04 0%
- Bonus 501.0 6158 -18 &% 1.8 20 -112%

(il Thesalary figures shown ale based on full time equivatent companasnsg

{1l The benehts figures niclude car allowance and 'armily levet pr vate menical msurance for semo- and middte managers

fnl The higures s=wwn sreteflective of any borus earned during the respective inancal year Bonuses are pand in the followin g June

] The aeerage pay in rease for the weder workliorce during the year was 2

The Committee has elected to use the average earnings per employee as this avoids the distortions that can cccur to the Company's
totat wage bill as a result of movements in the number of employees The comparator group used is Severn Trent employees

in the UK as this i1s where the vast majority of employees are based
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Annual Report on Remuneration

The Annual Report on Remuneration and the Annual Statement will be put to an advisory shareholder vote at the Annual General
Meeting on 18 July 2018 The information on pages 110 te 11215 audited

Total single figure of remuneration (audited)

The total single figure of remuneration table below sets cul the remuneration received by the Directors for 2017/18 {or tor
performance periods ending in 2017/18 10 respect of the long term incentives) and, for the purposes of comparisan, for 2016/17
Where necessary, further explanations of the values provided are included betow This table and the explanatory notes below this
table have been audited

Year ending 31 March 2018 Yeat endng 31 March 201/
Salary Annual Selary Apnual
Executive andfees  Benefils benus LT\®  Pension Other Total and-ces  Benghls Bonus LiP Pensiar Otber Tuat
Oirectors [£'000) €000 (€ DOO)'  (E000P  (£000)" [€°000) (£°000) {€ 520 [£aa7 1e070l 1€ a021 [£003 €30 1 200
MJL 687.2 17.7 501.0 706.6 171.8 - 2,084.3 5737 180 4158 9481 168 4 - 24240
James Bowling 8§14.2 187 ne 2783 103.5 - 1116.6 4050 198 3687 3158 1015 - 12118
Emrma
FitzGerald - ! 302.4 131 202.8 271.3 75.6 - §72.2 3959 176 360 2 374 3 790 - 11970
Salary Annual Sclary Arnuel

Non-Executive andfees Benefits bonus LTIP  Pension Qther Total andees  Berehis Duras LHP Pensior U her Total
Directors [£000)  (F'000)  {€'0oo)  (eoool  (€ooo0)  lE0o0! [£7000) 1€ van| [£ ud3) 1£n7 I£047) IC 10Y) 1€ 00 1€ 30}
Andrew Dutt
{Chairman) 280.5 - - - - - 280.5 2750 - - - - 2750
John Coghlan 835 - - - - - 83.5 674 - - - ~ - 674
Philip Remnant £8.5 - - - - - 48,5 674 - - - - - 674
Kevin Beeston 63.5 - - - - - 63.5 507 - - - - 50 7
Dominigue
Reiniche 53.5 535 366 364
Darne Angela
Strank 66.5 - - - - - 66.5 815 - - - - - 615

If Salares are shown telore the deductions of benefits purchased through the Compeny s salaty sacrifice scheme, such as pension cortribulions via salary sacnifice
- this 1s cansistent wiath the approach taken last year

Il Benefits include a car allowance of £12,000 p o, fammily leve' private medical insurdnce, lile assurance wol th six i es salary and partivipation in an incapacity
benef ts scherre

tri] - The annual bonus s paid 50% in cash and 50 % 10 shares with the portan deferred inte shares subject to an additional holding period of three years with na further
performance conditions attas hed

Iv] - This relates to the vesting of the 2015 LTIE which 15 based on ReRE perfermance aver the three year period to 31 March 2018 The vatus of the shares has been
estimated using the average whare price for the period from 1 January 218 te 31 March 2018 of £18 &9

vl The Cxecutive Directors pension provision s equal 1o 259 of salamy No Executive Drrectors accrued benalils under any defined contribution pension plans duiing
the year or have parucipated in a defined benefits scheme while an Executive Direclor

lal Thus relates to the vesting of the third tranche of James Bowling s and the secand tranche of Emma FitzGeratd s Recrutmoent Award The performance condition
for these awards was the same as for the 2015 LTIF grant, which was bascd an ReRE pertormance over the three year period to 31 Mareh 2018 The awards vested
al 100% and lhe higures shawn have heen updated Lo reflact their aclual share price on vesting (£22 37)

el Thes higure reiales to taxable expenses relating Lo travel

lvinl Stepped down from the Board on 31 December 2017 Amaounts for Emma FitzGerold ar¢ pro-rated for the peried in whic b she was an Execulive Direcler, wath gne
exception of the vesting of the 2015 LTIP award

1 T O Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018



Salary for 2017/18 [audited)

Salaries for individual Executive Directors are reviewed annually by the Committee and normally take effect from 1 July

The Commuttee considered the Executive Directors pay review in July 201710 light of pay review budgets across the Group

As aresult, the Commuttee determined that the salaries for the Executive Directors would increase by 2% in 2017/18, 1n ine with
the average increase that applied to the general UK workforce For 2018/19, a 2 5% increase to salaries for Executive Directors
has been agreed, lower than the average increase that will apply to the general LK workforce.

Salary Salary Percentage

01/0%/2017 01/07/2018 merease

CEO £690,600 £708,000 2 5%
CFO £416,200 E426,600 2 5%

Benefits for 2017/18 (audited)

The value of benefits is based on the cost to the Company and there 1s no pre-determined maximurm Uit The range and value of
the benefits offered is reviewed periodically. In line with our Remuneration Policy outlined on page 121, we show below the berefits
receved by the indwidual Executive Directors in the year, and their typical annual value where possible

Typical annual value 2017/18

Typical annual value 2016/17 Percentage increase

Car allowance £15,000 £15,000 0%
Private medical insurance £1.,500 £1,500 0%
Life assurance R N Upto 6 x salary Upto 4 xsalary 0%
Fersenal accident cover As per the group-wide policy As per the group-vade policy 0%
Bicrnal hoalth screening (620 per health screen {620 per health screen . 0%
Incapacity se-efils Worth 50% of salary for a period of Woarth 50% of salary for a period of 0%

five years [subjec” to quatfying criteria,

five yea~s [subject to qualifying criteria)

Annual bonus outturn for 2017/18 [audited)

Annual bonus performance 1s measured over a single financial year against a range of financial and non-financial targets and against
personal objectives The maximum bonus opportunity was 120% of salary An annual bonus was awarded of 72 4% of salary for each
of the CEQ and CFO, and 68 94% of salary for the Managing Director, Wholesale Operations The table below shows a summary of the

metrics and targets which were used to determine the annuzl bonus awards

Threshold Target Maximum Quicome
0% payable) [50% payable] 1160% payable] Weighting achieved
STWPBIT 515 8m £5292m (5427 ém 4% 21%
Actual £527&m
CustomerQDls (13m £23m £33m 20% 20%
3 _ 0%
Actual £80 2m 30% -MD, WO 30%
Business Services PBIT €35 6m £36 6m £376m 0% 10%
Actual £38 1m
Health and safety 020 016 012 8% 2%
Actual 017
Customer experience 5% 20% 5% 8% 2%
Actual 17 20%
Personat performance Detaits on pages 112 and 113 7% &% - CEO
4% - CFO
3% - MD, WO

Nl Measured as number of Lot tirme insrdents diviged by number 3f hour a worked mulhipied by 100,000

[l Measured as the pere sntage roduchiznin complaings
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Despite a period with some significant operational challenges and a difficult year on bad debt, we have continued to make good
progress In ranaging our underlymng cost base to abserb these and other cost pressures to end the year delivering PBIT of

£527.6 million in STW [belore property profits] Gus customer QD) rewards of £80.2 mituon were underpinned by significant
mprovements minternal and external sewer flooding, and sustained performance on Category 3 poltutions with a gross perfor mance
on waste of £109 millon However, this was offset by the impact of operational incidents on water measures such as supply
interruptions, which resulted in a net penalty of £29 million This year the Commuittee agreed to include an additional measure

to drive impravement in customer expertence, targeting & 20% reduction in written complaints

In the last few months we have seen a significant improvement in performance driven by a significant improvement in billings related
complaints, with these learnings being rolled out across our other teams The result of these improvernents is represented by a 17.2%
reduction for the year, We set ourselves bold targets to imprave the safety of our employees this year and, although we still incurred
18 LT, thns represents a 23% year on year impr overment, resulting im our best ever year and the lowest LT17ate m the sector i
England. Business Services has had a particularly strong year, benefiting from a new contract with plumbing and drainage insurers
that contributed significantly te both revenue and PBIT.

Personal objectives for the Executive Directors are linked to our strategic framewoerk which will move us towards our ambiton to be
the most trusted water company Objactives were shared across the team with each Executive Director teading on the areas which
best align wath their accountabiliies and expertise

As noted on page 111, the achievernent of the personal objectives for each of the Executive Directors was as follows: 6%, 6% and 3%
for the Ck0, CFO and Managing Director, Whotesale Operations, respectively

The table below sets out performance outcomes for each Executive Director w relation to their spacidic personal objectuves.

CEQ

Performance
Ohjective Actiity Key achievements in 2017/18 outcome
Embed customers at * Deliver a step change in customer evpenence » Conducted detaled customer research study Partly met
the heart of allwe do « Support Birancially vulnerable cusiormers Focused efforts on resolwng issues more rapidly
« Be rocognised as a UQ Wholesaler Customner complaints down 6%
« Provide an industry leading New * 35 000 customers have received hinanoal
Connections experience help with thew bills through relaunched Big
Ditterence scheme 50,000 vulnerable customers
supperted overall
» Achieved 1st and 2nd place in Ofwat s water and
waste rankings respectively for new connections
+ UQ for Uk Custarner Service Index for 2017/18
Drive operational » Beo UG in water and waste s UK Business Servicas profitincreased and US Fully met
EXC§1\EHC€ and * Develop the profiabiity and grawth of the Business business sold
contnuous Services operations » Held a staff roadshow to capture and share 1deas
innovation « Delver a sustamnable prpeline and process around mnovation and mprovement
for innpvation * Excephional waste customer 0D performance
Investresponsibly for < Ontrack delreery of AMPG plans to deliver growth * Delivery of addihonal £108rmthon Totex savings Partly met
sustainable growth and reduce risk « Completed integration ot Dee Valley into
s Integrate and deliver benehis from the acquisition the business
of Do Valley » Advanced in realigning boundaries along
* Set up Severn Trent and Water Plus for success in nationat borders
new business retall market * Water Plus maintaining tts share of a
growing market
Change the market = Clear PR19 plan in piace that evidences our * Strong position to submit by September 2018 Fully met
tor the better leading status » Created a standalone Broresources team
* Produce competling case for investment at PR19 dentifying opportunities for operating efficiencies
+ [esign and imptement the Bioresources change * Collabarated with Thames Water and United
programme and business model Utihities to puhlish thought leadarshep dacument
s Be seen as the water sector's thought leaders
Create an awesome * Irnprove safety programme e Lost Time Imury frequency rate decreased by 23% Fully met

place to work

* Deliver 5% uplbft in emplayee cngagement scores
* Strive to continue to improve diversity and inclusion

* Employee engagement increased by 6%

* Increase in the number of ‘BAME emplayees
an graduate pragrarmme

* Launched key inclusionintiztives such as Dying to
work charter and menopause education
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CFO

Performance
Objective Activity Key achievements in 2017/18 outcame
Embed customers at s Improve insurance approach ta third party damage » Completed the review and imptementcd Fully met
the heartof all we do idertified iImprovements
Drive operational = Support the business to identify and achieve e ldentified 100 million of efficiencies tc be Fulty met
excellence and cost etfic encias reinvested into the business
FOﬂti"U_UUS + Conlinue the evolulion of [Inance, Inlernal audit and * ERM Champions and coordinalors operate
innovation enterprise (isk functions throughout the business
* Reduce the downside nisk to pension « Signsticantly reduced pension risk through
schermne hiabbity implernented hedging strategy and
* Finance plan in place for key rermaining maturities financ ng aclions
invest responsibly for  « Build and deploy new risk based interest » Generated 38% of energy needs from Partly met
sustainable growth mapagement policy renewable sources
* Support the Energy and Renewables
growth strategy
= Delwer target M&A strategy o
Change the market * Support regulatory inance in PR19 and « Created a standalone Bioresources tearn Fully met
far the better _Booresources plan wdetifying opoortunities for oper aling efficencies
Create an awesome s Deliver change invisible Health and Safety + LTI rate improvement Fully met
place to work leadership, with a focus on menial wellbeing + Improvement of 5% 1n Finance Employee
¢ Del ver beller engagement and diversity in finance Engagement parformance
MD, WO
Performance
Ohjective Activity Key achievements in 2017/18 outceme
Embed customers at ¢ |[mprovermentin customer experience and delivery * Exceptional waste custorer QD! performance Partly met
the heartof all we do of customer strategy
* Be recognised as a UQ Wholesaler
Orive operational ¢ Be UQ inwater and waste ¢ Gained provisional EA 4" status Partly met
exceltence and & Provide environmental leadership s Strong pregress made on innovation
FDntinuPus « Deliver 10 innovation projects
innovation o
Invest responsibly for e On track delivery of the AMPS plan to deliver growth e Delwery of Totex savings Partly met
sustainable growth and reduce risk » Delwery of Water Resources Management Plan
e Integrate and deliver benefits fro - the auquistion * Completed integration of Dee Valloy into
of Dee Valley the business
Change the market ¢ Clear PR19 plan in place that evidences our leading * Strong position to submit by September 2018 Partly met
for the hetter status and investmeant case e Created a standalone Bioresources team
* Design and implernent the Bioresources change idertifying opoorturities tor cperating efficiencies
programme and business model
* Be sean as the water sector s thought leaders
Create an awesome e Deliver change mwisible Health and Safety o | Tt rate improvement of 23% and strong Partly met

place to work

leadership, with a tocus on mental weltbeing
* Deliver 5% uplift in emnployee engagement scorcs
* Progress our talent agenda, including BAME
talent agenda
« Contribute to resolve the top 10 company irritants

supply chain performance sustained
* Wholesale crnployce engagement increased by B%
¢ External recognition of graduate and apprentice
pragramme and increase of 13% in number of
BAME employees on graduate programme
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

LTIP awards vesting in relation to performance in 2017/18 laudited)

The table below shows the outcomne of LTIP awards which had performance periods ended 31 March 2018 The (TIP based on RoRE
over the three years to 31 March 2018 will vest in full. This Is representative of outstanding performance in customer 0Dls, financing
and Totex

MG, wo
CEQ autcame  CFO outcame autcome
Thresho!d FD Maximurmn  {veshngas % {vestingas % Ivestingas %
125% payabie) {100% payabie) of award} ofaward) of award)
RoRE - measured agamnst % T2%x 100% 100% 108%
ragliple of Ofwat FD
Actual 179x

VYalue of

End of resultant

Number of performance % award Number of award
Executive Award type Grantdate shares granted period vesting  sharesvesting E000sh! Vesting date
CEO 2015 LTIP 15/07/15 37.808 31/03/18 100% 37.808 £706 4 15/07/18
CFO o 2015LTIP 15/07/15 14 890 31/03/18 100% 14,890 {278 3 15/07/18
MI, Wholesale Operations Z01ISLTIP 15/07/15 14,518 31/03/18 100% 14,518 £2713 15/07/18

(] Tre RaRF ralcutation used far | TIPs Aiffers s'ightly trom that usedn the annual perfarmance repart, which uses the Ofwat definiion The LTIP mearure ceeks to
align better our | TIP tarcers to aclual cash flervs and agai~st a clearly definad *argel In thus measure, finan~ing outperformance s based on actual gearing ralher
than the notional capita struciure and compares our cost of debt against the allowance 1n the Qfwal Financial Model Itincludes profits/'osses associated with land
sales, miscellaneous achabies and theimpact chthe whelesute revenue feretssing incentive mecthamism

{ni Based on the ave~ags share price over tre ing' three months of the perioreance period €18 o%) as the awards will not he released unii alte- the end o, t-e
close period

LTIP vesting
The chari below sets out a breakdown of the LTIP awards tar the Execulive Directors in 2017 and 2018 and shows the face value of the

awards and share price growth, if applicable

Graph removed
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Outstanding scheme interests, including share awards granted during the year (audited)
The lable below sels out details of the Executive Directors’ outstanding share awards as at 31 March 2018

Percentage
Maximum vesting at Exercise End of Vesting/ Awards granted during the year
number of threshold price performance exercise

Executive Award type shares"  performance tpence] period date™ Basisof award Face valug £000 Notes

LivGarfield 2015LTIP 37808 25% - 31/03/18 15/07/18 - - (al
2015 ABS 7,668 - - 31/03/15 ) MMZC}/U()HB - - (d]
2015 SAYE R 1136 - 1,584 - May-18 - - (=]
2016 LTIP 46115 m - 30319 21/06/19 {b)
2016 ABS 14,260 - - 31/03/16 78/06/19 (dl
2007LTIP 472,383 25% - 31/03/20 20/06/20 150% of salary £10155 (c]
2017 ABRS 12,860 - - 31/03/17 28/06/20 Deferred bonus £3079 ld]
2018 SAYE 1,089 - 1,652 - May-21 - - (e]
Tatal 147307 o

James Bowling 2015LTIP 14890 25%, - 31/03/18 15/07/18 - lal]
2016 LTIP 18,529 _ 25%” e 31/03/19 21/06/19 [b]
2016 ABS 9,634 - - 31/03/16 78/06/19 (dl
2016 SAYE 1.044 o 1724 - May-19 - - e}
27 LTIP 17.028 25% - 31/03/20 QUFIMQW 100% of salary E4080 e}
2017 ABS 7893 - - 31/03/17 28/06/20 Deterred bonus {184 3 ldi
Total 68,818 B .

Emma FitzGerald" 2G15LTIP 14518 25% - 31/03/18 15/07/18 - [a)
2016 LTIP 14,453 B - 31/03/19 21/08(19 (i)
2014 ABS 7112 - - 3103116 28/06/19 (d)
20017 LTIP 13287 25%, - 31/03/20 20/06/20 80% of salary ~ £318 2 lc)
2017 ABS 7514 = - 310317 28/06/20 Deferred bonus £180 WWA__[E“]N
Tatal 4,881

() Additicnal diadond equivalent shares may Be released where provided inthe rules

! Awards that are due tavest ina close period wil be released 3z scon as practicable after the end ot the tlose pericd

Iml See page 117 for detasls on Emma FitzGerald = 2016 and 2017 Annual Benus Seheme and LTIR awards on cessation otemployment

a) 2015 LTIP award

The 2015 awards are subject to a RoRC performance condition measured over three financial years. Average RoRE performance

15 compared wilh the baseline RoRE figure set by Ofwat inour FD 25% of the award will vest il average RoRC matches the baseline
figure of 5.65%, Increasing on a straight-line basis to full vesting for outperforming the baseline by 1.29 times [equwvalent te 7.29%)

The 2015 LTIP awards were granted on 15 July 2015 The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £21 49
[being the average price over the preceding three days)

b) 2016 LTIP award

I he 2016 awards are subject to a ReRE pertor mance condition measured aver three Tnancial years. Average RoRE performance
15 comparad with the baseline RoRE figure set by Ofwat inaur FD 25% of the award will vest if average RoRE matches the baseline
figure of 5,65%, increasing on a straight-line basis to full vesting for outperforming the baseline by 1.39 times [equivalent to 7 86%).

The 2016 LTIP awards were granted on 21 Jurie 2016 The share price used to calcutate the number of shares granted was £21 59
[being the average price over the preceding three days|

¢} 2017 LTIP award (awards granted during the year)

The 2017 awards are subject to a RoRE performance condition measured over three financial year s, Average RoRE performance
15 compared with the baseline RoRE figure set by Ofwat in our FD 25% of the award will vest if average RoRE matches the baseline
figure of 5 65%, INcreasing an a straight-line basis to full vesting for outperforming the baseline by 1.39 times lequivalent to 7.86%],

The 2017 LTIP awards were granted on 20 June 2017 The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £23 96
[being the average price over the preceding three days)

d) Deferred shares under the annual bonus scheme lawards granted during the year)

Each year, 50% of an Executive Director's annual bonus s deferred in shares for three years The awards are granted in the form of
deferred shares The 2017 award relates to the deferral of the annual bonus for 2016/17 The awards were granted on 28 June 2017
The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £23 94 (being the average price over the preceding three days]
The deferred shares relating to the annuat bonus for 2017/18 will be granted in June 2018
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

e] Save As You Earn (SAYE]
The Executive Directors, in commaon wath all eligible UK employees, are entitled to participate in the Company’s HMRC tax-advantaged
SAYE Scheme.

External directorships

Ermma FitzGerald was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of DCC Ple in December 2016 and. in respect of her appeintment for the
year ended 31 March 2018, she was paid fees of £49,601 [converted frorm EUR using the exchange rate of T EUR = £0 88], which she
retained {this covers the period to December 2017}

I'iv Garfield was appointed a member of the Takeover Panel in November 2017 In respect of her appointment for the year ended
31 March 2018 she was paid fees at £5,000 which she retained

Directors’ sharehaldings and summary of outstanding share interests [audited)

The Company operates shareholding requirements under which Executive Directors are expected to build and mamntain a
shareholding in the Company of 200% of salary for the CEO and 150% of salary for the CFO, Details of the current shareholdings of the
Directors and whether Exacutive Directors have met the shareholding requirements are set out below

The Cornmittee believes that it 1s an essential part of the Company’s Rermnuneration Policy that Executive Directors become material
shareholders The retention and build-up of equity 1s important in a long term business such as Severn Trent as it encourages
decisions to be made on a long term sustaimable basis far the benefit of custermers and shareholders.

The CEQ has exceeded the sharehaiding requirement applicable n 2017/18 of 200% of salary and the CFQ 15 close ta exceeding the
shareholding requirement applicable in 2017/18 of 150% of salary

Graph removed

Interests in shares as at 31 March 2018

Outstanding scheme mterests

LT'Pand  Deferredshares % Shareholding
Recruitrment  under the annual SAYE guideline
Director Benefitially owned Awards bonus oplions Total acmeved"”
Kevin Beeston 2,244 - - - 2.244 -
Dorminique Reiniche 400 - - - 400 -
John Coghlan 2,670 - - - 2470 -
Androw Duff 8,184 - - - 8,184 -
Phitip Remnant 1969 - - - 1949 - :
Darnc Angela Strank 459 - - - 459 -
Lawv Garfield 103.274 126,306 38778 2225 270,583 163%
James Bowling 23,464 50,447 17,327 1,044 92282 25%
Emma FitzGerald ! 25941 42,253 14,628 - 82,822 120% '

(1) Tne share price usad to calculate the percentage o' the share~olding guideline achreved was £18 44 [as at 31 March 2018) The guideline figures inctuds unvested ABS
shares (90% deduc ted to cover stalutory deductions)

11l As at 31 December 2017

Shares counting towards achievernent of the guideline iInclude beneficially owned shares (including shares held by connected
persons) and the net of tax value of deferred shares under the annual bonus since they are not subject te performance conditions
The Executive Directors are expected to retain ali shares received through the vesting of any incentive schemes [after the settlement
of any tax labilityl until the shareholding requirements are met

There has been no change in the Directors’ interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company between those set out above

and 22 May 2018.
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Payments for loss of office and to past Directors laudited)
Emma FitzGerald

Background
In advance of PR19 the Company has reshaped the wholesale business to create three teams Customer Delvery, Capital Delivery
and Commercial, and Production,

The reorganisation has resulted in changes to the role of the Managing Director, Wholesale Operations, held by Emma FitzGeratd

As a conseguence, following the transition of her responsibilities, Ernma stepped down from the Board on 31 December 2017 and will
leave the Company on 31 July 2018 During the penod between her stepping down as Managing Director, Wholesale Operations and
leaving the Company, she 1s focusing on developing the Company's management and integration of disruptive innovation

Emma was appointed to the Board on 1 April 2016 During this time, she led the wholesale business and played a key rote in helping
the Company achieve its success during the first half of the AMP,

On the basis that Emma’s role as Managing Director, Wholesale Operations wall no longer exist inits current form, the Commuttee has
determined under the loss of office policy under the approved Rermuneration Policy to treat her as a good leaver

Remuneration
As Emrna remains an employee of the Company, she will be paid her salary, benefits and pension for the period to 31 July 2018,
on a monthly basis. For clanty, no pay in lieu of notice will be paid after she ceases employment with the Company

Emmawas employed for the full financial year and, therefore, will receive an annual honus of 68.94% of salary in relation 1o 2017/18,
based on performance against the relevant targets [set out on page 1131 The Comrruttee has determined to pay the bonus in

cash because under the Remuneration Policy and the rules of the deferred annual bonus plan deferred share awards would vest
on cessation of employment and, given the short period between the deterrmination of the bonus for the year and her departure,

it1s administratively simpler No bonus will be paid to Emma for 2018/19 and Emma wall not receve an LTIP award for 2018/19

All unvested and unexercised awards will be treated in accordance with the applicable plan rules and our loss of office policy.

Unvested shares held under the deferred annual bonus plan will be released on cessation of employment, and rermain subject
to rmalus and clawback provisions The table below sets out details of Fmma s unvested deferred annual bonus plan shares

Award Date of grant Vesting date Number of shares
2016 ABS 28 Junc 2014 31 July 2018 702
2017 ABS 28 June 2017 31 July 2018 7516

Ermma s unvested LTIP awards will vest in line with the ardinary vesting dates, subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance
conditions Emma’s awards will be pro-rated up to the end of her employment on 31 July 2018 These awards will continue to be
subject to malus and clawback provisions The table below sets out details of Emma s unvested LTIP awards

Maximum number of shares

Award Date of grant Vesting date capable of vesting"

2016 LTIP 21 June 2014 21 June 2019 11,243

2017 LTIP 21 June 2017 20 June 2020 5.895

Ul Time pro rating applied in g cardance with the LTIP rule s from the start of the reélevant performance percd up to the date af cessation of employmont (31 July 2018]
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Total sharehotder return chart and totat remuneration of the CEQ
This graph shows the value at 31 March 2618 of £100 invested in Severn Trent Ple on 1 Apnil 2009 cornpared with the vatue of £100
mvested inthe FTSE 100 index The FTSE 100 was chosen as the comparator index because the Company 1s a constituent of that

index. The intermediate points show the value at the intervening financial year ends.

The figure of remuneration for the CEO over the Llast mne iinancial years 1s shown in the table below. The annual bonus payout and
LTiP vesting level as a percentage of the marnum opporturty 1s also shown

Graph remaved

Remuneration of the CEQ

Year ending 31 March

272 20 ?J 7 U3 707 2013 Mo s 2018
iy Tony ury Tuny 14y L Ltv Liv Ly
CeO Wiay Wray Wiy Wray Weoy Guarfleld Gar fald Gateld Garfiald
Total remuneration
[£ 000) 10270 Q498 1,244 1 16353 18184 21976 24936 24507 20843
Annual bonus
{% of maximuml 515% 43 2% 481% 82 4% 87w 52 0% 83 2% _'7_5_&%3”_72 54%
LTIP vesting
{% ot maximum] 60 3% 00% 28 &% 57 5% 100 0% 100 0% 100 0% 100 0% 100 D%
SMPvesting
% of maximum) N/A N/A /A 78 0% b4 3% N/A N/A NJA N/A
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Relative importance of the spend on pay

iedar abajeag

[

The table below shows the expenditure of the Company on staff costs against dividends paid to sharehalders for both the current and 3
prior financizl periods, and the percentage change between the twe periods &

2018 2017 " Lhange
Staff costs (Em] 288.1 2671 7%
Oividends (£m) 197.0 190 4 35%
Ul “taff Ceats trom continuing oper ations
Statement of implementation of the Pelicy in 2018/19 T
See pages 120to 126 e
Membership of the Remuneration Committee and its advisers %
The Commuttee determines, on behalf of the Board, the Company’s policy on the remuneration of Executive Directors, other c
members of the Executive Committee and the Chairman of the Board The Committee determines the total remuneration packages 5
and contractual terms and conditions for these indmduals The Policy framework for remunerating all senior exacutive managers g
IS consistent with the approach taken for Executive Directors The Committee also provides oversight of all-employee reward, 4
for example the annual bonus scheme, and reviews cascade and alignment of reward throughout the arganisation
The Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference were updated in March 2018 and can be found at www severntrent com g
The members of the Committee are listed in the table below, All are independent Non-Executive Directors, as defined under the Code, 2
with the exception of the Company Chairman who was indepandent on his appointrent During the year ended 31 March 2018, the =
Committee metl seven times to discuss key remuneration 1ssues arising, the review and operation of the Company’s Remuneration 7
Policy and market updates by 1ts advisers L
Remuneration Committee member Attendance in 2017/18 [-:,_T-
Philip Remnant [Chairman) . o 77 ¥
Andrew Duff w7 o
Kevin Beeston 77 ‘S
Dame Angela Strank 77 é"
The Commitiee members have ne personal financial interest, other than as shareholders, in the mallers to be decided. The CEQ, g

Director of Hurnan Resources and by invitation the Head of Economic Regulation and Reward & Pensions Manager also attended
the Committes meetings to provide advice and respond to specific questions. Such altendances speaifically oxcluded any maller
concerning their own remuneration The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee

To ensure that the Company’s remuneration practices are in Line with hest practice, the Commitiee has access to advice from
advisers PricewaterhouseCoopers [PwC | are independent advisers to the Committee Fees for advice provided to the Committee
during the year were £170,500 excluding VAT to PwC {2016/17 £48,000 paid to PwC and £24,676 paid to NBS] Separate teams within
PwC also provided unrelated tax consulting, pensions, and other assurance and advisory services during the year PwC 1s one of
the founding members of the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct and adheres te this Cede inits dealings with the
Committee The Committee reviews the appointment of its adwvisers annually and 1s satisfied that the advice it recerves s objective
and independent

Statement of shareholder voting at the 2017 AGM
At last year's AGM, the Directers’ remuneration report received the following votes from shareholders

Resolution B . Votes for Votes agamst Votes withheld
Approve Directors remuneration report 142422030 3,948,356 1,351.934
(97 30%] (2 70%)

The Committes has taken into account the strong suppert from sharehaolders for the current Remuneration Policy and its
implernentation in proposing the new Remuneration Policy, which)s an evolution of the current policy
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Remuneration Policy

Development of Policy report

The Commitiee sets the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors and other senior executives, taking into account the Company's
strategic objectives cver both the short and the long term and the external market The Committee addresses the need to balance
risk and reward The Committee monitors the variable pay arrangements to take account of risk levels, ensuring an emphasis on long
term and sustainable performance The Comimittee believes that the incentive plans are appropriately managed and that the choice of
performance measures and targets does not encourage undue risk taking by the Executives so that the long term performance of the
business 1s nat compromised by the pursuit of short term value. The plans incarporate a range of internal and external performance
metrics, measuring both oper ational and financial per formance aver differing and overlapping per for mance periods, providing o
rounded assessment of overall Company performance

Linkage to all-employee pay

The Committee reviews changes In remuneration arrangements in the workforce generally as we recognise that all our people
play an important role in the success of the Company Severn Trentis committed to creating an inclusive working environment and
to rewarding our employees throughout the organisation in g fair manner In making decisions on executive pay, the Committee
considers wrder workforce remuneration and conditions to ensure that they are aligned on an ongoing basis We believe that
employees throughout the Campany should be able to share in the success of the Company The annual bonus scheme 1s cascaded
throughout the orgamisation and all employees may participate in the HMRC tax-advantaged Save As You Earn [ SAYE') scheme

As part of our commitment to fairness, we have a section in this report (see page 108] which sets out more information on our wider
workforce pay condtions, our Gender Pay statistics and our diversity imbiatives Wimlstwe recognise there s always an opporturity
toimprove In relation to these issues, we believe that transparency s an important Irst step.

Shareholder views

The Committee engages proactively with the Company's major sharehalders and ts committed to maintaining an open dialogue

The Comimuttee reviews any feedback received from shareholders as a result of the AGM process Committee members are available
to answer guestions at the AGM and thraughout the rest of the year The Committee takes inta consideration the latest views of
investor bodies and their representatives, including the Investment Association, the Pension and Lifetime Savings Association and
proxy advice agencies such as Institutional Shareholder Services

Salary
Purpose and link to strategy: To recruit and reward Executive Directors of a sutable calibre for the role and duties required

Sabs a1 we Lranges frum Poliuy oyrecd

Operaiar includimg perferimar we metrics) Maximur oppor canily 4l 200 0 AGM and ra onale
» Salaries for indimdual Executive Directors « Details of the current salary levels for the No changes
are reviewcd annually by the Commuttec and Exccutive Directors are set out in the Annual
norrally take effect from 1 July Report on Remuneration on page 110
» Solaries are setwith reference to individual » Any Increasc to Executive Directors salaries !
performance, experience and contribution, will generally be no higher than the average
together with developrments in tha relevant increase far tho UK workforce However,
employment market lhaving regard to simitar a higher increase may be proposed in
roles in publicly quoted companies of a the event of a role change or promotion,
comparable sizel, Company performance, or inather excepuonal orcumstances,
affardability, the wider economic enviranment * The Company, where appropriate, may set
and internal relativities salary levels below the market reference
» In addition, when the Committee determines salary at the tma of appointraent, with the
a benchmarking exercise i1s appropreate it will intention of bringing the salary levels in
also consider salaries vathin the ranges paid line with the market as the individual gains
by the companies in the comparator groups the relevant experience In such cases,
used for remuneration benchmarking subsequent Increases in salary may be
o The Committes ntends to review the h\gher than the general rises for employces
comparators periodically and ray add until the target posiboning I1s achieved

or remove companies from the Group as
it considers appropriate Any changes
ta the cornparator groups will be set out
in the section headed Implementation

of Remuneration Policy, in the following
linancal year.
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Benefits

Purpose and link to strategy: [o provide competitive benetits in the mar ket to enable the recrwitrnent and refention of

Executive Directors.

Uprration [irclading persormance mctnics)

Sabstor wecha aes rom Prlicyagreed

Maxi WM oppur ey et27 3AGMardraiorale

» A car allowance, famiy level private medical
msurance life assurance, personal accident
insurance, health screening, an incapacity
hene’ils scheme and other ncidental benalits
and expenses

The Committee recognises the need to
mamtdl siotable flexibility nthe beaeliss
provided to ensure it 1s able to support

the abyective of attracting and retaining
persornel in order to debver the Group
strategy Therefore, anditional benefits such
as relacat.on, disturbance and expatriate
allowances and tax equalisation may be paid
as appropriate

Cirectars will be reimbursed far any
reasonable business expenses incurred In
the coarse of their duties, includ rg the tax
payable thereon

Pension

Purpose and link to strategy: To provide pension arrangements comparabte with similar companies in the market to enable the

* The value of benefits 1s based an the cost to Mo changes
the Company and there 1s no pre-determined
maxirrum imit The range and value of the

benelits affered i1s ~eviewed period cally,

recruittment and retention of Executive Directors

Op=re o Lnduding perfurmar ceine o4

Subs e ckarges romi Pobiy agred

Maxirourm Copor ary al 2213 AGM a1 31 wrale

e The Company mantains a defined contribution

scheme and/or cash supplement in Lieu
of pension

s No change for current Executive Directors
MNew appointments will have a maximum
pensicn contribution of 15% of salary
[Z%4. of salary currentlyl

» Fo- current Executive Directers, the
company contribution ta a pensicn scherne
and/or cash allowancewllbeuptoa
maximu of 20% of salary

« For any new recruit, the contribution will be
up to a maximum of 15%, of salary

+ This change aligns pension centribution
quantum for new Executive Directers with
pension contribution far the vader workforce
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Annua!l bonus

Purpose and link to strategy: lo encour age nnproved tinancial and operational performance and align the inter ests of Executive
Directors with sharehelders through the partial deferral of payment in shares

Operanor becladirg perlormance metnicsl

Maximur vpparten ¥

Sabstanive chat yes tom Palicy agresd
at 23" AGM end raticrale

« Bonuses are based on finncial, aperational,
custarner and personal performance over
a performance period of ane financial
year No mare than 20% of the banus wall
relate to personal contribution for any
Executive Director

* 50% of the bonus 15 paid in ¢ash and 507% 1n
shares which vest after three years [with the
value of any dwvidends to be rolted up and pard
onvesting) There are no further performance
targets on the deferred ameunt

» The performance measures and targets
for the annual bonus are selected annually
tg alignwath the business strategy and the
key drivers of performance set under the
regulatory framework The annua) weighting
of the bonus betwecn the various metrics and
personal contribution may vary depending an
the key prioriies of the business for the year
ahead Robust and demanding targets are set
taking into account the operating emvironment
and prioritics, market expectations and the
business plan for the year ahead

« The Cornmittec 13 of the opimion that given
the commercial sensitivity arising in relation
to the delarled Ni~ancial targets used tor the
bonus, disclosing precise targets for the
Planin advance would not be in shareholder
interests Therefore, perfurmance targets
and performance achieved will be publrshed
at the end of the performance pertod so
shareholders can fully assess the basis for any
pay-outs under the Plan

» Malus and clawback mechanisms also apply
to allow the recoupment within three years of
the payment of the cash bonus or the grant
of defet rod shares in the event of tinancial
rmisstaternent, errar in the calculation or
gross misconduct

= Any exercise of discretion by the Committes
will be communicated to shareholders
in full in the following year s Directors’
Remuneration Report

* Cessation of employment and change of
conirol provisions appt\,: assef sutin the notes
ta the Folicy table
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The rmaximum annual banus payment
will equal 120%, of salary for maximurn
performance Forthreshold performance,
0"« of maximurm opportunily will be paid.
On target performance 50% of maximum
spportunty wil) be pad
The Committee will operate all Incentive
plans according ta the rules of each
respective plan and the discretions contamned
therein The discretions cover aspects
such as the trning of grant and vesting of
awards, determining the size of the award
Isubject to the policy Lirits] the treatment
of loavers, retrospective adjustment of
awards le g for anghtsrssuc, a corporate
restructunng or for special dvidendst and, in
exceptional circumstances, the disgretion to
adjust previously set targets for an incentive
award if events happen which causeo the
Committee to deterrmine that it would be
appreprniatetodo so inexercising such
discretions, the Commuttee will take into
account generally accepted market practice,
best practice guidelines, the prgwisions of the
Listing Rules and the Company's approved
Remuncranon Policy
In exceptional circumstances the Comrnittee
retains the discretion to
al Change the performance measures and
targets and the weighting attached to the
performance measures and targets part
way thraugh a performance year if there
Is a significanl and materal evenlwhich
causes the Committee to believe the
onginat measures, weightings and targets
arc no longer appropriate and
b} Make downward or upward adjustrnents
ta the amount of bonus earned resulting
trarn the application of the performance
measures, if the Committee believe
that the benus outcomes are not a fair
and accurale re'echion of business
performance

No changes



LTIP

Purpose and link to strategy: 1o encourage strong and sustaned improvements in financial performance, in tine with the
Company’s strategy and long term shareholder returns

Operater bncludieyg perforriar ce meenicsl

Maxin 1 2ppartur ity

Subsantive charqes tam Paliry agrecd
al 2215 AGM and 1 ahieralo

» Awards are granted annually and wall be

subject to one or more performance conditions

which will be assessed over three years
» Atwoyear holding period will apply following
the three year vesting period for LTIP Awards
granted to the Executive Directors
e Currently, LTIP awards require the Company s
RoRE to outperform the target set out i
Ofwat’s Final Deterrmination A shiding scale
oftargets 1= set Differont targets and/or
perfermance measures may be set for future
L7IP awards to reflec. ne business stratagy
and regalatory framework opecrating at
that time
Using RoRE tc assess long term parformance
reflects the fecas of Ofwal in AM=6 ard s
consistent with our aim te deliver efficient
returns to shareholders RoRE measures the
raturns (after tax and interest] that cormparues
have earned by reference to the notional
requlated eguity, where regalated equity s
calculated from the RCV and noticnat net debt
The Committee believes that the use of RoRE
provides a strong augnment getween the long
tern hinarcial and cperstional per-ormance
of the Group and the reward del.vered
ta management
* No matarial change will be made to the type
of per formance conditions withaut prior
shareholder consultation
The value of dividends paid on the shares
comprising the award will be rolled up and
paid onvesting The award may be structured
as a condihonal share award [awards may also
be setiled n cash in certain arcumstances|
Malus and clawback mecharisms apply to
altow tne recoupment of Incentive awards
within threc years of vesting in the event af
financial misslalemert, an errarr calculating
the level of vesting or gross negligence, fraud
or gross misconduct
Cessation of ernployment and change of
control provisions apply as set out In the notes
to the Policy table

All-employee share plans

¢ Maximurm brrit1s 200% of salary Up te 25% of
an award may vest for threshold performance
* The Comrmittee will review the targets before
cach grant to ensure they remain appropriate
The Commitiee may change the balance of
the measure, or use different measures for
subsequent awards, as appropriate
¢ The Committee will operate all incentive plans
according to the rules of each respective
plan and the discretions contained therein
The discretions cover aspects such as
the tirming of grant and vesting of awards,
determireng the size of the award [subject to
the policy imits), the treatment of leavers,
retrospective adjustment of awards {e g
for a rightsissue, a corporate restructuring
or for special dividends) and, 1in exceptienal
crcumstances the discretion to adjust
previousty set targets for an incentive award it
events happen which cause the Commuttee to
determine that it would be appropriate to do so
Inexercising such discretions, the Committes
will take into account gemerally accepted
market practice, best practice guidelines,
the provisions of the Listing Rules and the
Company s approved Remuneration Policy
* In exceplional circumstances the Commuttee
retains the discretion to
al Change the performance measures and
targets and the weighting attached to the
performance measures and targets part
way threugh a performance year if there
15 a significant and malerial evenl which
causes the Cornrmittee to believe the original
measures, weightings and targets are no
langer appropriate, and
b) Make downward or upward adjustments
to the amount earned resulting from the
application of the performance measures,
if the Comrittee believes tha the | TIP
cutcomes are notf a fair and accurate
refleclicn o' business perlormance
Inaddition, for any awards to vest, the
Comrmitiee must be satisfied *hal there has been
ro compramise Lo the cormmmercial practices
or operationa’ standards of the Group If the
Commitiea s nol so satis’ied, “hen ire vesting
percentage may be scaled back as appropriate
hincluding to 0%

Increase in maximum LTIP opportunity

« CEQ - 200% of salary [currently 150%)

* CFO - 150% of salary [currently 100%]

The Corrmittee wilt ensure that the increased
oppor unity 1s reflectea in the level of challenge

in the LT#P targets and has introduced a stretch
target based on UQ performance

The Committee’s rationate for increasing the
maxirnum LTIP opportumty 1s as follows

» The Exccutive Directors were inexperienced at
the time the current Policy was introduced and
mncentve leve s reflected this The Commuiltee
believes that the Executive Directors are now
fully embedded in the busincss and over the past
three years they have performed successfully in
thair roles, dermonstrating an cxceptional Lovel of
commitment in executing the business strategy
ler the senehitor our of arehelders, customers
and the wider comrmunity The Committee
wants to provide an appropnate level of
incentive opportunity to deliver a competitive
total rerruneration package that retains and
motivates a truly exceptional management team
for'he ~est of 1.5 AMP and inlo ' e ~ex!

Tre Committes s keen to ensure that there s
an appropriate level of incentive oppartunity in
the rernuner ation to reflect the greater tocus

ot Ofwat on the relative performance of water
companies and the tougher regulatory context
during AMP7

Introduction of a two year holding penod
whichwill continue to operate post cessation

of employmenl to enhance long term al gnment
between shareholders, customers and
executive sinterests

L]

Purpose and link to strategy: To encourage widespread employee share ownership to enable employaes to share in the success
of the business, and to align their nterests with those of shar eholders,

Op remoe i ladirg petforma cem nes)

Moxirune apparLaery

Caborwe borges e Paliny agreced

2m 2Ny ALGM o d raier als

* The Executive Dircetors are able to partic pate
in HMRC tax advantaged al'-employes
sharc plans on the same terms as other
el gible employnes

e The maximurn lirmits under the plans are as
sot by HMRC

Mo changes
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Shareholding requirements
Purpose and link to strategy: To encourage strong shareholder alignment.

Operston indluding perormar ce matrics)

aabstantive changes ram Polizy egree.d

Maxiraur opporturtty a° 2073 AGM and ratrorale

¢ The Company operates sharehoiding n/a
requirements under which Executive
Directors are expected to build and maintain
a shareholding Intihe Company.
» The CED is expected to builld and maintain
a holding of shares to the value of 300% of
salary, and other Executive Directors 200%

of csalary

Increase in mmumum shareholding reguirermnent

« CEQ - 300% of salary [currently 200%!

* CF( - 200% of salary [currently 150%)

The Camrmuttec cansiders that higher shaceholder
requirernents will ensure greater long term
alignment between the shareholders and
Executive Directors in the light of the lugher
quanturm of LTIF awards

» Exccutive Directors are expected to retain all
of the net of tax number of shares they receive
through the LTIP and deferred share bonus
until the sharcholding requirements have

bren met

* The Comrmittee retains the discretion to
increase the shareholdings regurrements

as appropriate

External directorships

Executive Directors are permitted to take on external non-executive directorships, though normatly only cne other appointment,

te bring a further external perspective to the Group and help in the development of key individuals’ experience In order to avoid any
conflicts of interest, all appointments are subject to the approval of the Nominations Committee Executrve Directors are permitted
to retawn the fees ansing from appointments.

Approach to recruitment and promotion

The Company s approach is for the rermuneration of any new Director to be assessed in line with the principles applied to the Executive
Cirectors The Committee 1s mindful that it wishes to avoid paying more than It considers necessary to secure a preferred candidate
with the appropriate calibre and experience needed for the role In setting the remuneration for new recruits, the Committee will have
regard to guidelines and sharenolder sentiment regarding one-off or enhanced short term or long term incentive payrents as well as

giving consideration to the appropriateness of any performance rmeasures associated with an gward.

temn

Palicy

Salary, Benefits
and Pension

* These will be set i line with the Policy for existing Executive Directors

Annual Bonus

* Maximum annual participation will be set inline with the Company's Policy for existing Executive Directors and will not exceed
120% of salary

LTIP

¢ Maximurm annual participation vall be set in ine with the Company s Policy for existing Executive Directers and will nat exceed
200% of salary

Maximum Varrable
Remuneration

* The maximum variable remuneration which may be granted 15 320% of salary

‘Buyout of ncentives
forfeited on cessation
of employment

* Where the Commitlee determires that the individual circumstances of recruitment justifies the provision of a bayeut, the
equivalent value of any Incentives that will be forfeited on cessation of an Exccutive Director s previeus employment will be
calculated taking into account the following the proportion of the performance period completed on the date of the Executive
Director s cegsatian of employment, the performance condibons attached to the vesting of these incentives and the likelihood
of them being satisfied, and any ather terms and condition having a material elfect on their value [ lapsed value)

* The Commuttec may then grant up to the same value as the lapsed value, where passible, under the Company’s incentive glans
Tothe extent that 1t was not possible or practical to provide the buyout within the terms of the Company s existing incentive plans,
a bespake arrangement would be used

Relocation Policies

* Ininstances where the new Executive (irecior 1s required (o relocale or spend significant time away from his/her normatl !
residence, the Company may provide one-off compensation to reflect the cost of relocalion for the Executive Director The level
of the relocation package will be assessed on a case-by-case basis but will take inta consideration any cost of Living differences/
hausing allowance, disturbance allowances and schooling

Internal prorotions

* In the case of an internal appointment, any variable pay element awarded in respect of the prior role would be sllowed to pay out
according teo the terms on which it was originally granted These would be disclosed to shareholders in the remuneration report
for the relavant iinancia year

The Company’s Pelicy when setting fees for the appointment of new Non-Executive Directors is to apply the policy which applies
to curcent Non-Executive Directars, which 1s set aut an page 127,
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Service contracts for Executive Directors

Name Date of service contract Nature of contract Notice period Termination payments
LivGa~“leld 100414 Rolling 12 months Payments for loss of office comprise 4
James Bowling 010415 rmaxirmurn of 12 moenths salary and penefits only

Copies of the service contracts of the Executive Directors and the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are available
far inspection at the Company's registered oftice during normal business hour s,

Policy on Payments for Loss of Office
The remuneration related elements of the current contracts for Executive Directors are shown in the table below, together with
details of lhe treatment on cessation of employment. No changes Trom the 2015 Policy are proposed.

Elgment

Treatment on Cessation of Employment

General

The Commuttee will honour Executive Directors contractual entitlements Service contracts de not contaim Ligudated
damages clauses If a contractis to be tereinated, the Committee will determine such mitigation as 't considers fair

and reasonable in each case There are no contractual arrangements that would guarantee a pension with lmited or no
abatement on severance or early retirement There is no agreement between the Company and its Directors or employees,
providing “or compensahion for less of of fice or employment that cccurs because of a takeover oid The Committee
reserves the right <o make additional payments where such payments arc made 'n good faith in discharge of an existing
legal obligat on [or by way of damages for breach of such an obligation], or by way of settlement or comprormse of any
claim arising in connection with the termination of an Executive Director s office or employment

Salary, Benefits and Pension

These will be paid over the notce period The Company has discretion to make a lump sum payment in Lieu

Annual Banus
Cash Awards

Good Leaver Reasan Other Reason

Pertorrnance conditions will be measzured at the No hanus will be payable for year of cessat-on
bonus measurement date Bonus will normally

be pro-rated for the perniod warked during the

financ al year

Discretion

The Cornmittee has the following elernents of discretion

» To determine that an Executive Director 1s a good leaver Itis the Commuttee s intention to use this discretion anly in
circumstances where there 1s an appropnate business case which will be explained in full to shareholders,

* To determine whether to pro-rate the bonus to ime  The Remuneration Committee s normal psolicy s ta pro-rate for
time It s the Committee s intention only to use discretion not to pro-rate in circumstances where there 1s an appropriate
busincss case, based on the circumstances of the Executive Director s departure Use of discretion will be explained in
fult to shareholders, and

» The bonus woutd be paid at the sarme time as for the ather Executive Directors and, if the Excecutive has left employment
by that date, 1t may be paid solely in cash

Annual Bonus
Deferred Share Awards

Good Leaver Reason Other Reason
All subsisting deferred share awards will vest All subsisting deferred share awards wiil vest on the dealing day
on the dealing day after such termination after such terrmination with the exception of summary dismissal of

the participant, when any deferred share award held by the individual
shall lapse immediately on such terrmination

Discretion

The Cornmittee has the following elements of discretion

« To determine that an Executive Director s a good leaver Itis the Commuttee s intention to use this discretion only in
circumnstances where there s an appropriate business case which will be explained in full to sharehalders

» Tovest deferred shares at the end of the original deferral period ar at the date of cessation The Committee will make
Lhis determination depe~ding on the type of aood leaver reasen resuiting In the cessatton, ana

 To determine whether to pro-rate the maxirnurm number of shares to the time from the date of grant to the date of
cessation The Comrnittee s normal policy 1s not to pro-rate awards for time The Commuttee wall deterrmine whethe-
or not to pro-rate where there 1s an appropriate business case based onthe crcumstances of the Executive Directar s
departure Use of discretion will be explained in full to shareholders

(1l Gaod leaver s are defines under the Arnuat Burus Scheme Rules and the LTI Rules as an individual whase employment s terminated by the Company as a1 esu L of
inpury 11-ha alth or disability, redundancy erretirement nea:h rase 3s deterimimed by the Committe M or whase emplayment terminastes automatcally by reascn of
ther death  As stated abose, the Comimdtee alee retaing an overall die-retion to determine that an indradual - a genod leaver
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Governarnce

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Element Treatment on Cessation of Employment
LTiP Good Leaver Reason’ Uther Reason
Pro-rated to ime and performance o respect Lapse of any unvested LTIP awards

of each subsisting LTIP award

Discretion

The Committee has the following elements of discretion

* To determine that an Executive Director1s a good leaver Itis the Commuttee’s intention to use this discreticn only in
arcurnstances where there s an appropriate business case which witl be explained in full to shareholders,

» To detcrmune to pay cash in Liea of shares,

* To measure performarce over the original performance period or at the date of cessation The Compittee will make this
determination depending on the type of good leaver reasen resulting in the cessation,

* To determine whether to vest shares at the end of the original performance period or at the date of cessation
The Commuttee will make thvs determination depending on the type of good leaver reasan resulting m the cessation, and

+ To determine whether to pro-rate the maxirmum number of shares to the tme from the siart of the performance pertod
to the date of cessation The Cornmittee s normal policy 15 to pro-rate awards for fime In circumstances where there
s anapprepriate business case based on the aircumstances of the Fxeculive Direclor s depat ture, the Comimittee may
use drscretion and not pro-rate Use of discretion will be explained in full to shareholders

Helding periods

Qther

Wherc cessation of crnployment occurs during any holding period the LTIP award will continue as normal However, the

Comrmittee retains discretion to allow the award to vest when cessation of employment occurs in cortain circurnstances,

such as

+ Where the reasen for departure s death, disability or ill-health,

* Where therc are extenuating factors which impact at the ime of departure (such as unforeseen changes to personal
circumstancesj, or

* Any other reason, permitted by Cormmuittee in its absolute discretion in any particular case, except where termination
15 for dishonesty, {raud, mrsconaucl or other circumslances juslifying summary dismissal [in which cases ilis very
lkely any outstanding LTIP awards would lapse on cessalion ragardless),

There are no other historical contractuat provisions ether than those set out above

(Il Gooa leaver s are defines under the Arnual Bunus Scheme Rutes and the LIIP Ru es as an individual whose employment ts rerninated by the Contpany as a 1 @sull of
wputy, d-festihoor diasbibty redundancy or retirement b vach case, 33 determined by the Commnitee) of whose eNplopnaent ter minates auismalicatly by reason of
their death  As stated above the Comnutlee also retams an overall discretinn te deternmine that an indwvidual 1s a good feaver

Outplacement services and reimbursement of legal costs may be provided where appropriate Any statutory entitiements or sums
to settle or compromise claims in connection with a lermination would be paid as necessary Outstanding savwngs/awards under the
SAYE and the legacy Share Incentive Plan would be transferred in accordance with the terms of the plans as approved by HMRC
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Change of control o
The change of control palicy for the new Remuneration Pelicy 1s set out below. No changes to 2015 Policy are proposed &
]
Element Purpose and link to strategy QOperatian %
Annual Bonus Pro-rated to time and perfermance to the date of the The Cemmuttee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the
Cash Awards the change of control (formula included in rutes) bonus to time The Committee s normat policy 1s thatitwill pro-rate
Year of the Change the honus for ime In circumstances where there s an appropriate
of Cantrol i business case, the Committee may use discretion and not pro-rate
Use of discretion will be explained to sharehalders
Annual Bonus Subsisting deferred share awards will vest on a change The Commuttee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the
Deforred Share Awards  of control awards to time The Cormmittee s normal policy 1s that it will not pro- %
rate awards for ime The Committee will make this determination ‘5
depending on the circurmstances of the change of contral ;‘
LTIP The number of shares subject to subsisting LTIP awards  The Commuttee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the g
will viest on a change of cantrol, pro-rated to time LTIPawardsto time The Cemmittee s normal policy s that it will b
and performanze The holding period will not apply on pro-rate the LTIP awards tor time In circurnstances where there is =
change of control an apprepriate business case, the Committee may use discretion and E
not pro-rate Use of discretion will be explained in full to sharchelders 4
Shares subject to a holding period will vest on change of contral
o
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors 2
The Rermuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors, other than the Chairman, 1s determined by the Chairman and Executive %
Cirectors The fee for the Chairman 15 determined by the Remuneration Committee fwithout the Chairman present] No changes z
ta the 2014 Policy are proposed, :

Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation Maximum Opportunity 2
Fee Torecrutand retain Board fee with additional fees paid for the Senjor Independent Derectior and Details of the current fee levels z
MNon-Exacutive chairmanship of the Board Comeuttees The Chairman recesves a tatal for the Directors are set outin the
Directors of asutable  feenrespoct of his Board duties Fees are pard monthly Oirectors will be Annual Repart on Rermuneration
catibre for the role re.mbur sed for any reasonable business expenses incurred in the course on page 110
and daties required of thei duties, incluging the lax payable thereor The fee levels are set subject to
The fees far the Non-Executive Drectors and Chairman are set taking into the maximum lim:As set out Intne
account the time commitment of the role and market rates in comparable Articles of Association

companies Thefees are normally reviewed arnualty (but not necessarily

increased] effective from 1 April

The Company ~etar~s the flexibilily to pay fees 1or the membership

of cormmittees -
In exceptional circumstances, fees may alse be paid for additional time

spent on the Company s business outs:dde normal duties

Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any variable remuncration

o- receva any olber benefils

Non-Executive Directors normally serve tarms of three years They do not have service contracts Instead, Non-Executive Directors
are engaged by letters of appaintment which are terminable by either party with no notice period and no compensaticn in the event
of such termination, other than accrued fees and expenses All Directors are subject to annual appointment or reappointment

at the AGM
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Application of the Remuneration Policy

The charts below provide an illustration of what could be receved by each of the Executive Directors undear the new Remuneration
Policy for 2018/1%. These charts are illustrative as the actual value will depend on business performance in the year 2018/19 [for the
annual bonus) and in the three year period te 2020/2021 ifor the LTIP), as well as share price performance to the date of the vesting
of the share elernent of the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP awards in 2021

The on-target and maximum scenarios include an additional bar which shows the impact of share price growth avar the relevant
performance period to show how the package value 1s aligned to shareholders We have used share price growth of 5% p a for on
target performance and 10% p a for maximum performance Itis a key part of our Remuneration Policy to align interests of the
Executive Directors and shareholders through the prowision of a substantal elermnent of remuneration n shares {ncreases in the
value of rernuneration through an increase in share price are evidence of the direct link between the nterests of the two.

Graph removed

Note Mimimurm pay s lixed pay only 1 e salary + benefits + pension] On-targel payincludes fixed pay, 50% of the maxir~um bonus lequal 10 60% of salary loi both the
CkO and the CFO) and 50 % veslng of *he LTIP awards [with grant levels of 200% ot salary tor tha CEQ and 190% of salary for the CHOl Maximum pay ircludes hxed pay
and assumes 100% vesting of bath the annual bonus and the LTIF awards All amounts have been rounded to the nearest £1,000 Salary levels lwhich are the base on
whicr ether elements of the package are calculaled] are based or those applying at 1 July 2018 The value of taxable benehits 15 the cost of providing those benelits in
the year ended 21 March 2018 The Executive Directors are also permted to participate in HMRC tax advantaged all-employee share plans, on the sama terms a5 other
cligible employees, but they have been excluded from the above graph fer srmphicity

Philip Remnant
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

22 May 2018
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and the audited Group
financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2018

The performance review of the Company can be found within the
Strategic report from the inside cover to page 65 This provides
detailed information retating to the Group, its business model and
strategy, the ocperation of its businesses, future develapments
and the results and financial positien for the year ended 31 March
2018 The Governance Report set out on pages 64 to 12815
incorparated by reference into this repert and, accordingly,
should be read as part of this report

Detaits of the Group's policy on addressing the principal risks
and uncertamties facing the Group are set out in the risk
management saction on pages 57 to 65

Principal activity

The principal actity of the Group is to treat and provide water
and remove waste water in the UK and Ireland

Details of the principal joint ventures, associated and subsidiary
undertakings of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are shown in
note 19 and 47 lo lhe financial statements on pages 168 and

195 respectively

Areas of operation

During the course of 2017/18, the Group had activities and
operations In the UK and [reland On 3 July 2017, the Group
announcad the sale of its aperations in the United States

Directors and their interests

Biegraphies of the Directors currently serving on the Board are
set out on pages 68 and 69

All of the Directors, with the exception of Emma FitzGerald, will
be offering themselves for appaintment or reappointment at the
Annual General Meeting [AGM'], as set out In the Governance
Report on page 78

Details of Directors’ service contracts are set out in the Directors’
remuneration report on page 125 The interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company are shown on page 116 of that
report The Board has a documented process in place i respect
of conflicts

Insurance and indemnities

The Company maintains Directors” and Officers lability
insurance in respect of legal action that might be brought against
its Directors and Officers, As permitted by the Company's
Articles of Asseciation [the ‘Articles’), and to the extenl permitted
by law, the Campany indemnifies each of its Directors and

other Officers of the Group agamnst certain Labilities that

may be incurred as a result of their positions wath the Group

The indemnity was in force throughout the tenure of each
Director duning the last financial year, and 1s currently in force.

Severn Trent Ple does not have in place any indemnities for the
benefit of the External Auditor,

Employees

The average number of employees within the Group 1s shown
n note 9 to the financial statements on page 157,

Severn Trent Plc believes a diverse and inclusive workforce 1s a
key factor in being a successful business. Through cur Diversity
and Equal Opportunities Policy, the Company seeks to ensure
that every employee, withaut exception, is treated equally and
farly and that all employees are aware of their responsibilities
This means maore than ensuring we don't discriminate in any
way - we want to create and maintain a culture opento a
diverse populstion

We are an equal opperiunities employer and welcome
applications from allindividuals, including those with a disability
We are fully commutted to supporting applications rmade by
disabled persons, and make reasonable adjustments to their
environment where possible (having regard to their particular
aptitudes and abilities] We are also responsive to the needs of
our employees As such, should any employee become disabled
during their time with us, we will actively re-train that employee
and make reasonable adjustments to their environment where
possible, 1n order to keep thern in employment with us,

All our training, promction and career development processes
are in place for all our employees to access, regardless of thair
gender, race, age or disability The prowvision of cccupational
health programmes 15 of crucial importance to Severn Trent with
the aim of keeping our employees fit, healthy and well, including
an employee assistance programme

Employee engagement

We continuously engage with cur employees in a number of ways
to accommodate different working patterns This includes

s all people briefings. Team Talk |

= corporate communications events and roadshows held by
functions across the Company,

adedicated intranet, Streamline’,

online news portal and weekly roundup, Pipeline Naws',

zn active employee social media presence, Yarnmer,

conference calls and emall,

leadgership engagement channels - Chief Executive s weekly
blog, senior management monthly wisibility programme and
quarterly events,

¢ Company forum, and

* regular meetings with Unions

Details of the financial and economic factors affecting the

performance of the Company are shared with all employees
at the appropriate time using the methods listed above

We provide opportunities for employees to give their feedback to
the Company in a number of ways, from tearm er shift meetings
and annual employee satisfaction survays
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Governance

Directors’ report continued
Other disclosures

The Company 1s keen to encourage greater employee involvement
In the Group’s performance through share ownership To help
align employees’ interests with the success of the Company’s
performance, we operate an HMRC approved all-employee

plan, the Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme [Sharesave’], which is
offered to UK employees on an annual basis

Qver 70% of Severn Trent's UK employees participate in the
Sharesave schemne, with the average participant contributing
£142 each month

During the year, the Company has remained within its headroom
brmits for the 1ssue of new shares for share plans as set outin the
rules of the above plan

Research and development

Innovative use of existing and emerging technologies will
continue to be crucial to the successful development of new
products and processes for the Group and cur products must
continue to deliver value for customers

Expenditure on research and developrnentis set cut i note 7
to the tinancial staternents on page 156,

Internal controls

Further details of pur intermal control framework can be found
in the Audit Committee report on page 86.

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the European Union (U] Faie
Value Directive in relation to the use of financial instruments by
the Company are set out in note 34 to the financial staterments
on pages 176 to 177 Further details on our Treasury Policy and
management are set out in the Chief Financial Officer’s review
on page 95

Post balance sheet events

Detaits of post balance sheet events are set out In note 44 to the
Group financial statements on page 191

Dividends

An interim dividend of 34 63 pence per Ordinary Share was paid
on 5 January 2018. The Direclors recommend a hinal dividend
of 5192 pence per Grdinary Share to be paid on 20 July 2018 to
shareholders on the register on 15 June 2018. This would bring
the total dwvidend for 2017/18 to 86 55 pence per Qrdinary Share
[2016/17 81,50 pencel. The payment of the final dividend 1s
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM.

Dividend Policy

We have enhanced our Dividend Policy for the period 2015-2020,
with effect from 201718, and will now increase the dividend by
growth of at least RPI +4% each year This replaced the previous
Divtdend Paolicy of annual growth of the dividend at ne less than
RPluntil March 2020
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The Dvidend Policy reflects our strong operational delivery
and financial performance, while ensuring that our bills are
afferdable for all our custorners. When deterrmining the policy
the Board considered various scenarios and sensitivities, and
reviewed the impact of adverse changes in inflation and interest
rates on key metrics The Board believes that the Dividend
Policy 1s commensurate with a sustainable investment grade
credit rating.

Capital structure

Details of the Company s 1ssued share capital and of the
movements during the year are shown in note 10 to the Company
financial statements on page 202. The Cormpary has ane class

of Ordinary Shares which carries ne right to fixed income.

Each share carries the right tc one vote at General Meetings of
the Company The Issued nominal value of the Ordinary Shares
15 100% of the tatalissued norminal value of all share capital.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on
the transfer of shares, which are both gaverned by the general
provisions of the Articles and prevailing legislation The Directors
are not aware of any agreerments between holders of the
Company’s shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer
of securities or on voting rights. !

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 37 to the
financia! statements on pages 184 1o 186 For shares held by
the Severn Trent Employea Share Gwnership Trust, the Trustee
abstains from voting

No person has any special nights of control over the Company's
share capital and allissued shares are fully paid

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors,
the Company 1s governed by its Articles, the Code, the
Companres Act 2006 and related legislation The Articles

may be amended by Special Resolution of the shareholders

The powers of Directors are described in the Severn Trent Plc
Board Governance docurnent which can be found on our website,
the Articles and the Governance report on page 73

Under the Articles, the Directors have authority to allot Ordinary
Shares, subject to the aggregate nominal amount Limit set at the
2017 AGM

Change of control

There are a number of agreements that take effect after, or
terminate upen, a change of control of the Company, such as
cornmearcial contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease
arrangements and employee share plans Nene of these are
considered to be significant in lerms of their Likely impact on
the business of the Group as awhole There are no agreermnents
between the Company and its Directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office or emptoyment
because of a takeover bid



Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 March 2018, the Company had been notified in
accordance with Chapter 5 of the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules of the following majer sharehotdings

Percentage of

Na of Ordinary Shares voting rights and

Narme of holder of 97"/ .p each issued share capital
BlackRock, Ine 18,425,671 78%
Rreef Real Estate 10,248,944 4 34%
Aberdeen Standard

investments 2 308,469 394%
Legal & General

Investment

Management 8226287 3 48%
Maple-Brown Abbott 7835714 3.32%
Lazard Asset

Management 7335,575 310%

As at 27 May 7018, the Company had been notifiad of the
following haldings of veting nights in the Ordinary Share capital
of the Company BlackRock, Inc 18,297,775 shares (7 74%],

Rreef Real Estate 9988240 shares [4 23%I, Aberdeen Standard
Investrments 8 964,474 shares [3 79%], Legal & General
Investment Management 8,533,607 shares {3 61%), Maple-Brown
Abbott 8,054,740 shares (3 41)%, Lazard Asset Management
10,424,251 shares (4 41%)

The percentage of voting rights detailed above was calculated
at the time of the relevant disclosures were made in accordance
with Rule 5 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules

Authority to purchase shares

The Company was given authority at its AGM i 2617 to make
market purchases of Ordinary Shares up to @ maximurm number
of 23,603,888 Ordinary Shares During the year, no Ordinary
Shares have been repurchased

Authority will again be sought frorn shareholders at this year's
AGM ta purchase up to a maximum of 23,677,393 Ordinary Shares

The Directors beligve that it 1s desirable to have the general
authority to buy back the Cornpany’s Ordinary Shares in order to
provide maximum flexikility in the management of the Group's
capital resources However, the authority would only be used if
the Board was satisfied at the time that to do so would be in the
best interests of shareholders

Contributions for political and charitable
purposes

Donations to charitable organisations during the year amounted
to £81,947 (2017 £312,588] Donations are given to charities
whose projects align clesely with our aim to promete the
responsible use of water resources and waste water services
which provide the opportunity for longer term partnerships

In addition, we provide donations to ermnployee nominated
charities through a matched funding scheme and health and
safety reward schermes We are also cormrmitted to supporting
WaterAud, the UK's only majer charity dedicated to improving
access to safe water, hygiene and sanitation m the world's
poorest countries

Severn Trent’s policy 1s not to make any donations for poltiticat
purposes in the UK, or to donate to EU political parties or incur
EU political expenditure Accordingly, neither Severn Trent Plc
nor Its subsidizries made any political donations or incurred
political expenditure in the financial year under review,

Under the provisions of the Political Parties Elections and
Referendums Act 2000 [the relevant provisions of which

are now contained in Part 14 of the Companias Act 2006/,
shareholder authority 1s required for political donations to be
made or palitical expenditure to be incurred by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries in the EU and disclosure of any such
payment must be made in the Annuat Repert and Accounts
Ihe legislation gives a wide definition of what constitutes politicat
donations and political expenditure including sponsorship,
subscriptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for employees
fulfillng public duties and support for bodies representing the
business community i policy review or referm The Company
has therefore ohtained imited authority from shareholders
as a precautionary measure to allow the Company to continue
supporting the community and such erganisations without
inadvertently breaching the leqisiation

At the 2017 AGM, shareholders gave the Company authonity to
make political donations or to incur political expenditure in the
EU {which would not erdinarity be regarded as political donations
up ta an aggregate annual irit of £180,000 for the Company and
its subsidianies. Pursuant to those authenties, during the year
ended 31 March 2018 the Group incurred costs of £nil (2017 Enil)
Those authonties will expire at the 2018 AGM and, in line with
market practice to renew the authorities on an annual basis,

the Beard has decided to put forward a resolution to this year’s
AGM to renew the authorities to make donations to political
organisations and to incur political expenditure up to a maximum
aggregate of £150,000 p a As permutted under the Companies
Act 20086, this resolution also covers any political donahions
made ar political expenditure incurred by any subsidiaries of

the Company
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Governance

Directors’ report continued
Other disclosures

We reduce our carbon footprint

The UK s playing a leading part in reducing carbon emissions. We want to play our partin reducing our impact by reducing our
carbon emissions As tha majority of our carbon emissions are driven by our use of energy, managing carben means managing costs
We therefore aim to reduce carbon emissions and increase our generation of renewable energy

We are achieving both of these aims, and this year we have seen another reduction in overall carbon emissions We've seen a
censistent reduction since 2002 when we began publicly reporting on our greenhouse gas ermissions We have held the Carbon Trust
Standard since 2009 in recognition of this achievernent and we've boen recertified to 2019,

Graph removed

The Carben Trust Standard recognises our consistent emissions reductions and effective carbon management processes and we
scored in the top quartile of companies We continue to report to the Carben Disclosure Project [ CDP') each year which means
our climate change information s publicly accessible COP request nformation about cimate changa from companies on behalf
of Investors and score each company on the quality and completeness of their responses

During this year, we again iIncreased renewable energy generation and across Severn Trent we now generate an equivalent of 38%
of Severn Trent Water Limited's electricity needs. We continue to lead the UK water industry, with an aim af buitding on this position
by generating the equivalent of 50% of our electricity needs by 2020

We plan to continue to reduce our operational ernissions by reducing our energy use and increase our renewable energy generation,
rnainly within Business Services. Pursuing these measures will continue to reduce our key sources of emissions, reduce our reliance
on the electricity grid and bring financial benefits for our customers and investors

Report on greenhouse gas emissions
This is the hfth year Severn Trent has been required to report greenhouse gas (GHG'] emissions in the Directors report

Severn Trent1s committed to reducing its GHG emissions For Severn Trent Water Limited, which accounts for 99% of our total Group
emissians, we have been publicly reporting on our emissions since 2002 In that ime we have reduced our emissions by being more
energy efficient and generating more renewable energy.

Our GHG erussions are reported in tonnes of carbon dwxide equwalent (tCO.e'), for the period 1 Apnilt 2017 to 31 March 2018

Qur total net emissions have fallen again this year, due to our increased generation of renewable energy, a reduction in the emissions-
intensity of UK grid electricity and reduced fuel and process emissions The sale of cur US business has reduced our emissions
oulside the UK

The GHG data we report is reparted internally during the year to the Corporate Responsibiity Committee and to the Board We have
subjected our GHG data and processes to external assurance by Jacobs
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Severn Trent Ple Direct Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions [tC0:el 2013114 2014/15 201514 2016117 201718

Emissions from combustion of fuel and operation of faciliies [Scope 1] 132535 132,404 134,584 138,131 134 307
Emissions from electricity purchased for own use [Scope 2] 330,679 357756 337,028 294,426 279393
Total Annual Gross Operational Emissions 463 214 490,163 471,612 432,557 £13,700
Ermiss.ons benelit of the 1 enewable ene gy we export finclud ng

bromelhane exported for which we hold gree~ gas certificates) 21,672 38878 45,085 42,069 45333
Total Annual Net Operational Emissions 441,542 451,285 426,527 390,488 368,367
Annual GHG intensity ratio [tC0D:/unit} 2013/14 2014115 20615/16 2016117 2m7ne
Operational GHG emissions of Severn Trent per £m turnover 2486 2552 2347 2140 2174

Our approach to reporting Is based on the GHG Frotocol Corperate Accounting and Reporting Standard and we have included only
ernissions from the assets which we own and operate and which we can directly influence and reduce, known as the financial control
boundary. In accardance with the reporting regulations, we have not reported on emissions we can influence, but which we are not
responsible for, referred to as indirect ermissions We have used the ‘location based’ methodology rather than the more recently-
introduced ‘'market-based method to account for use of grid electricity in order to ensure consistency with previous years

For the appointed UK Water businesses Severn Trent Water Lirmited and Dee Valley Water Limited, we have calculated our emissicns
using the Carbon accounting in the UK Water Industry methodology for estimating operational emissions, Version 127 [released April
2018) This s a peer-reviewed calculation tool developed and used by all the major water companies in the UK it1s updated each year
to iInclude the latest available emissions factors For Severn Trenl Services, we have used the latest Defra emissions factors which
include the relevant conversion factors for overseas electricity

NG FTIRIIR IS

AIUELIBALYH

SEVERN TRENT WATER ONLY -

Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions {1C0:ze) 201314 2014115 2015/18 2016/17 2017118
Scope 1 Emissions [Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities) 123940 122,282 126,089 128584 130,642
Scope 2 Emissions {Electricity purchased for own use) 333721 357,701 340,484 298,872 264,290
mlAnnual Gross Operational Emissions 457,661 479,9§3 466,493 427456 394 851
Emiss ons benelil of the renewable ene~gy we export hincluding oiagas

for which we hold gree~ gas cer-.flicates] 18,638 24,247 24 887 22,790 27474
Total Annual Net Operational Emissions 439,023 455735 441 606 404,666 367,475

Supplier payment policy

Individual eperating companies within the Group are responsible for establishing appropriate policies with regard to the payment
of their suppliers, 1In accaordance with the Prompt Payment Code [ PPC | The companies agree terms and conditions under which
business transactions with suppliers are conducted 1t1s Group policy that provided a supplier 1s complying with the relevant terms
and condittons, Including the prompt and complele submission of all specilied documenltation, payment will be made in accordance
with agreed terms t1s also Group policy to ensure that suppliers know the terms onwhich payment will take place when business
1s agreed

Relevant audit information
The Directors confirm that
¢ 5o far as each of them s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's Auditor 1s unaware, and

* each of them has taken all the steps that he/she cught to have taken as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company's Auditor 15 aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be inter preted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

External Auditor

Having carried out a review of their effectiveness during the year, details of which can be found in the Audit Cornmittee report on
page 87, the Audit Committee has recornmended to the Board the reappointment of Delaitte LLPE. The reappointment and a resolution
to that effect will be on the agenda at the AGM Delaitte LLP indicated their willingness te continue as Auditor The Audit Committee
will also be responsible for determining the audit fee on behalf of the Board
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Governance

Directors’ report continued
Other disclosures

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4R
The informatior required to be disclosed by Listing Rule 98 4R
can be tocated in the following pages of this Annual Report

and Accounts

Section Information to be Included Location

(1) A staternent of the amaunt  Page 158
of interest capitalised

(4) Details of long term Page 123
incentive schernes

8] Section 7 in relation to Pages 19510 196
subsidiary undertakings

(2], (5], 18], Not applicable

(7). (9)-114)

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosures required by law relating to the Group's
greenhouse gas emissions are included in the Directors’ report
on pages 132 and 133,

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited
and Dee Valley Water Limited

Separate Annual Perfarmance Reports for each of Severn Trent
Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Lumited are prepared and
provided to Ofwat Copies will be available on our website or
onrequest to the Cormnpany Secretary There is no charge for
these publications

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Company will be held at the Ricoh Arena,
Phoenix Way, Coventry, CV6 6GE at 11am on Wednesday 18 July
2018 The notice convening the meeting, together with details of
the business to be considered and explanatory notes for each
resolution, is distributed separately to shareholders It1s also
available on our website

By order of the Board

Bronagh Kennedy
Group General Ceunsel and Company Secretary

22 May 2018
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

Other disclosures

The Directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial staternents in accordance with applicable law
and regulatrons

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year, Under that law the Directars
are required to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
['IFRSs] as adopted by the European Union and Articte 4 of

the IAS Regutation and have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accerdance with United Kingdorn
Generally Accepted Practice {United Kingdem Accounting
Standards and applicabie law] including FR$101 'Reduced
Disclosure Framework  Under company law the Directors must

not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the

profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements,
the Directors are required ta

¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

make judgerments and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been

followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
exptained in the financial statements, and

-

prepare the financial staternents on the Going Concern basis
unless it i1s inappropriate to presume that the Company wll
continue In business

In preparing the Group financial stalements, Inlernational
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

» properly select and apply accounting palicies,

+ presentinformation, Including accounting policies, in a

manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

provide addiional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particutar transactions,
other events and conditions on the entity s financial position
and financial performance, and

» make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue
as a Going Concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Corpany and enabte them to ensure
that the financial statements compty with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps forthe
prevention and detection of fraud and other irreqularities

The Directors are responsible for the mamtenance and

ntegrity of the corpor ate and financial information mcluded

on the Company’s website Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financiat statements rmay differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility Statement
Each of the Directors confirm that to the besl of their knowledge.,

the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financial reperting framework, give a true and fair
view of the assets, labilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as awhaole,

the Strategic repert includes a fair reviaw of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principat
risks and uncertainties that they face, and

the Annual Report and financial stalernents, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company's position and performance, business model
and strategy

This Responsibility Statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 22 May 2018 and 1s signed anits behalf by

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
22 May 2018
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Group financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Severn Trent Plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In gur opirmaen

» the financial statemenls give a true and fair view of the stale of the group s and of the parent co~pany s alfairs as at 31 Marck 2018 and of the group s profit

for the year then ended,

the group financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accoraance with International Firancial Reparting Standards (IFRSs| as adopred by the

Eurgpean Union,

+ lhe parenl company financ al slalementls have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framewerk ', and

* the financial statements have been prepared ir accordance wit™ the requirernents of the Corrpanies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financral
statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regulation

We have audiled Lhe financial staterments of Severn Trent Ple [the parent company ) and ils subsidianies [the group ) wh ch comprise

» the consolidated income statement,

« the consolidated and parent company statements of comprehensive income,

» the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity,

* the consohidated and parent company balance sheets,

» the consolidated cash [low staternent, and

« the related noles Lo the consolinaled inancial stateren.s o 47 a~d the re.aled notes to the parenl company inancial statements 110 18

The financial reporung framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group inancial statements i applicable law and IFRSs as adopled by the
Furopean Union The financial reporting frarnewerk that has been applied in Lhe preparation of the pare~t company financial statements 15 applizable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework  [United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accardance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (1SAs (UK]) and applicable law Cur respensibilities under those
standards a~e further described in Lhe auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the finaneial staements section of our report

We are independent of the group a~d the parent company In accordance with the elthical requirements thal are relevant lo our audit of the financial
staternents in the UK, including the FRC's Ethicat Standard as apelied lo Listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these recuirements We cenfirm that the nan-audit services prohibited by the FRC s Ethical Standard were not provided to the group ar
the parent company

We believe that the aud t evidence we have oblamed s sutficient ana appropriate o provide a basts for our opiien

Summary of our audit approach
Key audit matters The key audit ma*ters that we iden: fied inthe currenl year were
» Accuracy of wholesale revenue for non-househaold customers in the new water market,
* Valuation of the pravision for trade receivables in Severn Trent Water Limited,
+ Val.ation of the g-oup s retirerment berefit obligations, and
* C.assificatior and valuahion of capital expend ture in Severn Trent Water Limited

Within this report, any new key audit matters are idertilied with  and any key audit matters which are the same as the
prior year are identified with

Materiality Fhe materiality that we used tor the group linancial staterments wes C18 million (2017 £18 million) which was deter noimed
on the basis of protit before tax, gains/losses on tnancial instruments and exceptional tlems

Scoping Our aLdit scaping has resulted nover 90% of the group s net aperaling assets and profil before tax being sub ect to
audit testing

Significant changes The group disposed of its Operating Services (US) business on 30 June 2017 and therefore it has not been subject toa

in our approeach comnponent asdit for the year ended 31 March 2018 There have beer no other sigrmificant changes Lo our scoping approach.

Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

Going concern

We have reviewed the direclors statement in nole 2a to the financial statements and page 59 of the Strategic report about whether they considered it
appropriate to adopt t1e go ng concern basis of accounting in preparing them and thei= identification of any material uncerlainties to the group s and
company s abilily to continue Lo do so ever a periad of at leasl twelve months from the date of approval of the financ al statements

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation te that staternent required by Listing Rule 9 8 4RI{3]
and repart if the staternenl is matenially inconsistenl with our knowledge obtained in the audit

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or draw attention to in respect of these matters.
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Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the directors’ staternents and cansidering whether they were consistent with the knowledge we obtained in the course of the audit,

including the knowledge obtained in the evaluation of the directors assessment of the group s and the cornpany s ability to continue as a going concern,

we are required lo stale whether we have anything material to add or draw atlen'icn to in relation to

* the disclosures on pages 60 to 65 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated,

» the dicertors confirmation on page 60 that they nave carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the group including those thal would
threatenits business model, future performance, salvency or iquidity, or

the directors explanation on pages 58 and 59 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over what period they have donc so and why they
consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reascnable expectation that the group will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall duc over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumplions

We are also required to report whether the directors statement relating to the prospects of the group required by Listing Rule 78 6RI[3] s materialiy
incongistent with our knowledge obtained i the audit

We confirm thatwe have nothing material to report, add or draw attention to in respect of these matters.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those rmatters tmat, in g.r professional judgement, were ol most significance 1n our audit of *~e [ nancial statements of the current

period and include the most signiflicant assessed risks of malerial misstatement [whether o~ not due o (raud] that we identified These matters included

those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit sirategy, the allecation of resources in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagemaont team

These matters were addressed n the context of our audit of Lhe financia siatements as a whole, ard n fornu=g our opinion thergon, and 'we do nal provide a

separate opin'on on these matters

The following key audit matters from the prior year have not been included in the current year

* revenuc recognitionin retation to the estimation of unbilled metered revenue in Severn Trent Water Limited on the basis that the difference between the
amount accrued and subsequently billed has consistently represented approximately 1% ot the acerued income over a number of consecutive years, and

s tne valuation of current and deferred tax balances following the settlement of open enguires with HVMRC in the prior year

Accuracy of wholesale revenue for non-household customers in the new water market

Key audit matter description On 1 Aprit 2017 the new water retall market opencd in England, allovang eligible nen-houschold custemers the
oppar tunity to choose therr water retailes for the first fine Market Oper ator Services Limiled | MOSL " was establ shed
to facilitate the switching of custemers, and also to prowde a serv.ce to sctile accounts between water wholesalers and
retailers Severn Tront Water 1s g wholesaler Management have recorded manual adjustments to revenue compared
lo the infa~mation previded by MOSL < Core Mar«et Operating System | CMOS

Non-household revenue tor the year ended 31 March 201815 £371 4 rmuillion as disclosed onpage 85

The key audit matter has been focussed on whetner manual adjustments made to revenue are accurate Due to the high
level of judgament involved, we have determined that there was a potential for fraud through possible maniputation of
this balance

The Aud | Comrnittee alse considered this as a significant issue as discussed in the Augit Comiritlee Reaert on page 85,

How the scope of our We have challenged the assumptions applied and the integrity of management s colculation of the adjustrnents by
audit responded to the performing the following
key audit matter « evaluated the design and implementaton of key controls over the adjustments to revenue,

» understood and audited reconailing items between volume and revenue recorded by Severn Trent Water Lirmited and
the infor mation provided by CMOS specifically recalculating t~e extrapolation based on seltlement reparts 1 eceved,

+ inguired as to whether any Market Operator disputes or Market Arrangement Code disputes are open at the year end
date which could indicate that revenue has been incorrectly recorded,

* reviewod and challenged the infarmation used to build up the madel by cansidering the accuracy and completeness of
the source data used for calculating the adjustrments,

* tested the completeness of adjustments by reference to operational data, and

* benchmarked the direction of the adjustment across the industry and made direct enguiries of management of the
Group's joint venture, WaterPlus, of adjustments being recorded by thoem

Key observations We are salished that management s man.al adjustments to revenue are appropriate
Valuation of the provision for trade receivables in Severn Trent Water Limited

Key audit matter description A proportion of Severn Trent Water Limited s customers do not or cannot pay thair bills which resulisin the need for
prowvisions to be made for ron-payment of the customer balance Management makes estimates regarading future cash
collection when calculating the bad debt provisror

The value of the provision for trade recewablas in Severn Trent Water at 31 March 201815 £124 5 milhion of the total
provision of £129 0 m lhon [31 March 2017 £125 4 million of the tatal proviziar of £130 5 mullionl in note 21

Prowsions arc made aganst Severn Trent Water Lim-ted s trade recewables bascd on historical experience of low s of
recovery from accountsin particular ageing categonies The key audit ratter has been focused en the determination of
the agoing of trade recavables balances as this determines the level of provisioning to ke recorded and the historical
cash collection rates applicd to the aged debt Due to the high level of judgement invotved, wo have determined that there
was a potential for fraud through possible manipulation of this balance

The Audit Comrmi-lee also considered this as a signilicanlissue as discussed in the Aucil Committee Report on page 85
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Group financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Severn Trent Plc continued

How the scope of our
audit responded to
the key audit matter

We challenged and tested the information used to determine the bad debt provision by considering cash collection
performance against hislorical rends and the level of bad debt char ges over 'me. Speaifically, we analysed the aclual
experience of slow payng customers in the period using data analytics to consider the collect:ion of debtors that were
previcusly in each agad category Wehave also

» evaluated the design and implernentation of key rmanagement review controls over the bad debt model and
management s bad debt paper,

recongiled the debtor ageing for cach debt category used in tha bad debt provisien model using source data from
Severn Tront s customer bitling system,

audited the information used in calculating the bad debt prowsion to assess whether it was updated for current cash
coltection performance,

* assessed and audited the rationale for changes to the basis of estirnation where changes were made to the bad debt
calculalion in the current year toreflect historical cash collection patterns for debts with cerlain characleristics,

s cormpared and assessed the payment orofile and level of bad debt provision with those establishaed in
previous periods,

s consideredwhether the provision appropriately covered any exposure inherent in the accrued income elerment of the
debtor balance,

¢ deployed our spreadsheet anaiyser tool to identify anomalies in the bad debt model for further consideration, and

« considered whether any of the changes to the estimation in the year represented changes in accounting policy or
material error, which required reasscssment of the historical position

Key observations

We are satisfied Lhat the assumptions applied in assessing the impairment of trade recevables and the calculation of
the ageing of frade recevab @ are appropriate and no additional provision was identified (rom the aud t work performed

Valuation of the group’s retirement benefit obligations

Key audit matter description

Thisis an area invelving significant s, mation because the pracess s complex and requires management alter taking
advice from their actuanial advisers 'o make a number of assumptions concerring the discount rate, infllatian and
pension ncreases, and the longewity of current pensioners in order to determine the value of the scherme’s liotabities
The hey audit matter s tocused on the valvation of Lhe pension scheme labilives and the appropriateness of the
acluarial assumplions that are used to calculate it specifically with reference o the d'scount rate.

The group s retirerment benefit obligalion at 31 March 201815 (5198 mill on (31 March 2017 £574.6 million] as per nole 28
Retrred Benelil Schemes

The Audit Committee also cansidered this as a significantissue as discussed in the Audit Committee Report on page 86
Management has included this as a key source of estimalion uncerlainty In note 4 to Lthe hinancial statements

How the scope of our
audit responded ta the
key audit matter

Key gbservations

We have challenged the assumptions applied by performing the following procedures

= evaluated the design and implementation of key controls and with support trom the pension specialists within our
audit team, we challerged the assu™ptions ysed in the calculat on of the pensian scheme deficit as detailed 1m note 28,
specfically challenging the discount rate with reference to comparatle market and other third party dala, and

* assessed whether there had been any changes in the methadology to determime the assurmptions since the preor year

We are satislied that management s assumpliors in tre valualion of the retn ement benefit abligation, ncluding discount
rates, are appropriate and within a reasonable range

Classification and valuation of capital expenditure in Severn Trent Water Limited

Key audit matter description

Severn Trent Water Limited has a substantial capital programme which has been agreed with the regulator [ Ofwat |
and ther efore incurs significant expendityre in relation to the devewpmen' and maintenance of both infrastructure ana
non-infrastructure assets

Property. plant and equipment [ PPE | additions in Severn Trent Water Lirnited were £663 2 million of the total additions
of £691 2 mitbion disclosed i note 18 (€941 5 rrillion of £583 ¢ miltion at 31 March 2017)

Expenditure in relation to increasing the capacity or enhancing the network 1s treated as capitat expenditure Capital
projects may contain a combination of enhancement and maintanance activity which are not distinct and therefore there
s @ key audit matter that PPE s valued incorrectly as a result ol iterns of operating experditure being inisclassrhed,
Due to the level of judgement nvolved, we have deterrmined that there was a potential for fraud through possible
manipulation of this balance

The Audit Committee alsa constdered Lhis a significant i1ssue as d scussed in the Audit Commiliee Repart on page 85
Management has included lhis as & critical judgement in note 4 to the financial statements,

How the scape of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

We performed the following procedures to respond to the key audit matter
* we assessed the group’s capitalisation policy to determine compliance with relevant accounting standards,

« wo evaluated the design and implementation and tesied the operating effectiveness of controls over the application of
the policy to expenditure incurred on projects within the group’s capital programme during the year,

.

for a sample of capital projects, we assessed the applicabion of the capitalisation policy to the costs incurred by
understanding the inital business ¢ase for the project and ensuring that it had been approved by the relevant capital
programme board, and

-

we agreed a sarnple of costs to third party invaices and assessed whether the split between capital and operating
expenditure was aligned to the origmal approved business plan

Key observations

We are salished tha® the va.uation and classification of assets capitalised in the year is appropriate.
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Our application of materiality

We define mateniality as tne ragnitude of misstaternent in the inancial staternents that makes it probable Lhat the economic decisiens of a reasonably
k-~owledgeable personwould he changad or nfluenced We use maleriality both in planning the scepe of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work

Based on cur pro‘ess onal jJudgement, we determired materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Materiality £18 rmullion {2017 £18 miluon} £16 2 milion (2017 £16 2 million]
Basis for determining materiality Approxirnately 5 6% (2017 approximately 5 7% of 3 0% of net assets (2017 3 0%] capped to 0%
profit before tax, gans/losses on financial instruments of group mater.ality
and exceptional itemns
Rationale for the Asin 201/ prottbefore tax, gams/losses on financia The parent company dovs rot trade or exist tor profit
benchmark apptied instruments and exceptional iterns has beenused inorder  generating purposes so materiality has been determined
to focus on the group's underlying trading performance using net assets

consistent with the group’s internal and external reporting

We agreed with the Audit Comrmettee that we would report
to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £750,000
(2077 £750,0C0] for the group as well as differonces below
that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on
gualitative grounds We also report to the Audit Committec
on disclos, e matlers that we dentfied when assessing
the cverall presentat s of the financia statements.

Grapb removed

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our group audit was scoped by obta ning an understanding of the group and its environment, including group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of
material misstatement at the group level

Regulated Water and Waste Water 1s primarily comprised of Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited which were subject to a full scope
aud-t using a materiatity of €£15m and £0 4m respectively We have audited a further 10 components using individual statutory matenalities which range
trorn Ca4 000 1o £9,000,000 Operating Services USwas disposed on 30 June 2017 contributing £42 1 nullion of reveniue and profil betore interest and tax of
L1 A rulbion and was subject to analytical review

This represents aver $0% (2017 over 90%)] of the g-oup s net operaling assets and prof t befare tax, gains/.osses or “inancial instruments

and exceptional ilems

We alse testen the conscolidatior process and carriza out analylical procedures o confirrn our conclusion tnal there were na significant risks of material
misstaiernent of the aggregated financial information of the remaini~g corpenents not subject to full scope audit procedures

Our scoping 1s consistent with the prior year except that Water Plus Limited, Derwent Insurance Limited and Lyra Insurarce Guerascy Limited have not been
audited by separate component tearns in 2018 They are subject to audit procedures performed by the Group sudit team

Other information

The directors are responsiblc far the other infarmation Tre other information comprises the infermatien included in the annuat report other than the

financial statements ana our aJdior s report thereen

Our opimon an the fnanciat slaterments does net cover the other mtorrmation and, except o the extent o herwise exuhcitly staed nour repert, we do nel

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our cudit of the financia’ stalements, cur responsibility 15 to read the other information and, in doing so, consider wnether the olher

infarmation 1s materially nconsistent witk the financial statements o out knowledge obtained n the audit o1 ctherwise appea~s .o be materially misstaled

ifwe identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there 15 a material misstaternent in

the financial stalements o~ a material misstatement cof the other information If based an the work we have performed, we conclude thal trere s a material

misstaternent of this other intormation, we are regaired to report that fact

In this conlext, matlers lhat we are specilically required lo repor Lo you 23 uncarrecled maleria rmisslaternents i the other infarmalion include whe e we

conclude that

+ Fair balanced and understandable - “he sta ement giver by the directors thal they cansider the annual repert and inancial statements ta<en as a whole
15 far, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for sharekolders to assess the group s position and performance businsss
model and strategy, 1s matenatly inconsistent with our knowledye obtained in the audit, or

s Audit commuttee reparting - the section describing the work of the Audit Committee docs not appropriately add: ess matters communicated by us to the
Audit Commattee, or

» Directors starement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the directors staternent requircd under the Listing Rules
relaling Lo the company s compliance wi'~ the UK Cor porale Gover nance Code contaiming piovisions specified for review by the a.d tor inaccordance wilh
Listing Rule 9 8 10R(2] do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018 1 39

ierdaribaie ng

ERNILOPELNS]

SJUBLLIBIEIS 1B URUL dNOLG

SJUALLY PIT B R AuRdUeD

IRINTEASTRENITS}



Group financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Severn Trent Plc continued

Responsibilities of directors

As explamed mare fullyin the Directors responsib lities stalerent, the directars are responsible [ar te preparation of the financial staternents ard lor
being satisliad tha- they qive a true and farr view and for such internal cortrnl as the directors deleroine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror

In preparing the linancia statements, the directors are responsible for assessirg lhe group s and the parent company’s ability to cont nue as a going concern,
disclosing as applicable, matters relafed to going concern and using the gaing concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
group or the parent cornpany or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are ta oblan reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whote are tree from matenial misstatement, woether due to
fraud or error, and to1ssue an auditor s report that includes our opinian Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an
audit conducted 1n accordance with 1SAs (UK] will always detect a material misstatement when it ewsts Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered matenalif, individually orin the aggregate, they cou d reasonably be expected to infli.erce the econamic derisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial stalerments

Aturther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements s located on Lhe Finanaial Reporling Council s websire at
wew fro org uk/autioreresponsibiibies This descniphon formns part of our auditor s report

Use of our report

This repart s made solely to the company s mermbers, as a body, n accordance wath Chaptar 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company’'s members those malters we are required to state to themn in an auditor s report and for na other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law. we dao not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company s members as a bedy,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004
In ouropinion the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accardance with the Cornpanics Act 2004

Inour opimon, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

* lhenformation given in the Sirategic reper® and tne Directors’ meport for the himancia year tor which the inancial stalemenls are prepared Is consisien
wilh the financial stalements, and

* the Strategic report and the Directors report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the ight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their envirenment obtained in the course ot the audit, we have not
dentified any malerial misstatements in the strategre repor i or the aireclors eport

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit, or

¢ adequatle accounting records have not been kept by the parent comipany, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recesved from branches not
visited by us, or

* the parent company financis| slatemnents are not In agreeent with the acceunting records and returns
We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters,

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if Inour opinion certain disclosures of directors remuneration have not been made or the part
of the Directors’ remunecation repert to be audited 1 not in agreement with the accounting recerds and returns

We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters
Other matters

Auditor tenure

We were appointed by the Company at 115 annual general meeting on 26 July 2005 to audit the inancial stalements of the Company lor he year ending
31 March 2006 and subsequent linancial periods Fallowing a compelitive tender process, we were reappainled as audilot ef the Company lor Lhe year
ending 31 March 2016 and subsequeni linanciat pericds

Our total uninterrupted period of engagement 1s 13 years. covering perods from our initial appointment through to the year ending 31 March 2018

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit committee
Our audit opinion ts consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we arc required to prowide in accordance with 1SAs (UK)

ari Hale, ACA {Senior statutory auditor)
Forand on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

22 May 2018
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 017
|restated)
MNates £m £m
Turnover 5,6 1,694.1 16380
(Operating costs before exceplional items B 7 {1,153.1) (1.1179]
Exceplional itemns 8 (12.6) 16 &
Total operating costs 11,165.7) (1,701 3]
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 5 541.0 5201
Exceptional items ) 8 2.6 166
Profit before interest and tax 528.4 5347
Finance income 10 67.7 722
Finance costs 1 (287.2) (277 3)
Net finance costs [219.5) (205 1)
Net losses on financial nstruments 12 16.7) (18
Share of net protit/(loss) of joint ventures accounted for Using the equity method 19 0.2 (18]
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation o - 302.4 3280
Current tax 13 (32.9 {36 3
Ceferred tax 13 (29.0} (22 4]
Exceplional tax 13 - 52 7
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 13 61.9) 16 5]
Profit for the year from continuing operations 2405 3215
Prafit for the year from discontinued operations 39 13.2 211
Profit for the year 2537 342 6
Attributable to:
Owners of the company 253.7 342 8
Non-controlling interests - (02
253.7 342 6
Earnings per share
2018 2m?
[restated]
pence Py
From continuing operations
Basic 15 102.2 136 8
Diluted 15 101.9 136 2
From continuing and discontinued operations o
Basic _ 15 107.8 1459
Diluted 15 107.5 1453
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Group financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2m7
£m £m
Profit for the year 253.7 342 6
Other comprehensive income/(loss]
{temns thal will not be reclassified to the income slalement
Net actuarial gain/(loss) 29.1 (311 2)
Tax on net actuanal gainflass (7.6] 5463
Deferred tax arising on change of rate - (31
21.5 {258 0)
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Gams/ilosses) on cash flow hedges 58 189
Deferred tax on gains/losses on cash flow hedges (1.0) 13
Armounts cn cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement 8.2 29
Deferred tax on transfer to the income statement (1.4) 10 4)
Exchange movernent on translation of overseas results and net assets {1.8) 572
Cumulative exchange gains taken to the income statement [29.8) (28]
(19.8) (18
Other comprehensive income/(loss] for the year 1.7 (259 8]
Total comprehensive income for the year 255.4 828
Attributable to:
Owners of the company 255.4 831
Non-controlling interests - 03]
255.4 828
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Equity attributable to owners of the company

Share Share Other Retained cnntro'flc::g Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
€m Em £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2016 2343 106 8 116 5 5598 10174 11 1,0185
Profit for the year - - - 3428 3428 02) 3424
Lasses on cash flow hedges - - B0l - (30l - {8 0]
Neferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - - 13 - 13 - 13
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the
income statement - - 29 - 29 - 29
Deferred tax on transfer to the income statement - - [0 4] - [0 4] - [04)
Exchange movernent on translation of overseas T
results and net assets — - 53 - 53 01 52
Cumulative exchange gains transferred to
income statement - - {28 - 12 8l - 28
Net actuarial iosses - - - (311 2) (311 2] - (311 2}
Tax onnet actuarial losses - - - b6 3 063 - 563
Deferred tax arising from rate change - - - (31) (31) - {31}
Transfer net of deferred tax - - 70 (7 0) — — -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - 53 778 831 (03] 828
Share options and LTIPs o
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 04 o7 B - - 61 - 61
-value of employees services - - - b7 467 - b2
Current tax on share based payments - - - 038 08 - 08
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 01 01 - _ar
Disposal of non-controlling interest - - - - - 08 (08
Dradends pad - - (190 4) (190 4] - {190 4)
At 31 March 2017 2347 1125 1218 454 3 9233 - %233
Frofit for the year - - - 2537 2537 - 2537
Gains on cash flow hedges - - 58 - 58 - 58
Deferred tax on gains on cash (low hedges - - (1 0] - 10 - (10}
Arnounts on cash flow hedges transferred ta the
income statement - - 82 - 82 - 872
Deferred tax on transfer to the incorme staterment - - {14] - [14) - (14
Exchange movement on translation of overseas
results and net assets - - [1 6] - (16] - 16}
Cumulative exchange gains transferred to
income staternent - - {29 8 - (298] - (258}
Net actuarial gains - - B - 291 291 - 791
Tax on net actuarial gans - ~ - {7 6] (7 4] - (7 &)
Transfer belween reserves - - (%0 98 - - -
Total comprehensive {loss]/income for the year = - [28 8) 2847 2554 - 255 4
Share options and LTIPs B B o
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 04 52 - - 5 - 56
~value of employees services = - - 69 69 - &9
Current tax on share based payments - - - 08 08 - 08
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - (3] (13 - 113
Dividends paid - - - 1970) (1970 - (1970]
At 31 March 2018 235.1 177 93.0 547.9 993.7 - 793.7
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Group financial statements

Consolidated balance sheet
At 371 March 2018

2018 2017
Metes m £riv
Non-current assets
Goodwitt 16 62.2 810
Other intangible assets 17 88.4 809
Property, plant and equipment 18 8,471.9 8116 4
Interests in jaint ventures 19 37.6 374
Derwative financial instrumenls 20 36.0 &70
Trade and other receivables 21 181.3 581
Retirement benefit surplus 28 18.2 98
8,89%.4 8450 4
Current assets
Inventory 18.5 162
Trade and other receivables 21 £56.4 5178
Current tax receivable - 73
Derivative tinancial instruments 20 0.2 -
Cash and cash equivalents 22 51.1 44 6
526.2 5859
Current liabilities
Borrowings 23 (308.71 (559 4]
Dervative financial instruments 25 - [04)
Trade and other payables 26 (462.6) [4519]
Current tax payable (8.6) -
Provisions for Lrabilities 29 (40.6) 175)
{820.5) 11.029 4)
Net current Liabilities 294.3) (443 5)
Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings 23 (5.259.1) (4,719 6)
Dervative financial instruments 25 (116.0 184 1)
Trade and other payables 26 [1,009.4) [9557]
Deferred tax 27 [674.4] (62371
Retirement benefit okligations 28 (538.01 1584 4)
Provisions for iabilites 29 (10.7] 163
17,607.6) [7.083 8)
Net assets 993.7 9233
Equity
Called up share capitat 30 2351 2347
Share premium 31 17.7 125
Other reserves 32 93.0 1218
Retained earnings 5479 4543
Total equity 993.7 9233

Signed on behalf of the Board whe approved the accounts on 22 May 2018

Andrew Duff James Bowling

Chairman Chief Financial Officer

Company Number 02366619
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2018

gl am e

2018 200 o

Notes £m Em z
Cash generated from operations - 40 773.3 8510 :
Tax receved 40 8.0 206 a
Tax pad 40 14.5] (42 &)
Net cash generated from operating activities 766.8 82972
Cash flows from investing activities .
Purchase of subsidiaries net of cash acquired 0.2) [777)
Investments in associales and joint ventures L - 138
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (608.5) (519 2) g
Purchases of intangible assets and goodwill (27.3) (291] s
Contributions and grants recesved o 34.8 395 2
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries and cther businesses net of cash disposed 25.1 51 g
Proceeds on disposal of business to joint venture net of cash disposed o - {10 8] g
FProceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment o 8.0 75 g,
Net loans advanced to joint ventures o [26.6) (109 0)
Froceeds on maturity of forward contract _— - 43 o
Interest recewed 6.4 14 ,;
Net cash from investing activities (585.3) 7015 =
Cash flow from financing activities g
Interest paid I [183.4) 1172 6) [5:
Interest element of finance lease payments (5.1) (58 e
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent o (197.0) (1904 g
Repayments of borrowings - [552.6) (276 2] a2
Repayments of obligations under finance leases o 1.8] 5 o
New loans raised 789.2 498 0 :
Issues of shares 5.6 61 g
Swap termination payment 140.0 - =
Net cash flow from financing activities (185.1) 1142 4) -
Net movermnent in cash and cash equivalents {4.6) 14 7)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 44.6 552
Effect of foreign exchange rates (1.5) 41 -
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of year 385 L4 6
Cash and cash equivalents L 347 258
Bank overdrafts L 12.6) =
Short terr deposits 16.4 188
Net cash and cash equivatents at end of year 38.5 L4 6
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

1 General information

The Severn Trent group has a number of operations These are
described in the segmental analysis in note b

Severn Trent Plc is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
United Kingdorn The address of its registered office 1s shown an
the back of the cover of the Annual Report and Accounts

Severn Trent Plc s listed on the London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies

a| Basis of preparation

The financial staternents for the group and the parent company
have been prepared on the going concern basis [see strategic
report on page 59) under the histarical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of certamn financial assets and
batilities at far value

{il Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS’. International Accounting Standards [1AS ) and IFRIC
mte! pretations Issued and effective and ratified by the kuropean
Union as at 31 March 2018

liil Parent company financial statements

The parent company financial statements have been prepared
in accardance with United Kingdomn Accounting Standards and
comply with the Cornpanies Act 2006 The company meets the
definttion of a qualifying entity as detined in FRS 100 ‘Applicatian
of Financial Reporting Requirements’, accordingly the company
has elected to apply FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’

Therefore the recognition and measurement reguirements of
EU-adopted IFRS have been applied, with amendments where
necessary in arder to comply with Companies Act 2006 and The
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports] Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/410] as the parent campany
financial staterments are Companies Act 2006 accounts.

As permitted by FRS 101, the parent company has taken
advantage of the disclosure exemptions avarlable under

that standard In relation to statement of cash flows, share
based payment, financial Instruments, capital management,
presentation of comparative information in respect of certain
assets, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets

and related party transactions Where required, eguivalent
disclasures are given in the consolidated financial statements.

As permutted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no
profit or loss account or cash flow statement 1s presented for
the parent company The profit for the year is disclosed in the
staternent of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
In equity and the balance sheet.

Severn Trent Ple is a partner in Severn Trent Lirnited Partnership
{ the partnership’], which is registered in Scotland. As the
partnership s included in the consolidated accounts, the parent
company has taken advantage of the exermption conferred by
Regulation 7 of [he Partner ship [Accounts) Regulations 2008
from the requirements of Regulations 4 10 6.
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The key accounting policies for the group and the parent
company are set out below and have been applied consistently.
Oifferences in the accounting policies applied 1IN the
consolidated and the parent company financial statements are
described below

tiif) Prior year restatement

Prior year figures in the consolidated incomne statement,
related notes and alternative performance measures i nofe
46 have been restated to present separately amounts relating
W operations dassihied as discontinued inthe current year
For details, see note 3%

b] Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results

of Severn Trent Plc and its subsidiaries and joint ventures
Results are included from the date of acquisition or incorporation
and excluded from the date of disposal

Subsidiaries are consclidated where the group has the power

to control a subsidiary.

Jaint venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity

basis where the group exercised joint control under a

contractual arrangement

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of subsidraries are

identified separately from the group's equity. Non-controlling |
interests constst of the amount of those interests at the date

of the oniginal business cormbination and the non-controlling

interests’ share of changes in equity since that date

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries have
been elirminated on censolidation and are not included within
the group financial statements.

c) Revenue recognition
Revenue includes turnover and interest income

Turnover represents the fair value of consideration recewvable,

excluding value added tax, trade discounts and intercompany

sales, Inthe ordinary course of business for goods and

services provided i

Turnover s not recognisad until the service has been provided to

the customer or the goods to which the sale relates have either

been despatched to the customer or, where they are held on the .
customer's behalf, title has passed to the customer

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of mains water
and waste water charges unbilled at the year end The accrualis
estimated using a defined methodology based upon @ measure
of unbilled water consumed by tarff, which 1s calculated from
histarical billing information

Interest income 1s accrued on a ime basis by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

d] Exceptional items

Exceptionat items are Incorne or expenditure, which individuatly
or. if of & similar type, In aggregate should, in the opinion of

the directers, ke disclosed by virtue of their size or nature if

the financial statements are to give a true and fair view. In this
context, materiality 1s assessed at the segment level



2 Accounting policies continued

e] Taxation

Current tax payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation is provided in full on taxable temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabiities

and their carrying amounts in the financial statements
Deferred taxation s measured on a non-discounted basis using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax assetis realised orthe
deferred tax lability 1s settled

Adeferred lax assel 15 only recognised to the extent it 1s probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be avaitable in the future to
utilise 1t

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there s a
legatly enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax labilities

f} Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
censtderation over the fair value of the net assets acquired
Geodwill arising on acquisition of subsidharies s included

i intangible assets, whilst goodwall arising on acquisition
of asseciates or joint ventures s included innterests in
associates or joint ventures respectively If an acquisition
gives rise to negative goodwill this 1s credited directly to the
incorne staterment Fair value adjustments based on provisional
estimates are amended within cne year of the acquisition,

If required, with a correspanding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill arising on all acguisitions prior to 1 April 1998 was
written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eliminated
against reserves Following the disposal of the US Operating
Services business on 30 June 2017, alt acguisttions prior to

1 Aprit 1998 that were included in goodwll have now been sold
Furchased goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries after
31 March 1998 1s treated as an intangible fixed asset.

Goodwill 1s tested for iImpairment in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2 kl below and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses Goodwill 15 allocated to the cash-generating
unit that derves bensfit from the goodwill for impairment
testing purposes

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and ail or
part of that unit 1s disposed of, the associated goodwill 1s included
in the carrying amount of that operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal of the operation

gl Other intangible non-current assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost
Following initial recognition, finite Life intangible assets are
amertised on a straight-line basis aver their estimated useful
economic Lives as follows

Yeadrs
Software L 3-10
Other assets 7-20

Amortisation charged on intangible assets 15 taken to the Income
staternent through operating costs

Finite Lfe Intangible assets are raeviewed for impairment where
indicators of Impairment exist (see 2 k] below]

Intangible assots wath indefinite uselul lives are carried at cost less
accurnulated impairment losses Such assels are reviewed for
impairment at least annually and where indications of impairment
exist In accordance with the policy set out in note 2 k] below

Development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset
and wnitten off over its expected useful econemic Uife where the
following criteria are met

= 1t 15 technically feasible to create and make the asset available
for use or sale,

there are adequate resources available to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset,

there is the intention and ability to use or sell the asset,

it1s prabable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits, and

» the development costs can be measured reliably
Research expenditure 1s expensed when it 1s incurred

h) Pre-contract costs

Costsincurred in bidding and preparing for contracts are
expensed as incurred except where 1t is probable that the
contract will be awarded, in which case they are recognised
as a prapayment which 1s written off to the income staterment
over the life of the contract

The group assesseas thatit1s probable that a contract will be
awarded when preferred bidder or equivalent status has been
achieved and there are no significant iImpediments to the award
of the contract

il Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is held at cost {or at deemed cost
for infrastructure assets on transition to IFRS] less accumulated
depreciation and imparment Expenditure on property, plant
and equipment retating to research and develcpment projects

15 capitalised and depreciated over the expectad useful life of
those assets

The costs of ike-for-like replacement of infrastructure
components are recognised In the income statement as they
arise Expenditure which results in enhancements to the
operating capability of the infrastructure networks 1s capitalised

Where items of property, plant and equipment are transferred

to the group from customers ar developers, the farr value of the
asset transferred s recognised in the balance sheet Fairvalue
15 determined based on estimated depreciated replacement

cost Where the transfer s in exchange for connection to the
network and there 1s no further obligation, the corresponding
creditis recognised immediately in turnover Where the transfer
15 considered to be inked to the provision of ongoing services
the corresponding credit 1s recorded in deferred income and
released (o operating costs over the expected useful tives of the
related assets

Where assets take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, the borrowing costs directly attnibutable to the
acquisition, construction or production of these assets are added
to their cost
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 Accounting policies continued

il Property, plant and equipment continued

Property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated, using the
straight-line rmethod, to ts estimated residual value gver its
estimated useful Life, with the exception of freehold land which
15 not depreciated Assets in the course of construction are nat
depreciated until commissioned

The estimated useful lives are.

Years
Infrastructure assels o
Impounding reservoirs 250
Raw water agueducts 250
Mains B 80- 130
Sewers 150-200
Other assets
Buildings 30-80
~ixed plant and equiprnent 20-40
Vehicles and mobile plant 2-13

jl Leased assets

Leaseswhere the group obtains assets which transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
group are treated as finance leases The lower of the faw value
of the leased asset or the present value of the mimimum lease
payments s capitatised as an asset with a corresponding liability
representing the obligation to the lessor Lease payments are
treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge,
the capital element reduces the obligation to the lessor and
the finance charge 1s writlen off Lo the Income statement at a
constant rate over the penod of the lease in proportion to the
capital amount outstanding Depreciation is charged over the
shorter of the estimated useful Life and the lease period

Leases where substantally all the risks and rewards of
ownership remain with the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease Leases of land
are normally treated as operating teases, unless ownership s
transferred to the group at the end of the lease

k) Impairment of non-current assets

It the recaverable amount of gnodwill, an item of property, plant
and equipment, or any other non-current asset i1s estimated to be
less than its carrying amaunt, the carrying amaunt of the asset
is reduced to 1ts recoverable amount Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent tram other assets, the
group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount s the
righer of fair value less costs to sell or estimated value in use

at the date the impairment review is undertaken. Fair value less
costs to sell represents the amount obtainable from the sale of
the assat in an arm'’s length transaction between knowledgeable
and willing third parties, less costs of disposal Value inuse
represents the present value of future cash flows expected to e
derived from a cash-generating unit, discocunted using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
cost of capital of the cash-generating unit or asset

The discount rate used s based on the group’s cost of capital
adjusted for the risk profiles of ndiwvidual businesses.
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Goodwill Is tested for impairment annually. Impairment reviews
are also carried out if there 1s an indication that an impairment
may have cccurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure
that non-current assets are not carried above their estimated
recoverable amounts

Impairments are recognised in the incorme statement

L) Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions recewed in respect of non-current
assets, Including certain charges made as a result of new
connections (o the water and sewerage networks, are treated
as deferred income and released to operating costs over the
useful econormic bife of those non-current assets

Grants and contributions which are given in compensation for
expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised
10 operating costs in the period that they become recevable.

m) Parent company investments
The parent company recognises Investments o subsidiary
undertakings at historical cost

After imtial recogmition at cost (being the fair value of the
consideration pard], investments which are classified as held
for trading or available for sale are measured at fair value, with
changes in fairvalue recognised in the income statement or
equity respectively When an avarlable for sale mvesimentis
disposed of or impaired, the gain or loss previously recognised
mreserves1s taken to the ncorme statement

n] Loans receivable

Loans recelvable are measured at fair value on inttial recogmition,
less 1ssue fee iIncome received Afterinitial recognition, leans
recetvable are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method whereby interest and issue fee
income are credited to the income staterment and added to the
carrying value of loans recewvable af a censtant rate in proportion
to the loan arnount ocutstanding.

ol Trade receivables

Trade recevables are measured at farr value on inmitial
recagnition. |f there 15 objective evidence that the asset s
impaired, it 1s wittten down to 1ts recoverable amount and
the irrecoverable amount Is recognised as an expense in
operating costs

Trade recelvables that are assessed not to be impaired
indmadually are assessed collectively forimpairment by reference
to the group s collection experience for receivables of similar age
or characteristics

pl Service concession agreements

Where the group has an unconditional nght to recewve cash irom
a government body in exchange for constructing or upgrading a
public secior asset, the amounts receivabte are recognised as a
financial asset in prepayments and accrued income.

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are
recognised on a straight-line basis, before adjusting for expected
inflation, over the life ¢f the contract.



2 Accounting policies continued
gl Retirement benefits

(i) Defined benefit schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit penswon
scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme liabilities
Is recorded on the balance sheet as a rebirement benehit asset
or obligation

Defined benefit pension scherne assets are measured at fair value
using brd price for assets with quoted prices. For scheme assets
with no quoted price, the fair value 1s derived by using quotations
from independent third parties or by using applicable valuation
techniques at the end of each reporting period Detined benefit
pension scheme Liabililies are measured at the balance sheet date
by an independent actuary using the projected unit method and
discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate
bonds of equivalent term and currency to the Liability.

Service cost, representing the cost of employee service in the
year, 15 included in operating costs Net finance cost s calculated
by applying the discount rate used for the scheme liabilities to the
net obligation

Changes in the retirement benefit obligation that arise from

¢ differences between the return on scheme assets and interest
income ncluded in the iIncome statament,

» actuarial gains and losses from experience adjustments, and

= changes in demographic or financial assumptions,

are classified as remeasurements, charged or credited to
other comprehensive iIncome and recorded in the statement of
comprehensive iIncome in the period inwhich they arise

There 1s no contractual agreement, or stated policy, for charging
the net defined benefit cost to participating group companies,
Therefore, the parent recegnises a charge in the income
staternent which 1s equal to the contributions payable in the year
The net defined benefit cost for these schemes 1s recognised by
the sponsoring employers, Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee
Valley Group Limited

(i) Defined contribution schemes
Contribulions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged
to the mcorme statement in the period in which they fall due

rl Provisions
Provisions are recognised where
* there s a present obligation as a rasult of a past event,

* 1t15 probable that ther e will be an outflow of economic benefits
to settle this obligation, and

* areliable estimate of this amount can be made
tnsurance provisions are recegrmiscd for claims notified and for

claims incurred bul which have not yel been notified, based on
advice from the group’s independent insurance advisers

Provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the Lability wher e
the effect is material

sl Purchase of own shares

Where market purchases of Severn Trent ordinary shares are
made through an cbligating contract, a bability for the present
value of the redemption amounl s recognised and charged to

retained earnings Payrnents for the purchase of shares are
charged to the hiability when made

Shares held by the Severn Trent Ernployee Share Qwnership Trust
which have not vested uncondihionally by the balance sheet date are
deducted from shareholders funds until such time as they vest

t) Borrowings
The accounting policy for borrowings that are the hedged iterm
in a fair value hedge 1s set out In note 2 u).

All other borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less
Issue costs After imitial recagnition, borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method whereby Interest and 1ssue costs are charged to the
income statement and added to the carrying value of borrowings
at a constant rate in proportion to the capital amount outstanding

Index-linked debt 15 adjusted for changes in the relevant inflation
index and changes in value are charged to finance costs,

Borrowings dencrminated in foreign currency are translated
to sterling at the spot rate on the balance sheet date
Exchange gains or losses resulting from this are credited
or charged te gains/losses on financial instruments,

u) Derivative financiat instruments

Dervative financial instruments are stated at fair value, including
accrued interest Fairvalue is determined using the methodology
described in note 34 al The accounting policy for changes in fair
value depends on whether the derivative 1s designated as a hedging
mstrument The various accounting policies are described below

Interest recevable or payable in respect of derwvative financial
instruments s included in finance income or costs.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instrurments

Gains or losses arising on remeasurement of derivative financial
nstruments that are not designated as hedging instruments

are recogmised In gamns/losses on financial instruments in the
income statement

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

The group uses derwvative financial Instruments such as crass

currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate

swaps to hedge its nisks associated with foreign currency and

interest rate fluctuations.

At the inception of each hedge relationship, the group documents

* the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged rtem,

* its nisk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
the hedge transaction, and

s the results of tests to determine whether the hedging
instrument 1s expectad to be highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows (as appropriate] of the
hedged item

The group continues to test and document the effectiveness of

the hedge on an engoing basis

Hedge acceunting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument

expires, 1s sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer gualifies for

hedge accounting

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Acrounts 2018 1 49

pdarra g

RPN E LA

SN e poaeuy Aued, 167) l SIUB LIS 1B IURUIY Unalg

JAPLLC LI I



Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 Accounting policies continued
u) Derivative financial instruments continued

Fair value hedges

Where a lean or borrowing 15 1n a fair value hedgmng relationship
it 1s remeasured for changes in fair value of the hedged risk at
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised n
gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement.
The gain or loss on the corresponding hedging nstrument 1s
also taken to gains/losses on financial instruments in the income
statement so that the effective portion of the hedge will offset the
gain or loss an the hedged tem

If hedge accounting 15 discontinued, the fairvalue adjustment
arising from the hedgead risk on the hedged item is amortised to
the income staternent aver the antiipated remaining life of the
hedged item

Cash flow hedges

The pertion of the gam or loss en the hedging instrument that is
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised in equity and
lhe ineflective portion is charged to gains/losses on inancial
instruments in the iIncome statement. When the gain or loss from
the hedged underlying transaction 1s recogrised In the income
statement, the gains or losses on the hedging instrument that
have previously been recognised in equity are recycled through
gains/losses on financial instruments in the Income statement,

I hedge accounting 15 discontinued, any cumulative gam or loss
on the hedging instrument previously recognised In equity is held
in equity until the forecast transaction eccurs, ar transferred to
gams/losses on financial instruments in the incorne statement
if the forecast transaction i1s no longer expected to oceur.

From this pont the derivative 1s accounted for in the same

way as derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

If the hedging instrument is terminated, the gains and losses
previously recognised n equity are held in equity until either
the forecast transaction occurs or the forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur.

Embedded derivatives

Where a contract includes terms that cause sorme of its

cash flows to vary in a similar way to a dervative financial

instrument, that part of the contract 1s considered to be an

embedded derivative

Ernbedded derivatives are separated from the contract and

measured at fair value with gains and losses taken to the income

statement |f

¢ the risks and characteristics of the embedded derwative are
not closely related to those of the contract, and

« the contract s not carried at far value with gains and losses
reported in the incormne statement

In all other cases embedded derivatives are accounted forin line

with the accounting policy for the contract as a whole

v] Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settled share based
compensation plans for employees The fair value of the
employee services recelved in exchange for the grant 1s
recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant.
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The fair value of employee services 1s determined by reference
to the fair value of the awards granted, calculated using

an appropriate pricing model, excluding the impact of any
non-rnarket vesting conditions  The number of awards that

are expacted to vast takes inte account non-market vesting
conditions ncluding, where appropriate, continuing employment
by the group. The charge 1s adusted to reflect shares that do not
vest as a result of failing to rneet a non-market condition

Share based compensation plans are satisfied in shares of

the parent company Where the fair value of the awards is

not recharged to participating group companies, the parent
company records the fairvalue of the awards as an increase in its
investment 1n the substdiary. The investment 1s adjusted to reflect
shares that do not vest as a resylt of falling to meet a non-market
based condition

w] Cash flow statement

For the purpose of the cash Hlow statement, cash and cash
eguivalents include highly bguid investrents that are readily
convertible to knawn armounts of cash and which are subject
lo aninsignificant risk of change in value Such invesiments
are normally those with less than three months maturity from
the date of acquisition and include cash and bank balances and
investments in Liguid funds

Net cash and cash equivalents include overdrafts repayable
on dermand

interest pard in the cash flow statement ncludes amounts
charged ta the income statement and amounts included i the
cost of property, plant and equipment

x]} Net debt

Net debt comprises borrowngs including remeasurements
far changes in far value of amounts in fair value hedging
relationships, cross currency swaps that are used to fix the
sterling babibity of foreign currency borrowings (whether hedge
accounted or not), net cash and cash equivalents, and loans to
joint ventures

yl Foreign currency

The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings
are translated into sterling, the presentational currency of the
group, Using average rates of exchange ruling during the year

The net mvestmems in overseas subsidiary underiakings are
translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the year
end Exchange differences anising are treated as mavements in
equity On dispesal of a foreign currency dencrminated subsidiary,
the deferred cumulative amount recogrmsed In equity since

T April 2004 relating to that entity 1s recognised in the iIncome
statement under the transrienal rule of IFRS 1 'First-time
Adoption of Internationat Financial Reporting Standards’

Foreign currency denominated assets and Liabilities of the
company and Its subsidiary undertakings are translated into the
relevant functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at
the year end Any exchange differences so arnising are dealt with
through the income statement.



2 Accounting policies continued

y] Foreign currency continued

Foreign currency transactions arising during the year are
translated intc sterting at the rate of exchange ruting on the
date of the transaction All gains and losses on exchange arising
during the year are dealt with through the ncome statement

z) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale
Where an asset or group of assets (a disposal groupl 1s avallable
for immediate sale and the sale 1s highly probable and expected
to occur within one year then the disposal group s classified as
held for sale The disposal group 1s measured at the lower of the
carrying amaunt and far value less costs to sell Depreciationis
not charged on such assets

Where a group of assets which comprises operations that can
be clearly distinguished operationally and for financial reporting
purpases, frorm the rest of the group [a compaonent], has bean
disposed of or classified as held for sale, and 1t

* represents a separate major tine of business or geographical
area of operations, or

¢ 5 part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business cr geographical area of cperations, or

® is asubsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale,
then the component is classified as a discontinued operation

3 New accounting policies and future
requirements

The group has adopted all amendrnents tc standards with an
effective date relevant to this year end with no material impact
onits results, assets or labilities All other accounting policies
have been applied consistently

At the balance sheet date, the following Standards and
Interpretations were i 1ssue but not yet effective

IFRS ¢ ‘Financial Instruments’ affects the measurement and
disclosure of financial instruments with effect from 1 April
2018. The group does not anticipate that the classification of
its financial assets and liabilities will change significantly as a
result of the adoption of IFRS 7 The group does not propose to
retrospectively apply the hedge accounting criteria of IFRS 9

to hedging relationships established under IAS 39 accounting
Existing hedges that qualify for hedge accounting under 1AS 39
are expected to continue to qualify for hedge accounting under
IFRS 9. For new hedges established foliowing adoption of IFRS 9,
the group will determine on a case-by-case basis whether to
apply the hedge accounting provisions of IFRS 9

Provisions agamnst trade recelvables are calculated under the
current accounting policy using historical collection information
and losses expected 2s a result of future events are not
recognised Under IFRS 9 the group will recagnise a provision
for the tifetime expected credit losses for trade recewvahbles
Howeaver, the group does not expect the bad debt charge or
provision to be matenally different as a resuit

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts wath customers affects the
rmeasurement and recegrition of revenue with effect from 1 April
7018 The group has performed animpact analysis for each of its
business segments and the expected impact on the results and
financial positicn are set out below.

Regulated Water and Waste Water

There will be no change to the tirming of recognition of revenue
fram charges for water or waste water services This (s by far the
most significant source of the group's revenue, making up 93%
of group turnover in 2017/18

IFRS 15 requires that revenue 1s recognised if 1t 1s probable that
it will be received The group is under a statutory obligation to
maintain water services tc domestic properties within the areas
defined in 1its water supply licences As a result, the group might
pravide water and/or sewerage services to customers who are
unlikely to pay for these services Under IFRS 19, such revenue
15 not recognised. However, there is no readily dentifiable group
of customers where it 1s net Likely, at the point of billing, that the
revenue will be collected.

The group also recewves income under the Water Industry Act
1991 as aresult of providing new connections to 1ts existing
network The group’s current treatment for this income 1s to
treat It as a contribution to the related expenditure, recognise
It as deferred income on the balance sheet and credit it to the
income statement at the same time as the depreciation of

the cost. No change to this treatment s anticipated as a result
of the adoption of IFRS 15

Business Services

The Operating Services business operates under a series of
bespoke contracts with specific performance obligations

The group has applied the meathodology set out in IFRS 15 to
each of these contracts in order toidentify differences from the
current accounting policy. The most significant differences arose
in relation to the group’s contract to provide water and waste
water services to the Ministry of Defence (MOD | The group
acts as the service provider under the MOD Project Aguatrine
Package C - a 2b year contract spanning 1,29% sites across
England covering the eastern sea border and from Lancashire
In the North West to West Sussex on the South coast

Under the contract, the group maintains and upgrades the MoD
infrastructure assets and provides operating services for water
and waste water Both the operating services and maintenance
and upgrade services are charged under a volumetric tanff,
aleng with standing charges, which are adjusled wialth inflation
as agreed In the contract

The current accounting policy for this contract s to recogrise
revenue billed under the volumetric tanff at the point of billing
The expected costs for the upgrade services are recaognised on
a straight-line basis, before adjusting for expected inflation, over
the Ufe of the contract The resulting asset s recognised as a
financial asset in accordance with IFRIC 12

Under IFRS 15, the expected revenue over the life of the contract
will be atlocated to the performance cbligations under the
following headings

s gperating and maintaining the MOD infrastructure assets,
s upgrading the MOD infrastructure assets,

* adrministrating the services recerved from statutory water and
sewerage undertakers, and

e administrating billing services of the MOD s commercial and
Non Base Dependent [NBD ] customers
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

3 New accounting policies and future
requirements continued

Business Services continued

Costs of upgrade services recognised as a hinancial asset at

31 March 2017 armounting to approxirnately £30 ratlion will be
written off to reserves on transition to IFRS 15 and revenue that
had not been recegnised under the existing accounting palicy
amounting tc approximately £35 million will be credited to
reserves If IFRS 15 had been applied in 2017/18 revenue would
have been approximately £1 million higher and operating costs
would have been approximately £3 rmillion higher

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both
parties to a contract, | ¢ the customer {'tessee] and the supplier
{lessortand will be effective for the group from 1 Apnit 2019
The impact on the results ar net assets of the group or company
of the changes to the standard has not yet been quantified in
detall but this 1s pot expected to be sigmficant because the group
does not hold a significant value of operating leases

There are no other standards and interpretations i Issue but not
yet adopted that the directors anticipate will have a material effect
on the reportad income or net assets of the group

4 Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the graup’s accaunting policies,

the group 1s required to make certain judgements, estimates
and assumptions that it belleves are reasonable based on the
informatton available Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge cf the amount, event or actions,
actual results may uttirmately differ from those estimates

During the year, management reassessed the signihicant
estimates and critical jJudgements and resolved that the
fotlowing were no longer considered to be cntical judgernents
ar sigruficant estimates

il Tax provisions

Following the exceptional current tax credit In the prior year
ansing from agreement with HMRC of tax matters from several
prior years, and the group’s disposal of almost all of its overseas
operating subsidiaries, management no longer considers there
to be significant sk of a material adjustment to tax provisions n
the next year

ii] Goodwill arising on acquisition of Dee Valley Water

As set out in note 38, the fair values atinibuted ta the assels
and labilities acquired on the acquisttion of Dee Valley Water
have been finalised in the year, and thercfore there will not
be a material adjustment to this balance in the next year

iiil Unbilled revenue

The estimated consumption for custormers with water meters is
regularly compared (o actual consumption data. The difference
between estimated and actual consumption historically has not
been material Hence unbilled revenue 1s no longer considered

te be a key source of estimation uncertainty.
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iv] Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Provisions are made agamst Severn Trent Water's trade
recewvables based on histarical experience of levels of recovery
from accounts in a particular ageing category. As the pravision
and the charge in the income statement have not fiuctuated
significantly over the past few years, itis unlikety that there would
be a change in assumptions that would tead to a matertal change
in the carrying amount of trade recewables Management has
therefore concluded that provision for impairment of trade
receivables I1s no longer considered to be g key source of
estimation uncertainty

vl Provisions far other liabilities and charges

ln previous years, this area was disclosed as a sigruficant
{udgement Management has taken note of the FRC's thematic
review of reporting judgements and estimates, which

sets out that this 1s an estimate rather than a judgement
Management has assessed the risk of matenal change to this
balance In the next year and concluded that 1t 1s not signifreant.

al Critical accounting judgements

i} Classification of costs between operating expenditure

and capital expenditure

Severn Trent Water's business involves significant construction
and engineering projects. Assessing the classification of
costsincurred on such projects between capital expenditure
and operating expanditure requires judgernents o be made
The judgements are made based on objective criteria that that
group has developed to facilitate the consistent application of its
accounting policies

bl Sources of estimation uncertainty

i) Depreciaticn and carrying amounts of property,

plant and equipment

Calcutating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying
value for property, plant and equipment requires estimates to be
made of the useful lives of the assets, The estimates are based
on engineerng data and the group’s experience of similar assets
Details are set out in note 21). A five year change in the average
remarning useful lives of property, plant and equipment would
result in a £35 million change in the depreciation charge

iil Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the group's retirement benefit
obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits requires
assumptions ta be made cancerning long term interest rates,
nflation and longewity of current and future pensioners,
Changes in these assumptions could sigmificanily impact the
armount of the obligations or the cost of providing such benefits
The group makes assumptions concerning these matters with
the assistance of advice from independent qualifled actuaries.
Details of the assumptions made and associated sensitvities are
set out in note 28 to the financial staternents.



5 Segmental analysis
The group 1s organised into two main business segments

Regulated Water and Waste Water includes the wholesale water and waste water activities of Severn Trent Water Limited, its retait
services to domestic custorners, and Dee Valley Water Limited

Business Services includes the group’s Operating Services businesses in the UK & Ireland and the group’s regulated and non-
regulated Renewable Energy business

On 15 February 2017, the group completed the acquisition of Dee Valley Water Group Limited This business has beenincluded in the
Regulated Water and Waste Water segment wath effect from that date Further details of the acquisition are set out In note 38

The disposals of the group’s Operating Services businesses in Italy and the USA were completed on 23 February 2017 and 30 June
2017 respectively. These businesses have been classiflied as discontinued oper ations. The prior year segmental resulis have been
restated to present the Itatian and US Operating Services businesses as discontinued operations as set out in the stock market
annotncement dated 19 July 2017

The disposal of the group’s non-household retail business to the newly created Water Plus joint venture with Unsted Utilities was also
classified as a discontinued operation in the prior year. This transaction was completed on 1 June 2016.

The Severn Trent Executive Committee [STEC] 15 considered ta be the group's chief operating decision maker The reports provided to
STEC include segrnental iInformation prepared on the basis described above Detalls of Regulated Water and Waste Water's operaticns
are described on pages 34 to 41 of the Strategic Review and those of Business Services on pages 47 and 43

Results from interests in joint ventures are not included in the segmental reports reviewed by STEC

The measure of profit or loss that1s reporied to STEC for the segments s underlying PBIT. Asegmental analysis of sales and
underlying PBIT 15 presented below

Transactions between reportable segments are included within segmental results, assets and liabilities in accordance with group
accounting policies These are eliminated on consclidation

al Segmental results

2018 2017
[restated)

Requlated Reqgulated
Water and Business Water and Busin =
Waste Water Services Wiasle Warer Servies
£m £€m £m £m
External turnover _ 1,574 119.9 1,527 6 1098
Inter-segment turnover 0.5 18.8 12 186
Total turnover 1,574.6 128.7 1,528 8 128 4
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional termns 5149 36.0 4947 322
Exceptional items [see note 8) 1.1 1.8 264 0é
Proht before interest and tax 503.8 34.2 5211 328

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items is stated after:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 300.7 77 2994 67
Amartisation of intangible assets 19.8 0.7 174 03
[Profiti/loss on disposal of fixed assets (5.0) - 08 -
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

5 Segmental analysis continued

a) Segmental results continued
The reportable segments turnover s reconciled to graup turnover as follows

2018 2017

Irestate)

£m Em

Regulated Water and Waste Water 1,574.6 15288
Business Services e ) 138.7 128 4
Corporate and other 9.0 62
Consolidation adjustments 128.2) [25 4)

1,694.1 16380

Included in revenues of Regulated Water and Waste Water of £1,574 & million (2017 £1,528 8 million] 15 £354 9 million
(2017 £317 5 rrlbion} which arcse from sales to Water Plus Select Limited No cther single custormer contribuied 10% or more
to the group's revenue for either 2018 or 2017

Segmental underlying PBIT 1s reconciled to the group's profut before tax as follows

2018 2017

[restated]

£m Lm

Requlated Water and Waste Water 9142 4947
Business Services REY 322
Corporate and other ) [9.7) 60l
Consolidation adjustments (0.2) (08)
Profit hefore interest, tax and exceptional items S i 541.0 5201

Exceptional tems

Regulated Water and Waste Water ) (1.1} 26 4
Business Services (1.8} 0s
Corporate and other o 0.3 110 4)
Net finance costs (219.5 (2031
Nellosses on financial instruments ) (6.7) nat
Share of profitfiloss) of joint ventures 0.2 (18]
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 302.4 3280

The group’s treasury and tax affairs are managed centrally by the Group Treasury and Tax departments Finance costs are managed
en a group basis and hence interest income and costs are not reported at the segrnental level Tax s not reported te STEC ona
segmental basis

b Segmental capital employed
Separate segmental analyses of assets and liabilies are not reviewed by STEC The balance sheet measure reviewed by STEC
on a segmental basts 1s capital employed, as shown below

2018 2017
Regulated Regulated

Water and Business Water and Buysincas

Waste Water Services Waste Water Services

£m £m £m Ern

Operating assets 8,900.8 196.6 8,4771 2131
Goodwall 435 - 473 14.9
Interests in joint ventures - 376 - 374
Segment assets 8,964.3 234.2 B.544 4 265 4
Segment operating Lighllities [1,957.6) 41.9) {1.9709) (559
Capital employed 7,006.7 192.3 65735 2095

Operating assets comprise other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, retirement benefit surpluses, inventory and trade
and other recevables

Cperaling Labililes compnise trade and other payables, retirement benefit obligations and provisions.
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5 Segmental analysis continued

b} Segmental capitat employed continued

The Business Services capital employed at 31 March 2017 includes £31 3 million in respect of Operating Services US, which was sold
on 30 June 2017

The reportable segments assets are reconciled to the group’s total assets as follows

|

I

J~dog

I

ERNI=HIETN

2018 2017
£m £m
Segment assets 2
Regulated Water and Waste Water L 8,964.3 8544 4 g
Business Services 234.2 2654 3
Corparate and other o 60.5 406 2
Other financial assets ) 87.3 1Mé g
Loan recevable from joint venture T L 135.6 108 & "5’
Current tax recewvable o - 73 %
Consolidation adjustments (60.1} (41 4]
Total assets 9,421.8 90365 o
The consalidation adjustrments camprise elimination of intra-group debtors and unrealised profits on fixed assets E
The reportable segments liabilities are reconciled to the group s total Liabilities as follows :
2018 2017 E
£m £m T
Segment liabilities 3
Regutated Water and Waste Water 11.957.6} n9709 7
Business Services 419) (55 9) =
Corporate and other (74.6) 675) &
Other financial biabilities (5,683.4) (5,463 7) ;—
Current tax {8.6 - B
Deferred tax 1674.3] (6237) 8
Consolidation adjustments 12.3 68 5
Total Liabilities (8,428.1) (8113 2)
The consolidation adjustments comprise elimination of intra-group creditors e
The following table shows the additions to other intanaible assets and property, plant and equipment
7018 2617
wRegulated Regulated
Waterand Business Water and Business
Waste Water services Wiste Waler Services
£m £m £m £rm
Other intangible assets 25.6 2.8 261 472
Property, plant and equipment 680.4 101 5415 418
¢l Geographical areas
The group’s sales from continuing operations were derved frer the following countries
2018 2017
[restated]
£m Cm
UK . 16898 14321
Other 43 59

1,694.1 16388

The group’s non-current assets [excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit assets] were
located In the fallowing countries

2018 2017

£m Cm

Uk o , - 88414 83456
Us - 282

8,841.4 83738
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

6 Revenue
2018 2047
[restated)
£&m tm
Water and waste water services 1.574.1 15276
Gther services 28.8 305
Service CoNCession arrangements 49.8 L4 5
Energy sales and related incentive payments 41.4 354
Turnover 1,694.1 16380
Interest receivable 5.7 04
1,699.8 1,638 4
7 Net operating costs
2018 2017
- [restaled!
Befare Before
exceptional Exceptional exceplional Excepticnal
costs costs Total coste coaly Trstal
£ £m £m £m £m £rm
Wages and salaries 237.2 0.6 2378 2185 - 218 5
Socal security costs 23.2 - 23.2 214 - 216
Pension costs 20.8 8.3 125 209 (16 6] 43
Share based payments 49 - 69 6.1 - 4.1
Totat employee costs 288.1 17.71 280.4 2671 (6 6] 2505
Power 79.2 - 79.2 704 - 70 4
Carbon Reduction Commitment 5.9 - 5.9 63 - 63
Raw materials and consumables o _ 581 - 55.1 511 - 511
Rates 82.4 - 82.4 785 - 785
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 25.8 - 25.8 211 - 211
Services charges 34.3 - 34.3 331 - 331
Depreciabion of tangible fixed assets 308.2 16.8 325.0 3059 - 3059
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 20.5 - 20.5 178 - 178
Hired and contracted services 2277 3.5 2.2 2249 - 2249
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 0.6 - 0.6 08 - 08
- other 13 - 11 D4 - D4
Hire of plant and machinery 5.5 ~ 5.5 39 - 39
Reszearch and development expenditure 2.1 - 21 22 - 272
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assats 17.3) - (7.3) 50 - [50]
Profit an disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - - 04 - 04)
Exchange losses/(gains) 1.1 - 1.1 31 - [31)
infrastructure maintenance expendnure 135.2 - 135.2 1362 - 136.2
Ofwat licence fees 1.6 - 3.6 36 - 36
Other cperating costs 445 - 44.5 403 - 403
Qther operating incorme 13.0) - (3.0) [41) - 14 1)
- 1,310.6 12.6 1,323.2 12508 (16 6] 12342
Release from deferred credits [14.3) - [14.3) (139} - 1391
Own work capitalised (143.2) - 143.2) 119 0] - (119 0]
1,153.1 12.6 1,165.7 11179 [16 &} 11013

Further details of exceptional costs are given in note §
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7 Net operating costs continued
During the year the following fees were charged by the auditors

2018 2007
£m £m
Fees payable to the company's auditors for
- the audit of the company's annual accounts 0.2 g2
- the audit of the company's subsidiary accounts 0.4 05
Total audit fees 0.6 07
Fees payable to the company s auditors and their associates for other services to the group
- audit related assurance services 0.1 01
- ather services relating to taxation - 01
~ other assurance services 0.1 03
Total non-audit fees 0.2 05

Detalls of directors remuneration are set out in the Directors remuneration report on pages 96 tc 128

Other assurance services include certain agreed upon procedures perforrned by Deloitte in connection wath Severn Trent Water's

regulatory reperting requirements to Ofwat

Details of the group policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit services and how auditor independence and objectivity are
safequarded are set outin the Audit Commuittee report on pages 87 and 88 No services were provided pursuant to contingent

fee arrangements

8 Exceptional items before tax

2018 2017
Irestated)
£fm £
Requlated Water and Waste Water -
Frofit on disposal of fixed assets o - 1o
Gan arising on pension exchange arrangerment 7.7 154
Restructuring costs 18.8) -
111 264
Business Services
Gan arising on pension exchange arrangement 03 Ub
Restructuring costs (2.1) -
11.8) 06
Corporate and other
Ebimination of intra-group profit on disposal of fixed assets - 19
Gain arising on pension exchange arrangement 0.3 06
0.3 (10 4]
(12.6) 16 6
Exceptional tax s disclosed in note 13
9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees [Including executive directors] during the year
2018 20107
Contnuirg  Discentinyed
Continuing  Discontinued operatien’s aper AL Total
operations operations Total Ireutated| Ireste frostated]
number number number furmber nurmber rrmber
By type of business o o e
Regulated Water and Waste Water 5,660 - 5460 5,273 2 5,275
Business Services - 596 38 %4 58y 1564 2049
Corporate and other 9 - 9 11 - i
6,265 368 6,633 5,869 1566 7435
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

10 Finance income

2018 2017
(rectated]
£m £m
Interest income earned on bank deposits 0.5 02
QOther financial incorme 5.2 02
Total interest receivable 5.7 04
Interest incorne on defined benefit scheme assels 62.0 718
67.7 722
11 Finance costs

2018 2017
tm £m

Interest expense charged on
Bank leans and overdrafis 19.2 22.7
Other loans 183.4 167 4
rinance leases 4.4 42
Total borrowing costs 207.0 194.3
Other financial expenses 2.7 03
Interest cost on defined benefil scheme liabiliies 775 827
287.2 2773

Borrowing costs of €26 2 milion (2017 £18 6 mullion] ncurred funding eligible capital projects have been capitalised at an interest
rate of 3 89% [2017- 3 94%] Tax relief of £5 0 mullien [2017 £3.7 miilion] was claimed on these costs which was creditad to the income

statement, offset by a related deferred tax charge of £4 5 million {2017 £3 2 million)

12 Net losses on financial instruments

2018 017

£m £m

{Loss)/gam on swaps used as hedging instruments in farr value hedges 1.1) 176

Loss arising on debt in fair value hedges - f16 9

Exchange gain/llosst on other loans 12.7 111

Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity (8.2) 29

Hedge ineffectiveness on cash ilow hedges 1.4 01)
[Lossl/gain arising on swaps where hedge actounting 15 not applied 2.6 111
Amortisation of fair value adjustment on debt 11 05

[6.7) (18]

The group’s hedge accounting arrangements are described in note 36
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13 Taxation
a) Analysis of tax charge in the year
2018 2017
Irostated]
Before
excepticnat Exceptional
{ax tax Total
£m £m £m Em
Current tax at 19% (2017: 20%)
Current year 36.8 473 - 473
Prior years (3.9) 10 6 4) [27 4]
Total current tax 329 363 6 4) 199
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Current year 21.4 16 4 - 16 4
Prioryears 7.6 60 40 100
Exceptional credit from rate change - - (398 (378)
Total deferred lax 29.0 22 4 (35 8] 13 4)
619 587 {52 2 63

The total tax charge for the year was €619 million (2017 £6 5 million]

The current tax charge before exceptional tax was £32 9 million (2017 £36 3million] In 2017, the exceptional current tax credit of
£16 4 million arose primarity from adjustrments following agreement with HMRC of tax matters from several prior years

The deferred tax charge before exceptional tax was £29 0 milion (2017 £22 4 mullion] In 2017, there was an exceptional deferred tax
cradit of £35.8 million arising from agreeing a number of prior year tax items with HMRC and a reduction in the corporation tax rate,

enacted in that year, to 17% with effect from 2020,

b) Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

The tax expense for the year s higher (2017 lower] than the standard rate of corporation taxin the UK of 19% (2017 20%!

The differences are explained below

2018 2017

trestated]

£m £m

Profit before taxation 302.4 3280
Tax at standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19% {2017 20%) 57.5 65 6
Tax effect of depreciation on non-qualfying assets 1.8 32
Other permanent differences 1.4 (14
Current yaar impact of rate change o (2.5) 37
Adjustments in respect of prior years 37 174l
Exceplional deferred tax credit arising from rate change - (398
Total tax charge 619 655
2018 2017

lrestated|

tm £

Profit before taxation 302.4 3280
Tax at standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19% (2017 20%)] 57.5 454
Tax effect of depreciation on non-qualfyngasgets o 18 32
Other permanent differences o 14 14
Tax effect of accelerated capital allowances R g7 122
Gther timing differences T o N 4.2) 189
Adjustments in respect of prior years B (3.9] (27 4}
Total current tax charge 329 199
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

13 Taxation continued

c) Tax charged/[credited) directly to other comprehensive income or equity
Inaddition to the amount charged to the incorne statement, the following amounts of tax have been charged/lcredited] to other

comprehensive Income or equity

28 2017
£m Erny
Current tax -
Tax on share based payments {0.8) 08
Tax on pension contributions In excess of Income statement charge 9.3) 141
Total current tax credited to ather camprehensive income or equity {10.1) (149!
Deferred tax
Tax on actuaral gain/loss 16.9 142 72)
Tax on cash tlow hedges 1.0 n3
Tax on share based paymenis 1.3 _EM
Tax on transfers to the income statement 1.4 04
Effect of change in tax rate - 31
Total deferred tax charged/(credited] to other comprehensive income or equity 20.6 [407)
14 Dividends
Arounts recognised as distributions ta owners of the company in the period.
2018 2017
pence per share f£m pence per share Cm
Final diwvidend for the year ended 31 March 2017 [2014) 48.90 115.2 48 40 114 0
Interim drvidend for the year ended 31 March 201812017) 34.63 81.8 32 60 744
Total dwidends pad 83.53 197.0 8100 190 4
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 51.92 122.7

The proposed linal dividend 15 subjecl to approval by shareholder s al the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a
Lability in these financial slaterments.

15 Earnings per share

al Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share s calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year, excluding treasury shares and those held in the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership
Trust, which are treated as cancelled

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all
ditutive potential ordmnary shares

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and discontinued aperations are ¢alculated on the basis of profit from continuing
and discontinuad operations attributable to the equity holders of the company.

The calcutation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data.

li) Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

2018 2017

[restated)

£m £m

Profit for the period attributable to owners of the company 253.7 3428

Adjusted for profit from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the company (see note 39] 13.2) (213

Prolit for the period frorm continuing operations atirbutable to owners of the company 2405 3215

(if) Number of shares

2018 2017

m m

Weighted average number of ordmary shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share 235.3 2350
Effect of dilutive potential ardinary shares

- share options and LT!Ps 0.8 10

Weighted average number of ardinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 236.1 2369
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15 Earnings per share continued
b) Underlying earnings per share

2018 2017

[restated]

pence pence

Underlying basic earnings per share B 121.0 157
Underlying diluted earnings per share 120.6 152

Underlying earmings per share figures are presenied lor continuing operations These exclude the effects of deferred tax, exceptional
tax, losses on financial Instruments, current tax related to losses on financial instruments, exceplicnal items and current tax

related to exceptional lerns. The directors consider that the adjusted figures provide a useful additional indicator of performance.
The denominators used in the calculations of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as those used in the
unadjusted figures set out above.

The adjustrments to earnings that are made in calculating underlying earnings per share are as follows

2018 2017
{restated]
£m £m
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 240.5 3215
Adjustments for
- exceptionaliterns before tax 12.6 {16 &)
- current tax related to exceptional iterms (0.7} on
- net losses on financal nstruments o 6.7 18
— current tax an net losses on linancial Instruments {3.3) [49)
- exceptional current tax . o - (16 4)
- deferred tax 29.0 [13 4)
Earnings for the purpose of underlying basic and diluted earnings per share 284.8 2719
16 Goodwill
2018 2017
£m Cm
Cost
At 1 April 81.0 182
Acquisition of subsidiary - 660
Dispasal of subsidiaries (14.4) (5 4]
Exchange adjustments (0.6) 272
Additienal consideration in respect of acquisition 0.2 -
Adjustment to provisional fair values on acquisttion [note 38) (4.0 -
At 31 March 62.2 g10

Goodwill 15 allocated to the group’s cash-generating units [CGUs) identified according to country of operation and business segment.
Asummary of the goodwill allecation by CGU 1s presented below

2018 2017

Em fin

Dee Valley Waler 62.2 660
Operating Services US - 150
62.2 810

[ee Valley Water also has an intangible asset with indefinite useful {ife amaunting ta £4.3 rultion (2017 nill.

The group has reviewed the carrying value of goodwill for impairment in accordance with the policy stated innote 2 k] The carrying
value of the Dee Valley Water CGU was deterrmined on the basis of value in use in the current and prioryears The Operating Services
Us CGU was sold on 30 June 2017

The valuc in use calculalion for the Dee Valley Water CGU 15 based on the most recenl [iInancial projections avallable for the business,
which cover the remainder of the current AMP period to 2070 and the following AMP period, which runs to 31 March 2075 As a
regulated water company, Dec Valley Water's revenues and costs are significantly influenced by the regulatory scttlement for each
AMP period so rnanagement considers it appropriate for the detailed projactions to be coterrminous with the AMP period
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
Fer the year ended 31 March 2018

16 Goodwill continued

The nel cash flows for the current AMP period are based on existing operations and Dee Valley Water's business plan, adjusted for
the synergies arising from the acquisttion by Severn Trent, to the extent that they will be realised in Dee Valley Water The net cash

flows in the following AMP period have been reduced to reflect the lower weighted average cost of caprtal proposed by Ofwat inits
PR19 methodology

The wey assumptions undertying these projections are

Key assumphion %
Discount rate 63
RP{inflation } T T ag
CPlinflation 20
Growth rate i the period beyond the detailed projections 25

The discount rate was an estimate for the weighted average cost of capital at the year end date hased on the market rate for the cost
of debt and the cost of equity included in the Dee Valley Water Final Deterrmination for AMPS adjusted to take account of risks already
reflected in the cash flows for AMPY and beyond This post-tax rate was converted to the equivalent pre-tax rate discount rate above
Inflation has been included n the detalled projections at 3% and 2% for RPI and CPI respechvely based on the Bank of England s
target rate for CPI

Cash flows beyond the cnd of the seven year period are extrapolated using an assumption of zoro real growth and an cstimate of 2.5%
for long-term inflation [combination of CPland RPY)

The value in use for the CGU exceeded its carcying value by £15 6 millian, The value in use 15 most sensitive to the assumptian relating
ta the growth rate outside the five year period. if the growth rate assumption were reduced to 2,2% this would cause the CGU's
carrying armount to exceed its recoverable amount under the revised assumpticn.

17 Other intangible assets

Computer software Capiabsed
Internally development Instrument of
generated Purchased costsand patents appointment Total
£m £m im fm £m

Cost o
At 1 Apnil 2016 188 9 1045 135 - 3069
Additions 167 145 1 - 303
Disposats - n 12 07) - (30
Disposats of supsidanes - 150} - - {2 0]
Exchange adjustmenis 02 10 - - 12
At T Aprit 2017 2027 138 139 - 3304
Additions 98 182 04 - 284
Disposals 07 - {15 - 122
Adjustment 1o provisional fair values [note 38} - - - 43 43
Disposals of subsidiaries - 72) - - {72
Exchange adjustments on i0 1) - - 102)
At 31 March 2018 2117 1247 12.8 4.3 353.5
Amortisation ~
At 1 Aprit 2014 [1591) 1630 112 6] ~ 2347
Amortisation for the year 77) 10 8) 08l - {19 3]
Disposals 07 03 07 - 17
Disposals of subsidiaries - 36 - - 36
Exchange adjustrnents {01) 07 - - 0 8l
At 1 Apnl 2017 (166 2] (70 &i (127! - (249 5]
Amortisation for the year 18 0) 12 ¢) 161) - 1207
Disposals 06 - - - 0é
Disposals of subsidiaries - 43 - ~ 43
Exchange adjustments - 02 - - 02
At 31 March 2018 [173.6) 78.7) {12.8) - {265.1)
Net hook value
At 31 March 2018 38.1 46.0 . - 4.3 88.4
At 31 March 2017 365 432 12 - 80¢%
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18 Property, plant and equipment
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Land and Infrastruciure  Fixed plant and Moveable Assets under
buildings assets equipment plant construction Total
£m £m €m £m Em £m

Cost
At 1 April 2016 31680 49399 37881 670 h4572 12,508 2
Additions 155 737 12 4 17 4806 5839
Transfers on commissioning 134 4 369 M47 53 (395 3] -
Disposals (57} 07) 124 7) 38) - {34 9) 9
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 08 614 643 - - 126 5 £
Dispasal of subsidiary undertaking - - {4 7] - - [47) S
Exchange adjustments - - 227 27 - 49 g
At 1 April 2017 33130 5114 2 4052 3 739 6305 13,1839 g
Additions 21 605 16 4 ne 6043 69172 §
Transfers on commissioning 69 4 522 136 5 44 (262 5 - z
Disposals (2 0] (03] z4) 29 (0 8) (16 4)
Adjustment to provisional fair values [note 38) - 08 - - - 08 .
Dispesal of subsidiary undertaking - - [15 2] 192 — 344
Reclassifications 30 65 (10 7) 03] 75 - <
Exchange adjustments - - 09l 2 - [FAI.-
At 31 March 2018 3,386.5 5,233.9 4,166.0 55.6 979.0 13,821.0 B
Deprectation o L o 5_
At 1 April 2016 1.1195 11,256 5j (2,358 0] (45 4} - (4,789 4] 3
Charge for the year (81 2] (42 &} (178 1) (69 - (3088
Disposals 37 02 234 35 - 308 e
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - 35 - - 35 ;
Exchange adjustments - - (1 4) {20 - 34) %
At TAprik 2017 (1,197 0] 1,298 9) (2,520 6] (510] - [5.0675] z
Charge for the year 184 5] (315) 11880 (4 8] - (2088
Dispesals 17 - 129 27 - 173
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - 1072 148 - 250
Reclassifications 41 5] 20) 04 - - —
Exceptional depreciation (10 1) - 67 - - (16 8)
Exchange adjustments - - 07 10 - 17
At 31 March 2018 (1,285.8} (1,331.9) {2,694.5) (36.9) - (5,349.1)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 2,100.7 3.902.0 1,471.5 18.7 979.0 84719
AL 21 March 2017 21160 38153 10317 229 6305 8164

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance leases

Infrastructure  Fixed plantand
assets eguipment Total
£m Em Em
Netbookvalue
At 31 March 2018 115.8 6.4 122.2
A 31 March 2017 188 102 1290

The depreciation charge for 2018 includes £16 8 mitlion (2017 £5 0 million] in respect of the wiite off of redundant plant

and equipment
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
Far the year ended 31 March 2018

19 Interests in joint ventures
Particulars of the group’s principal joint venture undertaking at 31 March 2018 were

Proportion of awnership
Name Type Country of incorperation Class of share capitat held interest

Water Plus Limited Jointventure Great Britain Ordinary B 50%

The results and net assets of the principal joint venture are shown below.

Interests m joint venture

2018 2017

Em £m

Group s share of carrying value 37.6 374
Group's share of profit and comprehensive income 0.2 118)

All results are from continuing aperations in both the current and preceding year.

As at 31 March 2018 and 7017 the joint venture did not have any significant contingent babihittes to which the group was exposed and
the group dud not have any significant contingent babilibes in relation to its interests in the joint venture The group had ne capitat
cornritments in retation to its interests in the joint venture at 31 March 2018 or 2017

The company has given guarantees in favour of Water Plus Limited i respect of the joint venture s liabilities to wholesalers in the
Open Water market and its loan frorn Severn Trent Water Limited The guarantee in respect of labiities to wholesalers 1s capped at
E42 5 rmitlion {2017 £42 5 miluon} and the guarantees for the Severn Trent Water loan 1s for the amount due

The registered office of Water Plus s Two Smithfield, Leonard Coates Way, Stoke-on-Trent, ST14FD
20 Categories of financial assets

2018 017
MNotes £m tm
Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 5.8 236
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 11.4 236
17.2 4772
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Crass currency swaps - fair valug hedges 187 198
Energy hedges - cash flaw hedges 0.3 -
19.0 198
Total derivative financial assets 36.2 470
Loans and receivables hincluding cash and cash equivalents)
Trade receivables 2 191.0 2142
i oan recewable fromjoint venture 21 135.6 1086
Short term deposits 22 16.4 188
Cash at bank and in hand 22 34.7 258
Total loans and receivables 377.7 3674
Total financial assets 413.9 434 4
Disclosed in the balance sheet as:
Non-current assets
Dernative financial assets 3560 470
|oan recewable from joint venture 135.6 90
171.6 760
Current assets
Denvative financiat assels 0.2 -
Trade and other receivables 191.0 242
Loan recetvable from joint venture - 976
Cash and cash equivalents 51.1 44 6
242.3 358 4
4139 434 4
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21 Trade and other receivables

2018 2007
£m £m
Current assets
Trade receivables 320.0 3447
Bad debt provision 129.0) (130 5}
Nel trade receivables 191.0 2147
Other amounts receivable 38.7 385
Prepayments 15.5 57
Accrued income 1.2 1598
Loan recewvable from joint venture - 996
456.4 5178
Non-current assets
Other amounts recewable 1.5 -
Prepayrments - 131 214
Armounts receivable from service concession arrangements 311 277
Loan recevable from joint venture 135.6 90
181.3 581
637.7 5759
The carrying vatues of trade and other receivables are reasonable approximations of their fair values
DCoubtful debts provision
Movements an the doubtful debts provision were as follows
2018 207
£m £m
At 1 April 130.5 1269
Charge for bad and deubtful debts [cantinuing and discontinued operations) 273 219
Acquisition of Dee Valley Water - 28
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking n.2] -
Armounts written off during the year {27.6] (211
At 31 March 129.0 130 5
The aged analysis of recevables that are specifically provided for 15 as follows
2018 2M7
£m Em
Up to 90 days o 05 10
91 - 365 days 1.2 63
1-2years 5.2 28
2 - 3years 25 39
More than 3 years 5.6 69
15.0 209

A collective provision 1s recorded against assets which are past due but for which noe specific previsian has been made.

This s calculated based on historical experience of levels of recovery.
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

21 Trade and other receivables continued

The aged analysis of receivables that were overdue at the reporting date but not individuaily provided for is as foitows

2018 2017
€m L
Up to 90 days 43.6 566
91 - 365 days 80.0 858
1 -2years o 57.5 572
2-3years e 40.7 357
Mare than 3 years 77.4 680
299.2 3027

The armounts above are reconciied to gross and net debtors in the table below
2018 2017
Gross Provisien Net Grass Provisan Mt
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Not due 5.8 - 5.8 211 - 211
Overdue not specifreally provided 299.2 (114.0) 185.2 3027 (109 6} 1931
Overdue and specifically provided 15.0 (15.0) - 209 [209] -
320.0 (129.0] 191.0 3447 (130 5] 2142

Credit risk

Trade receivables

Credit control polictes and procedures are determined at the indiidual business unit level By far the most sigruficant business unit
of the group 1s Severn Trent Water Limited, which represents 3% of group turnover and 91% of net lrade recewables Severn Trent
Water has a statutory obligation to provide water and waste water services to customers within its regian Therefore thereis no
concentration of credit risk with respect to ts trade receivables from these services and the credit quality of its customer base
reflects the wealth and prosperity of all of the domestic househaolds watbun its requon.

Water Plus

In the current and prior year, the group’s joint venture, Water Plus, was the largest retailer for non-domestic customers in the Severn
Trent region The trade receivables and amounts shown as loans recevable from jomt ventures are disclosed within the related
parties note 45.

22 Cash and cash equivalents

2018 2017

£m m

Cash at bank and in hand 347 258
Short term deposits 16.4 18 8
51.1 44 6

Short term bank deposits are held as secunty deposits for insurance obligations, which are not available for use by the group.
In addition, £9 8 million [2017. £10 0 millien) of cash at bank and v hand is restricted for use on the Ministry of Defence contract
and s not available for use by the group.
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23 Borrowings

2018 2017
£m £
Current liabilities
Bank averdraft 12,6 -
Bank loans 2879 1512
Other loans 5.3 4061
Finance leases 29 21
308.7 5594
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 929.5 9221
Other loans 4,218.6 33,6839
Finance leases 111.0 113 4
5,25%9.1 4719 6
5,567.8 52790
24 Finance leases
Obligations under finance leases arc as follows
2018 2017
£m £m
Within 1 year 6.5 51
1 -2 years _ 7.0 65
Z2-hyears 24.3 226
After more than 5 years 113.1 1219
Gross obligations under finance leases 150.9 1571
Less future finance charges {37.0) (41 4)
Present value of lease obligations 113.9 1157
Net obligations under finance leases fall due as follows
2018 2017
£m £m
Within 1year 2.9 21
1-2vyears 3.2 24
2 - Syears L 13.7 115
After more than b years 94.1 995
Included in non-current liabitities 11.0 13 6
113.%9 1157

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 1 to 14 years at 31 March 2018 Interest termns are set at the inception of the
leases The leases bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of 5.34% (2017 5 34%)] The lease obligations are secured against

the related assets

There were no contingent rents, escatation clauses or material renewal or purchase options, The terms of the finance leases do not

impose restriction an dividend payments, additional debt or further leasing
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

25 Categories of financial liabilities

2078 2017
Nates £m Em
Fair value through profit and loss ~
Interest rate swaps -~ not hedge accounted 98.8 1632
Inflation swaps - not hedge accounted 2.8 -
101.6 163 2
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 13.6 207
Energy hedges - cash flow hedges 0.8 ag
14.4 215
Total derivative financial liabilities 116.0 1847
Other financial liabilities o
Borrawings 23 5,567.8 5.27%0
Trade payables 26 18.9 240
Totat other financial liabilities 5,584.7 53930
Total financial iabitities 57027 54877
Disclosed in the balance sheet as:
Non-current liabilities
Derwvative iinancial liabilities 116.0 1841
Borroewings 5,259.1 4,719 6
53751 49037
Current liabilities
Dervative financial iabilties - 0é
Borrowings 308.7 559 4
Trade payables 18.9 240
327.6 584 0
5,702.7 5,4877
26 Trade and other payables
2018 207
£m £m
Current liabilities
Trade payables 18.9 240
Soclal security and other taxes 6.9 58
Other payables o 21.6 135
Deferred income 14.9 122
bceruals 400.3 396 4
462.6 4519
Non-current liahilities
Accruals 0.4 21
Deferred incorne 1,009.0 9536
1,009.4 9557
1,472.0 14074
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27 Deferred tax

An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group 1s sat out below

Retirement Fair value

Accelerated tax benefit of financial
depreciation abligations instruments Other Totat
Em Em £€m £m £m
At T Apri 2016 766 2 (55 8] {516 B9 664 7
Reclassification - 155 - (15 5] -
Charge/lcredit] 1o income 233 - 32 (01 264
[Credt)/charge to Incorne arising from rate change [42 5] - 22 05 (378)
Acquired through business combination 179 17 - {11 125
Credit to equity - (42 2] 09 {01} 143 2]
Charge to equity arising from rate change - 21 10 - 31
At 1 April 2017 7589 (78 7) (46 1) 110 4] 4237
Charge/lcredit] to ncome 245 33 16 32 298
Charge for adjustments to provisional fair values 01 - - 10 11
Charge to equity - 169 24 13 206
At 31 March 2018 783.5 (62.1) 42.1) {4.9) 674.4

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset

are as follows

The offset amaunts, which are 1o be recovered/settled after more than 12 months,

2018 2017

fm £m

Ceferrediax asset (109.1) (135 2]
Deferred tax hability 783.5 758 9
674.4 6237

28 Retirement benefit schemes
a) Defined benefit pension schemes

il Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK. The Severn Trent Pension Scheme and the Severn
Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015, while the Dee Valley Water Limited Section of the
Water Companies Pension Scheme, which is a sectionalised scherne, currently remains open to accrual The defined benefit pension
schemes cover ncreases In accrued benefits anising from inflation and pension increases. Their assets are held in separate funds
administered by trustees. The trustees are required to act in the best interests of the schemes’ beneficiaries. A formal actuarial
valuation of each scheme 1s carmied out on behalf of the trustees at triennial intervals by an independent professionally qualified
actuary. Under the defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitled to retirement benefits calculated by reference to their
pensionable service and pensionable salary history, with inflaticnary pension increases applying in line with the scheme rules.

The UX defined benefit pension schemes and the dates of their last completed formal actuanial valuations as at the accounting date

are as follows

Severn Trent Pension Scheme [STPS]*

Date of last formal actuarial valuation

31 March 2016

Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scherne [STMIPS]

31 March 2014

Water Cornpanies Pension Scheme - Dee Valley Water Linited Section [DVWS]

31 March 2017

*The S11°S 15 by far the larges! of the group s UK aenined benetit scheme s, comorising over 90 % of tne group s over all defined benehit cbligatiuns
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

28 Retirement benefit schemes continued

a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued
(ii} Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligations under the defined benefit pension schemes

2018 2017
£m Em
Fair value of assets 2,339.8 27352 8
Present value of the defined benefit obligations {2,859.6) [29274)
[519.8) (574 &)

Presented on the balance sheet as:
Retirement benefit obligation - funded schemes in surplus 18.2 98
Retirement benefit obligation - funded schemes in deficit (529.3) 5739)
Retirernent benefit obligation - unfunded schemes (8.7 105)
Retirement henefit obligation - total (538.0) (584 4)
Net retirement benefit obligation 519.8] (574 &)
2018 2017
STPS, STMIPS, and DYWS £m £m

Fair value of scheme assets

Equibes 360.4 9143
Dwersified growth funds ~ 53 53
Gilts - 412 4
Corporate bonds 825.7 6708
Liahility driven investment funds [LDJ) 7831 47 6
Property 180.7 1749
Emerging markets multi-assets funds 39 33
High-yield bonds 3.4 33
Hedge funds 0.6 12
Cash 176.7 1245
2,339.8 23528

The majority of the assets have quoted prices in active markets, but there are a small proportion of the equity and LD investments
which are unqueted

Movermnents in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows

2018 2617

£m ‘m

Fairvalue at 1 Aprit 2,352.8 20398
Interest income on scheme assets 62.0 718
Centributions from the sponsering companies 35.2 332
Contributions from scheme members 0.1 -
Return on plan assets [excluding amounts included m finance income) .3 274
Scheme administration casts (1.8) 133]
Benefits paid 107.2) (872]
Acquisttion of Dee Valley Water - 709
Fair value at 31 March 2,339.8 2,352 8
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28 Retirement benefit schemes continued

a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued

(i) Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligations under the defined benefit pension schemes continued
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

Jodasmba g

B3U2143800)

2018 2017

Em £m

Presentvalue at 1 April (2,.927.4) (2,349 3
Service cost (0.5) - @
Exceptional past service credit 8.3 173 £
Interest cost (77.5) 827 z_:
Contributions frem scheme members (0.1) - 5
Actuarial gains anising fram changes in demographic assumptions 216 16 6 g
Actuarizl gains/[losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions 6.9 1470 &) %
Actuanial gains/llosses] ansing from experience adjustments 19 {84 8] &

Benefits paid ~ 107.2 872

Acquisition of Dee Valley Water - (611

Present value at 31 March (2,85%.6] (2927 4)

The group has an cbligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been restricted
by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Prowision for such benefits amounting to £8 7 rmutlion (2017 £10.5 mullion] 1s included as an
unfunded scheme within the retirement benefit obligation

The group has assessed that s has an unconditional right to a refund of any surplus assets in each of the Schemes following
settlement of all obligations to schere members and therefore the surplus in DYWS has been recognised in full

i) Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit pensicn schemes

2018 2017
£m £m
Amounts credited to operating costs
Current service cost |0.5) -
Exceptional past service credit 8.3 173
Scheme administration costs (1.8} (33
6.0 140
Amounts charged to finance costs
Interest cost [77.5) (82 7)
Amounts credited ta finance income
Interest income on scheme assets 62.0 718
Total amount [charged)/credited to the income statement 19.5) 31

The actual return on scheme assets was z gain of £60 7 mullion (2017 gain of £299 4 million)
Actuarial gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive incoma

livl Actuarial risk factors
The Schemes typically expose the group to actuarnial nisks such as mvestment risk, inflation nisk and longewity 1isk.

Investment risk

The group’s contributions te the Schemes are based on actuarial calculations which make assurmnptions ahout the returns expectaed
from the Schemes’ investments If the Investments underperform these assumptions in the long term then the group may need to
make additional contributions to the Schames in arder te fund the payment of accraed benefits

Each plan s investment strateqy seeks to balance the tevel of investment return sought with the aim of reducing volatility and risk

In undertaking this approach, reference 1s made to both the maturity of liabilities and the funding level of that plan A number of further
strategies are employed to manage under lying risks, including Lability ratching asset str ategies, diversification of asset por tfalios
and interest rate hedging

Currently the plan has a balanced approach to investment in equity securities, debt instruments and real estates Due to the long term
nature of the plan liabilites, the Trustees consider it appropriate to invest a portion of the plan assets in equity securities and in real
estate to leverage the return generated by the fund
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

28 Retirement benefit schemes continued
a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued
{iv) Actuarial risk factors continued

Inflation risk

The benefits payable to members of the Schemes are Linked to inflation measured by the RPl or CPI, subject to caps. The group’s
contributions to the Schemes are based on assumptions about the future level of inflation If inflation 1s higher than the levels
assumed in the actuarial calculations then the group may need to make additional contributions to the Schemes in order to fund
the payment of accrued benefits,

The Schemes use Liabibity Oriven Investment [ LBITwaithin the asset portfolios to hedge against the value of labilities changing as a
result of movernents in long-term interest rate and mflation expectations. 1his structure allows the Schemes to both hedge against
these risks and retain capital investment in assets that are expected to generate higher returngs

Longevity risk

The group’s contributions to the Schemes are based on assumptions about the life expectancy of Scheme members after retirerent
If Scheme members Lve longer than assurned in the actuarial calculations then the graup may need to make additional contributions
to the Schermes in order to fund the payrent of accrued benefits

(v} Actuarial assumplions
The major financial assurnptions used In the accounting valuation of the abligations for the STPS, which represents by far the largest
defined benefit obligation for the group, were as follows

2018 017

% -

Price inflatian - RPI 3.1 31
Price intlation - CPI 2.1 21
Discount rate 2.7 27
Pension increases in payment 3.1 31
Pension increases in deferment 3.1 31

The assumption for price inflation 1s derved from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts and on

index-linked gilts

In setting our discount rate, we construct a yield curve Short-dated yields are taken from market rates far AA corporate bonds Long-
dated yields for the curve are based on the average yield available on all long-dated AA corporate bonds We project the expected cash
flows of the schemes and adopt a single equivalent cash flow werghted discount rate based on this constructed yield curve,

The mortality assumptions are based on those used in the latest triennial funding valuations The martality assumptions adopted at
the year end for accounting purposes and the life expectancies at age 65 1implied by the assumptions are as follows for the STPS.

2018 2017

Men Women Muan Wamen

Mortality table used SZNMA S2ZNFA SZNMA SZNFA
Mortality table compared with standard table 95% 99% 95% 99%
Mortality projections CMI 2017 CMI 2017 CMI 2016 CMI 2016
Future improvement per annum 1.0% 1.0% 10% 1.0%
Remaining life expectancy for members currently aged 45 [years) 22.4 241 225 241
Remaining bfe expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 [years) 23.4 25.3 236 753

The calcutation of the scheme obligations 1s sensitive to the actuarial assumptions and in particular to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, price inflation (capped, where relevant] and martality, The following table summarises the estimated impact on the
group’s obligations from changes to key actuaral assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant
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28 Retirement benefit schemes continued
a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued

[v] Actuarial assumptions continued

Assumption Change in assumation Impact on disclosed obligations
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 01%p a Decrease/increase by £48 million
Price inflation” Increase/decrease by 01%p a Increase/decrease by £43 million
Mortality’ Increase In life expectancy by 1vyear Increase by £107 million

Achange i discount rate 1s Lkely 1o eceur as a result of changes in bond yield and as sach wealc be expecied Lo be offsel to 2 signiicant degree by a change in the
value of the bond asscts held by the plans

2 Tneprojected impact resulting from a change in RP| rellects the underlying effect on pensions in paymenl, pensionsin deferment and resuttanl increases in
salary assumplicns

3 Taechange in assumplion is nased on triennial valuat ons and reflect the fact that lfe expecta~cyrates are expected to nerease

In reality, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, par ticularly between the discount rate and price mflation. The above
analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelationships Also, in practice any movement in obhigations arising from
assumption changes are likely to be accompanied by movernents ih asset values — and so the impact on the accounting deficit may
be lower than the 1mpact on the obligatiens shown above.,

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the pi esent value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which 1s the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation
Lizblity recognised in the balance sheet

(vi] Effect on future cash flows

Contribution rates are set in consullation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer

The average duraticn of the benefit abligation at the end of the year s 17 years for STPS and STMIPS (2017 20 years] and 16 years for
OVWS (2017 17 years)

The most recent completed formal triennial actuarial valuations and funding agreements were carried out as at 31 March 2016 for the
STPS and STMIPS schemes and 31 March 2017 for DVWS, As a result of the STPS and STMIPS actuarial valuations, deficit reduction
contributions of £25 million were paid in the year ended 31 March 2017 and £10 mullion for each of the subsequent financral years
ending 31 March 2019 were agreed Payments of £8 million per annurn through an asset-backed funding arrangement will continue
to 31 March 2032, Further inflation-linked payments of £15 million per annum are being rade through an additanal asset-backed
funding arrangement, with payments having started in the financizl year ended 31 March 2018 and continuing te 31 March 2021,
These contributions will cease earlier should a subsequent valuation of the STPS show that these contributions are no longer needed

b] Defined contribution pension schemes

The group also operates the Severn Trent Group Persanal Pension, a defined contribution scheme, for certain of its UK employees,
Dee Valley Water operates two defined contribution pension schemes, neither of which were materiat in either the current or

prior year

The total cest charged to operating costs of £20 3 mullion (2017 restated £20.9 mullion] represents contributions payable te these
schemas by the group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. As at 31 March 2018, na contributians [2017 £2 2 million]
in respect of the current reporting period were owed to the schemes.
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

29 Provisions

Restructuring Insurance Other Total

£m £m fm £m

At 1 Apnil 2017 - 2t é 122 338
Charged to income statement 08 b4 146 218
Utlisation of provision - (4 7) 07) (54)
Unwinding of discount - - 11 11
At 31 March 2018 0.8 23.3 27.2 51.2
2018 2017

£m £m

Included in:

Current labilities 40.4 175
Non-current liabilities 10.7 16 3
51.3 338

Ihe restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred n respect of committed restructuring programimes 1he associated outflows
are estimated to arise over a period of up to two years from the balance sheet date.

Insurance includes provisiens in respect of Derwent Insurance Limited and Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited, captive Insurance
companies, which are whotly-owned subsidiaries of the group, and insurance deductions in Severn Trent Water Limited

The associated outflows are estimated to arise over a periad of up to five years from the balance sheet date

Other provisions include provisions for dilapidations, commercial disputes, either from cantinuing or discontinued operations,

and potential envirenmental claims The assaciated outflows are estimated to arise over a period up to 10 years from the

balance sheet date.

30 Share capital

2018 17
€m tm

Total issued and fully paid share capital
240,222,617 ordinary shares of 97/,-p [2017 239,793,915] 235.1 2347

At 31 March 2018, treasury shares of 3,948,599 were held (2017 4,080,%64)
Changes in share caprtal were as follows

Number €m
Ordinary shares of 97'/,;p
At 1 Apnl 2016 239,344,614 2343
Shares 1ssued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 449301 04
At 1 April 2017 239793915 2347
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 428,702 04
At 31 March 2018 240,222,617 235.1
31 Share premium
2018 2017
£m Em
At 1 April 112.5 1068
Share premium arising on 1ssue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme 5.2 57
At 31 March 17.7 1125
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32 Other reserves
Capital
redemption Transtation Hedging
reserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m fm
At 1 Aprd 2014 1571 37% {78 5] 1165
Total comprehensive income for the year - 25 23 53
At1 Apnil 2017 1571 404 (75 7) 1218
Totat comprehensive [lossl/inceme for the year - {31 4] 116 [198)
Transfer to retained earnings - 20 - [%0)
At 31 March 2018 157.3 - 64.1) 93.0

The capttal redernption reserve arcse on the redemption of B shares

The translation reserve arises from exchange differences on translation of the results and financial position of foreign subsidiaries.

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting provisions

of IAS 3% and the transition rules of IFRS 1
33 Capital management

The group's principal objectives in managing capital are
* to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the need

far continuad avaitability;

+ to manage exposure to movemnents in interest rates to provide an appropriate degree of cerfainty as to its cost of funds,
* to minimise exposure to counterparty credit risk,

= to provide the group with an appropriate degree of certainty as to its foreign exchange exposure,

e to maintain an investment grade cradit rating, and
e to mantain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure.

The group seeks to achieve a balance of long-term funding or cornrmitment of funds across a range of funding sources at the best

possible economic cost The group rnomitors future funding requirements and credit market conditions to ensure continued availability

of funds

The group has continued to maintain exposut e to low floating interest rates, which camprises 26% of our gross debt portfolio at the
balance sheet date, with a further 26% of index-linked debt and 48% of fixed rate debt

The group’s dwidend policy 1s a key tool iIn achieving its capital management objectives This policy 1s reviewad and updated in line
with Severn Trent Water's five year price control cycle and takes into account, inter alia, the planned investmant programme, the
appropriate gearing ievel achieving a balance between an efficient cost of capital and retaining an investment grade credit rating and
delivering an attractive and sustainable return to shareholders The board has decided to set the 2017/18 dividend at 84 55 pence, an
increasa of & 2% compared to the total dividend for 2016/17 of 81 50 pence Our policy 1S ta grow the dividend annually at no less than

RPi plus 4% until March 2020
The group’s capital at 31 March was

2018 2017

£m £m

Net cash and cash eguivalents o 38.5 4é b
Bank loans (1.217.4] (1.073 3]
Other loans o (4,223.9} (4,090 0)
Finance leases ) (113.9) (1157
Cross currency swaps - o 24.5 434
Loans due from joint ventures 135.6 108 6
Net debt o - (5,356.6) {5,082 4!
Equity atlributable to owners of the company 1993.7) 123 3
Total capital (6,350.3) 16,0057
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

Far the year ended 31 March 2018

34 Fair values of financial instruments

a) Fair value measurements

The valuation techmgues that the group applies in determining the fair values of its financial instruments on a recurring basis are
described below The techniques are classified under the hierarchy defined In iIFRS 13 which categorises valuation techrigues into
Levels 1 - 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable The group’s valugtion techriques include Levels 2 and 3 given

the wide range of financial Instruments below-

2018 207
£m E£m  Valuationtechniques and key inputs
Cross currency swaps Discounted cash flow
Assets 24.5 43 4 Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates from
observable yield curves at the year end and contract interest rates
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties
The currency cash flows are translated at spot rate.
Interest rate swaps [iscounted cash flow
Assets 1.4 23 6 Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interesl rates from
Liabilities i112.4) {1839) observable yield curves at the year end and coptract interest rates
discounted at & rate that reflecls lhe creddt risk of counterparlies
Energy swaps Discounted cash flow
Assets 0.3 - Future cash flows are estimated based on forward electricity prices from
Liabiities [0.8) I08) observable indices at the year end and contract prices discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit risk of counterparties
Inflation swaps Discounted cash flow
Liabilities [2.8) - Future cash flows on the RPI leg of the instruments are estimated based

on observable forward inflalicn indices

Future cash flows on the CPl leg of the instruments are estimated based
on the fulure expecled differential between RPl and CPI

Both legs are discounted using observable swap rates at the year end,

at a rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparlies This s considered
lo be a Level 3valuation techrigque
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34 Fair values of financial instruments continued

b) Comparison of fair values of financial instruments with their carrying amounts

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of cash and short term depeosits, bank overdrafts, leans receivable from jont
ventures, trade receivables and trade payables approximate therr fair values The carrying values and estimated fair values of other
financial iInstruments are set out below

vodar by

BERT-NPET]

2018 2017
Carrying value Fairvalue Carrying valuc Fair value

£€m £m £m fm @

Floating rate debt g

Bank toans 9171 9186 776 3 7820 =

Currency bonds 38.2 38.2 401 401 %

Floating rate notes 147.7 153.0 1477 156 4 o

1,103.0 1,109.8 9641 378 5 §

Fixed rate debt L - o o g

Bank loans 185.3 185.0 186 4 186 4 “
Sterling bonds N 2,357.0 2,700.2 2,2572 27462 ._:____

Fixed rate notes 343.4 347.6 3592 3974 z

Other loans _ 5.3 5.3 67 67 %

Finance leases 113.9 122.5 1157 1305 ;

3,004.9 3,360.6 29217 3.467 4 H

Index-linked debt £

Bank loans _ns.o 1249 1106 1267 z

Sterling bonds 1,244 2,057.1 11958 20631 T

Other loans 88.2 87.1 873 873 =

1,447.3 2,269.1 13937 2277 z

5,555.2 6.739.5 5,2790 67230 =

[he above classification does not take into account the impact of unhedyed interest rate swaps or ol oss currency swaps
Fixed rate sterling and currency bonds are valued using market prices, which s a Level 2 valuation technique

Index-Linked bonds are rarely traded and therefore qucted prices are not considered to be a reliable indicater of fair value
Therefore, these bonds are valued using discounted cash flow models with discount rales derived from observed market prices
for a sample of bonds, which 1s a Level 2 valuation technique.

Fair values of the other debt instruments are also calculated using discounted cash flow models, which 1s a Level 2

valuation technique

35 Risks arising from financial instruments

The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks

= market risk including interest rate nsk, exchange rate risk and other price risk],
s credit risk,

¢ Liguidity risk, and

= inflation risk,

The group’s overall risk manzgement programrme addresses the unpredictabiiity of financial markets and seeks to reduce petential
adverse effects on the group’s financial performance or position.,

Financial risks are managed by a central treasury department [ Group Treasury’} under policies approved by the board of directors
The board has established a Treasury Committee to monitor treasury activities and to facilitate imely responses to changes in
market conditions when necessary, Group Treasury identfies, evaluates and hedges linancial risks in close cocperation wilh the
group's operating units. The board defines written principles for overall risk management, as well as writlen policies covering specific
areas such as exchange rate nisk, interest rate risk, credit risk and the use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments.

The group’s policy 1s that derivative financial instruments are not held for trading but may be used to mitigate the group s exposure

to financial fisk The types of dervative instruments held and the related risks are described below

Interest rate swaps are held to manage the group’s exposure to changes in rmarket interest rates Further details are set out in
section al Il and note 36 b) (1]

Cross currency swaps are held to mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate movements on amounts borrowed in foregn
currencies Further detalls are set out in section a) (i) and 36 al [I)
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
Energy swaps are held to mitigate the group s exposure to changes in electricity prices Further details are prowided in note 36 b] (1) below

Severn Trenl Water, the group s most significant business unit, aperales under a regulatory environment where 1ts prices are linked
1o inflation measured by RPI In order to mitigate the risks to cash flow and earnings arising from fluctuations in RPI, the group helds
debt instruments where the principal repayable and interest cost is linked t¢ RPI

al Market risk

The group 1s exposed to fluctuations in mterest rates and, to a lesser extent, exchange rates. The nature of these risks and the steps
that the group has taken to manage thern are described below

(il Interest rate risk

The group’s income and its operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The group’s
interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings

Borrowings issued at varable rates expose the group to the 11sk of adverse cash flow impacts trorm incr eases in interest rates,
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to the risk of interest costs above the market rate when interast rates decrease

The group’s policy 1S to mantain 40% to 70% of its interest bearing labilities in fixed rate instruments during AMP6. In measuring
this metric, management makes adjustments to the carrying value of debt to better reflect the amount that interest is calculated on.
Details of the adjustments made are sef out below

2018 2017

£m Erm

Net debt Inote 40) 5.356.6 R.082 4
Cash and cash equivalents 51.1 44 6
l_oan recewvahle from joint venture 135.6 108 &
Cross currency swaps included in net debt at fair value 245 43 4
Fair value hedge accounting adjustments . 130.4) (315]
Exchange on currency debt not hedge accounted (8.5) (212)
Interest-bearing financial liabiliues 5,528.9 52263

The group manages Its cash flow interest rate risk by borrowing at fixed or index-linked rates or by using Interest rate swaps

Under these swaps the group receives variable rate interest and pays fixed rate interest calculated by reference to the agreed
notional principal amounts (n practice the swaps are settled by transferring the net amount These swaps have the economic effect
of converting borrowings from variable rates to fixed rates The group has entered into a series of these interest rate swaps to hedge
future interest payments beyond 2030

The following tables show analyses of the group's Interest bearing financial Liabilities by type of interest Debt which s hedged by
Interest rate swaps or cross currency swaps 15 included in the category after taking account of the impact of the swap Debt raised in
foreign currencies has been included at the notional sterling value of the payable leg of the corresponding cross currency swap since
this 15 the amount that 1s exposed to changes ininterest rates

Valuation adjustments that do notimpact the amount on which interest s calculated, such as fair value hedge accounting adjustrnents,
are excluded from this analysis

The net principal amount of unhedged swaps is shown as an adjustment to floating rate and fixed rate debt to dermonstrate the impact
of the swaps on the amount of labilities bearing fixed interest.

Floating Fixed Index-
rate rate linked Total
2018 £m £m £m £m
Overdrafts (12 8] - - 12 6]
Bank loans 9171] (185 3] (115 0) (1,217 4
Other loans 1167 &} (2,685 0] {1,332 3) (4,184 9
Fiance leases - 1139) - M39
(1,097.3) (2,984.2] (1,447.3) (5,528.9)
Impact of swaps not matched against specific debt instruments (349 6) 3496 - -
Interest bearing financial babilities 1,446.9) (2,634.6} (1.447.3) 15,528.91
Proportion of interest bearing financial Liabilities that are fixed 48%
Weighted average interest rate of fixed debt 4.30%
Weighted average period for which interest s fixed (years) 88

1 78 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018




35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
al Market risk continued

(i) Interest rate risk continued

Floating Fixe dd Index-
rate rate linked Total
2017 £rm Crn fm £m
Bank loans (776 3) 184 4) (110 &) 11,073 3]
Other loans (167 8] 12,586 4] 1,283 3] (403773
Finance leases - 15 7] - (1157)
(9439 (2,888 5] 13939 (5,226 3]
[mpacl of swaps not matched against specific debt instrurments (205 3] 2053 - -
Interest bearing financial hzhilities 11,149 2) (2,483 2] (1,393 9] (5.226 3)
Preportion of interest bearing financial habilities that are fixed 51%
Weighted average interest rale of [ixed deb! 516%
Weighted average period for which interest s hixed [years) 92

|

Jrday ubae s

ERNRRNRIYTS]

Interest rate swaps not hedge accounted
The group has a numbeoer of interest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flow or fair value hedges, This has led to a credit
of £79 millior (2017 charge of £3 3 million] in the inceme statement

Average contract fixed interest rate Naotignal principal amount Fair value
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2m7
% g £m Em €m E£m
Pay fixed rate interest

5-10years 5.06 506 {300.0) (450 0) (65.6) (125 3}
10 - 20years 5.46 545 {73.7) (581 (32.6) (37 8}
5.16 511 (373.7) 518 1) (98.2) (163 1)

Receive fixed rate interest
5- 10years 336 334 2250 750 1.4 58
10 - 20 years 275 292 400.0 2500 (0.6) 178
3.01 297 625.0 6250 10.8 236
251.3 106 9 (87.4) (139 5)

[SRUTIYLINFENITS) J YUY Py P Uy Auedaan)) Sjuzwaless (eizueuy dnoag

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity after tax of the group's profits, cash flow and equity, including the impact on derivative financial mstruments, to
changes in interest rates at 31 March 1s as follows

2018 2M7

10% -10% 10% -1 0%

£m £m Cm m

Profit or loss 147.7) 53.9 (361] 5473
Cash llow (11.5) 1.5 88 6 8)
Equity ) 147.7) 53.9 (36 1) 543

i} Exchange rate risk

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which 1s hedged, the group’s business does not invelve significant exposure te foreign
exchange transactions. Substantially all of the group's profits and net assets arise from Severn Trenl Waler, which has very limited
and indirect exposure to changes in exchange rates, and therefore the sensitiity of the group’s results to changes in exchange rates
Is not malerial.

Certain of the group’s subsidiaries enter into transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the operation
Exchange risks relating to such aperations are not material but are managed centrally by Group Treasury through forward exchange
contracts te buy or sell currency These contracts led to a charge of Enil[2017 charge of £0 1 million] in the income statement

In order to meet its objechve of acressing a broad range of sources of finance, the group has raised debt denonunated in currencies
other than sterling. In order to mitigate the group's exposure to exchange rate fluctuations, cross currency swaps were entered into at
the time that the debt was drawn down to swap the proceeds into slerling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
al Market risk continued

(i) Exchange rate risk continued

Where the terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt, the swaps are expected to be
effective hedges, hence the swaps have been accounted for as fair value hedges. The notional value and fair value of these swaps
is showi in note 34 al.

The group also has cross currency swaps with a sterlng value of £98.3 million {2017 £98 3 million] which are net accounted for as
fair value hedges Economically these swaps act to mitigate the exchange rate risk of dabt within the group which s denorminated in
foreign currency, but they do net achieve hedge accounting under the strict cnteria of IAS 39 This has led te a charge of £177 mullion
(2017 credit of £13 1 million) In the incorme statement which 1s partly offset by the exchange gain of £12 7 million (2017 exchange loss
of £15.4 million] on the underlying debt,

The group's gross and net currency exposures arising from currency borrowings are summarised in the tables below. These show,
in the relevant currency, the amount borrowed and the notional principal of the related swap o1 forward contract The net position
shows the group’s exposure to exchange rate risk in relation to its currency borrowings

Euro US dollar Yen
2018 €m $m ¥on
Borrowings by currency (20 2] {150 0) 12 0)
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 - 20
Cross currency swaps - nol hedge accounted - 150 0 -~
Net currency exposure (0.3 - -~

Euro US roltar Yer
2017 £m m ¥hn
Borrowings by currency {201} {150 0] (2 0)
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 - 20
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted - 1500 -
Net currency exposure 02 - -

bl Credit risk

Operationally the group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are
made to customers with an appropnate credit history, other thar in Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Lirnited, whose
operating licences oblige them to supply domestic customers even in cases where bills are not paid Amaounts provided against
accounts recelvable and movernents on the provision during the year are disclosad in note 21

Cash deposils and derivalive contracls are only placed with high credit quality financial institutions, which have been approved by the
board Group Treasury monitors the credit quality of the approved financial institutions and the bist of financial institutians that may be
used s approved annually by the board. The group has policies that lirmut the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution.

Credit risk analysis

AL 3T March the aggregate credit limits of authorised counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposits were as follows
Credit Limit Amount deposited
2018 2017 2018 2017
€m £m £€m £m
AAA - 50 - 12
Double Arange 105.0 1000 - 18
Single Arange 650.0 6250 1.1 138
Triple B range 10.0 100 53 20
765.0 7400 16.4 188

The fair values of derwvative assets analysed by credit ratings of counterparties were as foliows,

Dervative assets

2018 2017

£m Em

Double Arange - 0.8
Single Arange 36.2 662
38.2 470
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued

cl Liquidity risk

(i) Committed facilities

Prudent iguidity management requires sufficient cash balances to be maintained; adeguate commutted facilities to be avallable, and

the ability to close out market positions, Group Treasury manages liquidity and flexibility in funding by monitaring forecast and actual
cash flows and the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities, and by keeping commutted credit lines available.

Atthe balance sheet date the group had committed undrawn borrowing faciiities expiring as follows

2018 2017
£m Em
2 -5 years 710.0 1,006 0

(ii) Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will anise from the group’s nen-derivative net financial labilities

The information presented 1s based on the earliest date onwhich the group can be required te pay and represents the undiscounted
cash flows including m incipal and interest.

Interest and inflation assumptions are based on prevailing market conditions at the year end date.

Payments

on financial

2018 Floating rate Fixed rate Index-linked  Trade payables Liabilities
Undiscounted amounts payable: £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1year o (3114 N340 (278 189 (494.1)
1-Zyears B (10 3] (e (294] - (155.8
2 -Syears (47 3) (782 4| (325 7) - {1,349.6)
9-10years (785 3] (1333 8] 199 9) - (2,318.8)
10 - 15 years (52 7] _MWH,DSEJ ] (436 2) - {1,544.9)
15 - 20 years - 16091 (1390 - (199.9)
20 - 25 years - [2988] (1677 - (466.5]
25 - 30years N - - (199 2] - (199.2)
30-3byears - - (649 7) - (649.7)
35- 40 years - - (2,273 &) - (2,273.6)
40 - 45 years - - [1,0681) - [1,068.1)
45-50years - - (374 2) - {374.2)
Total (1,201.0] (3,984.0) (5,890.5) (18.9) (1,094.4)
Receipts

Loans due Cash and from

from joint Trade short term financial

ventures recervables deposits assets

Undiscounted amounts receivable. £m £m £m €m
Within 1 year - 1910 31 2421
1 -2vyears 126 3 - - 126.3
5- 10years 125 - - 12.5
Total 138.8 191.0 51.1 380.9
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
c Liquidity risk continued
(i) Cash flows frem non-derivative financial instruments continued

Payrments

on bnanaal

2017 Floatngrate Fixed rate Index-linked Trade payables liabilities
tndiscounted amounts payahble (m m Cm {m £m
Within 1 year (160 7) (538 7! (25 4) (24 0) (748 8
1-2years (114) (1087) {26 6] - 469
7 - 5years (42 1) (4698 (84 &) - (594 5]
5 - 10years (750 2) 1,383 4) {440 2) - 12,573 8)
10- 15years (1123 (1,1100) (347 1] - 11,569 4
15 - 20 years - (60 9} (221 3) - (282 2)
20 - 25 years - - (3109] {150 3) - (471 2]
25 - 30years - - (190 1) - (10 1
30 - 35 years - - (643 2) - (643 2
35 - 40vyears - - 1,226 5) - (1,226 5]
40 - 45 years - - (20897 - (2,089 7]
45-50years - - 1345 0) - 1365 0)
Total (1,076 9] (3,982 4] (5,820 0] (24 0] (16,902 3)
Receipts

Loansdue Cash and from

from joint Trade short term financial

venlures recoivables depesits assets

Undisounted amounts recewable £m £m £m £m
Within 1 year 996 2142 44 6 358 4
5- 10years 125 - - 125
Total 1121 2142 446 3709

Index-linked debt includes loans with maturities up to 50 years. The principal 1s revalued al fixed intervals and 1s Uinked Lo moverments
in the RPI. Interest payments are made biannually based on the revalued principat The principal repayment equals the revalued
amount at maturity, The payments included in the table above are estimates based on the ferward inflation rates published by the
Bank of England at the balance sheet date

liii) Cash flows from derivative financial instruments

The fellowing tables show the estimated cash flows that will arise from the group’s derivative financial instruments, The tables

are based on the undiscounted net cash inflows/loutflows] on the derivative financial instruments that settle on a net basis and the
undiscounted gross inflows/[outflows) on those dervatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or recevable s
not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates derived from
the forward curves exsting at the balance sheet date Actual amounts may be significantly different from those indicated below,

Derivative liabitities Derivative assets

Cross currency swaps

Interest Energy inflation Interest Energy Cash Cash
rate swaps swaps swaps rate swaps swaps receipts payments Total
2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1 year 1149 - - 51 0z 11 02 87)
1- Zyears (14 3] - - 17 - 11 03 1118)
2-Syears j47 5] (C8) 0?2 35 01 34 (11] [42 2]
5- 10Years (35 8] - 08 39 - 233 130 (20 8]
10 ~ 15 Years (130) - 14 - - 175 8 8] 27
15 - 20 years - - [67) - - - - [67)
{125.5] {0.8) (4.1) 14.2 0.3 46.4 {23.4) 192.9)
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued

c) Liquidity risk continued

(i) Cash flows from derivative financial instruments continued

Denvative labilities

Derwative assets

Cross currency swaps

Inlerest Cnergy Interesat Cash Cash
rati swips Swiaps rte swaps receipls payments Tntal
2017 fm £ £m £m £ £m
Within 1 year 125 4| (02} 69 11 10 2] (17 8)
1-2years (24 9) ) 62 11 02 18 3}
? - Syears ) 173 &) [0 3] 131 34 {0 8] (58 0]
5~ 10Vears [614) - 43 239 31 44 B)
10 - 15 Years (11 8] - [4 4] 181 (7 0) (89
1194 9] i10) 241 476 123 3] (149 5]

dl Inflation risk

The group’s principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, operates under a regulatory environment where its prices are linked
lo Inflation measured by RPI Its operating profits and cash flows are therefore exposced to changes in RPI In order to mitigate and
partially offset this risk, Severn Trant Water has raised debt which pays interest at a fixed coupen based on a principal amount that
15 adjusted for the change in RPI during the Life of the debt instrument { index-linked debt | The amount of Index-linked debt at the
balance sheet date i1s shown In sectien a] )] Interest rate risk, and the estimated future cash flows relating to this debt are shown

n section ) (1} Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments,

Ofwat has announced its plans to move towards an economic regulatory model linked to inflation measured on the CPIH index over
a period of tme, In anticipation of this the group has entered into CPI/RPI swaps with a notional value of £130 mitlion 2t 31 March Z018
in crder to mitigate the risk of divergence between inflation measured by CFIH and that measured by RPI

Inflation rate sensitivity analysis

The finance cost of the group’s Index-linked debt instruments varies with changes in RPI rather than interest rates The sensitrity
at 31 March of the group's profit and eguity to changes in RPlis set out In the following table, This analysis relates to financial
instruments only and excludes any RPlimpact on Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulatory Capital Value, or acceunting

for defined benetit pension schernes.

2018 2017

+1.0% -1.0% +1 0% -10%

£&m £m Erm £m

Protitor loss (11.7) 1.7 112) 12

Equity 1.7 1.7 (11 2] 2
36 Hedge accounting

The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and inter est rates,
Hedge accounting 1s adopted for such instruments where the criteria set out in IAS 37 are met.

al Fair value hedges
{il Cross currency swaps

The group raises debt denorminated in currencies other than sterling Cross currency swaps are entered into at the time that the debt
15 drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR in order to ritigate the group’s expasure te
exchange rate fluctuations Where the terms of the recevable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt, the

swaps are expected to be effective hedges

At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps designated as fair value hedges were as follows

MNotional prlncxpa!amour\L Fair value
2018 2017 2018 2017
£m £m £m £m

Euro e - N4 114 10.4 104
Yen i 8.5 85 8.3 94
19.9 199 18.7 198
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

36 Hedge accounting continued
b) Cash flow hedges

[i) interest rate swaps

The group has entered into interest rate swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating
interest rate amounts catculated on agreed nobional principal amounts Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the risk of
changing interest rates on fulure cash flow exposures ansing from issued variable rate debt. Where the hedge 15 expected to be
highly effective these interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges

Details of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summarised below

Average contract fixed interest rate Notional principal amount Fairvalue

2018 207 2018 2017 2018 2017

Period to maturity % k4 £m £m £m tm
5 - 10vyears 2.63 170 135.2 500 (8.6] [
10- 20years 1.83 214 298.0 384 4 (5.0) 119 4]
2.08 209 433.2 434 4 13.6) [207)

[ii) Energy swaps
The group has entered into a senes of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixad and market
prices of electricity at six-monthly intervals up to March 2020

Detalls of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are surmmmarised below

Average contract price Notional contracted amaount Farr value

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 017

Period to maturity £/MWh C/MWh MWh Mifvh £m Lm
Less than 1 year 476 436 43,680 56,277 0.2 02
1-2years 48.6 485 21,955 205,296 - [0 5]
2 -Byears 40.5 486 547,460 21955 0.7} o1
41.3 474 613,095 293,523 (0.5 {0 8]

37 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees During the period, the group recognised total
expenses of £6 9 million (2017 £6 1 million] related lo equity settled share based payment transactions
The weighted average share price during the period was £21 2% (2017, £22 98]

At 31 March 2018, there were no options exeraisable (2017, nonel under any of the share based remuneration schemes

al Long Term Incentive Plans ['LTIPs’)

Under the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP"}, conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and senior staff
Awards are subject to performance conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting period Awards have been
previousty made on different bases to Severn Trent Ple and Severn Trent Water employees [the 'LTIP] and to Severn Trent Services
ernployees (the Serwices LTIP']

Awards made under the LTIP

The 2014 LTIP awards were subject to Severn Trent Water's achieverment of Return on Regulated Capital Value in excess of the level
included in the Severn Trent Water AMPS business plan over a three year vesting period The 2015, 2016 and 2017 LTIP awards are
subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on Regulated Equity in excess of the level included in the Severn Trent Water
AMP6 business plan over a three year vesting period It has been assumed that performance against the LTIP non-market conditions
wall be 100% (2017 100%!

Awards made under the Services LTIP

Awards were subject to achievernent of turnover and profit targets over the three year period from the financial year that the awards
were granted. In 2017 it was assumed that performance against the Services LTIP would be 0%
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37 Share based payments continued

al Long Term Incentive Plans ['LTIPs’) continued

Awards outstanding

Details of changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of awards
LTIP Services LTIP
Opening at 1 Apnl 2014 475,878 33,864
Granted during the year 195,410 -
Vested during the year 1132697 -
Lapsed during the year [21.122) [33.864)
QOutstanding at t Apnil 2017 517,474 -
Granted durmg the year 203.035 -
Vested during the year (139,829 -
Lapsed dunng the year [31.206) -
Outstanding at 31 March 2018 548,774 -
Details of LTIP and Services LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows
Normal date Number of awards
Date of grant of vesting 2018 2017
Juty 2014 2017 - 153,724
July 2015 2018 160,028 168.335
July 2016 2019 188,131 195,415
July 2017 2020 200,615 -
548,774 517,474
Details of the basis of the LTIF scheme are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 96 to 128
b] Employee Sharesave Scheme
Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board rnay grant the night to purchase ordinary shares in the company to those
employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for a period of three or five years.
Options outstanding
Details of changes in the number of options outstanding during the year are set cut below.
Weighted
Number average
of share exercise
options price
Outstanding at 1 April 2016 2,858,611 1,492p
Granted during the year 868,766 1.663p
Forferted during the year (71133 1.579p
Cancelled during the year [92,095) 1,636p
Exercised during the year 1449,301) 1,226p
Lapsed during the year (8.241) 1.3%6p
Qutstanding at 1 April 2017 3.106,607 1,572p
Granted during the year 1,087,376 1,652p
Forfeited during the year [46.715] 1.636p
Cancelled during the year (134,768 1,665p
Exercised during the year o (428,702 1.306p
Lapsed during the year (B.847) 1,367
Outstanding at 31 March 2018 3574931 1.625p
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37 Share based payments continued
b} Employee Sharesave Scheme continued

Options outstanding continued
Sharesave options ocutstanding at 31 March were as follows

Normal date Option Nummber of awards
Date of grant of exercise price 2018 2017
January 2012 2017 1177p - 88,346
January 2013 2016 or 2018 1,241p 10,447 112,840
January 2014 2017 or 2019 1.331p 151,528 489937
January 2015 2018 or 2020 1,584p 846,002 883,839
January 2016 2019 or 2021 1,724p 6219 668,413
January 2017 2020 or 2027 1,663p 781,782 863,212
January 2018 2021 or 2023 1,652p 1,063,201 -

3,574,931 3,106,607

c) Share Matching Plan ['SMP’}

Under the SMP members of STEC may receive matching share awards over those shares which had been acquired under the
deferred share compenent of the annual bonus scheme Matching shares may be awarded at a maximum ratio of one matching share
for every deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting period No matching shares have been awarded in the current year.
Matching shares are subject to total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the companies ranked 51 - 150 by
market capitalisation In the FTSE Index [excluding investment trusts)

The number of shares subject tc an award will increase to reflect dwvidends paid through the performance period on the basis of
such notional dridends being reinvested at the then prevailing share price Awards will normally vest as soon as the Remuneration
Committee determines that the performance conditions have been met provided that the participant remains in employment at the
end of the performance period

Details of changes in the number of awards cutstanding during the year are set out below

Number of

awards

Outstanding at 1 April 2016 27.613
Cancelled during the year (24,682}
Vested during the year (2.931)

Outstanding at 31 March 2017 and 2018 _

d] Fair value calculations
The fair values of the share awards made and share options granted during the year were calculated using the Black Scholes method.
The principal assumptions and data are set cut below

2018 2017

LTIP SAYE LTIP SAYE

dyear scheme 5 year scheme Jyear scheme Syear scheme

Share price at grant date [pence] 2,341 2,138 2138 2236 2,222 2,222
Ophion life [years] 3 35 5.5 3 35 55
Vesting period lyears] 3 3 5 3 3 5
Expected volatility (%] 18.2 18.2 18.2 182 182 18 2
Expected dividend yield %] 4.1 41 41 37 37 37
Risk frea rate (%) nfa 0.5 0.8 n/a 01 05
Fair value per share [pence) 2.328 375 351 2,224 407 429

Expected volatiity 1s measured over the three years prior to the date of grant of the awards or share options.
Volatility has been calculated based on historical share price movements

The risk free rate 1s derved from yields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the awards or share options
The dividend yield s calculated using the expected dividend for the year divided by the share price at the date of grant
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38 Acquisitions

On 15 February 2017, Severn Trent Water Limited acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Dee Valley Group Limited comprising
all subsidiaries including the regulated water company Dee Valley Water Limited This acquisition was made through a scherme of
arrangement including cash consideration of £79.0 million and the 1ssue of loan notes with a value of £3 2 million

The acquisihion was accounted for using the acquisition methed Goodwitl of £66 O million was capitalised attributable to the
anticipated future synergies and outperfarmance arising as a result of the acquisition. The goedwill valuation was based on
management's best estimates of the fair values of the assets and Liabilities acquired Given the proxirmity to the year end, full detailed
tair value exercises were not able to be completed before the approval of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017,

The fair value exercses were completed in the current year and resulted in the revisions to the provisional fair values as set out in the
following table

oday wbagrg

AIUBLIAA0C)
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£m

Goodwill recegnised at 1 April 2617 based on provisional fair values 66.0
Additional consideration in respect of acquisition 0.2
Adjustments to provisional fair values far

- Recognition of Dee Valley Water Limited s Instrument of Appointment (4.3

- Revisions to estimated fair vatlue of property, plant and equipment {0.8)

- Deferred tax on changes in fair value 11
Goodwill recognised at 31 March 2018 based on final fawr values 62.2

Details of the adjustments made to the provisional fair values are set out below

Dee Valley Water Limited holds an Instrument of Appointment as a water undertaker under the Water Act 1989 1ssued by the Secretary
of State for Wales [the Licence]. The Licence has no fixed term and requires 25 years notice of termination. Under the Licence, Dee
Valley Water Lirmited has an exclusive right to supply water to household and non-household custemers within a geographic area
defined in the Licence On 23 March 2018 Ofwat announced that it had agreed to vary the terms of the Licence with effect from 1 July
2018 to amend the geographic area to include those parts of Wales previously served by Severn Trent Water and to exclude certain
paris of England previously served by Dee Valley Water

Water undertakers are subject to a framework of economic regulation operated by the Water Services Regulation Authonity [Ofwat]
Linder this framework, water undertakers are permitted to set wholesale taniffs that would enable an efficient company to earn a
post-tax return on a notional amount known as the Regulatory Capital Value [RCY] They are also allowed to earn a net rmargin en
their retail costs. Ofwat sets the pest-tax return at & rate that it considers ta be the weighted average cost of capital for companies
operating in the sector based on an assumed gearing level Therefore the Licence, tegether with the net operating assets, enables
Dee Valley Water Limited to earn post-tax returns with a net present value equivalent to the RCV plus & net return on retail activities
To determine the fair value of the licence we have taken the RCV at 31 March 2017 from Ofwat s Final Price Controt Determination
published in December 2014 adjusted to current prices at the acquisition date, added an allowance far the value of the Retall business
and compared this with the fair value of the operating assets acgured This resulted in a valuation of £4 3 million for the Licence.

The goodwill acquired represents future outperformance of the regulatory setttement and synergies arising from the combination of
the group's regulated water businesses

See note 16 for the reconcitiation of goodwill recogrised for the group

39 Discontinued operations

Operating Services US and italy

The disposal of the group s US business (Operating Services, US], which formed part of the Business Services segment, to US
investors PPC Enterprises LLC and Alston Capital Partners LLC was cornpleted on 30 Jure 2017 The group disposed of the Operating
Services business in Italy, which formed part of the Business Services segment, on 23 February 2017 to Acea S PA

The classification of these businesses as discontinued operations requires Judgements as to whether they represent a separate major
line of business or geographical area The Operahing Serwices ltaly business was sold on 23 February 2017 At that point the process

to dispose of the Operating Services US business was underway, as part of a single coordinated plan to exit the overseas Operating
Services businesses However, at that point the disposal of the Operating Services US business was not considered to be highly
probable because the sale process was not sufficiently advanced

Onits own, Operating Services flaly was not considered to be a major Line of business or geographical area and so it was not classified
as a discontinued operatioh in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Following the disposal of Gperating Services US on 30 June 2017, the group had completed its plan to exit the overseas Operating
Services business. It reassessed the classification of these businesses and reclassified them as discontinued operations

Prior period figures in the consolidated income stalemnent and related notes have heen restated to present separately amounls
relating to discontinued operations
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

39 Discontinued operations continued

Water Plus joint venture

On 1 March 201¢ the group announced its intention, subject to approval from the Competition and Markets Autharity [CMA], to enter
into a joint venture with United Utilities PLC to compete in the non-household water and waste water retaill markets in England and
Scotland On 3 May 2016 the CMA announced approval of the joint venture On this date the group determined that completion of

the proposed transaction became highly probable and the non-household retail business was classified as a disposal group and &
discontinued operation with effect from this date On 31 May 2016 the group transferred Severn Trent Water's non-household retail
business to Severn Trent Select Limited and on 1 June it exchanged the entire share capitat of Severn Trent Select Lirmited for 50%
of the share capital of Water Plus | imited

During the year, the remaining balance on the non-household retail receivable amounts that were retained when that business was
transferred to Water Plus were written off An additional £1 5 mition was charged to operating costs in discontinued operations in
respect of this

The results of discontinued operations are disclosed separately In the iIncomne statement and cemprise

2018 2017
[restated)
Nen-
Operating Non- Operaling Operating household
Services US househotd Services US  Serwices ltaly retail
13 months] retail Total {12 months] f10manths] (2 menths) Total
£€m £€m £€m Em £m £m Em
Turnover 421 - 421 160 4 208 660 2477
Total operating costs (40.7) (1.5) {42.2) (156 0] 120 2) (67 3] {243 5]
{Loss)/profit before interest and tax 1.4 (1.5) {0.1) b b 06 (13] 37
Net finance income - - 09 02 - 11
[Loss)/profit before tax 1.4 (1.5] {0.1) 53 08 (13) 48
Attributable tax expense - 0.3 0.3 (06 - 03 03
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 13.0 - 13.0 - 20 14 6 166
Profit/[loss] for the year 14.4 [1.2) 13.2 47 28 136 211
Attributable to:
Owners of the company 14.4 n.a 13.2 47 30 136 213
Non-controlling interests - - - - 02 - {0 2]
14.4 {1.2) 13.2 47 28 136 211

Basic and diluted earnings per share from discentinued operations are as follows.

2018 L7
[restated]
Profit Weighted Profit Weighted
attributable to average attributable to average
owners of the number of Per share owners of the number of Per share
company shares amount company shares amount
£m m pence £ m pence
Basic earnings per share 13.2 235.3 5.6 213 23540 21
Diluted earnings per share 13.2 236.1 5.6 213 2360 20

1 88 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018




39 Discontinued operations continued
The net assets of the business at the date of disposal were

2018 2017
Operating Operating  Non-heuscheld
Services US Services ltaly retaill
£m Ern Em
Goodwill 14.4 20 -
Other intangible assets 29 14 -
Property. plant and equipment 9.4 12 -
Investments - 42 -
Inventories 0.6 75 -
Trade and other receivables 28.2 13 06
Cash and bank balances g9 15 35
Trade and other pavables {19.9) (15 0] 10 5)
Borrowings - (39 -
Provisions for Labibities - (23]
45.5 79 36
Attributable to:
Owners of the company 45.5 71 36
Non-controlling interest - 08 -
45.5 79 36
The net gain on disposals is calculated as follows
Operating Operatng  MNon-hcusehold
Services US Services ltaly retail
£m Em £m
Consideration 47.8 79 255
Net assets attributable te owners of the company (45.5) [71) (34
2.3 08 219
Tax on gain on disposal 0.7) - -
Disposal costs and provisions on dispesal (18.4) (1 6) (73)
Foreign exchange gain recycled from reserves 29.8 28 -
Net gain on disposal 13.0 20 14 6
The net cash flows arising from the disposal groups were as follows
2018 2m7
[restated)
Operating Operating Opsrating  Non-household
Services US Services US Servires Italy retail
{3 months) (12 menths) 10 months) {2 months) Totat
£m £m Em Cm £m
Nel cash flows aliributable to
- Operating activities 19 57 (07) 29 73
- Investing activities [0.6) (37) 04 - (33]
- Financing activities - 1) 11 (3 5 (3 5]
1.3 03 08 (0 & 05
The net cash flows arising from disposats were
Operating Operating  Mon-hcusehold
Services US Servines [taly retal
Em £rn £m
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents 39.3 03 -
Settlerment of intercompany loans o - 76 -
Disposal costs paid in cash and cash equivalents o (4.6] (14] (73]
Cash and bank balances disposed of 9.9) (15) (35)
24.8 48 (108l
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

40 Cash flow statement
a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2018 2017
[restated|
£m £m
Profil before interest and lax from continuimng operations 528.4 5367
Profit before interest and tax from discontinued operations 13.6 206
Profit before interest and tax 542.0 5573
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 308.8 3088
Amortisation of intangible assets 20.8 193
Pension service credit |7.8) (17 3)
Detined benefit pension scheme admimistration costs 1.8 33
Detined benefit pensicn scherme contributions (35.2) (332
Share based payment charge 89 61
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assols 7.3 {50
Exceptional depreciation - property, plant and equipment 16.8 -
Profit on disposal of businesses 13.7) {17 2]
Deferred income movernent (14.3) (139)
Provisions charged to the income statement 13.8 165
Utlisation of provisions far Labilities (5.4) 19 5]
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 827.2 814 2
Increase in inventory (29 (13]
lincreasel/decrease in amounts recevable [58.4] 603
Increase/[decrease] in amounts payable 7.4 (22 2]
Cash generated fram operations 773.3 8510
Tax recewed 8.0 206
Tax pad (14.5) (42 4]
Net cash generated from operating activities 766.8 8292

bl Non-cash transactions

No additions to property, plant and equipment during the year were financed by new finance leases (2017 nil). Assets transferred from
developers at no cost were recognised at therr fair vatue of £35.6 millien (2017, £51.4 million)

c) Exceptional cash flows

The following cash flows arose from iterns classified as exceptional in the Income staterment

2018 2017
fm £m
Costs of Pension Exchange Arrangement - o7
d) Reconciliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt
Net cash Cross Loans due
and cash Bank Other Finance currency from joint
equivalents loans loans leases swaps ventures Netdebt
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
AL April 2017 446 10733 {4,090 0) (1157 434 108 & (5,082 4}
Cash flow (4 4] 138 5) (38 1] 18 - 26 6 (212 8]
Fair value adjustments - - 20 - 18 9] - [169)
RPIuplift on index-linked debt - 14 4] 1497) - ~ - (541)
Foreign exchange (15] - 127 - - - 112
Dther non-cash movements - 12) 08) - - 04 (1 6]
At 31 March 2018 38.5 {1,217.4) {4,223.9) (113.9) 245 135.6 (5,356.6)

Liabilities from financing activities comprise bank toans, other loans and finance leases,
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41 Contingent liabilities

Bonds and guarantees
Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guarantaes in the normal course of business No ability (2017, Enili 15 expacted to
arise inrespect ef either bonds or quarantees

42 Service concession arrangements

The group’s contract to provide water and waste water services to the Ministry of Defence (MOD )15 a service cancession
arrangement under the definition set out in IFRIC 12 The group acts as the service provider under the MOD Project Aquatrine
Package C - a 28 year contract spanning 1,295 sites acress England covering the eastern sea border and from Lancashire in the
North West to West Sussex on the South coast

Under the contract the group mamtains and upgrades the MOD infrastructure assets and provides operating services for water and
waste water Both the operating services and maintenance and upgrade services are charged under a volumetric tariff, along with
standard charges, which are adjusted with inflation as agreed in the contract,

Since the group has an unconditional right to receive cash in exchange for the mantenance and upgrade services, the amounts
recevable are recogrised as a financial asset within prepayments and accrued income. At 31 March 2018 the amounts receivable
were £311 million (2017: £27 7 million)

There have been no significant changes to the arrangement during the year

43 Financial and other commitments
a) Investment expenditure commitments

2018 2017
£m fm
Contracted for but not authorised in the financial statements 395.0 2210

In addition to these contractual commitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans which include
investments to achieve iImprovements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services (Ofwat] and to provide
for growth in demand for water and waste water services,

b) Leasing commitments
At the balance sheet date the group had cutstanding operating commutments for future minimum operating lease payments under
non-cancellable operating teases, which fall due as follows

2018 2017

£m £m

Within 1vyear 1.1 32
1 -b5years 2.4 76
After more than 5 years 4.8 70
8.3 178

Operating lease payments represent rentals by the group for certain of its office property, plant and equipment,

44 Post balance sheet events

Sale of land in Nottinghamshire
On 30 April 2018, the sale of land from Midlands Land Portfolio Limited, a subsidiary of Severn Trent Plc, to Persimmon Homes was
completed. The sale values the land at £21.8 million, realising a group profit of £18 2 rdlion in the year ending 31 March 2019

Payments will be made in cash and phased over the life of the project with £2 3 mutlion payable on 30 April 2018 and the remainder
phased evenly over five further yearly payrments of £3 9 million each ending on 30 Apnl 2023

Dividends

Following the year end the board of directars have proposed a final dvidend of 51.92 pence per share. Further details of this are shown
i note 14
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

45 Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
included in this note Trading transactions between the group and its joint venture, Water Plus, are disclosed below

Water Plus
2018 2017
€m £m
Sale of services 354.9 3175
Net nterest income 2.4 13
357.3 3188

Outstanding balances between the group and the joint venture as at 31 March were as follows
Water Plus
2018 2017
£m £m
Trade and other recewables due from related parties 449 376
Armounts due to related parties - (8 8]
Loans receivable from joint ventures 135.46 108 6
180.5 1374

The retirement benefit schemes operated by the group are considered to be related parties. Details of transactions and balances with
the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 28

Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management persennel comprise the members of STEC during the year

The remuneration of the directors is included within the armounts disclosed below Further information about the remuneration
of individual directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 110to 119,

2018 2017

£m £m

Short term employee benefits 6.4 72
Post employment benefits - N
Share based payments 3.5 31
9.9 103

46 Alternative performance measures (APMs’)

Financial measures or metrics used in this report that are not defined by IFRS are alternative performance measures, The group
uses such measures for performance analysis because they provide addrional useful information on the performance and
position of the group. Since the group defines its own alternative performance measures, these might not be directly comparable
to cther companies’ alternative performance measures These measures are not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to,
IFRS measurements

al Underlying PBIT

Underlying profit before interest and tax is profit before interest and tax excluding exceptional items as recorded in the income
staternent and restated for discontinued operaticns This provides a consistent measure of operating performance excluding
distortions caused by exceptional ttems The calculation of this APM 15 shown on the face of the income statement and innote &
for reportable segrments

bl Underlying earnings per share

Underlying earnings per share figures are presented for continuing sperations, These exclude the effects of exceptional items,

net gans/llosses] on financial instruments, current tax on exceptianal items and on net gains/[lasses] on financial instruments,
exceplional current tax and deferred tax. The directors consider that the underiying figures provide a useful additional indicator
of perforrnance and remove non-performance related distartions. See note 15.
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46 Alternative performance measures [APMs’) continued

c] Effective interest rate
The effective interest rate 1s calculated as net finance costs, excluding net finance costs from pensions, plus capitalised finance
costs divided by the monthly average net debt during the year,

[net finance costs - net hnance costs from pensions + capitalised finance costs)

fronthly average net debt]

[REENR RIS

ATUCJIARIG)

2018 2017
(restated) 9
£m £m _§
Net finance costs 219.5 2051 g
Net finance costs from pensions 115.5) [109] a
Capitalised interest 26.2 18 6 i
230.2 2128 g
Average net debt 5134.4 48125
Effective interest rate 4.5% 4 4%

This APM 15 used as 1t shows the average interest rate that is attributable to the net debt of the business

d) Effective cash cost of interest
The effective cash cost of interestis calculated on the same basis as the effective interest rate except that it excludes finance costs
that are not paid in cash but are accreted to the carrying value of the debt [principally RPI adjustments on index-linked debt]

[ret finance costs - net finance costs from pensions - RPl interest + capitalised finance costs/

{monthly average net debt]

2018 2017

[restated)

£€m Lo

Net finance costs 219.5 2051
Net finance costs from pensions 115.5) {109)
RP!interest (54.1) (30 2)
Capitalised interest 26.2 186
176.1 1826

Average net debt 5134.4 48125
Effective cash cost of interest 3.4% 38%

This APM 15 used as it shows the average cash interest rate based on the net debt of the business

e} PBIT interest cover
The ratio of profit from continuing operations before interest, tax and exceptional items to net finance costs excluding net finance
costs from pensions

Undertying FBIT
[net iinance costs ~ net hinance costs from penstons)

2018 207

Irestated)

€m {m

Underlying PBIT 541.0 5201
Net finance costs ) 219.5 2057
Net finance costs from pensions (15.5} 1109
Net finance cosls excluding finance costs from pensions 204.0 194 2
ratio ratio

PBIT interest cover ratio 2.7 27

This APM 15 used to show how the underlying PBIT of the business cover s the financing costs associated only with net debt on
a consistent basis
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

46 Alternative performance measures [APMs) continued
f] EBITDA and EBITDA interest cover

EBITDA 15 a commonly used proxy for cash flow, for examgle by ratings agencies and in debt covenants EBITDA interest cover
15 the ratio of EBITDA. It 1s calculated as profit from continuing operations before interest, tax, exceptional items, depreciation
and amortisation

lunderlying PBIT + depreciation + amaortisation]

{net finance costs - net finance costs from penstons)

2018 2017

(restated]

£€m Em

Underlying PBIT 541.0 5201
Depreciation 308.2 3059
Amortisation 20.5 178
EBITDA 869.7 8438
Net finance costs 219.5 2051
Nel finance casts from pensions f15.5) o9
Net finance costs excluding tinance costs trom pensions 204.0 194 2
ratio ratio

EBITDA interest cover ratio 4.3 43

This APM 15 used to show how the EBITDA of the business covers the financing costs associaled only with net debl on a
consistent basis

g) Underlying effective current tax rate

Current tax charge for the year on continuing cperations, excluding prior year charges, exceptional current tax, and current tax on
exceptional :tems and on financial nstruments, divided by profit from continuing operations before tax, net gains/losses on financial
mstruments, exceptional items and share of net profit of joint ventures accounted for using the equity method.

[Currenryear current tax Charge in the income staternent — tax on exceplional iterns ~ tax on financial instrumentsf

{PBT - share of net profit of JVs — exceptional stems - net losses on financial instruments/

2018 2017

{restated)

Currenttax Current tax

thereon lhereon

£m £m Em £m

Profit before tax 302.4 (34.8] 3280 [473)
Adjustments:

Share af net [profit)/loss of joint ventures {0.2) - 18 -

Excephional items 12.6 [0.7} [16 &) 01)

Net losses on fimancial instruments 6.7 (3.3 18 49)

3215 (40.8) 3150 (52 3

Underlying effective current tax rate 12.7% 16 6%

This APM 1s used to remaove distortions in the underlying tax charge and create a metric consistent with the calculation of undertying
earnings per share in note 15, Share of net profit/loss of joint ventures Is excluded from the calculation because this s included after
tax and the tax on joint venture profits 1s therefore not included in the current tax charge
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47 Subsidiary undertakings
Cetails of all subsidiary undertakings as at 31 March 2018 are given below Details of the joint venture are sat out in note 19
All subsidiary undertakings have been included in the consolidation

Country of operation Percentage of Class of share
and incorporation share capilal held capitat held

United Kingdom 100% Ordinary

Owned directly by Severn Trent Ple
Severn [rent Investment Holdings Limited

The following subsidiary undertakings all operate and are incorporated in the United Kingdom. The percentage of share capital held
ts 100% and the class of share capilal held 1s ordinary.

Alt subsidiary undertakings
Aqua Deva Limited

Severn Trent Leasing Limited

Biogas Generation Limited

Severn Trent MIS Trustees Limited

Charles Haswell and Partners Limited

Severn Trent Metering Services Limited

Chester Water Limited

Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Limited

City Analyticat Services Limited

Severn Trent Pension Scherme Trustees Limited

Debeo Debt Recovery Limited

Severn Trent PIF Trustees Limited

Dee Valley Group Limited

Severn Trent Power Generation Limited

Dee Valley Lirnited

Severn Trent Property Selutions Limited

Dee Valley Services Limited

Severn Trent QUEST Limited

Dee Valley Water {Holdings) Limited

Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited

Dee Valley Water Limited

Severn Trent Relail and Ublity Services Limited

East Worcester Water Limited

Severn Trent Services [Water and Sewerage) Limited

Etwall Land Limited

Severn Trent Services Defence Holdings Limited

Gunthorpe Fields Limied

Severn Trent Services Defence Limited

Midiands Land Portfolio Limited

Severn Trent Services Finance Limited

Naorth Wales Gas Lirnited

Severn Trent Services Holdings Limited

Northern Gas Supplies Lirmited

Severn Trent Services International [Overseas Holdings) Limited

Severn Trent [W&S] Limited

Severn Trent Services International Lirmited

Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Limited

Severn Trent Services Operations UK Limited

Severn Trent Data Portal Lirmited

Severn Trent Services Purification | imited

Severn Trent Draycote Limited

Severn Trent Services UK Lirmited

Severn Trent Enterprises Limited

Severn Trent S5PS Trustees Limited

Severn Trent Finance Holdings Lirnited

Severn Trent Systems Limited

Severn Trent Finance Limited

Severn Trent Trimpley Limited

Severn Trent Financing and Investments Limited

Severn Trent US Funding Management Limited

Severn Trent Funding Limited

Severn Trent Utilities Finance Plc

Severn Trent General Partnership Limsted

Severn Trent Utility Services Limited

Severn Trent Green Power Limited

Severn Trent Water Limited

Severn Trent Holdings Limited

Severn Trenl Wind FPower Limited

Severn Trent Home Services Limited

UKTalks Limited

Severn Trent LCP Limitad

Wrexharm Water Limited

Atl subsidiary undertakings
Derwent Insurance Limited

Country of operation Percentage of Class ofshare
and incorporatian share capital held capital hekd

Gibraltar 100% Ordinary

Energy Supplies UK Limited

United Kingdom 100% Aand B Ordinary

Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited Guernsey 100% Ordinary

Procis Software Limited United Kingdor: ~ 100% Aand B Ordinary and Ordinary
Severn Trent Africa [Pty Ltd South Africa 100% Ordinary

Severn Trent Carsington Limsted United Kingdom 100% Aand B Ordinary L
Severn Trent Holdings SA Belgium 160% Ordinary

Severn Trent Response Limited Ireland 60% Ordinary

ST Delta Limited Uniled Kingdom 100% A and B Ordinary
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Group financial staterents

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

47 Subsidiary undertakings continued

Unless stated below, the registered office of the aforementioned entities 1s Severn Trent Centre, 2 5t John's Street, Coventry,

CV12LZ, United Kingdam

Company

Dee Vatley Limited

Dee Valley Water Lirmted

Derwent Insurance Limited

Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited

Severn Trent Africa [Pty] Ltd

Severn Trent General Partnership Lirnited
Severn Trent Holdings SA

Registered office

Packsaddle, Wrexham Road, Rhostyilen, Wrexham, LL14 4EH
Packsaddle, Wrexham Read, Rhostyllen, Wrexham, LL14 4EH
6A Queensway, PO Box 64, Gibraltar

St Martins House, Le Berdage, St Peter Port, GY1 4AU, Guernsey
2 Elgin Road, Sunninghitl, Johannesburg, South Africa

50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh, EH3 W)

Rond Paint Schurnan 6 box 5, 1040 Brussels, Belgium

Severn Trent Response Limited

6th Floor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, Ireland

Subsidiary audit exemptions

Severn Trent Plc has 1ssued guarantees over the liabilities of the following companies at 31 March 2018 under section 479C of
Companies Act 2006 and these entities are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of Individual accounts

by virtue of section 479A of the Act.

Company Company Number
Charles Haswell and Partners Limited 2416605
Chester Water Lirnited 2888872
City Analytical Services Limited 2050581
Dee Valley Group Limited 4316684
Dee Valley Limited 2902525
Dee Valley Water [Holdings] Limited 4421854
Fast Worcester Water Limited 2757948
Gunthorpe Fields Limited 4240764
Severn Trent (W&S] Limited 3995023
Severn Trent Carsington Limited 7570384
Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Limited 4395566
Severn Trent Data Portal Limited 8181048
Severn Trent Draycote Limited 7681784
Severn Trent Finance Holdings Limited 6044159
Severn Trent Finance Limnted 6294618
¥ Severn Trent Financing and Investrnents Limited 6312635
Severn Trent General Partnership Limited SC416614
Severn Trent Holdings Limited 5656363
Severn Trent Investment Holdings Limited 7560050
Severn Trent LCP Limited 7943556
Severn Trent Metering Services Limited 2549703
Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Limited 2455508
Severn Trent Power Generation Limited 26513
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited 3115315
Severn Trent Services Holdings Limited 43795572
Severn Trent Services International [Overseas Holdings] Limited 3125131
Severn Trent Services International Limited 2387816
Severn Trent Services Purification Limited 2409826
Severn Trent Services UK Limited 8120387
Severn Trent Systems Limited 2394552
Severn Trent Utility Services Limited 4125386
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Company financial statements

Company statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017

£m Em

Profit for the year 182.4 1730

Other comprehensive loss

Iterns that will nol ke reclassified to the income stalement

Net actuarial losses (9.1) -

Tax on net actuarial losses 1.5 -

Deferred tax arising on change of rate — (01

Other comprehensive loss for the year [7.8) 01)

Total comprehensive income for the year 174.8 1729

Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018 197

aedas nbisieng

EERISFERYY)

S ULAR, S |PUPLI[ Ao ,

SJIAWI}EIS |BIDUELIf AuBdWwo]

Jelelddo)dniay.g



Company financial statements

Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
£m Em £m £m Em
At 1 April 2816 2343 106 8 1607 29850 3,486 8
Profit for the year - - - 1730 1730
Deferred tax arising from rate change - - - 01 (0]
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - 172 9 1729
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds fram shares issued 04 57 - - 61
- value of employees services - - - 62 62
Dwidends paid - - - (190 4] (190 4}
At 31 March 2017 2347 1125 1607 29737 3,481 6
Profit for the year - - - 182 4 182 4
Net actuarial losses - - - [91] 91
Tax on net actuarial losses - - - 15 15
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - 174 8 174 8
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares issued D4 52 - - 56
-value of employees services - - - 69 69
Dividends paid - - - {197 0] (1970)
At31March 2018 235.1 177 160.7 2,958.4 3,4719

Included in retained earmings are profits of £1,221.2 million that arose from group reslrucluring arrangements in previous years and
are therefore not distributable
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2018

2018

207

vndas sba ong

Notes £m Em g’
Non-current assets i
Intangible fixed assets 2 0.2 03 u
Tangible fixed assets 3 0.2 03
Investments in subsidianes 4 3,330.0 3,3251
Deferred tax asset & 1.5 01
Trade and other recewvables h 527.6 10
3,859.5 33268 e
Current assets Z
Trade and other recevables 5 443 4936 5
Currenttax recewable 15.9 214 z
60.2 5150 =
Current liabilities 3
Borrowings 7 [17.2] o] =
Trade and other payables 8 (137.01 (265 2}
Provisions for liabilities and charges 9 (6.0) (2 4] 9
(160.2) (2732) 3
Net current {Liahilities)/assets (100.0 2418 2
Total assets less current Liabilties 3,759.5 356846 2
Non-current Liabilities B
Berrowings 7 (85.4 (82 3] §
Trade and other payables _ 8 (189.0} (30} g
Retirement benefit obligations 14 {8.71 ~ &)
Provisions for babilities and charges ? (4.5 7 e
(287.6) (870] *
Net assets 3,479 34814 g
Capital and reserves §
Called up share capntal 10 235.1 2347 ®
Share premium account i 117.7 125
Other reserves 12 160.7 1607
Retained earnings 2,958.4 29737 S
Total capital and reserves 3,4719 3,481 6

The profit for the yearis £182.4 million (2017 £173 0 milbion]
Signed on behalf of the Board who approved the accounts on 22 May 2018

Andrew Duff James Bowling

Chairman Chief Financial Officer

Company nurnber 02366619
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Company financial statements

Notes to the parent company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1 Employee numbers
The average number of employees during the year was ¢ (2017.12]

2 Intangible fixed assets

Purchased
<oftware
£m
Cost
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 1.1
Amortisation
At 1 April 2017 [0 8}
Amortisation for the year 01
At 31 March 2018 0.9)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 0.2
At 31 March 2017 03
3 Tangible fixed assets
Land and Office ixtures
buldings  andequipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 0.1 0.6 0.7
Depreciation
At Apnl 2017 - (04) (0 4]
Charge for the year - 01 01
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 - (9.5) (0.5]
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 0.1 0.1 0.2
At 31 March 2017 01 02 03
4 Investments in subsidiaries
£m
At Apnl 2017 3.3251
Additions 659
Impairment (20l
At 31 March 2018 3,330.0
Details of principal subsidiaries of the company are given in note 47 to the group financial statermnents.,
5 Trade and other receivables
2018 2017
£m £m
Current assets
Other amounts recevable id 30
Prepayments 0.5 05
Amounts owed by group undertakings under loan agreements - 4677
Amounts owed by group undertakings 39.4 22 4
44.3 493 4
Non-current assets
Other amounts recewvable 16 —
Loan receivable 26.4 -
Amounts owed by group undertakings under loan agreements 499.6 10
527.6 10
571.9 494 4
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6 Deferred tax

Retirement Fair value
Accelerated tax henefit of inancial
depreciation ebligations instruments Other Total
£m £€m £m Em £m
At 1.Apnl 2076 01 - 03 05 07
Charge to income - - - [0 6) 04
Credit to Inceme anising from rate change — - 01 - 01
Charge to equity ansing from rate change - - 01 - 01
At 1 April 2017 01 - U1 01 07
Charge/lcredit] to ncome 01 - 01 01 1)
Credit to equity - 15 - - 13
At 31 March 2018 - 1.5 - - 1.5
7 Borrowings
2018 2017
£m £m
Current liabilities
Bank gverdraft 17.2 54
Non-current liabilities
Other loans 85.4 823
102.6 879

Non-current berrowings comprises the company's RPI linked retail bend 1ssued in July 2012 The bond carries a coupon of 1 3% on

the principal amount which s uplifted by RPI The bond 1s repayable in July 2022

At the balance sheet date the cormpany had £100 rritlion [2017 £100 rulticn) undrawn borrowing facilities

8 Trade payables
2018 2017
£m Em
Current Liabilities
Trade payables 0.5 02
Social security and other taxes 0.5 01
Other payables 2.8 28
Accruals 4.0 11
Amounts due to group undertakings 129.2 2610
137.0 2652
Non-current liabilities
Arnounts due to group undertakings 18%.0 30
326.0 2682
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Company financial statements

Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

9 Provisions

Insurance Other Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2017 - 41 41
Charged to income staterent - 09 09
Utilisation of provision - 01) .1
Transfer from group company 56 - 54
ﬁt__§1 March 2018 5.6 49 10.5
2018 2017
£m £

Included in:
Current liabilites 6.0 24
@-currem liabilihes 4.5 17
10.5 41

Insurance includes provisions transferred from Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance company, which 1s a wholly owned

subsidiary of the group The asscciated claims outflows are estimated to arise over a period of up to five years from the balance

sheet date

Other provisions include prowisions for dilapidations and cormmercial disputes. The associated outflows are estimated to arise over

a peried up to five years from the batance sheet date

At 1 Aprit

10 Share capital
2018 207
- £m €m
Total 1ssued and fully paid share capital
240,222,617 ordmary shares of 97"/-,p 12017 239,793915} 2354 2347
At 31 March 2018, treasury shares of 3,948.59% were held (2017 4,080,964)
Changes in share capital were as follows
Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97"/ ;:p
At 1 April 2016 239344614 2343
Shares 1ssued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 449,301 04
At 1Apnl 2017 239793515 2347
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 428702 04
At 31 March 2018 240,222,617 2351
11 Share premium
2018 2017
£m £m
112.5 106 8
Share premium arising on Issue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme 5.2 57
At 31 March 177 1125
12 Other reserves
Capital
redemption Hedgng
reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 2018 157.1 3.6 160.7

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on nterest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting provisions

of IAS 3% and the transition rules of IFRS 1
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13 Share based payments

For details of employee share schemes and options granted over the shares of the company, see note 37 of the group financial
statements Details of options exercised and awards vesting during the year and of the weighted average share price of the company
during the year are also disclosed in that note

14 Pensions

Defined benefit schemes

The group operates defined benefit pension schemes, of which some employees of the company are members There 1s no
contractual agreement for charging the net defined benefit cost of these schemes between the companies that participste in the
schemes, As a result, the nat defined benefit cost of the scheme s recegnised in the financial statements of the sponsoring employer,
Severn Trent Water Lirmited The scheme closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015 The cost of contributions to the group schemes
amount to £0.6 milben (2017 nill. There were no amounts oulstanding for contributions to the defined benefit schemes (2617 nil),

The company has an obligation to pay pensions to a nuiber of forimer employees, whose benetits would otherwise have been
restricted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap This unfunded scheme 1s part of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme In prior years,
the unfunded pension scheme was recorded in Severn Trent Water Limited As the cbligations under the scheme are borne by Severn
Trent Plc, the unfunded pension scheme obligation and corresponding deferred tax asset are now held within Severn Trent Ple

Information abcut the plans as a whole s disclosed in note 28 to the group financial statements

15 Related party transactions

The retirement benefit schemes operated by the company are considered to be related parties. Details of transactions and balances
with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 14.

The company has given guar antees in favour of Water Plus Limited in respect of the joint venture's habilities to whoelesalers in the
Cpen Water market and its loan from Severn Trent Water Limited The guarantee in respect of liabilities to wholesalers 1s capped
at £42 5 mithion [2017- £42.5 million] and the guarantee for the Severn Trent Water loan is for the amount due

16 Contingent liabilities

a) Bonds and guarantees
The company has entered inte bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No liabilities are expected to arise in respect
of either the bonds or guarantees

b) Bank offset arrangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with certain of its subsidiary undertakings Under these
arrangements participating companies guarantee each others’ overdrawn balances to the extent of their credit balances, which
can be offset aganst balances of participating companies. As at 31 March 2018, the company had no contingent Lizbibities (2017 il

17 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dnvidend of 1,92 pence per share.

18 Dividends

For details of the dividends paid in the year s ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 see note 14 i the group financial statements,
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pOther information

Five year summary
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
[restated!
£m £m Em Em Em
Turnover 1,694.1 16380 1,7537 18013 17567
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems 541.0 5201 503 4 5403 5238
Net exceptional iterms before tax (12.4) 16 6 10 {18 7] (15 2)
Net interest payable before [losses)/gains on financial
instruments and exceptional finance costs [219.5) (205 1) (209 3) (240 0) [2479)
(Lesses)/gains on financial instruments 6.7 i18) 77 [1335] 580
Results of joint ventures 0.2 {18) a1 01 02
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 302.4 3280 3029 148 2 3189
Current taxation on profit on ordinary actvities (32.9) (36 3] (513 (378 (55 8]
Deferred taxation (29.01 (22 4] 137 51 (21 5)
-E:cept\onaltax ~ 522 78 4 - 2302
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 240.5 3215 3165 1155 4718
Results from discontinued operations 13.2 211 14 8 47 -
Profit for the year 2537 3425 3313 120 2 4718
Net assets employed
Fixed assets 8,660.1 83157 78108 76200 7,418 3
Other net labilities excluding net debt, retirement benefit
obligation, provisions and deferred tax [960.9) 916 8) {798 4] (799 0] [6311)
Derwvative financial instruments* (104.3) a1 1) (164 3] 11777 1197 1)
Net retirement benefit obligation (519.8] (574 &) (309 5) 1468 9) (348 3)
Provisions for liabilibes and charges and deferred tax (725.7) (657 5] (694 7] (725 4 (758 51
Net assets held for sale - - - 726 -
6,350.3 6,0057 58419 55216 54833
Financed by
Called up share capital 2351 2347 2343 2337 2339
Reserves 758.6 688 & 7831 5219 789 4
Total shareholders’ funds 993.7 9233 1,017 4 755 4 1.0233
Nan-contrelling interests - - 11 134 125
Net debt? 5,356.6 5,082 4 4,823 4 4,752 6 4,4475
6,350.3 6,005 7 58419 55216 5,483 3
Statistics
Earnings per share [continuing) - pence 102.2 136 8 1335 483 198 5
Underlying basic earnings per share - pence 1210 1L 7 1021 1077 925
Diadends per share [excluding special dividend) - pence 86.6 815 807 849 80 4
Dwidend cover [before exceptional items and deferred tax) 1.4 14 13 13 12
aaf‘mg" 84.4% 84 6% 82 6% 86 1% 81 1%
Ordinary share price at 31 March - pounds 18.44 2382 2173 2059 18 23
Average number of employees
- Regulated Water and Waste \Water 5,660 5,273 5.236 5,532 5,634
— Other 4605 596 2122 1910 1914

1 Restated as set cul innole 2to the grouo financial statements
2 Excludesinstruments hedaing foreign currency debt

3 Includesinstruments hedging foreign currency debt

4 Gearing has been calculated as net debt divided by the sum of eguity and net debt
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Information for shareholders

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

Tha Company's registrar is Equiniti Equinin’s main
responsibibities include maintaming the shareholder
register and making dvidend payments.

If you have any queries relating to your Severn Trent Plc
sharehotding you should contact Equinity

Registrar contact details,

Online: www shareview.co uk from here you will be able
to securely email Equinitiwith yaur query.

Telephone: 0371 384 2967*
Overseas enquiries: +44 121 415 7044
Text phone: 0371 384 2255*

By post: Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lan<ing,
West Sussex, BN99 6DA

Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit our website
www.severntrent.com which prowides

» Company news and information,

¢ links to our operational businesses websites,

* detalls of our governance arrangerents,

* details of our strategy,

* details of the Group’s business models and business plan, and
* the Company's approach to operating responsibly

There Is alsc a dedicated investors’ section on the website which
contains up te date information for shareholders including

= comprehensive share price information,
¢ linancial results,
a history of dividend payment dates and amounts, and

* access to current and historical shareholder documents such
as the Annual Report and Accounts

Electronic communications

By registering to receive shareholder docurmentation from
Severn Trent Plc electronically shareholders can benefit from
being able to

» view the Annual Report and Accounts on the day it I1s published,
* recewve an emait alert when shareholder documents

are avalable,

cast their AGM vote electronically, and

manage their shareholding quickly and securely onling,
through Shareview.

Electronic shareholder communications also enable the
Company to reduce its impact on the environment and benefit
from savings associated with reduced printing and mailing costs

For further information and to register for electronic shareholder
communications visit www shareview.co uk

Dividend payments

Bank mandates
Dividends can be paid automaticatly into your bank or building
soclety account
The benefits of doing this are thal you will
« receve cleared funds in your bank account on the
payment date,
* avoid postal celays, and
+ remove the risk of your cheques getting lost in the post
To take advantage of this service or for further details contact
Equiniti or visit www shareview.co uk

Dividend reinvestment plan [DRIP’)

The DRIP gives shareholders the option of using their dividend
payments to buy rore Severn Trent Plc shares instead of
receving cash. If you would like to participate in the DRIP, please
request a dividend reinvestment plan mandate from Equiniti
Financial Services Limited

Telephone: 0371 384 2268*
Telephone number from outside the UK: +44 121 415 7173
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Other information

information for shareholders continued

Buying and selling shares in the UK

If youwish to buy or sell certificated Severn Trent Plc shares, you
may need to use a stockbroker or high street bank which trades
on the London Stock Exchange There are also many telephone
and online services available to you

if you are sething, you will need 1o present your share certificate
at the ime of sate Details of low cost dealing services may be
obtained from www.shareview co uk or 0345 603 7037**

Share price information

Sharehaolders can find share price infor mation on our website
and in most national newspapers. Far a real time buying or
selling price, you sheuld centact a stockbroker

Shareholder security

Fraudsters use persuasive and huigh pressure tachics to lure
investors into scams They may offer to sell shares that turn out
to be worthless or non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated
price in return for an upfront payment. While high profits are
promised, If you buy or sell shares in this way you will probably
lose your maney

How to avord share fraud

* Keepin mind Lhat irms autherised by the Financial Conduct
Autherity [FCAT are unlikely to contact you out of the blue with
an offer to buy or sell shares

Do nat get into a conversation, note the name of the person and
firm contacting you and then end the call.

Check the Financial Services Register at www fca org uk to see
if Lhe person and firm conlacling you is authorised by the FCA,

Beware of fraudsters claining to be from an authorised fom,
copying ts website or giving you false contact details

* Use the firm’s contact details listed on the Register if you want
to call it back

Cail the FCA on 0800 117 6768 f the firm does not have contact
details on the Register or you are tald they are out of date
Search the list of unauthorised firms to avod at

www fca.org uk/scams

Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised
firm you will nol have access to the Financial Umbudsman
Service or Financial Services Compensation Scheme

*

-

Think about getting independent financial and professional
advice befere you hand over any money.

* Remember, It it sounds too good to be true, it probably 1s

If you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using the
share fraud reparting form at www fca org uk/scams, where you
can find out more about Mvestiment scams,

You can alsg call the FCA Consurner Helpline on 0800 111 6768

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters you should
contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040,
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Unsolicited mail

The Company is legally ebliged to make its share register
available to the general public Consequently some sharehoelders
rnay receve unsolicited mail If you wish to imit the amount of
unselicited mail you receive please contact

The Mailing Preference Service MPSY), Freepost 29 LONZ07,
London WIEDZT

Alternatively, register online at www mpsonline.org.uk or call
the MPS Registration line on 0845 703 4599,

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs’)
Severn Trent has a sponsored Level 1 American Depositary
Receipt (ADR’] pregramme, for which The Bank of New York
Mellon acts as Depositary

The Level 1 ADR programme trades on QTCOX whichis the
prermier tier of the US over the counter [OTC') market under
the symbol STRNY [it1s not listed on a US stock exchange).
Each ADR represents 1 5evern Trent Ordinary Share.

If you have any enquiries regarding Severn Trent ADRs
ptease contact The Bank of New York Mellon

By post: BNY Mellon Shareowners Services, PO Box 30170,
College Station, TX 77842-3170,US

By telephane:

f calting frarmowithin the US- 1888] 249 2377 (tall-free

If calling from outside the US +1 201 680 6825
By email: shrrelations@cpusharecwnerservices com

Website: www mybnymdr cem

* Lines are open 8 30am ta 5 30pm Monday to Friday (ex luding public holidays
in Cngland and Wales]

** Lines are open Monday to Friday 8 00am to 4 30pm for dealing, and untit
& 00pm far enguinies



Financial calendar

Ex dividend date - fina: dividend 14 June 2018
Record date to be eagible for the final dividend 15 Junc 2018
AGM 18 July 2018
Interim management staterment - Q1 year ending 31 March 2019 18 Juby 2018

Final dividend payment date

20 July 2018

Interim resutts anncuncement - year ending 31 March 2019

22 November 2018

Ex dividend date - interim dividend

29 November 2018

Record date to be eligible for the interim dividend

Interim dradend payment date

1
30 Novernber 2018
4 January 2019

Al dates are indicative and may be subject to change
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Design and production by Radley Yeldar www ry com

This repert has been printed on Galerie Satin, a paper which s
certified by the Forest Stewardship Councit® The paperis made at a
millwith IS0 14001 Environmental Management System accreditation

Printed by CPI Colour using vegetable oil based inks, CPlis a
CarbonNeutral® printer, certified to ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System and registered to EMAS, the Eco Management
and Audit Scheme
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Severn Trent Pl
Registered office:
Severn Trent Centre
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